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1. INTRODUCTION

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company dedicated to the discovery, development and
commercialization of exceptional, innovative therapies for patients suffering from serious diseases, with a focus
on cancer. Based on our leading expertise in antibody, protein and peptide technologies, we, together with our
partners, have developed and contributed to the development of more than 100 product candidates. Our broad
pipeline spans two business segments: Proprietary Development, in which we invest in and develop product
candidates, and Partnered Discovery, in which we generate product candidates for our partners in the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries against targets identified by our partners. We currently have 29
product candidates in clinical development, including our most advanced proprietary product candidate,
MOR?208, for the treatment of relapsed or refractory diffuse large B cell lymphoma, or r/r DLBCL. We believe
our pipeline of novel and differentiated product candidates has the potential to treat serious diseases and improve
the lives of patients.

Based on our heritage as an antibody discovery and development company, we have a large and diverse pipeline,
composed of both proprietary and partnered programs, in multiple therapeutic areas and across all development
phases. The combination of our technology platforms and antibody expertise has allowed us to generate
promising product candidates and enter into multiple strategic collaborations with leading global pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies. These collaborations provide us with an additional funding source and allow us to
leverage our collaborators’ expertise to advance the development of our proprietary product candidates.

2. SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements concerning our business, operations and financial performance
and condition as well as our plans, objectives and expectations for our business operations and financial
performance and condition. Any statements that are not of historical facts may be deemed to be forward-looking
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statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements by words such as “believes”, “estimates”,
“anticipates”, “expects”, “plans”, “intends”, “may”’, “could”, “might”, “will”, “should”, “aims” or other similar
expressions that convey uncertainty of future events or outcomes. Forward-looking statements appear in a
number of places throughout this report and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs, assumptions,
projections, outlook, analyses or current expectations concerning, among other things, our intellectual property
position, results of operations, cash needs, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth and strategies, the

industry in which we operate and the trends that may affect the industry or us.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events,
competitive dynamics and industry change, and depend on economic circumstances that may or may not occur in
the future or may occur on longer or shorter timelines than anticipated. Although we believe that we have a
reasonable basis for each forward-looking statement contained in this report, we caution you that forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors that are in some cases beyond our control. All of our forward-looking statements are subject to
risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations. These
forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements about the following:

e the timing, progress and results of preclinical studies and clinical trials for our product candidates, including
statements regarding the timing of initiation and completion of studies or trials and related preparatory
work, the period during which the results of the trials will become available and our research and
development programs;

e the timing of and our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approval for our product candidates;

e the proposed clinical development pathway for MOR208 and our other product candidates, and the
acceptability of the results of such trials for regulatory approval of such product candidates by the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration (FDA) or comparable foreign regulatory authorities;



e our expectations regarding the size of the patient populations for our product candidates, if approved for
commercial use;

* our expectations regarding timing for meetings with regulatory agencies;
* our intent regarding the commercialization of MOR208;

e our estimates of our expenses, ongoing losses, future revenue, capital requirements and our needs for or
ability to obtain additional financing;

e our ability to identify and develop new product candidates;

e our ability to identify new collaboration partners and successfully enter into new collaboration
arrangements;

e our ability to identify, recruit and retain key personnel;

e our and our collaborators’ ability to protect and enforce our intellectual property protection for our
proprietary and partnered product candidates, and the scope of such protection;

e our expectations with regard to our future revenues and our future financial condition;
* our expectations regarding the future development of MOR202 in MM;
e the development of and projections relating to our competitors or our industry; and

* our expectations regarding the time during which we will be an emerging growth company under the JOBS
Act and a foreign private issuer.

Actual results could differ materially from our forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including,
the risks set forth under the section “Risk Factors” of this report and elsewhere in this report.

Any forward-looking statements that we make in this report speak only as of the date of such statement, and we
undertake no obligation to update such statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this report
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

3. RISKFACTORS

Investing in our shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties
described below, which we believe are the material risks of our business, our industry, our intellectual property,
our shares, before making an investment decision. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition and operating results could be harmed. In that case, the trading price of our shares could
decline and you might lose all or part of your investment. In assessing these risks, you should also refer to the
other information contained in this report, including MorphoSys AG’s consolidated financial statements and the
related notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report. In addition, more detailed information on the risk
management system as a basis for internal risk and opportunity management can be found in the “Risk and
Opportunity Report” (see Section 4f).

Risks Related to Our Financial Condition

We cannot assure you of the adequacy of our capital resources to successfully complete the development
and commercialization of our product candidates, and a failure to obtain additional capital, if needed,
could force us to delay, limit, reduce or terminate one or more of our product development programs or
commercialization efforts.

As of December 31, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value, with changes
recognized in profit or loss, and current and non-current financial assets at amortized cost of € 454.7 million. We
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believe that we will continue to expend substantial resources for the foreseeable future developing our
proprietary product candidates and in particular MOR208. These expenditures will include costs associated with
research and development, conducting preclinical studies and clinical trials, seeking regulatory approvals, as well
as launching and commercializing of products approved for sale, if any, and potentially acquiring new products.
In addition, other unanticipated costs may arise. Because the outcome of our anticipated clinical trials is highly
uncertain, we cannot reasonably estimate the actual amounts necessary to successfully complete the development
and commercialization of our proprietary product candidates.

Our future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including but not limited to:
» the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with developing therapeutic product candidates;
e the number and characteristics of product candidates that we pursue;

» the rate of enrollment, the need to expand, progress, costs and outcomes of our clinical trials, which may or
may not meet their intended end-points;

e the timing of, and cost involved in, conducting non-clinical studies that are regulatory prerequisites to
conducting clinical trials of sufficient duration for successful product registration;

* the cost of manufacturing clinical supply and establishing commercial supply of our product candidates;

e the timing of, and the costs involved in, obtaining regulatory approvals for our product candidates if clinical
trials are successful;

» the timing of, and costs involved in, conducting post-approval studies that may be required by regulatory
authorities;

* the cost of commercialization activities for our product candidates, if any of our product candidates are
approved for sale;

* the terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing, and other arrangements that we may establish,
including any required milestone and royalty payments thereunder and any non-dilutive funding that we
may receive;

e the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining, defending and enforcing patent claims,
including litigation costs, if any, and the outcome of any such litigation;

» the timing, receipt, and amount of sales of, or royalties or milestones on, our existing and future products, if
any; and

e the costs to recruit and build the commercial organization including key executives needed to transform.

In addition, our operating plan may change as a result of many factors currently unknown to us. As a result of
these factors, we may need additional funds sooner than planned. We expect to finance future cash needs
primarily through a combination of public or private equity offerings, strategic collaborations and non-dilutive
funding. If sufficient funds on acceptable terms are not available when needed, or at all, we could be forced to
significantly reduce operating expenses and delay, limit, reduce or terminate one or more of our product
development programs or commercialization efforts.

We have incurred significant losses since inception and anticipate that we will continue to incur losses in
the future.

We are a late-stage biopharmaceutical company. We have incurred significant losses since our inception. Our
consolidated net loss for the year ended December 31, 2018 was €56.2 million. As of December 31, 2018, our
accumulated deficit was approximately €152.8 million. We expect to continue to incur losses in the future as we
continue our research and development of, and seek regulatory approvals for, our product candidates, prepare for

3



and begin to commercialize any approved product candidates and add infrastructure and personnel to support our
product development efforts and operations as a public company in the United States. The net losses and negative
cash flows incurred to date, together with expected future losses, have had, and likely will continue to have, an
adverse effect on our shareholders’ deficit and working capital. The amount of future net losses will depend, in
part, on the rate of future growth of our expenses and our ability to generate revenue.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with biopharmaceutical product development, we are
unable to accurately predict the timing or amount of expenses or when, or if, we will be able to achieve
profitability. For example, our expenses could increase if we are required by the FDA or the European Medicines
Agency (EMA) to perform trials in addition to those that we currently expect to perform, or if there are any
delays in completing our currently planned clinical trials, the partnering process for our proprietary product
candidates or in the development of any of our proprietary product candidates.

Our revenue to date has been primarily revenue from the license of our proprietary technology platforms and
from milestone and royalty payments for our product candidates against targets provided by our collaborators.
Our ability to generate revenue and achieve profitability in the future depends in large part on our ability, alone
or with our collaborators, to achieve milestones and to successfully complete the development of, obtain the
necessary regulatory approvals for, and commercialize, product candidates. This will require us to be successful
in a range of challenging activities, including developing product candidates, obtaining regulatory approval for
such product candidates, and manufacturing, marketing and selling those product candidates for which we may
obtain regulatory approval. We may never succeed in these activities and may never generate revenue from
product sales that is significant enough to achieve profitability. In addition, our revenues depend on the activities
of our partners, over which we have no control, in respect of pursuing research and clinical trial activities and,
where marketing approval has been granted, commercialization of our product candidates. Even if we achieve
profitability in the future, we may not be able to sustain profitability in subsequent periods. Our failure to become
or remain profitable would depress our market value and could impair our ability to raise capital, expand our
business, develop other product candidates, or continue our operations. A decline in the value of our company
could also cause you to lose all or part of your investment.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly in the future.

Our results of operations may fluctuate significantly in the future due to a variety of factors, many of which are
outside of our control. The revenues we generate, if any, and our operating results will be affected by numerous
factors, including, but not limited to:

e the development status of our product candidates and, particularly, the timing of any milestone payments to
be paid or received by us under our collaboration agreements;

e the incurrence of clinical expenses that could fluctuate significantly from period to period;

e the commercial success of the products marketed by our partners, in particular Tremfya®, and the amount of
royalties to us associated therewith;

e foreign exchange fluctuations
e the unpredictable effects of collaborations during these periods;
* the timing of our satisfaction of applicable regulatory requirements;
* the rate of expansion of our clinical development and other development efforts;
* the effect of competing technologies and products and market developments; and
e general and industry-specific economic conditions.
If our operating results fall below the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the price of our ordinary

shares could decline substantially and any fluctuations in our operating results and cash flows may, in turn, cause
the price of our shares to fluctuate substantially.



Raising additional capital may cause dilution to our shareholders, restrict our operations or require us to
relinquish rights to our technologies or product candidates.

Identifying and acquiring rights to develop potential product candidates and conducting preclinical testing and
clinical trials is a time-consuming, expensive and uncertain process that may take years to complete. We may
never generate the necessary data or results required to obtain regulatory approval and achieve product sales, and
even if one or more of our product candidates is approved, they may not achieve commercial success.
Accordingly, we will need to continue to rely on additional financing to achieve our business objectives.
Adequate additional financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all.

We may seek additional funding through a combination of equity offerings, debt financings, including
convertible bond offerings, collaborations, licensing arrangements, strategic alliances and marketing or
distribution arrangements. To the extent that we raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible
debt securities, your ownership interest will be diluted, and the terms may include liquidation or other
preferences that adversely affect your rights as a holder of our shares. The incurrence of indebtedness or the
issuance of certain equity securities could result in increased fixed payment obligations and could also result in
certain additional restrictive covenants, such as limitations on our ability to incur additional debt or issue
additional equity, limitations on our ability to acquire or license intellectual property rights and other operating
restrictions that could adversely impact our ability to conduct our business. In addition, issuance of additional
equity securities, or the possibility of such issuance, may cause the market price of our shares to decline. In the
event that we enter into collaborations or licensing arrangements to raise capital, we may be required to accept
unfavorable terms, including relinquishing or licensing to a third party on unfavorable terms our rights to
technologies or product candidates that we otherwise would seek to develop or commercialize ourselves or
potentially reserve for future potential arrangements when we might be able to achieve more favorable terms.

A substantial portion of our historical revenues are from a limited number of strategic collaborations and
partnerships, and the termination of these collaborations could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Historically, we derived a substantial portion of our revenues from a limited number of collaborations, under
which we generated revenues through licensing arrangements such as research and development payments,
upfront payments, milestone payments, and, once a product is commercialized, royalty payments based on a
portion of the revenue of product sold. We expect royalties from Janssen on sales of Tremfya® to account for a
substantial portion of our revenues for the next several years. The loss of any significant collaborator or any
significant reduction in payments by a collaborator may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to the Development, Clinical Testing and Commercialization of Our Product Candidates

All of our proprietary product candidates are still in preclinical or clinical development, and only one of
our partnered products has been approved for marketing and sale. We cannot give any assurance that any
of our product candidates will receive regulatory approval, and if we are unable to obtain regulatory
approval and ultimately commercialize our product candidates or experience significant delays in doing
so, our business will be materially harmed.

All of our proprietary product candidates are still in preclinical or clinical development, and only one of our
partnered products, Tremfya®, has received regulatory approval. Although we may receive certain payments
from our collaboration partners, including upfront payments, payments for achieving certain development,
regulatory or commercial milestones and royalties, our ability to generate revenue from our product candidates’
sales is dependent on receipt of regulatory approval for, and successful commercialization of, such product
candidates, which may never occur. Our business and future success is in particular dependent on our ability to
develop, either alone or in partnership, successfully, receive regulatory approval for, and then successfully
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commercialize our proprietary product candidates, in particular MOR?208. Each of our product candidates will
require additional preclinical and/or clinical development, regulatory approval in multiple jurisdictions,
manufacturing supply, substantial investment and significant marketing efforts before we generate any revenue
from product sales or royalties. We are not permitted to market or promote any of our product candidates before
we receive regulatory approval from applicable regulatory authorities. The success of our product candidates will
depend on several factors, including the following:

successful completion of preclinical and/or clinical studies;

successful enrollment of patients in, and completion of, clinical trials;

successful demonstration of reproducibility in the production process and ability for market supply;
strategic commitment to particular product candidates and indications by us and our collaborators;
receipt of regulatory authorizations from applicable regulatory authorities for future clinical trials;
receipt of product approvals, including marketing approvals, from applicable regulatory authorities;

successful validation of biomarkers and development of biomarker assays in those studies or programs
where biomarkers are part of the development plan

successful completion of all safety studies required to obtain regulatory approval in the United States, the
European Union and other jurisdictions for our product candidates;

obtaining and maintaining patent and trade secret protection or regulatory exclusivity for our product
candidates;

securing market supply and distribution network

launching commercial sales of our product candidates, if and when approved, whether alone or in
collaboration with others;

acceptance of the product candidates, if and when approved, by patients, the medical community and third-
party payors;

effectively competing with other therapies and ability to demonstrate clinically meaningful results;
obtaining and maintaining coverage and adequate reimbursement from third-party payors;

enforcing and defending intellectual property rights and claims;

maintaining a continued acceptable safety and quality profile of the product candidates following approval;
and

maintaining a continued, sufficient supply of drug substance in acceptable quality.

If we do not achieve one or more of these factors in a complete and timely manner or at all, we could experience
significant delays or an inability to successfully commercialize our product candidates, which would materially
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects and, in case of product
candidates, technologies and licenses we have acquired, may result in a significant impairment of assets.

We have not previously submitted a biologics license application, or BLA, to the FDA, or similar regulatory
approval filings to comparable foreign authorities, for any product candidate, and we cannot be certain that any
of our product candidates will be successful in clinical trials or receive regulatory approval. Further, our product
candidates may not receive regulatory approval even if they are successful in clinical trials and CMC (chemistry,
manufacturing and controls). If we do not receive regulatory approvals for our product candidates, we may not be
able to continue our operations. Even if we successfully obtain regulatory approvals to market one or more of our

product candidates, our revenues will be dependent, in part, upon the size of the markets in the territories for
which we gain regulatory approval and have commercial rights. If the markets for patient subsets that we are
targeting are not as significant as we estimate, we may not generate significant revenues from sales of such
products, if approved.



We plan to seek regulatory approval to commercialize our product candidates both in the United States and the
EU, and potentially in additional foreign countries. While the scope of regulatory approval is similar in other
countries, to obtain separate regulatory approval in many other countries, we must comply with numerous and
varying regulatory requirements of such countries regarding safety and efficacy and governing, among other
things, clinical trials and commercial sales, pricing and distribution of our product candidates, and we cannot
predict success in these jurisdictions.

Clinical trials are very expensive, time consuming and difficult to design and implement and involve
uncertain outcomes. If clinical trials or production of our product candidates are prolonged, delayed or
terminated, we may be unable to obtain required regulatory approvals, and therefore be unable to
commercialize our product candidates on a timely basis or at all, which may materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We are currently conducting clinical trials for MOR208, MOR202, and MOR106. Each of our clinical trials
requires the investment of substantial expense and time and the timing of the commencement, continuation and
completion of these clinical trials may be subject to significant delays or termination relating to various causes,
including, among other things:

e scheduling conflicts with participating clinicians and clinical institutions;

e difficulties in identifying and enrolling patients who meet trial eligibility criteria;

» failure of patients to complete the clinical trials or return for post-treatment follow-up;
e delays in accumulating the required number of clinical events for data analyses;

» clinical investigators or sites deviating from trial protocol or failing to comply with regulatory requirements
or meet their contractual obligations;

e delay or failure to obtain required approvals;

e delays in or failure to reach agreement on acceptable terms with prospective contract research organizations,
or CROs, and clinical trial sites, the terms of which can be subject to extensive negotiation and may vary
significantly among different CROs and trial sites;

e delays in or failure to obtain institutional review board, or IRB, approval at each site;

e failure of third-party contractors used in our clinical trials or contract manufacturing organizations, or
CMOs, to comply with regulatory requirements or meet their contractual obligations in a timely manner, or
not at all;

e changes in regulatory requirements;
e the development and approval of competitive products;

e results from clinical trials of competing compounds, which may give rise to concerns about the target, the
envisioned mode of action, the compound class or the commercial potential of the product candidate we are
evaluating;

e higher-than-expected costs of clinical trials of our product candidates; and

* insufficient, inadequate or prohibitively expensive supply or quality of our product candidates or other
materials necessary to conduct clinical trials of our product candidate.

We do not know whether any of our clinical trials will begin as planned, will need to be redesigned or amended
or will be completed on schedule, or at all. Clinical testing is expensive and can take many years to complete,
and its outcome is inherently uncertain. Failure can occur at any time during the clinical trial process. We could
encounter delays if a clinical trial is suspended or terminated by us, by the IRBs of the institutions in which such
trials are being conducted, by a data review committee or data safety monitoring board for such trial or by the
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FDA or other regulatory authorities. Such authorities may impose such a suspension or termination due to a
number of factors, including failure to conduct the clinical trial in accordance with regulatory requirements or
our clinical protocols, inspection of the clinical trial operations or trial site by the FDA or other regulatory
authorities resulting in the imposition of a clinical hold, safety issues or adverse side effects, failure to
demonstrate a benefit from using a drug, changes in governmental regulations or administrative actions or lack of
adequate funding to continue the clinical trial. If we experience delays in the completion of, or termination of,
any clinical trial of our product candidates, the commercial prospects of our product candidates will be harmed,
and our ability to generate product revenues from any of these product candidates will be delayed. In addition,
any delays in completing our clinical trials will increase our costs, slow down our product candidate development
and approval process and jeopardize our ability to commence product sales and generate revenues. Significant
clinical trial delays could also allow our competitors to bring products to market before we do or shorten any
periods during which we have the exclusive right to commercialize our product candidates and impair our ability
to commercialize our product candidates, and may harm our business and results of operations. In addition, some
of the factors that cause, or lead to, a delay in the commencement or completion of clinical trials may also
ultimately lead to the denial of regulatory approval of our product candidates.

Clinical trials must be conducted with supplies of our product candidates produced under current good
manufacturing practice, or cGMP, requirements and other regulations. Furthermore, we rely on CROs and
clinical trial sites to ensure the proper and timely conduct of our clinical trials and while we have agreements
governing their committed activities, we have limited influence over their actual performance. We depend on our
collaborators and on medical institutions and CROs to conduct our clinical trials in compliance with Good
Clinical Practice, or GCP, requirements. To the extent our collaborators or the CROs fail to enroll participants for
our clinical trials, fail to conduct the study to GCP standards or are delayed for a significant time or fail in the
execution of trials, including achieving full enrollment, we may be affected by increased costs, program delays or
both, which may harm our business.

If we are unable to successfully complete clinical trials of our product candidates or other testing, if the results of
these trials or tests are unfavorable or are only modestly favorable, if there are safety concerns associated with
our product candidates, we may decide to develop in the future, or if we are required to conduct additional
clinical trials or other testing of our product candidates that we may develop in future beyond the trials and
testing that we contemplate, we may:

e be delayed in obtaining marketing approval for our product candidates;
* not obtain marketing approval at all;
e obtain approval for indications or patient populations that are not as broad as intended or desired;

e obtain approval with product labeling that includes significant use or distribution restrictions or significant
safety warnings, including boxed warnings;

* be subject to additional post-marketing testing or other requirements; or
e remove the product from the market after obtaining marketing approval.

The occurrence of any such events may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

The incidence and prevalence for target patient populations of our product candidates are based on
estimates and third-party sources. If the market opportunities for our product candidates are smaller than
we estimate or if any approval that we obtain is based on a narrower definition of the patient population,
our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially adversely affected.

Periodically, we make estimates regarding the incidence and prevalence of target patient populations for
particular diseases based on various third-party sources and internally generated analysis and use such estimates
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in making decisions regarding our product development strategy, including determining indications on which to
focus in preclinical or clinical trials.

These estimates may be inaccurate or based on imprecise data. For example, the total addressable market
opportunity will depend on, among other things, the acceptance of such data by the medical community and
patient access, product pricing and reimbursement, as well as the approval of new or competing medicines. The
number of patients in the addressable markets may turn out to be lower than expected, patients may not be
otherwise amenable to treatment with our products, or new patients may become increasingly difficult to identify
or gain access to, all of which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

The speed at which we complete our preclinical studies and clinical trials depends on many factors,
including, but not limited to, patient enrollment. If we are unable to enroll patients in our clinical trials,
our research and development efforts and business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects
could be materially adversely affected.

Patient enrollment, a significant factor in the timing and successful completion of clinical trials, is affected by
many factors, including the size and nature of the patient population, the proximity of patients to clinical sites,
the eligibility criteria for the trial, the design of the clinical trial, competing clinical trials and clinicians’ and
patients’ perceptions as to the potential advantages of the product being studied in relation to other available
therapies, including any new products that may be approved for the indications we are investigating. Because
there is a relatively limited number of patients worldwide, patient enrollment may be challenging. Trials may be
subject to delays as a result of patient enrollment taking longer than anticipated or patient withdrawal. Delays in
the completion of any clinical trial of our product candidates will increase our costs, slow down our product
candidate development and delay or potentially jeopardize our ability to receive regulatory approval, commence
product sales and generate revenue. Any of these occurrences may harm our clinical trials, which could
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Results of previous preclinical studies and clinical trials may not be predictive of future results, and the
results of our current and planned clinical trials may not satisfy the requirements of the FDA, the EMA or
comparable foreign regulatory authorities.

Positive or timely results from preclinical or early-stage trials do not ensure positive or timely results in late-
stage clinical trials or product approval by the FDA, European Medicines Agency, or the EMA, or comparable
foreign regulatory authorities. We will generally be required to demonstrate with substantial evidence through
well-conducted, possibly controlled clinical trials that our product candidates are safe and effective for use in a
well-defined patient population before we can seek regulatory approvals for their commercial sale. Our planned
clinical trials may produce negative or inconclusive results, and we or any of our current and future collaborators
may decide, or regulators may require us, to conduct additional clinical or preclinical testing. Success in
preclinical studies or early-stage clinical trials does not mean that future clinical trials or registration clinical
trials will be successful because product candidates in later-stage clinical trials may fail to demonstrate sufficient
safety or efficacy to the satisfaction of the FDA, EMA and comparable foreign regulatory authorities, despite
having progressed through preclinical studies and initial clinical trials. Product candidates that have shown
promising results in early clinical trials may still suffer significant setbacks in subsequent clinical trials. For
example, a number of companies in the pharmaceutical industry, including those with greater resources and
experience than us, have suffered significant setbacks in advanced clinical trials, even after obtaining promising
results in earlier clinical trials. Similarly, interim results of a clinical trial do not necessarily predict final results.



The regulatory approval processes of the FDA and comparable foreign authorities are lengthy, time
consuming and inherently unpredictable and if we fail to obtain regulatory approval in any jurisdiction,
we will not be able to commercialize our products in that jurisdiction and our business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects, may be materially adversely affected.

The time required to obtain approval by the FDA and comparable foreign authorities is unpredictable but
typically takes many years following the commencement of clinical trials and depends upon numerous factors,
including the substantial discretion of the regulatory authorities. In addition, approval laws, regulations, policies
or the type and amount of clinical data or other information necessary to gain approval may change during the
course of a product candidate’s clinical development and may vary among jurisdictions. We have not obtained
regulatory approval for any product candidate, and it is possible that none of our existing product candidates or
any product candidates we may seek to develop in the future will ever obtain regulatory approval.

Our product candidates could fail to receive regulatory approval for many reasons, including the following:

* the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may disagree with the design or implementation of
our clinical trials;

* we may be unable to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities
that a product candidate is safe and effective for its proposed indication;

* the designs of clinical trials might not be considered adequate, or the results of clinical trials may not meet
the level of statistical significance required, by the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities for
approval;

* we may be unable to demonstrate that a product candidate’s clinical and other benefits outweigh its safety
risks;

* the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may disagree with our interpretation of data from
preclinical studies or clinical trials;

e the data collected may not be sufficient to support the submission of a BLA or other submission, or to obtain
regulatory approval in the United States, the EU or elsewhere;

* the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may fail to approve the manufacturing processes or
facilities of third-party manufacturers with which we contract for clinical and commercial supplies; and

* the laws, regulations or policies of the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may significantly
change in a manner rendering our clinical data or other regulatory submissions insufficient for approval.

In particular, with respect to the development and potential approval of MOR208, we are currently preparing a
submission of a regulatory filing with the FDA based on the single-arm L-MIND trial. There may be a risk that
the regulatory authorities do not accept a filing and/or grant approval based on single-arm data for MOR208 plus
lenalidomide, due to the fact that there is no comparator arm in the study. There might be an additional risk that
the regulatory authorities do not accept our strategies to present alternative data, for example by providing
historical data as a virtual control arm. We may be unable to gather historical data that support filing or approval.

This approval process may result in failing to obtain regulatory approval to market any of our product candidates,
which would significantly harm our business, results of operations and prospects. The FDA, the EMA and other
regulatory authorities have substantial discretion in the approval process and determining when or whether
regulatory approval will be obtained for any of our product candidates. Even if we believe the data collected from
clinical trials of our product candidates are promising, such data may not be sufficient to support approval by the
FDA, the EMA or any other regulatory authority.

In addition, even if we were to obtain approval, regulatory authorities may approve any of our product candidates

for fewer or more limited indications than we request, may grant approval contingent on the performance of
costly post-marketing clinical trials, or may approve a product candidate with a label that does not include the

10



labeling claims necessary or desirable for the successful commercialization of that product candidate. Any of the
foregoing scenarios could materially harm the commercial prospects for our product candidates.

In order to commercialize our products in more than one jurisdiction, we will require separate regulatory
approval in each market and compliance with numerous and varying regulatory requirements. The approval
procedures vary from country to country and may require additional testing or other steps. Satisfying these and
other regulatory requirements is costly, time consuming, uncertain and subject to unanticipated delays. In
addition, in many countries outside the United States and in particular in many of the Member States of the
European Union, a product must undergo health economic assessments to agree on pricing and/or be approved
for reimbursement before it can be approved for sale in that country, or before it becomes commercially viable.
The FDA and the EMA may come to different conclusions regarding approval of a marketing application.
Approval by the FDA or EMA does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities in other countries or
jurisdictions, and approval by one foreign regulatory authority does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities
in other foreign countries or by the FDA or EMA. In addition, failure to obtain regulatory approval in any
country may delay or have negative effects on the process for regulatory approval in other countries. Clinical
trials conducted in one country may not be accepted by regulatory authorities in other countries. We may not
obtain regulatory approvals on a timely basis, if at all. We may not be able to file for regulatory approvals and
may not receive necessary approvals to commercialize our products in any market. We may be required to
conduct additional preclinical studies or clinical trials, which would be costly and time consuming. If we or any
future partner are unable to obtain regulatory approval for our product candidates in one or more significant
jurisdictions, then the commercial opportunity for our product candidates, and our business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospects, may be materially adversely affected.

The FDA may rescind the breakthrough designation for MOR208 in combination with lenalidomide for
the treatment of patients with r/r DLBCL who are not eligible for high-dose chemotherapy and autologous
stem cell transplantation and we may be unable to obtain breakthrough therapy designation for other
indications. In addition, breakthrough therapy designation by the FDA may not lead to a faster
development, regulatory review or approval process, and it may not increase the likelihood that MOR208
will receive marketing approval in the United States.

Under the Food and Drug Administration Safety and Innovation Act, or FDASIA, the FDA is authorized to give
certain products “breakthrough therapy designation”. A breakthrough therapy product candidate is defined as a
product candidate that is intended, alone or in combination with one or more other drugs, to treat a serious or life-
threatening disease or condition and preliminary clinical evidence indicates that such product candidate may
demonstrate substantial improvement on one or more clinically significant endpoints over existing therapies. The
FDA will seek to ensure the sponsor of a breakthrough therapy product candidate receives intensive guidance on
an efficient drug development program, intensive involvement of senior managers and experienced staff on a
proactive, collaborative and cross-disciplinary review and a rolling review process whereby the FDA may
consider reviewing portions of a marketing application before the sponsor submits the complete application.
Product candidates designated as breakthrough therapies by the FDA may be eligible for other expedited
programs, such as priority review, if supported by clinical data.

The receipt of breakthrough therapy designation for a product candidate, or acceptance for one or more of the
FDA'’s other expedited programs, may not result in a faster development process, review or approval compared
to products considered for approval under conventional FDA procedures and does not guarantee ultimate
approval by the FDA. For example, we are evaluating MOR208 in combination with lenalidomide for the
treatment of r/r DLBCL; however, lenalidomide (being marketed by Celgene) is currently not approved for the
treatment of r/r DLBCL. There are a number of reasons why the FDA may not grant an approval of a registration
package for a product candidate. Among these reasons, a pivotal study of the combination of two unapproved
product candidates in a particular indication may not alone be acceptable to support approval. Additionally, the
FDA may later decide that the product candidate no longer meets the conditions for designation and may
withdraw designation at any time or decide that the time period for FDA review or approval will not be
shortened.
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Fast track designation for one or more of our product candidates may not actually lead to a faster
development or regulatory review or approval process.

In 2014, we received fast track designation for MOR208 for the treatment of r/r DLBCL. If a product candidate is
intended for the treatment of a serious condition, and preclinical or clinical data demonstrate the potential to
address unmet medical need for this condition, a product sponsor may apply for FDA fast track designation. Even
though we have received fast track designation for MOR208 for the treatment of r/r DLBCL, fast track
designation does not ensure that we will receive marketing approval or that approval will be granted within any
particular timeframe. We may not experience a faster development or regulatory review or approval process with
fast track designation compared to conventional FDA procedures. In addition, the FDA may withdraw fast track
designation if it believes that the designation is no longer supported by data from our clinical development
program. Fast track designation alone does not guarantee qualification for the FDA’s priority review procedures.

Our product candidates may cause undesirable side effects that could delay or prevent their regulatory
approval, limit the commercial profile of an approved label, or result in significant negative consequences
following regulatory approval, if any.

Undesirable side effects that may be caused by our product candidates could cause us, our collaboration partners
or the regulatory authorities to interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials and could result in a more restrictive label or
the delay or denial of regulatory approval by the FDA, EMA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities.
Results of our trials could reveal a high and unacceptable severity and prevalence of side effects. In such an
event, our trials could be suspended or terminated and the FDA, EMA or comparable foreign regulatory
authorities could order us to cease further development of or deny approval of our product candidates for any or
all targeted indications. The product-related side effects could affect patient recruitment or the ability of enrolled
patients to complete the trial or result in potential product liability claims.

Clinical trials assess a sample of the potential patient population. With a limited number of patients and duration
of exposure, rare and severe side effects of our product candidates may only be uncovered with a significantly
larger number of patients exposed to the product candidate. If our product candidates receive regulatory approval
and we or others identify undesirable side effects caused by such product candidates (or any other similar
products) after such approval, a number of potentially significant negative consequences could result, including:

e regulatory authorities may withdraw or limit their approval of such product candidates and require us to take
our approved product(s) off the market;

* regulatory authorities may require the addition of labeling statements, such as a “boxed” warning or a
contra-indication, or field alerts to physicians and pharmacies;

* we may be required to create a medication guide outlining the risks of such side effects for distribution
to patients;

* we may be required to change the way such product candidates are distributed or administered, conduct
additional clinical trials or change the labeling of the product candidates;

* regulatory authorities may require a Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy, or REMS, plan to mitigate
risks, which could include medication guides, physician communication plans, or elements to assure safe
use, such as restricted distribution methods, patient registries and other risk minimization tools;

* we may be subject to regulatory investigations and government enforcement actions;
e we may decide or be required to remove such product candidates from the marketplace;

* we could be sued and potentially held liable for injury caused to individuals exposed to or taking our
product candidates;

e sales of the product(s) may decrease substantially; and

e our reputation may suffer.
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Any of these events could prevent us from achieving or maintaining market acceptance of the affected product
candidates and could substantially increase the costs of commercializing our product candidates, if approved, and
therefore could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

We and our collaboration partners have conducted and intend to conduct additional clinical trials for
selected product candidates at sites outside the United States, and the FDA may not accept data from trials
conducted in such locations or may require additional U.S.-based trials.

We and our collaboration partners have conducted, currently are conducting and intend in the future to conduct,
clinical trials outside the United States, particularly in the European Union where we are headquartered.

Although the FDA may accept data from clinical trials conducted outside the United States, acceptance of this
data is subject to certain conditions imposed by the FDA. For example, the clinical trial must be well designed
and conducted by qualified investigators in accordance with GCP, including review and approval by an
independent ethics committee and receipt of informed consent from trial patients. The trial population must also
adequately represent the U.S. population, and the data must be applicable to the U.S. population and

U.S. medical practice in ways that the FDA deems clinically meaningful. Generally, the patient population for
any clinical trial conducted outside of the United States must be representative of the population for which we
intend to seek approval in the United States. In addition, while these clinical trials are subject to applicable local
laws, FDA acceptance of the data will be dependent upon its determination that the trials also comply with all
applicable U.S. laws and regulations. There can be no assurance that the FDA will accept data from trials
conducted outside of the United States. If the FDA does not accept the data from any clinical trials that we or our
collaboration partners conduct outside the United States, it would likely result in the need for additional clinical
trials, which would be costly and time-consuming and delay or permanently halt our ability to develop and
market these or other product candidates in the United States. In other jurisdictions, for instance, in Japan, there
is a similar risk regarding the acceptability of clinical trial data conducted outside of that jurisdiction.

In addition, there are risks inherent in conducting clinical trials in multiple jurisdictions, inside and outside of the
United States, such as:

e regulatory and administrative requirements of the jurisdiction where the trial is conducted that could burden
or limit our ability to conduct our clinical trials;

» foreign exchange fluctuations;
e manufacturing, customs, shipment and storage requirements;
e cultural differences in medical practice and clinical research; and

* the risk that the patient populations in such trials are not considered representative as compared to the
patient population in the target markets where approval is being sought.

The design or our execution of clinical trials may not support regulatory approval.

The design or execution of a clinical trial can determine whether its results will support regulatory approval and
flaws in the design or execution of a clinical trial may not become apparent until the clinical trial is well
advanced. In some instances, there can be significant variability in safety or efficacy results between different
trials of the same product candidate due to numerous factors, including changes in trial protocols, differences in
size and type of the patient populations, adherence to the dosing regimen and other trial protocols and the rate of
dropout among clinical trial participants. We do not know whether any phase 2, phase 3 or other clinical trials we
or any of our strategic partners may conduct will demonstrate consistent or adequate efficacy and safety to obtain
regulatory approval to market our product candidates or whether the regulatory authorities will agree that the
design of our or our partners’ studies is adequate to support approval.
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Further, the FDA, EMA or other regulatory authorities have substantial discretion in the approval process and in
determining when or whether regulatory approval will be obtained for any of our product candidates. Our product
candidates may not be approved even if they achieve their primary endpoints in future phase 3 clinical trials or
registration trials. The FDA, EMA or other regulatory authorities may disagree with our trial design and our
interpretation of data from preclinical studies and clinical trials. In addition, any of these regulatory authorities
may change requirements for the approval of a product candidate even after reviewing and providing comments
or advice on a protocol for a pivotal phase 3 clinical trial that has the potential to result in FDA, EMA or other
agencies’ approval. In addition, any of these regulatory authorities may also approve a product candidate for
fewer or more limited indications than we request or may grant approval contingent on the performance of costly
post-marketing clinical trials. The FDA, EMA or other regulatory authorities may not approve the labeling
claims that we believe would be necessary or desirable for the successful commercialization of our product
candidates.

Even if we receive regulatory approval for any of our product candidates, we will be subject to ongoing
obligations and continued regulatory review, which may materially adversely affect our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

If the FDA, EMA or a comparable foreign regulatory authority approves any of our product candidates, the
manufacturing processes, labeling, packaging, distribution, adverse event reporting, storage, advertising,
marketing, promotion and recordkeeping for the product will be subject to extensive and ongoing regulatory
requirements. These requirements include submissions of safety and other post-marketing information and
reports, registration, as well as continued compliance with cGMPs and GCPs for any clinical trials that we
conduct post-approval, all of which may result in significant expense and limit our ability to commercialize such
products. Any regulatory approvals that we receive for our product candidates may also be subject to limitations
on the approved indicated uses for which the product may be marketed or to the conditions of approval, or
contain requirements for potentially costly post-marketing testing and surveillance to monitor the safety and
efficacy of the product.

In addition, regulatory policies may change or additional government regulations or legislation may be enacted
that could prevent, limit or delay regulatory approval of our product candidates. If we fail to comply with
existing requirements, are slow or unable to adapt to changes in existing requirements or the adoption of new
requirements or policies, or if we are not able to maintain regulatory compliance, we may lose any regulatory
approval that we may have obtained or face regulatory or enforcement actions, which may materially adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be subject to penalties if we fail to comply with regulatory requirements or experience
unanticipated problems with any of our products that receive regulatory approval, which may materially
adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Once a product is approved by the FDA, EMA or a comparable foreign regulatory authority for marketing, it is
possible that previously unknown problems may occur with the product, including problems with third-party
manufacturers or manufacturing processes, or failure to comply with regulatory requirements. If any of the
foregoing occurs with respect to our products, it may result in, among other things:

e restrictions on the marketing or manufacturing of the product, withdrawal of the product from the market, or
voluntary or mandatory product recalls;

* fines, warning letters or holds on clinical trials;

e refusal by the FDA, EMA or comparable foreign regulatory authority to approve pending applications or
supplements to approved applications filed by us, or suspension or revocation of product license approvals;

e requirements to conduct additional clinical trials, change our product labeling or submit additional
applications or application supplements;
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e product seizure or detention, or refusal to permit the import or export of products; and

* injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties.

The occurrence of any of these events, or any government investigation of alleged violations of law could require
us to expend significant time and resources and could generate negative publicity, and our ability to sell such
product may be impaired. If we or our collaborators are not able to maintain regulatory compliance, regulatory
approval that has been obtained may be lost and we may not achieve or sustain profitability, which may
materially adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We may allocate our limited resources to pursue a particular product candidate or indication and fail to
capitalize on product candidates or indications that may later prove to be more profitable or for which
there is a greater likelihood of success, which may materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Because we have limited financial and managerial resources, we must limit our licensing, research and
development programs to specific product candidates that we identify for specific indications. As a result, we
may forego or delay pursuit of opportunities with other product candidates or for other indications that later
prove to have greater commercial potential. Our resource allocation decisions may cause us to fail to capitalize
on viable commercial product candidates or profitable market opportunities, and our decisions concerning the
allocation of research, collaboration, management and financial resources towards particular product candidates
may not lead to the development of viable commercial products. In addition, if we do not accurately evaluate the
commercial potential or target market for a particular product candidate, we may relinquish valuable rights to
that product candidate through collaboration, licensing or other royalty arrangements when it would have been
more advantageous for us to retain sole development and commercialization rights to such product candidate. If
we make incorrect determinations regarding the market potential of our product candidates or misread trends in
the biopharmaceutical industry, in particular for our late stage product candidates, our business, financial
condition, and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

We currently do not have a sales and marketing organization and we have no history of commercializing
our proprietary products.

The development of our proprietary product candidates has been limited to developing and applying our
technology to source such products and undertaking preclinical studies and clinical trials thereof, either
independently or with strategic partners. We have not yet demonstrated the ability to successfully complete the
development of our proprietary product candidates, obtain marketing approvals, manufacture them at a
commercial scale with our CMOs, or conduct sales and regulatory activities necessary for successful product
commercialization of our proprietary product candidates. Any predictions about our future success or viability
may not be as accurate as they could be if we had a history of successfully developing and commercializing our
proprietary pharmaceutical products.

Factors that may affect our ability to commercialize our product candidates on our own include recruiting and
retaining adequate numbers of effective sales and marketing personnel, obtaining access to or persuading
adequate numbers of physicians to prescribe our product candidates and other unforeseen costs associated with
creating an independent sales and marketing organization. In addition, we may seek to acquire a
commercialization platform. There is no guarantee that any such acquisition targets will be available.

We do not currently have a sales and marketing organization, and developing or acquiring a sales and marketing
organization will be expensive and time consuming and could delay the launch of our product candidates. We
may not be able to build an effective sales and marketing organization. If we are unable to build our own
distribution and marketing capabilities or to find suitable partners for the commercialization of our product
candidates, we may not be able to generate revenues from them or to reach or sustain profitability.

15



If any of our product candidates receive regulatory approval, the approved products may not achieve
broad market acceptance among physicians, patients, the medical community and third-party payors, in
which case revenue generated from their sales would be limited.

The commercial success of our product candidates will depend upon their acceptance among physicians, patients
and the medical community. The degree of market acceptance of our product candidates will depend on a number
of factors, including:

e limitations or warnings contained in the approved labeling for a product candidate;

e changes in the standard of care for the targeted indications for any of our product candidates;

e limitations in the approved clinical indications for our product candidates;

e demonstrated clinical safety and efficacy compared to other products;

e lack of significant adverse side effects;

e sales, marketing and distribution support;

e availability of coverage and extent of reimbursement from managed care plans and other third-party payors;
e timing of market introduction and perceived effectiveness of competitive products;

e the degree of cost-effectiveness of our product candidates;

e availability of alternative therapies at similar or lower cost, including generic and over-the-counter products;

* whether the product is designated under physician treatment guidelines as a first-line therapy or as a second
or third-line therapy for particular diseases;

* whether the product can be used effectively with other therapies to achieve higher response rates;
e adverse publicity about our product candidates or favorable publicity about competitive products;
* convenience and ease of administration of our products; and

e potential product liability claims.

If any of our product candidates are approved, but do not achieve an adequate level of acceptance by physicians,
patients and the medical community, we may not generate sufficient revenue from these products, and we may
not become or remain profitable. In addition, efforts to educate the medical community and third-party payors on
the benefits of our product candidates may require significant resources and may never be successful.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR RELIANCE ON COLLABORATORS AND OTHER THIRD PARTIES

Collaborations on products and product candidates are important to our business, and future
collaborations may also be important to us. If we are unable to maintain any of these collaborations or if
these collaborations are not successful, our business could be materially adversely affected.

We have in the past entered into, and intend to continue to enter into, collaborations with other companies that
we believe provide us with valuable funding and other benefits. However, we cannot ensure that any such
collaboration will continue or be successful. For example, in March 2015, we and Celgene Corporation agreed to
end the existing co-development and co-promotion agreement for MOR?202, following which we regained the
rights to MOR202. Although we have subsequently partnered Chinese regional rights to MOR202, and our
partner I-Mab will further develop MOR202 in MM for Greater China, we have announced that we will not
pursue further clinical development of MOR202 in MM in the rest of the world without a partner. We cannot
ensure that any such partner will be found or that such collaboration will be successful. Our inability to find a
partner for any of our product candidates, may result in our termination of that specific product candidate
program or evaluation of a product candidate in a particular indication. For MOR202, we are currently
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investigating the possibility of further developing MOR?202 outside of China in a non-oncology indication. In
addition, we have entered into various other collaboration and license arrangements with third parties. In July,
together with Galapagos who co-owned MOR106 with us, we signed a license agreement with Novartis, who will
be responsible for development and commercialization of the compound in the future. In November 2018, we
entered into a collaboration and licensing agreement with I-Mab for an additional proprietary program, MOR210.
Our partner [-Mab will perform certain preclinical and clinical development activities, and we will share
territorial rights (Greater China and South Korea for I-Mab, rest of world for MorphoSys). We cannot ensure that
any such collaboration or license agreement will be successful.

In the future, we may enter into additional collaborations to fund our development programs or to gain access to
sales, marketing or distribution capabilities. Under our collaboration agreements, we typically grant our partners
an exclusive license to certain therapeutic antibodies for specific targets and receive license fees, research and
development funding, milestone payments and/or, if a product is approved for marketing, sales royalties in
return. Following the discovery and preclinical testing phase, our partners are typically solely responsible for the
further development of the product candidate and therefore exercise full control over its further development and
potential commercialization. Our existing collaborations, and any future collaborations we enter into, therefore
may pose a number of risks, including the following:

* collaborators may have significant discretion in determining the efforts and resources that they will apply to
these collaborations;

e collaborators may not perform their obligations as expected by us or by health authorities, such as the FDA,
the EMA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities;

e collaborators may dissolve, merge, be bought, or may otherwise become unwilling to fulfill the initial terms
of the collaboration with us;

e collaborators may not pursue development and commercialization of any product candidates that achieve
regulatory approval or may elect not to continue or renew development or commercialization programs
based on clinical trial results, changes in the collaborators’ strategic focus or available funding, or external
factors, such as an acquisition, that divert resources or create competing priorities or the actual or perceived
competitive situation in a specific indication;

e collaborators may delay clinical trials, provide insufficient funding for a clinical trial program, stop a
clinical trial or abandon a product candidate, repeat or conduct new clinical trials or may require a new
formulation of a product candidate for clinical testing;

* collaborators could independently develop, or develop with third parties, products that compete directly or
indirectly with our products or product candidates if the collaborators believe that competitive products are
more likely to be successfully developed or can be commercialized under terms that are more economically
attractive than ours;

e product candidates discovered in collaboration with us may be viewed by our collaborators as competitive
with their own product candidates or products, which may cause collaborators to cease to devote resources
to the commercialization of our product candidates;

e acollaborator with marketing and distribution rights to one or more of our product candidates that achieve
regulatory approval may not commit sufficient resources to the marketing and distribution of such product
or products;

* disagreements with collaborators or licensors, including disagreements over proprietary rights, contract
interpretation and breach of contract claims, payment obligations or the preferred course of development,
might cause delays or termination of the research, development or commercialization of products or product
candidates, might lead to additional responsibilities, including financial obligations for us with respect to
products or product candidates, or delays or withholding of any payments due or might result in litigation or
arbitration, any of which would be time consuming and expensive;
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e collaborators may not properly maintain or defend our intellectual property rights or may use our
proprietary information in such a way that could jeopardize or invalidate our intellectual property or
proprietary information or expose us to potential litigation;

e collaborators may infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties, which may expose us to litigation
and potential liability; and

e collaborations may be terminated for the convenience of the collaborator and, if terminated, we could be
required to raise additional capital to pursue further development or commercialization of the applicable
product candidates.

If our collaborations on research and development candidates do not result in the successful development and
commercialization of products or if one of our collaborators terminates its agreement with us, we may not receive
any future research funding or milestone or royalty payments under the collaboration. If we do not receive the
funding we expect under these agreements, our development of our product candidates could be delayed and we
may need additional resources to develop our proprietary product candidates. All of the risks relating to product
development, regulatory approval and commercialization described in this report also apply to the activities of
our program collaborators.

Additionally, subject to its contractual obligations to us, if one of our collaborators is involved in a business
combination, the collaborator might deemphasize or terminate the development or commercialization of any
product candidate licensed to it by us. If one of our collaborators terminates its agreement with us, we may find it
more difficult to attract new collaborators in a timely manner.

We face significant competition in seeking new partnerships.

For all our proprietary product candidates we face significant competition. This may negatively impact our
ability to enter into potential partnerships or licensing agreements for our compounds. For example, we decided
not to pursue MOR202 development in MM outside the collaboration with I-Mab in Greater China without
another partner for rest of the world. Instead, we are currently investigating the possibility of further developing
MOR202 outside of China in a non-oncology indication. Our ability to reach definitive agreements for
partnerships will depend, among other things, upon our assessment of the partner’s resources and expertise, the
terms and conditions of the proposed partnership and the proposed partner’s evaluation of a number of factors.
These factors may include the design or results of clinical trials, the likelihood of approval by the FDA, the EMA
or comparable foreign regulatory authorities, the potential market for the subject product candidate, market
access and pricing considerations in the respective territory, the costs and complexities of manufacturing and
delivering such product candidate to patients, the potential of competing products, incidence and prevalence of
the respective disease, and industry and market conditions generally. The partner may also consider alternative
product candidates for similar indications that may be available to collaborate on and whether such collaboration
could be more attractive than the one with us for our product candidate.

Collaborations and commercialization partnerships are complex and time consuming to negotiate and document.
If we are unable to reach agreements with suitable partners on a timely basis, on acceptable terms, or at all, we
may have to curtail or even stop the development of a product candidate, in one or all indications, in one or all
territories in the world, reduce or delay one or more of our other discovery and development programs, delay its
potential commercialization, or increase our expenditures and undertake development or commercialization
activities at our own expense. If we elect to fund and undertake development or commercialization activities on
our own — for instance, as we have done so far for MOR208 — we may need to obtain additional expertise and
additional capital, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. If we fail to enter into
collaborations and other partnerships and do not have sufficient funds or expertise to undertake the necessary
development and commercialization activities, we may not be able to further develop our product candidates in
any or all indications or bring them to market in any or all territories in the world and our business may be
materially and adversely affected.
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We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on third parties, including research/medical institutions, clinical
investigators, CROs and/or other service providers, to conduct our development activities (preclinical
studies, quality testing and clinical trials) and perform data collection, analysis and reporting, which may
result in costs and delays in the development of our product candidates. If these third parties do not
successfully carry out their contractual duties or meet expected deadlines, we may not be able to obtain
regulatory approval for or commercialize our product candidates and our business could be materially
adversely affected.

We currently, and expect to continue to, rely on public and private medical/research institutions, clinical
investigators, CROs, service providers and collaboration partners to conduct our early phase and late phase
product development activities including the conduct of preclinical studies and clinical trials. Our development
activities conducted in reliance on third parties may be delayed, suspended or terminated, including for the
following reasons:

* the third parties do not devote a sufficient amount of resource, time or effort to our activities or otherwise
fail to successfully carry out their contractual duties or to meet regulatory obligations or expected deadlines;

e we replace a third party; or

* the quality or accuracy of the data obtained by third parties is compromised due to their failure to adhere to
the study plans/protocols, GxP, regulatory requirements or for other reasons.

Although we perform sponsor oversight and audits using risk based approaches, we do not have the ability to
control every action of third parties in their conduct of development activities. Nevertheless, we are responsible
for ensuring that each of our development activities is conducted in accordance with the applicable study plan/
protocol, GxP, legal, regulatory and scientific standards, and our reliance on these third parties does not relieve
us of our sponsor responsibilities. We and our third-parties are required to comply with GxP standards, which are
regulations and guidelines enforced by the FDA, the competent authorities of the member states of the European
Economic Area, or EEA, and comparable foreign regulatory authorities for all of our products in clinical
development. Regulatory authorities enforce these GxPs through periodic inspections of trial sponsors, principal
investigators and trial sites, CROs and/or other involved service providers. If we or any of our third parties fail to
comply with applicable GxP standards, the study data generated in our preclinical studies and/or clinical trials
may be deemed unreliable and the FDA, the EMA or comparable foreign regulatory authorities may require us to
perform additional studies before potentially approving our marketing applications. We cannot ensure that upon
inspection by a given regulatory authority, such regulatory authority will determine that all of our development
activities comply with GxP regulations. If third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties or
obligations or meet expected deadlines, if they need to be replaced or if the quality or accuracy of the data they
obtain is compromised due to the failure to adhere to our study plans/protocols, GXP and other regulatory
requirements or for other reasons, our preclinical studies or clinical trials may be extended, delayed or terminated
and we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for or successfully commercialize our product candidates.

Third-party performance failures may increase our development costs, delay our ability to obtain regulatory
approval and delay or prevent the commercialization of our product candidates. While we believe that there are
alternative sources to provide these services, in the event that we seek such alternative sources, we may not be
able to enter into replacement arrangements without incurring delays or additional costs.
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We currently rely on third-party suppliers and single source third-party CMOs for the manufacturing of
our product candidates and our dependence on these third parties may impair the development of our
product candidates. Moreover, we intend to rely on third parties to produce commercial supplies of any
approved product candidate and our commercialization of any of our product candidates could be
stopped, delayed or made less profitable if those third parties fail to provide us with sufficient quantities of
product or fail to do so at acceptable quality levels or prices or fail to otherwise complete their duties in
compliance with their obligations to us or in compliance with applicable laws. Service or supply failures,
or other failures, business interruptions, or other disasters affecting the manufacturing facilities of any
party participating in the supply chain, would adversely affect our ability to supply our product
candidates and products.

We do not currently have, nor do we plan to acquire, the infrastructure or capability internally to manufacture our
preclinical (with the exclusion of non-GLP testing) and clinical product supplies and we lack the resources and
the capability to manufacture any of our product candidates on a clinical or commercial scale under GMP. We
therefore rely on and expect to continue to rely on third-party contract manufacturing organizations, or CMOs,
for the supply of cGMP-grade, clinical trial materials and commercial quantities of our product candidates and
products, if approved. The facilities used by our CMOs or other third-party manufacturers to manufacture our
product candidates are subject to the FDA’s, the EMA’s and other comparable regulatory authorities’
preapproval inspections that will be conducted after we submit our BLA to the FDA or the required approval
documents to any other relevant regulatory authority. Except for our legally required qualification audit prior to
contracting a CMO and subsequent regular audits of such facilities and GMP procedures, we do not control the
implementation of the manufacturing process of, and are completely dependent on, our contract manufacturers or
other third-party manufacturers for compliance with the regulatory requirements, known as current good
manufacturing practices, or cGMPs, for manufacture of both active drug substances and finished drug products.
If our contract manufacturers or other third-party manufacturers cannot successfully manufacture material that
conforms to applicable specifications and the strict regulatory requirements of the FDA, the EMA or another
comparable regulatory authority, we may not be able to secure and/or maintain regulatory approvals for our
products manufactured at these facilities. In addition (except for our audit obligations described above), we have
no control over the ability of our contract manufacturers or other third-party manufacturers to maintain adequate
quality control and quality assurance procedures and qualified personnel. If the FDA, the EMA or another
comparable regulatory authority finds deficiencies at these facilities for the manufacture of our product
candidates or if it withdraws any approval because of deficiencies at these facilities in the future, we may need to
find alternative manufacturing facilities, which would significantly impact our ability to develop, obtain
regulatory approval for or market our product candidates, if approved. If, for any reason, we were to experience
an unexpected loss of supply of our product candidates, combination drug, or placebo or comparator product
used in certain of our clinical trials, whether as a result of manufacturing, supply or storage issues or otherwise,
we could experience delays, disruptions, suspensions or terminations of, or be required to restart or repeat, any
pending or ongoing clinical trials.

We rely on our manufacturers to purchase from third-party suppliers the materials necessary to produce our
product candidates for our clinical trials. For certain items, there are a limited number of suppliers for raw
materials that we use to manufacture our products and appropriate lead times for ordering such materials are
factored into the manufacturing plans. However, there may be a need to assess alternate suppliers to prevent a
possible disruption of the manufacture of the materials necessary to produce our product candidates for our
clinical trials, and if approved, for commercial sale. Moreover, we currently do not have any agreements in place
for the commercial production of these raw materials. Although we generally do not begin a clinical trial unless
we believe we have access to a sufficient supply of a product candidate to complete the clinical trial, any
significant delay in the supply of a product candidate, or the raw material components thereof, for an ongoing
clinical trial due to the need to implement corrective actions at the supplier, or to replace a contract manufacturer
or other third-party manufacturer could considerably delay completion of our clinical trials, product testing and
potential regulatory approval of our product candidates. If our manufacturers or we are unable to purchase these
raw materials after regulatory approval has been obtained for our product candidates, the commercial launch of
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our product candidates would be delayed or there would be a shortage in supply, which would impair our ability
to generate revenue from the sale of our product candidates. Additionally, if we receive regulatory approval for
our product candidates, we may experience unforeseen difficulties or challenges in the manufacture of our
product candidates on a commercial scale compared to the manufacture for clinical purposes. We currently rely
on single source CMOs for the manufacturing of each of our proprietary product candidates, including
Boehringer Ingelheim, or BI, in respect of MOR208. Thus any regulatory action, service failure, business
interruptions, or other disasters affecting BI’s facilities or the facilities of our other CMOs for our other
proprietary product candidates could result in a significant delay in the production and supply of MOR208 and
could, as a result, have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

The manufacture of our product candidates is complex. Our third-party manufacturers may encounter
difficulties in production. If we encounter any such difficulties, our ability to supply our product
candidates for clinical trials or, if approved, for commercial sale could be delayed or halted entirely.

The manufacture of biopharmaceutical products is complex and requires significant expertise and capital
investment, including the development of advanced manufacturing techniques and process controls. The process
of manufacturing biopharmaceuticals, including our product candidates, is susceptible to product loss due to
contamination, equipment failure or improper installation or operation of equipment, vendor or operator error,
contamination and inconsistency in yields, variability in product characteristics and difficulties in scaling the
production process or product loss during fill and finishing. Even minor deviations from normal manufacturing
processes could result in reduced production yields, product defects and other supply disruptions. If microbial,
viral or other contaminations are discovered in our product candidates or in the manufacturing facilities in which
our product candidates are made, such manufacturing facilities may need to be closed for an extended period of
time to investigate and remedy the contamination. Any adverse developments affecting manufacturing operations
for our product candidates, if any are approved, may result in shipment delays, inventory shortages, lot failures,
product withdrawals or recalls, or other interruptions in the supply of our products. We may also have to take
inventory write-offs and incur other charges and expenses for products that fail to meet specifications, undertake
costly remediation efforts or seek more costly manufacturing alternatives.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

If we are unable to obtain and maintain sufficient intellectual property protection for our products or
product candidates, or if the scope of our intellectual property protection is not sufficiently broad, our
ability to commercialize our products or product candidates successfully and to compete effectively may
be materially adversely affected.

Our success depends in large part on our ability to obtain and maintain protection with respect to our intellectual
property and proprietary technology. We rely upon a combination of patents, trade secret protection and
confidentiality agreements to protect the intellectual property related to our products and product candidates. The
patent position of pharmaceutical companies is generally uncertain because it involves complex legal and factual
considerations. The standards applied by the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or USPTO, and foreign
patent offices in granting patents are not always applied uniformly or predictably, and can change. The patent
applications that we own or in-license may fail to result in issued patents, and if they do, such patents may not
cover our products or product candidates in the United States or in other countries. Accordingly, we cannot
predict whether additional patents protecting our technology or our product candidates will issue in the United
States or in non-U.S. jurisdictions, or whether any patents that do issue will have claims of adequate scope to
provide us with a competitive advantage. Additionally, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States, and many companies have
encountered significant problems in protecting and defending such rights in foreign jurisdictions. The legal
systems of certain countries, particularly certain developing countries, do not favor the enforcement of patents
and other intellectual property rights, particularly those relating to biotechnology, which could make it difficult
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for us to stop the infringement of our licensed and owned patents, the reproduction of our manufacturing or other
know-how or marketing of competing products in violation of our proprietary rights generally. Any of these
outcomes could impair our ability to prevent competition from third parties, which may have a material adverse
effect on our business.

Competitors may use our technologies in jurisdictions where we have not obtained or are unable to adequately
enforce patent protection to develop their own products and further, may export otherwise infringing products to
territories where we have patent protection, but enforcement is not as strong as that in the United States and
Europe. These products may compete with our products, and our patents or other intellectual property rights may
not be effective or sufficient to prevent them from competing. Proceedings to enforce our patent rights, whether
or not successful, could result in substantial costs and divert our efforts and attention from other aspects of our
business, could put our patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and our patent applications at
risk of not issuing and could provoke third parties to assert claims against us. We may not prevail in any lawsuits
that we initiate and the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, may not be commercially meaningful.
Accordingly, our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights around the world may be inadequate to obtain
a significant commercial advantage from the intellectual property that we develop or license.

The patent prosecution process is expensive and time consuming, and we may not be able to file and prosecute
all necessary or desirable patent applications at a reasonable cost or in a timely manner. It is also possible that we
may fail to identify patentable aspects of our research and development output before it is too late to obtain
patent protection. In addition, we or our licensors, may only pursue, obtain or maintain patent protection in a
limited number of countries. There is no assurance that all potentially relevant prior art relating to our patents and
patent applications has been found. We may be unaware of prior art or other documents or experiments that could
be used to invalidate an issued patent or prevent our pending patent applications from issuing as patents. Even if
patents do successfully issue and even if such patents cover our products or product candidates, third parties
(including our licensees) may challenge their validity, enforceability or scope, which may result in such patents
being narrowed or invalidated. Further, the existence of issued patents does not guarantee our right to practice the
patented technology or commercialize the patented product. Third parties may have or obtain rights to patents
which they may use to prevent or attempt to prevent us from commercializing any of our patented product
candidates, or which might require us to take license to such patents in order to be able to commercialize the
respective product candidates. If these other parties are successful in obtaining valid and enforceable patents, and
establishing our infringement of those patents, we could be prevented from selling our products unless we were
able to obtain a license under such third-party patents. In addition, third parties may seek approval to market their
own products similar to or otherwise competitive with our products. In these circumstances, we may need to
defend and/or assert our patents, including by filing lawsuits alleging patent infringement. In any of these types
of proceedings, a court or agency of competent jurisdiction may find our patents invalid and/or unenforceable.

Furthermore, even if they are unchallenged, our patents and patent applications may not adequately protect our
intellectual property, provide exclusivity for our products or product candidates, prevent others from designing
around our claims or otherwise provide us with a competitive advantage. Additionally, our confidentiality
agreements and other contractual protections may not be adequate to protect our intellectual property from
unauthorized disclosure, third-party infringement or misappropriation. We may not have adequate remedies in
the case of a breach of any such agreements, and our trade secrets and other proprietary information could be
disclosed to our competitors or others may independently develop substantially equivalent or superior proprietary
information and techniques or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or disclose such technologies. In
addition, the research resulting in certain of our licensed patent rights and technology has been, and may in the
future be, funded by the government or other institutional organizations that may have certain rights, including
march-in rights, to such patent rights and technology.

If the patent applications we own or have in-licensed with respect to our product candidates fail to issue as
patents, if their breadth or strength of protection is narrowed or threatened, or if they fail to provide meaningful

exclusivity, it could dissuade companies from collaborating with us and adversely affect our competitive
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position. We cannot offer any assurances about which, if any, patents will issue, the breadth of any such patents
or whether any issued patents will be found invalid or unenforceable or will be threatened by third parties. Any
successful challenge to any patents owned by or licensed to us could deprive us of rights necessary for the
successful commercialization of any product or product candidate that we may develop and could impair or
eliminate our ability to collect future revenues and royalties with respect to such products or product candidates.
Since patent applications in the United States and most other countries are confidential for a period of time after
filing, and some remain so until issued, we cannot be certain that we were the first to file any patent application
related to a product or product candidate. In addition, patents have a limited lifespan. In the United States and
most foreign jurisdictions, the natural expiration of a patent is generally 20 years after its effective filing date.
Various extensions may be available; however, the life of a patent and the protection it affords is limited. If we
encounter delays in obtaining regulatory approvals, the period of time during which we could market a product
under patent protection could be reduced. Even if patents covering our product candidates are obtained, once
such patents expire, we may be vulnerable to competition from similar or biosimilar products. The launch of a
biosimilar version of one of our products in particular would be likely to result in an immediate and substantial
reduction in the demand for our product, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or prospects.

Obtaining and maintaining our patent protection, including patents licensed from third parties, depends
on compliance with various procedural, document submission, fee payment and other requirements
imposed by governmental patent agencies, and our patent protection could be reduced or eliminated for
non-compliance with these requirements.

The USPTO, and various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of procedural,
documentary, fee payment and other provisions during the patent process. There are situations in which
noncompliance can result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or patent application, resulting in partial loss,
complete loss or unenforceability of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event, competitors might
be able to enter the market earlier than would otherwise have been the case.

If we or our licensors fail to maintain the patents and patent applications covering or otherwise protecting our
product candidates, it could materially harm our business. In addition, to the extent that we have responsibility
for taking any action related to the prosecution or maintenance of patents or patent applications in-licensed from
a third party, any failure on our part to maintain the in-licensed intellectual property could jeopardize our rights
under the relevant license and may expose us to liability.

Third parties might claim that we have not complied with the provisions of the respective governmental patent
agencies. For example, third parties might claim that not all prior art documents, or not all other documents or
experiments, were submitted to the respective agencies under appropriate law. Such claims could lead to
proceedings that are time consuming and expensive. Such proceedings can result in abandonment or lapse of a
patent or patent application, resulting in partial loss, complete loss or unenforceability of patent rights in the
relevant jurisdiction. If such third party claims are raised in the context of a pending litigation, then such
proceedings can also result in a judgment that would require us to pay the other parties’ litigation expenses.

We may be involved in lawsuits to protect or enforce our patents, which could be expensive, time-
consuming and unsuccessful.

Even if the patent applications we own or license are issued, competitors may infringe these patents. To counter
infringement or unauthorized use, we may be required to file infringement claims, which can be expensive and
time-consuming. For instance, we were involved in a patent litigation lawsuit as a plaintiff against Janssen
Biotech Inc., Genmab A/S and Genmab US, Inc. at the District Court of Delaware seeking redress for alleged
infringement in connection with the manufacture, use and sale of Janssen’s and Genmab’s daratumumab, an
antibody targeting CD38, approved for the treatment of certain patients with MM. Defendants asserted that our
patents are invalid and also raised a counterclaim of inequitable conduct. The U.S. District Court of Delaware,
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based on a hearing held November 27, 2018, has ruled in a Court Order on January 25, 2019, that the asserted
claims of the MorphoSys patents are invalid. The Court thus granted a motion for Summary Judgement of
invalidity filed by Janssen Biotech and Genmab, A/S against the three patents held by MorphoSys. As a result of
this decision, the jury trial scheduled to start February 11, 2019 to consider Janssen’s and Genmab’s alleged
infringement and the validity of the MorphoSys patents did not take place. On January 31, 2019 we announced
that we have settled the dispute with Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S. The parties agreed to drop the mutual
claims related to the litigation: MorphoSys dismissed claims for alleged patent infringement against Janssen
Biotech and Genmab A/S and will not appeal from the court order dated January 25, 2019. Janssen and Genmab
dismissed their counterclaims against MorphoSys. In addition, Janssen, Genmab, Sanofi and Takeda opposed a
European counterpart of the litigated U.S. patents, EP2511297. The patent was revoked in opposition
proceedings. We appealed and the proceedings are currently pending.

In an infringement proceeding, a court may decide that a patent of ours or our licensors is not valid, is
unenforceable and/or is not infringed, or may refuse to stop the other party from using the technology at issue on
the grounds that our patents do not cover the technology in question. An adverse result in any litigation or
defense proceedings could put our patents or our licensors’ patents at risk of being invalidated or interpreted
narrowly and could put our patent applications at risk of not issuing.

Interference proceedings, or other similar enforcement and revocation proceedings, provoked by third parties or
brought by us may be necessary to determine the priority of inventions with respect to our patents or patent
applications or those of our licensors. An unfavorable outcome could require us to cease using the related
technology or to attempt to license rights to it from the prevailing party. Our business could be harmed if the
prevailing party does not offer us a license on commercially reasonable terms. Our defense of litigation or
interference proceedings may fail and, even if successful, may result in substantial costs and distract our
management and other employees. We may not be able to prevent, alone or with our licensors, misappropriation
of our intellectual property rights, particularly in countries where the laws may not protect those rights as fully as
in the United States.

Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of discovery required in connection with intellectual property
litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential information could be compromised by disclosure during
this type of litigation. There could also be public announcements of the results of hearings, motions or other
interim proceedings or developments. If securities analysts or investors perceive these results to be negative, it
could have a material adverse effect on the price of our common shares.

Even if resolved in our favor, litigation or other legal proceedings relating to our, our licensor’s or other third
parties’ intellectual property claims may cause us to incur significant expenses and could distract our personnel
from their normal responsibilities. In addition, there could be public announcements of the results of hearings,
motions, or other interim proceedings or developments, and if securities analysts or investors perceive these
results to be negative, it could have a substantial adverse effect on the price of our ordinary shares. If not
resolved in our favor, litigation may require us to pay any portion of our opponents’ legal fees. Such litigation or
proceedings could substantially increase our operating losses and reduce the resources available for development
activities or any future sales, marketing, or distribution activities. We may not have sufficient financial or other
resources to conduct such litigation or proceedings adequately. Some of our competitors may be able to sustain
the costs of such litigation or proceedings more effectively than we can because of their greater financial
resources and more mature and developed intellectual property portfolios. Uncertainties resulting from the
initiation and continuation of patent litigation or other proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our
ability to compete in the marketplace.

DEVELOPMENTS IN PATENT LAW COULD HAVE A NEGATIVE IMPACT ON OUR BUSINESS.

From time to time, authorities in the United States, the European Union and other government authorities may
change the standards of patentability, and any such changes could have a negative impact on our business.

24



For example, in the United States, the Leahy-Smith America Invents Act, or the America Invents Act, which was
signed into law in 2011, includes a number of significant changes to U.S. patent law. These changes include a
transition from a “first-to-invent” system to a “first-to-file” system, changes to the way issued patents are
challenged, and changes to the way patent applications are disputed during the examination process. As a result
of these changes, patent law in the United States may favor larger and more established companies that have
greater resources to devote to patent application filing and prosecution. The USPTO has developed new and
untested regulations and procedures to govern the full implementation of the America Invents Act, and many of
the substantive changes to patent law associated with the America Invents Act, and, in particular, the first-to-file
provisions became effective on March 16, 2013. Substantive changes to patent law associated with the America
Invents Act may affect our ability to obtain patents, and if obtained, to enforce or defend them. Also case law
may have a substantial impact on the way patents are prosecuted, examined and litigated. This also affects the
scope of protection that is available is a specific jurisdiction. In the United States, Amgen Inc. v. Sanofi (Fed.
Cir. 17-1480) may affect the way antibody claims are examined and litigated.

Developments of patent law in other jurisdictions may impact our business. For example, it is currently not clear
what impact the planned introduction of the Unified Patent Court in the European Union will have. Patents that
are valid and enforceable under the current system may be considered invalid and/or unenforceable under the
new system. Also patents may be invalidated not just in one single jurisdiction, but across all countries of the
European Union in one single trial. Also the effect the impending withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the
European Union (“Brexit”) has on the patent system, in particular in connection with aforementioned Unified
Patent Court, bears certain risks and uncertainties.

Our commercial success depends significantly on our ability to operate without infringing the patents and
other proprietary rights of third parties.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties.
Other entities may have or obtain patents or proprietary rights that could limit our ability to make, use, sell, offer
for sale or import our products and future approved products or impair our competitive position.

Patents could be issued to third parties that we may ultimately be found to infringe. Third parties may have or
may obtain valid and enforceable patents or proprietary rights that could block us from developing product
candidates using our technology. Our failure to identify or misinterpret third-party patents, to obtain or maintain
a license to any technology that we require may materially harm our business, financial condition, results of
operations or prospects. Furthermore, we could be exposed to a threat of litigation.

In the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry, significant litigation and other proceedings regarding patents,
patent applications, trademarks and other intellectual property rights have become commonplace. The types of
situations in which we may become a party to such litigation or proceedings include:

* we or our collaborators may initiate litigation or other proceedings against third parties seeking to invalidate
the patents held by those third parties or to obtain a judgment that our products or processes do not infringe
those third parties’ patents;

e if our competitors file patent applications that claim technology also claimed by us or our licensors, we or
our licensors may be required to participate in interference, derivation, inter partes review or opposition
proceedings to determine the priority of invention, inventorship or validity of the applicable patent rights
which could jeopardize our patent rights and potentially provide a third party with a dominant patent
position;

o if third parties initiate litigation claiming that our processes or the processes of our CMOs or CROs,
products or uses thereof infringe their patent or other intellectual property rights, we and our collaborators
will need to defend against such proceedings; and
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o if a license to necessary technology is terminated, the licensor may initiate litigation claiming that our
processes or products infringe or misappropriate their patent or other intellectual property rights and/or that
we breached our obligations under the license agreement, and we and our collaborators would need to
defend against such proceedings.

Any such lawsuit would be costly and could affect our results of operations and divert the attention of our
management and scientific personnel. There is a risk that a court would decide that we or our collaborators are
infringing the third party’s patents and would order us or our collaborators to stop the activities covered by the
patents. In that event, we or our collaborators may not have a viable alternative to the technology protected by
the patent and may need to halt work on the affected product candidate or cease commercialization of an
approved product. In addition, there is a risk that a court may order us or our collaborators to pay the other party
damages. An adverse outcome in any litigation or other proceeding could subject us to significant liabilities to
third parties and require us to cease using the technology that is at issue or to license the technology from third
parties. We may not be able to obtain any required licenses on commercially acceptable terms or at all. Any of
these outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries have produced a significant number of patents, and it
may not always be clear to industry participants, including us, which patents cover various types of
products or methods of use.

The coverage of patents is subject to interpretation by the courts, and the interpretation is not always uniform or
predictable. If we are sued for patent infringement, we would need to demonstrate that our products, methods or
uses thereof either do not infringe the patent claims of the relevant patent or that the patent claims are invalid or
unenforceable, and we may not be able to do this. Proving invalidity is difficult. For example, in the United
States, proving invalidity requires a showing of clear and convincing evidence to overcome the presumption of
validity enjoyed by issued patents. Even if we are successful in these proceedings, we may incur substantial costs
and divert management’s time and attention in pursuing these proceedings, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business. If we are unable to avoid infringing the patent rights of others, we may be required to seek
a license, defend an infringement action or challenge the validity or enforceability of the patents in court. We
may not have sufficient resources to bring these actions to a successful conclusion and there is no assurance that
such a license would be available or that a court would find in our favor. In addition, if we do not obtain a
license, develop or obtain non-infringing technology, fail to defend an infringement action successfully or have
infringed patents declared invalid or unenforceable, we may incur substantial monetary damages, encounter
significant delays in bringing our product candidates to market and be precluded from manufacturing or selling
our product candidates.

The cost of any patent litigation or other proceeding, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial. Some of
our competitors may be able to sustain the cost of such litigation and proceedings more effectively than we can
because of their substantially greater resources. Uncertainties resulting from the initiation and continuation of
patent litigation or other proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations or prospects.

We are dependent on third parties for the prosecution, protection, and enforcement of intellectual
property rights relating to some of our products and product candidates.

While we normally seek to obtain the right to control the prosecution, maintenance, enforcement and defense of
intellectual property rights related to our products and product candidates, there may be times when our licensors
or collaborators control, or have a first right to control, the filing, prosecution, enforcement and defense of such
rights. For instance, pursuant to the 2"d amended and restated collaboration and license agreement, Novartis has a
first right to file, prosecute and enforce all patent rights related to products generated under this agreement. Also,
pursuant to the development and license agreement with GlaxoSmithKline, or GSK, GSK has a first right to file,
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prosecute and enforce all patent rights related to MOR103 and pursuant to the development and license
agreement with Xencor, Xencor has a first right to file, prosecute and enforce patent rights which are in-licensed
by us and relate to MOR208. Pursuant to the Exclusive License Agreement among Galapagos NV, MorphoSys
AG and Novartis Pharma AG, Novartis has a first right to file, prosecute and enforce patent rights related to
MOR106. We cannot be certain that our licensors or collaborators will prosecute, maintain, enforce and defend
such intellectual property rights in a manner consistent with the best interests of our business, including by taking
reasonable measures to protect the confidentiality of know-how and trade secrets, or the payment of all
applicable prosecution and maintenance fees related to our technologies or any of our product candidates. We
also cannot be certain that the drafting or prosecution of the licensed patents by our licensors have been
conducted accurately and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and will result in valid and
enforceable patents and other intellectual property rights. If they fail to do so, we could lose our rights to the
intellectual property, our ability to develop and commercialize those products or product candidates may be
adversely affected and we may not be able to prevent competitors from making, using and selling competing
products.

If trademarks and trade names related to our products or product candidates are not adequately protected, then we
may not be able to build name recognition in our markets of interest and our business may be materially
adversely affected.

Our registered or unregistered trademarks or trade names, as well as the registered or unregistered trademarks or
trade names used by our licensees or distributors in relation with our products or product candidates, may be
challenged, infringed, circumvented or declared generic or determined to be infringing on other trademarks. We
may not be able to protect our rights to these trademarks and trade names, which we need to build name
recognition by potential partners or customers. Over the long term, if we are unable to establish name recognition
based on our trademarks and trade names, then we may not be able to compete effectively and our business may
be materially adversely affected.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our proprietary information, the value of our technology
and products could be materially adversely affected.

In addition to patent protection, we also rely on other proprietary rights, including protection of trade secrets, and
other proprietary information. To maintain the confidentiality of trade secrets and proprietary information, we
enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants, collaborators, CMOs, CROs and others
upon the commencement of their relationships with us. These agreements require that all confidential
information developed by the individual or made known to the individual by us during the course of the
individual’s relationship with us be kept confidential and not disclosed to third parties. Our agreements with
employees as well as our personnel policies also generally provide that any inventions conceived by the
individual in the course of rendering services to us shall be our exclusive property or that we may obtain full
rights to such inventions at our election. However, we may not obtain these agreements in all circumstances, and
individuals with whom we have these agreements may not comply with their terms. We also face the risk that
present or former employees could continue to hold rights to intellectual property used by us, may demand the
registration of intellectual property rights in their name and demand damages pursuant to the German Employee
Invention Act. In the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of our trade secrets or proprietary information, these
agreements, even if obtained, may not provide meaningful protection, particularly for our trade secrets or other
confidential information. To the extent that our employees, consultants or contractors use technology or
know-how owned by third parties in their work for us, disputes may arise between us and those third parties as to
the rights in related inventions. To the extent that an individual who is not obligated to assign rights in
intellectual property to us is rightfully an inventor of intellectual property, we may need to obtain an assignment
or a license to that intellectual property from that individual, or a third party or from that individual’s assignee.
Such assignment or license may not be available on commercially reasonable terms or at all.
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Adequate remedies may not exist in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of our proprietary information.
The disclosure of our trade secrets would impair our competitive position and may materially harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Costly and time-consuming litigation could be necessary to enforce
and determine the scope of our proprietary rights, and failure to maintain trade secret protection could adversely
affect our competitive business position. In addition, others may independently discover or develop our trade
secrets and proprietary information, and the existence of our own trade secrets affords no protection against such
independent discovery.

As is common in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries, we employ individuals who were previously
or concurrently employed at research institutions and/or other biotechnology or pharmaceutical companies,
including our competitors or potential competitors. We may be subject to claims that these employees, or we,
have inadvertently or otherwise used or disclosed trade secrets or other proprietary information of their former
employers, or that patents and applications we have filed to protect inventions of these employees, even those
related to one or more of our product candidates, are rightfully owned by their former or concurrent employer.
Litigation may be necessary to defend against these claims. Even if we are successful in defending against these
claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and be a distraction to management.

We may not be successful in obtaining necessary intellectual property rights to product candidates for our
development pipeline through acquisitions and in-licenses.

Although we intend to develop product candidates through our own internal research, we may also seek to
acquire or in-license product candidates to grow our product candidate pipeline. However, we may be unable to
acquire or in-license intellectual property rights relating to, or necessary for, any such product candidates from
third parties on commercially reasonable terms or at all. In that event, we may be unable to develop or
commercialize such product candidates. We may also be unable to identify product candidates that we believe
are an appropriate strategic fit for our company and intellectual property relating to, or necessary for, such
product candidates.

The in-licensing and acquisition of third-party intellectual property rights for product candidates is a competitive
area, and a number of more established companies are also pursuing strategies to in-license or acquire third-party
intellectual property rights for product candidates that we may consider attractive or necessary. These established
companies may have a competitive advantage over us due to their size, cash resources and greater clinical
development and commercialization capabilities. Furthermore, companies that perceive us to be a competitor
may be unwilling to assign or license rights to us. If we are unable to successfully obtain rights to suitable
product candidates, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects for growth could suffer.

In addition, we expect that competition for the in-licensing or acquisition of third-party intellectual property
rights for product candidates that are attractive to us may increase in the future, which may mean fewer suitable
opportunities for us as well as higher acquisition or licensing costs. We may be unable to in-license or acquire the
third-party intellectual property rights for product candidates on terms that would allow us to make an
appropriate return on our investment.

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property rights throughout the world.

Filing, prosecuting and defending patents on our products in all countries throughout the world would be
prohibitively expensive. The requirements for patentability may differ in certain countries, particularly
developing countries, and the breadth of patent claims allowed can be inconsistent. In addition, the laws of some
foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as laws in the U.S.
Consequently, we may not be able to prevent third parties from practicing our inventions in all countries outside
the U.S. Competitors may use our technologies in jurisdictions where we have not obtained patent protection to
develop their own products and, furthermore, may export otherwise infringing products to territories in which we
have patent protection that may not be sufficient to terminate infringing activities.
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We do not have patent rights in certain foreign countries in which a market may exist. Moreover, in foreign
jurisdictions where we do have patent rights, proceedings to enforce such rights could result in substantial costs
and divert our efforts and attention from other aspects of our business, could put our patents at risk of being
invalidated or interpreted narrowly, and our patent applications at risk of not issuing. Additionally, such
proceedings could provoke third parties to assert claims against us. We may not prevail in any lawsuits that we
initiate and the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, may not be commercially meaningful. Thus, we may
not be able to stop a competitor from marketing and selling in foreign countries products that are the same as or
similar to our products, and our competitive position in the international market would be harmed.

Our intellectual property agreements with third parties may be subject to disagreements over contract
interpretation, which could narrow the scope of our rights to the relevant intellectual property or
technology or increase our financial or other obligations to our licensors.

Certain provisions in our intellectual property agreements may be susceptible to multiple interpretations. The
resolution of any contract interpretation disagreement that may arise could affect the scope of our rights to the
relevant intellectual property or technology, or affect financial or other obligations under the relevant agreement,
either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.

In addition, while it is our policy to require our employees and contractors who may be involved in the
conception or development of intellectual property to execute agreements assigning such intellectual property to
us, we may be unsuccessful in executing such an agreement with each party who in fact conceives or develops
intellectual property that we regard as our own. Our assignment agreements may not be self-executing or may be
breached, and we may be forced to bring claims against third parties, or defend claims they may bring against us,
to determine the ownership of what we regard as our intellectual property.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

Our relationships with health care professionals, institutional providers, principal investigators, consultants,
customers (actual and potential) and third-party payors are, and will continue to be, subject, directly and
indirectly, to health care fraud and abuse, false claims, marketing expenditure tracking and disclosure,
government price reporting, and health information privacy and security laws. If we are unable to comply, or
have not fully complied, with such laws, we could face penalties, including, without limitation, civil, criminal,
and administrative penalties, damages, fines, exclusion from government-funded health care programs, such as
Medicare and Medicaid, and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations.

Our business operations and activities may be directly or indirectly subject to various fraud and abuse laws,
including, without limitation, the federal Anti-Kickback Statute and the federal False Claims Act. If we obtain
FDA approval for any of our proprietary product candidates and begin commercializing those products in the
United States, our potential exposure under such laws will increase significantly, and our costs associated with
compliance with such laws are also likely to increase. These laws may impact, among other things, our current
activities with principal investigators and research subjects, as well as proposed and future sales, marketing and
education programs. In addition, we may be subject to patient privacy regulation by the federal government and
state governments in which we conduct our business. The laws that may affect our ability to operate include, but
are not limited to:

e the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, which prohibits, among other things, persons from knowingly and
willfully soliciting, offering, receiving or providing remuneration, directly or indirectly, in cash or in kind,
to induce or reward either the referral of an individual for, or the purchase, order or recommendation of, any
good or service, for which payment may be made, in whole or in part, under a federal health care program
such as Medicare and Medicaid. A person or entity need not have actual knowledge of the federal Anti-
Kickback Statute or specific intent to violate it in order to have committed a violation; in addition, the
government may assert that a claim that includes items or services resulting from a violation of the federal
Anti-Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudulent claim for purposes of the False Claims Act;
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the federal civil and criminal false claims laws, including the civil False Claims Act, and civil monetary
penalties laws, which prohibit individuals or entities from, among other things, knowingly presenting, or
causing to be presented, to the federal government, claims for payment that are false, fictitious or
fraudulent; knowingly making a false statement or record material to a false or fraudulent claim or
obligation to pay or transmit money or property to the federal government; or knowingly concealing or
knowingly and improperly avoiding or decreasing an obligation to pay money to the federal government;

the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, which created
additional federal criminal laws that prohibit, among other things, knowingly and willfully executing, or
attempting to execute, a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit program or knowingly and willfully
falsifying, concealing or covering up a material fact or making any materially false statement in connection
with the delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits, items or services; similar to the federal Anti-
Kickback Statute, a person or entity does not need to have actual knowledge of the statute or specific intent
to violate it in order to have committed a violation;

HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009
and their respective implementing regulations, which impose requirements on certain covered health care
providers, health plans, and health care clearinghouses as well as their respective business associates that
perform services for them that involve the use, or disclosure of, individually identifiable health information,
relating to the privacy, security and transmission of individually identifiable health information without
appropriate authorization;

the federal transparency requirements under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by
the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, or collectively the ACA will require
manufacturers of products, devices, biologics and medical supplies to report to the Department of Health
and Human Services information related to payments and other transfers of value to physicians and teaching
hospitals and physician ownership and investment interests;

federal consumer protection and unfair competition laws, which broadly regulate marketplace activities and
activities that potentially harm consumers;

federal government price reporting laws, changed by the ACA to, among other things, increase the
minimum Medicaid rebates owed by most manufacturers under the Medicaid Drug Rebate Program and
offer such rebates to additional populations, that may require us to calculate and report complex pricing
metrics to government programs, where such reported prices may be used in the calculation of
reimbursement and/or discounts on our marketed products (participation in these programs and compliance
with the applicable requirements may subject us to potentially significant discounts on our products,
increased infrastructure costs, and potentially limit our ability to offer certain marketplace discounts);

the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, a U.S. law which regulates certain financial relationships with foreign
government officials (which could include, for example, certain medical professionals); and

analogous state laws and regulations, such as state anti-kickback and false claims laws, which may apply to
healthcare items or services that are reimbursed by non-governmental third-party payors, including private
insurers.

Some state laws require pharmaceutical companies to comply with the pharmaceutical industry’s voluntary
compliance guidelines and the relevant compliance guidance promulgated by the federal government in addition
to requiring manufacturers to report information related to payments to physicians and other healthcare providers
or marketing expenditures and pricing information. State and foreign laws also govern the privacy and security of
health information in some circumstances, many of which differ from each other in significant ways and often
are not preempted by HIPAA, thus complicating compliance efforts.

In addition, the regulatory approval and commercialization of any of our product candidates outside the United
States will also likely subject us to foreign equivalents of the health care laws mentioned above, among other
foreign laws.
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In the European Union, the Data Protection Directive, or DPD, which has been superseded by the General Data
Protection Regulation, or GDPR, effective since May 2018, imposes strict regulations and establishes a series of
requirements regarding the collection, storage and processing of personally identifiable information on
computers or recorded on other electronic media. The GDPR provide for specific regulations requiring all
non-European Union countries doing business with European Union member states to provide adequate data
privacy protection when receiving personal data from persons in any of the European Union member states. We
may incur substantial expense in complying with the new obligations imposed by the GDPR and we may be
required to make significant changes in our business operations and development, all of which may adversely
affect our revenue and our business overall. We could be adversely affected if we fail to comply fully with all of
these requirements. Non-compliance with the GDPR can trigger significant fines of up to €20 million or 4% of
total worldwide annual turnover, whichever is higher. In addition, the use and disclosure of personal health and
other private information is subject to regulation in other jurisdictions in which we do business or expect to do
business in the future. Those jurisdictions may attempt to apply such laws extraterritorially or through treaties or
other arrangements with European governmental entities. We cannot assure you that our privacy and security
policies and practices will be found sufficient to protect us from liability or adverse publicity relating to the
privacy and security of personal information.

Efforts to ensure that our business arrangements will comply with applicable health care laws may involve
substantial costs. It is possible that governmental and enforcement authorities will conclude that our business
practices may not comply with current or future statutes, regulations or case law interpreting applicable fraud and
abuse or other health care laws and regulations. If we are unable to comply, or have not fully complied, with such
laws, we could face penalties, including, without limitation, civil, criminal, and administrative penalties,
damages, fines, individual imprisonment, exclusion from government funded health care programs, such as
Medicare and Medicaid, and the curtailment or restructuring of our operations. Additionally, if our collaborators’
operations or relationships with healthcare providers, customers and third-party payors are found to be
non-compliant with applicable laws, they may be subject to criminal, civil or administrative sanctions, including
exclusions from government funded healthcare programs, which could also have a negative impact on us. Even if
successful, defending against any such actions can be costly, time-consuming and may require significant
financial and personnel resources. We may become exposed to costly and damaging liability claims, either when
testing our product candidates in the clinic or at the commercial stage; and our product liability insurance may
not cover all damages from such claims.

We are exposed to potential product liability and professional indemnity risks that are inherent in the
research, development, manufacturing, marketing and use of pharmaceutical products.

The use of our investigational medicinal products in clinical trials and the sale of any approved products in the
future may expose us to liability claims. These claims might be made by patients who use the product, health
care providers, pharmaceutical companies or others selling such products. Any claims against us, regardless of
their merit, could be difficult and costly to defend and could materially adversely affect the market for our
product candidates or any prospects for commercialization of our product candidates.

Although the clinical trial process is designed to identify and assess potential side effects, it is always possible
that a product, even after regulatory approval, may exhibit unforeseen side effects. If any of our product
candidates were to cause adverse side effects during clinical trials or after approval of the product candidate, we
may be exposed to substantial liabilities. Physicians and patients may not comply with any warnings that identify
known potential adverse effects and patients who should not use our product candidates.

To cover such liability claims, we purchase clinical trial insurances in the conduct of each of our clinical trials. It
is possible that our liabilities could exceed our insurance coverage or that our insurance will not cover all
situations in which a claim against us could be made. We also intend to expand our insurance coverage to include
the sale of commercial products if we receive marketing approval for any of our proprietary products. However,
we may not be able to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or obtain insurance coverage that will be

31



adequate to satisfy any liability that may arise. If a successful product liability claim or series of claims is
brought against us for uninsured liabilities or in excess of insured liabilities, our assets may not be sufficient to
cover such claims and our business operations could be impaired. Should any of the events described above
occur, this could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations,
including, but not limited to:

e decreased demand for our future product candidates;

* adverse publicity and injury to our reputation;

e withdrawal of clinical trial participants;

e initiation of investigations by regulators;

e costs to defend the related litigation;

e adiversion of management’s time and our resources;

e compensation in response to a liability claim;

e product recalls, withdrawals or labeling, marketing or promotional restrictions;
e Joss of revenue;

» exhaustion of any available insurance and our capital resources; and

e the inability to commercialize our products or product candidates.

We could be adversely affected if we are subject to negative publicity. We could also be adversely affected if any
of our products or any similar products distributed by other companies prove to be, or are asserted to be, harmful
to patients. Any adverse publicity associated with illness or other adverse effects resulting from patients’ use or
misuse of our products or any similar products distributed by other companies could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Even if we, or any future collaborators, are able to commercialize any product candidate that we, or they,
develop, the product may become subject to unfavorable pricing regulations or third-party payor coverage
and reimbursement policies, any of which could materially harm our business.

Patients who are provided medical treatment for their conditions generally rely on third-party payors to
reimburse all or part of the costs associated with their treatment. Therefore, our ability, and the ability of any
future collaborators to commercialize any of our product candidates will depend in part on the extent to which
coverage and reimbursement for these products and related treatments will be available from third-party payors
including government health administration authorities and private health coverage insurers. Third-party payors
decide which medications they will cover and establish reimbursement levels. We cannot be certain that coverage
will be available and reimbursement will be adequate for any of our product candidates. Also, we cannot be
certain that reimbursement policies will not reduce the demand for, or the price paid for, our products.

Obtaining coverage and adequate reimbursement for our products may be particularly difficult because of the
higher prices often associated with drugs administered under the supervision of a physician. A decision by a
third-party payor not to cover our products could reduce physician utilization of our products once approved.
Even if coverage is provided, the approved reimbursement amount may not be high enough to allow us, or any
future collaborators, to establish or maintain pricing sufficient to realize a sufficient return on our or their
investment. In the United States, no uniform policy of coverage and reimbursement for products exists among
third-party payors and coverage and reimbursement for products can differ significantly from payor to payor. As
aresult, the coverage determination process is often a time-consuming and costly process that will require us to
provide scientific and clinical support for the use of our products to each payor separately, with no assurance that
coverage and adequate reimbursement will be applied consistently or obtained in the first instance.
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In addition, increasingly, third-party payors are requiring higher levels of evidence of the benefits and clinical
outcomes of new technologies and are challenging prices. We cannot be sure that coverage will be available for
any product candidate that we, or any future collaborator, commercialize and, if available, that the
reimbursement rates will be adequate. Further, the net reimbursement for products may be subject to additional
reductions if there are changes to laws that presently restrict imports of drugs from one country to another. An
inability to promptly obtain coverage and adequate payment rates from both government-funded and private
payors for any of our product candidates for which we, or any future collaborator, obtain marketing approval
could significantly harm our operating results, our ability to raise capital needed to commercialize products and
our overall financial condition.

Price controls may be imposed in certain markets, which may adversely affect our future profitability.

In some countries, particularly member states of the European Union, the pricing of prescription drugs is subject
to governmental control. In these countries, pricing negotiations with governmental authorities can take
considerable time after receipt of marketing approval for a product. In addition, there can be considerable
pressure by governments and other stakeholders on prices and reimbursement levels, including as part of cost
containment measures. Political, economic and regulatory developments may further complicate pricing
negotiations, and pricing negotiations may continue after reimbursement has been obtained. Reference pricing
used by various countries and parallel distribution, or arbitrage between low-priced and high-priced countries,
can further reduce prices. In some countries, in particular in many member states of the European Union, we may
be required to conduct a clinical trial or other studies that compare the cost-effectiveness of our product
candidates to other available therapies in order to obtain or maintain reimbursement or pricing approval.
Publication of discounts by third-party payors or authorities may lead to further pressure on the prices or
reimbursement levels within the country of publication and other countries. If reimbursement of our products is
unavailable or limited in scope or amount, or if pricing is set at unsatisfactory levels, our business, financial
condition, results of operations or prospects could be materially adversely affected.

Current and future legislation may increase the difficulty and cost for us and any collaborators to obtain
marketing approval of and commercialize our product candidates and affect the prices we, or they, may
obtain.

In the United States and foreign jurisdictions, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory changes and
proposed changes regarding the healthcare system that could prevent or delay marketing approval of our product
candidates, restrict or regulate post-approval activities and affect our ability to profitably sell any product
candidates for which we obtain marketing approval. We expect that current laws, as well as other healthcare
reform measures that may be adopted in the future, may result in additional reductions in Medicare and other
healthcare funding, more rigorous coverage criteria, new payment methodologies and in additional downward
pressure on the price that we, or any collaborators, may receive for any approved products.

In March 2010, President Obama signed the ACA into law. Among the provisions of the ACA of potential
importance to our business and our product candidates are the following:

e an annual, non-deductible fee on any entity that manufactures or imports specified branded prescription
products and biologic products;

e anincrease in the statutory minimum rebates a manufacturer must pay under the Medicaid Drug Rebate
Program,;

e anew methodology by which rebates owed by manufacturers under the Medicaid Drug Rebate Program are
calculated for products that are inhaled, infused, instilled, implanted or injected;

* extension of manufacturers’ Medicaid rebate liability to individuals enrolled in Medicaid managed care
organizations;
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* expansion of the entities eligible for discounts under the Public Health Service pharmaceutical pricing
program;

* anew Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute to oversee, identify priorities in, and conduct
comparative clinical effectiveness research, along with funding for such research;

* anew Independent Payment Advisory Board, or IPAB, which has authority to recommend certain changes
to the Medicare program to reduce expenditures by the program that could result in reduced payments for
prescription products; and

» established the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Innovation within CMS to test innovative payment and
service delivery models.

Since its enactment, there have been judicial and Congressional challenges to numerous aspects of the ACA.
With the current Presidential administration and U.S. Congress, there have been and will likely continue to be
additional administrative or legislative changes, including modification, repeal, or replacement of all, or certain
provisions of, the ACA.

In addition, other legislative changes have been proposed and adopted since the ACA was enacted. In August
2011, the Budget Control Act of 2011, among other things, included aggregate reductions to Medicare payments
to providers of 2% per fiscal year, which went into effect in April 2013 and will remain in effect through 2025
unless additional Congressional action is taken. The American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, among other things,
reduced Medicare payments to several providers and increased the statute of limitations period for the
government to recover overpayments to providers from three to five years. These new laws may result in
additional reductions in Medicare and other healthcare funding and otherwise affect the prices we may obtain for
any of our product candidates for which we may obtain regulatory approval or the frequency with which any
such product candidate is prescribed or used.

The costs of prescription pharmaceuticals in the United States has also been the subject of considerable
discussion in the United States, and members of Congress and the Administration have stated that they will
address such costs through new legislative and administrative measures. There have been several U.S.
Congressional inquiries and proposed bills designed to, among other things, bring more transparency to drug
pricing, reduce the cost of prescription drugs under Medicare, review the relationship between pricing and
manufacturer patient programs, and reform government program reimbursement methodologies for drugs.

In addition, individual states have also become increasingly active in passing legislation and implementing
regulations designed to control pharmaceutical product pricing, including price or patient reimbursement
constraints, discounts, restrictions on certain product access, and to encourage importation from other countries
and bulk purchasing.

The policies of the FDA or similar regulatory authorities may change and additional government regulations may
be enacted that could prevent, limit or delay regulatory approval of our product candidates. For example, in
December 2016, the 21st Century Cures Act, or Cures Act, was signed into law. The Cures Act, among other
things, is intended to modernize the regulation of drugs and biologics and spur innovation, but it has not yet been
implemented and its ultimate implementation is unclear. If we or our collaborators are slow or unable to adapt to
changes in existing requirements or the adoption of new requirements or policies, or if we or our collaborators
are not able to maintain regulatory compliance, our product candidates may lose any regulatory approval that
may have been obtained and we may not achieve or sustain profitability, which would adversely affect our
business.

We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of government regulation that may arise from future legislation
or administrative action, either in the United States or abroad. For example, certain policies of the Trump

administration may impact our business and industry. Namely, the Trump administration has taken several
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executive actions, including the issuance of a number of Executive Orders, that could impose significant burdens
on, or otherwise materially delay, FDA’s ability to engage in routine regulatory and oversight activities such as
implementing statutes through rulemaking, issuance of guidance, and review and approval of marketing
applications. If these executive actions impose constraints on FDA’s ability to engage in oversight and
implementation activities in the normal course, our business may be negatively impacted.

We cannot predict whether future healthcare legislative or policy changes will be implemented at the federal or
state level or in countries outside of the United States in which we may do business, or the effect any future
legislation or regulation will have on us.

We and our contract manufacturers and our suppliers could be subject to liabilities, fines, penalties or
other sanctions under environmental, health and safety laws and regulations if we or they fail to comply
with such laws or regulations or otherwise incur costs that could have a material adverse effect on our
business.

We currently rely on and expect to continue to rely on third parties for the manufacturing and supply of active
pharmaceutical ingredients, or API, and drug products of our product candidates. These third parties are subject
to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including those governing laboratory
procedures and the handling, transportation, use, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous materials and
wastes. Although we have auditing rights and obligations (according to cGMP regulations for sponsors of clinical
trials) with all our CMOs for production of API and drug products, we do not have control over a manufacturer’s
or supplier’s compliance with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations. Liabilities they incur
pursuant to these laws and regulations could result in significant costs or in certain circumstances, an interruption
in operations, any of which could adversely affect our business and financial condition if delayed manufacturing
activities impact our clinical development activities.

With respect to any hazardous materials or waste which we are currently, or in the future will be, handling, using,
storing or disposing of, we cannot eliminate the risk of contamination or injury from these materials or waste,
including at third-party disposal sites. In the event of such contamination or injury, we could be held liable for
any resulting damages and liability. We also could incur significant costs associated with civil or criminal fines
and penalties for failure to comply with applicable environmental, health and safety laws. In addition, we may
incur substantial costs in order to comply with current or future environmental, health and safety laws and
regulations. These current or future laws and regulations may impair our research, development or production
efforts. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may also result in substantial fines, penalties or other
sanctions.

We may not be successful in our efforts to use and expand our lanthipeptide technology platform.

We are using our proprietary lanthipeptide technology platform to generate peptide product candidates that
exhibit enhanced stability and selectivity. Our lanthipeptide technology platform has led to one clinical stage
product candidate MOR107. We are at a very early stage of development and the lanthipeptide technology
platform has not yet, and may never lead to, approved or marketable peptide products, including with respect to
MORI107. Even if we are successful in continuing to build our lanthipeptide pipeline, the potential product
candidates that we identify may not be suitable for clinical development, including as a result of harmful side
effects, limited efficacy, short half-life or other characteristics that indicate that such products are unlikely to
receive marketing approval and achieve market acceptance. If we are not able to successfully develop and
commercialize peptide product candidates based upon our lanthipeptide platform, our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.
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Our internal computer systems, or those of our collaborators or other contractors or consultants, may fail
or suffer security breaches, which could result in a material disruption of our product development
programs.

Our computer systems and those of our current and any future collaborators and other contractors or consultants
are vulnerable to damage from cyber-attacks, computer viruses, natural disasters, terrorism, war and
telecommunication and electrical failures. While we have not experienced any such computer system failure,
accident or security breach to date, if such an event were to occur and cause interruptions in our operations, it
could result in a material disruption of our development programs and our business operations, whether due to a
loss of our trade secrets or other proprietary information or other disruptions. For example, the loss of clinical
trial data from completed or future clinical trials could result in delays in our regulatory approval efforts and
significantly increase our costs to recover or reproduce the data. To the extent that any disruption or security
breach were to result in a loss of, or damage to, our data or applications, or inappropriate disclosure of
confidential or proprietary information, we could incur liability, our competitive position could be harmed and
the further development and commercialization of our product candidates could be delayed.

Our product candidates for which we intend to seek approval as biologic products may face competition
sooner than anticipated.

The ACA includes a subtitle called the Biologics Price Competition and Innovation Act of 2009, or BPCIA,
which created an abbreviated approval pathway for biological products that are biosimilar to or interchangeable
with an FDA-licensed reference biological product. Under the BPCIA, an application for a biosimilar product
may not be submitted to the FDA until four years following the date that the reference product was first licensed
by the FDA. In addition, the approval of a biosimilar product may not be made effective by the FDA until 12
years from the date on which the reference product was first licensed. During this 12-year period of exclusivity,
another company may still market a competing version of the reference product if the FDA approves a full BLA
for the competing product containing the sponsor’s own preclinical data and data from adequate and well-
controlled clinical trials to demonstrate the safety, purity and potency of their product. The law is complex and is
still being interpreted and implemented by the FDA. As a result, its ultimate impact, implementation, and
meaning are subject to uncertainty. While it is uncertain when such processes intended to implement BPCIA may
be fully adopted by the FDA, any such processes could have a material adverse effect on the future commercial
prospects for our biological products.

One or more of our product candidates approved as a biological product under a BLA may qualify for the 12-year
period of exclusivity. However, there is a risk that this exclusivity could be shortened due to congressional action
or otherwise, or that the FDA will not consider our product candidates to be reference products for competing
products, potentially creating the opportunity for generic competition sooner than anticipated. Other aspects of
the BPCIA, some of which may impact the BPCIA exclusivity provisions, have also been the subject of recent
litigation. Moreover, the extent to which a biosimilar, once approved, will be substituted for any one of our
reference products in a way that is similar to traditional generic substitution for non-biological products is not yet
clear, and will depend on a number of marketplace and regulatory factors that are still developing.

We face substantial competition from companies with considerably more resources and experience than
we have, which may result in others discovering, developing, receiving approval for or commercializing
products before or more successfully than us.

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries are characterized by intense competition and significant and
rapid technological change as researchers learn more about diseases and develop new technologies and
treatments. Any product candidates that we successfully develop and commercialize will compete with existing
products and new products that may become available in the future. We have competitors in each of the disease
fields in which we research and develop our product candidates, many of which have substantially greater name
recognition, commercial infrastructure and financial, technical and personnel resources than we have. Smaller or
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early-stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through partnerships with larger
and established companies. Significant competitive factors in our industry include product efficacy and safety,
quality and breadth of an organization’s technology, skill of an organization’s employees and its ability to recruit
and retain key employees, timing and scope of regulatory approvals, government reimbursement rates for, and
the average selling price of, products, the availability of raw materials and qualified manufacturing capacity,
manufacturing costs, intellectual property and patent rights and their protection and sales and marketing
capabilities. While we believe that our product candidate platform, antibody discovery and development
expertise and scientific knowledge provide us with competitive advantages, we face potential competition from
many different sources, including major pharmaceutical, specialty pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies,
academic institutions and governmental agencies and public and private research institutions. In particular for
MOR208, we compete with all companies that have products on the market or are developing product candidates
for r/r DLBCL. With regard to our other proprietary or partnered product candidates, we are, alone or in
partnerships, for example, developing products to combat diseases such as multiple myeloma, other cancers,
atopic dermatitis, psoriasis, Alzheimer’s, where our competitors primarily are comprised of large pharmaceutical
companies, including Roche, Celgene, Novartis, Janssen, Gilead, Abbvie and many others. This competition
includes a number of alternative therapies to combat such diseases that are being researched and are in various
stages of development. Should these therapies prove effective, it could reduce the potential size of the market for
our products. Given the intense competition in our industry, we cannot assure you that any of the products that
we develop will be clinically superior or scientifically or commercially preferable to products developed or
introduced by our competitors.

In addition, significant delays in the development of our product candidates could allow our competitors to
succeed in obtaining the FDA, the EMA or other regulatory approvals for their product candidates more rapidly
than us, which could place us at a significant competitive disadvantage or deny us marketing exclusivity rights.

Competitors may develop novel products or other technologies that could make our product candidates obsolete
or uneconomical. Any of our product candidates that competes with an approved product may need to
demonstrate compelling advantages, such as increased efficacy, convenience, pricing, tolerability and/or safety in
order to be commercially successful. Any of our product candidates that are approved could also face other
competitive factors in the future, including biosimilar competition, which could force us to lower prices or could
result in reduced sales. If we fail to respond to this environment by improving our products, by licensing new
third-party products or by developing new product candidates in a timely fashion, or if such new or improved
products do not achieve adequate market acceptance, our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects could be materially and adversely effected.

In addition, many of our competitors have significantly greater financial resources and expertise in R&D,
including manufacturing, conducting preclinical studies and clinical trials, as well as in obtaining regulatory and
reimbursement approvals and marketing and selling products. Mergers and acquisitions in the pharmaceutical
and biotechnology industries may result in even more resources being concentrated among a smaller number of
competitors, particularly through partnership arrangements with large established companies. These companies
also compete with us in recruiting and retaining qualified scientific and management personnel and establishing
clinical trial sites and patient recruitment for clinical trials, as well as in acquiring technologies complementary
to, or necessary for, our programs.

Our future success depends on our ability to retain key executives and to attract and motivate qualified
personnel.

We are highly dependent on the expertise of the members of our research and development team, as well as the
other principal members of our management, including Simon Moroney, our Chief Executive Officer, Jens
Holstein, our Chief Financial Officer, Malte Peters, our Chief Development Officer, and Markus Enzelberger,
our Chief Scientific Officer. Our Management Board members have fixed-term contracts typically of three years.
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Recruiting and retaining qualified management, scientific, clinical, manufacturing, sales and marketing personnel
is also critical to our success. The loss of the services of our executive officers or other key employees could
impede the achievement of our research, development and commercialization objectives and seriously harm our
ability to successfully implement our business strategy. Furthermore, replacing executive officers and key
employees may be difficult and may take an extended period of time because of the limited number of
individuals in our industry with the breadth of skills and experience required to successfully develop, gain
regulatory approval of and commercialize drugs. Competition to hire from this limited pool is intense, and we
may be unable to hire, train, retain or motivate these key personnel on acceptable terms given the competition
among numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies for similar personnel. We also experience
competition for the hiring of scientific and clinical personnel. Failure to succeed in clinical trials may make it
more challenging to recruit and retain qualified scientific personnel.

We may acquire businesses or products, or form strategic alliances, in the future, and we may not realize
the benefits of such acquisitions.

We may acquire additional businesses or products, form strategic alliances or create joint ventures with third
parties that we believe will complement or augment our existing business. We may encounter numerous
difficulties in developing, manufacturing and marketing any new products resulting from a strategic alliance or
acquisition that delay or prevent us from realizing their expected benefits or enhancing our business. If we
acquire businesses with promising products or technologies, we may not be able to realize the benefit of
acquiring such businesses if, for instance, we are unable to successfully integrate them with our existing
operations and company culture. We cannot assure you that, following any such acquisition, we will achieve the
expected synergies to justify the transaction. If we are unsuccessful in realizing any of the benefits following an
acquisition, we may incur impairment charges in respect of the assets acquired, which could adversely affect our
results of operations.

We may be subject to tax audits or disputes or changes in tax laws.

Pending and future tax audits within our group, disputes with tax authorities and changes in tax law or fiscal
regulations could lead to additional tax liabilities. We are subject to routine tax audits by the respective local tax
authorities. Any additional tax liability could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results
of operations or prospects.

We are subject to currency exchange rate fluctuations.

Due to the international scope of our operations, our assets, earnings and cash flows are influenced by
movements in exchange rates of several currencies, particularly the U.S. dollar and the euro. Our functional
currency is the euro and the majority of our operating expenses are paid in euro, but we also receive payments
from our collaboration partners in U.S. dollars and we regularly acquire services, consumables and materials in
U.S. dollars. Further, future revenue will be derived from abroad, particularly from the United States. As a result,
our business may be affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates between the euro and the U.S. dollar,
which may also have a significant impact on our reported results of operations and cash flows from period to
period.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on our securities, and, consequently, your ability to achieve a
return on your investment will depend on appreciation in the price of our shares.

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our ordinary shares and do not intend to do so in the
foreseeable future, and any share repurchases will likely occur on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. You are not
likely to receive any dividends on our shares, and the success of an investment in our shares will depend upon
any future appreciation in its value. Investors may need to sell all or part of their holdings of our shares after
price appreciation, which may never occur, to realize any future gains on their investment. There is no guarantee
that our shares will appreciate in value or even maintain the price at which our shareholders have purchased our
shares.
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Holders of our ADSs may not be able to participate in any future preemptive subscription rights issues or
to elect to receive dividends in shares, which may cause dilution to their holdings.

Under German law, the existing shareholders have a preemptive right to subscribe for shares offered in
proportion to the amount of shares they hold in connection with any offering of shares. However, a shareholders’
meeting may vote, by a majority, which represents at least three quarters of the share capital represented at the
meeting, to waive this preemptive right provided that, from the company’s perspective, there exists good and
objective cause for such waiver.

Certain non-German shareholders may not be able to exercise their preemptive subscription rights in our future
offerings due to the legislation and regulations of their home country. For example, ADS holders in the United
States will not be entitled to exercise or sell such rights unless we register the rights and the securities to which
the rights relate under the Securities Act or an exemption from the registration requirements is available. In
addition, the deposit agreement provides that the depositary need not make rights available to you unless the
distribution to ADS holders of both the rights and any related securities are either registered under the Securities
Act or exempted from registration under the Securities Act. We are under no obligation to file a registration
statement with respect to any such rights or securities or to endeavor to cause such a registration statement to be
declared effective. Moreover, we may not be able to establish an exemption from registration under the Securities
Act. Accordingly, ADS holders may be unable to participate in our rights offerings and may experience dilution
in their holdings. In addition, if the depositary is unable to sell rights that are not exercised or not distributed or if
the sale is not lawful or reasonably practicable, it will allow the rights to lapse, in which case you will receive no
value for these rights.

As a foreign private issuer, we are permitted to adopt certain home country practices in relation to
corporate governance matters that differ significantly from Nasdaq corporate governance listing
standards. These practices may afford less protection to shareholders than they would enjoy if we
complied fully with corporate governance listing standards.

We are a “foreign private issuer”, as defined in the SEC’s rules and regulations. The Nasdaq Listing Rules
include certain accommodations in the corporate governance requirements that allow foreign private issuers to
follow “home country” corporate governance practices in lieu of the otherwise applicable corporate governance
standards of Nasdaq. The application of such exceptions requires that we disclose the Nasdaq Listing Rules that
we do not follow and describe the German corporate governance practices we do follow in lieu of the relevant
Nasdaq corporate governance standard. We continue to follow German corporate governance practices in lieu of
the corporate governance requirements of Nasdaq in certain respects. In particular, we follow German corporate
governance practices in connection with the distribution of annual and interim reports to shareholders, the
application of our code of conduct to our Supervisory Board, proxy solicitation in connection with shareholders’
meetings, and obtaining shareholder approval in connection with the issuance of shares in connection with an
acquisition, change of control transactions, the establishment or material amendment to any equity-based
compensation plans and the issuance of shares in a private placement in excess of 20% of the outstanding share
capital at less than the greater of book or market value. To this extent, our practice varies from the requirements
of Nasdagq.

U.S. holders of ADSs may suffer adverse tax consequences if we are characterized as a passive foreign
investment company.

A non-U.S. corporation will be classified as a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, for U.S. federal
income tax purposes for any taxable year, if either (i) 75% or more of its gross income for such year consists of
certain types of “passive” income or (ii) 50% or more of the value of its assets (determined on the basis of a
quarterly average) during such year produce or are held for the production of passive income. Passive income
generally includes dividends, interest, royalties, rents, annuities, net gains from the sale or exchange of property
producing such income and net foreign currency gains. In addition, a non-U.S. corporation will be treated as
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owning its proportionate share of the assets and earning its proportionate share of the income of any other
corporation in which it owns, directly or indirectly, more than 25% (by value) of the stock.

Based on certain estimates of our gross income and gross assets, the latter determined by reference to the
expected value of the ADSs and shares, we believe that we will not be classified as a PFIC for the taxable year
ending December 31, 2018 and we do not expect to be treated as a PFIC in any future taxable year. However,
because PFIC status is based on our income, assets and activities for the entire taxable year, which we expect
may vary substantially over time, it is not possible to determine whether we will be characterized as a PFIC for
any taxable year until after the close of the taxable year. Moreover, we must determine our PFIC status annually
based on tests that are factual in nature, and our status in future years will depend on our income, assets and
activities in each of those years. There can be no assurance that we will not be considered a PFIC for any taxable
year.

If we were to be or become a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. holder (defined below in
“Taxation—U.S. Taxation”) holds ADSs, certain adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences could apply to
such U.S. holder. See “Taxation—U.S. Taxation—PFIC Rules”.

The interpretation of the treatment of ADSs by the German tax authorities is subject to change.

The specific treatment of ADSs under German tax law is based on administrative provisions by the fiscal
authorities, which are not codified law and are subject to change. Tax authorities may modify their interpretation
and the current treatment of ADSs may change, as the circular issued by the German Federal Ministry of Finance
(BMF-Schreiben), dated November 8, 2017, reference number IV C 1 — S 1980-1/16/10010 :10, shows.
According to this new circular, ADSs are not treated as capital participation (Kapitalbeteiligung) within the
meaning of Section 2 Para. 8 of the Investment Tax Code (Investmentsteuergesetz). Such changes in the
interpretation by the fiscal authorities may have adverse effects on the taxation of investors.

We may lose our foreign private issuer status in the future, which could result in significant additional cost
and expense.

While we currently qualify as a foreign private issuer, the determination of foreign private issuer status is made
annually on the last business day of an issuer’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter.

In the future, we would lose our foreign private issuer status if we fail to meet the requirements necessary to
maintain our foreign private issuer status as of the relevant determination date. Our foreign private issuer status
will be tested on June 30 of each year. We expect that we will maintain our status on June 30, 2019, but in the
future we may lose that status. This could occur if, for instance, a majority of our shareholders of record were
U.S. citizens or residents and a majority of the executive officers or directors were U.S. citizens or residents or if
a majority of our assets were located in the U.S.

The regulatory and compliance costs to us under U.S. securities laws as a U.S. domestic issuer may be
significantly higher than the costs we incur as a foreign private issuer. If we are not a foreign private issuer, we
will be required to file periodic reports and registration statements on U.S. domestic issuer forms with the SEC,
which are more detailed and extensive in certain respects than the forms available to a foreign private issuer. We
would be required under current SEC rules to prepare our financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP
rather than IFRS. Such conversion of our financial statements to U.S. GAAP would involve significant time and
cost, and we would still be required to prepare financial statements in accordance with IFRS under the rules of
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. In addition, we may lose our ability to rely upon exemptions from certain
corporate governance requirements on United States stock exchanges that are available to foreign private issuers
such as the ones described above and exemptions from procedural requirements related to the solicitation of
proxies.
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We are eligible to be treated as an ‘“emerging growth company”’, as defined in the JOBS Act, and we
cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth companies will
make the ADSs less attractive to investors.

We are an emerging growth company, as defined in the JOBS Act. For as long as we continue to be an emerging
growth company, we may take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable
to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies, including (1) an exemption from the auditor
attestation requirement in the assessment of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act; (2) to the extent that we no longer qualify as a foreign private issuer, (a) reduced disclosure
obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements; and (b) exemptions
from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation, including golden
parachute compensation; and (3) an exemption from compliance with the requirement that the PCAOB has
adopted regarding a supplement to the auditor’s report providing additional information about the audit and the
financial statements.

We may take advantage of these provisions for up to five years or such earlier time that we are no longer an
emerging growth company. We would cease to be an emerging growth company if we have more than

$1.07 billion in annual revenue, have more than $700 million in market value of our shares held by
non-affiliates(to be first tested on June 30, 2019), or issue more than $1.0 billion of nonconvertible debt over a
three-year period. We may choose to take advantage of some but not all of these reduced burdens. For example,
Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an emerging growth company that uses U.S. GAAP for financial
reporting can use the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for
complying with new or revised accounting standards. Given that we currently report and expect to continue to
report under IFRS we have irrevocably elected not to avail ourselves of this extended transition period and, as a
result, we will adopt new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of such
standards is required by the IASB. We have taken advantage of reduced reporting requirements in this report.
Accordingly, the information contained herein may be different than the information you receive from other
public companies in which you hold equity securities.

U.S. investors may have difficulty enforcing civil liabilities against our company and members of our
Supervisory Board and Management Board and the experts named in this report.

We are incorporated under the laws of Germany. The majority of our assets are located outside the United States
and all of the members of our Management Board and three out of six Supervisory Board members reside outside
of the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United
States upon such persons or to enforce against them or us in U.S. courts’ judgments predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States. Foreign courts may refuse to hear a United
States securities law claim because foreign courts may not be the most appropriate forums in which to bring such
a claim. Even if a foreign court agrees to hear a claim, it may determine that the law of the jurisdiction in which
the foreign court resides, and not U.S. law, is applicable to the claim.

Further, if U.S. law is found to be applicable, the content of applicable U.S. law must be proved as a fact, which
can be a time-consuming and costly process, and certain matters of procedure would still be governed by the law
of the jurisdiction in which the foreign court resides. We have been advised by Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher &
Flom LLP, our German counsel, that there is currently no treaty between the United States and Germany
providing for reciprocal recognition and enforceability of judgments rendered in connection with civil and
commercial disputes and, accordingly, a final judgment rendered by a U.S. court based on civil liability would
not be enforceable in Germany as such. However, a U.S. court’s judgment may carry evidentiary value in any
proceedings for civil liability brought in the German courts.
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The rights of shareholders in a stock corporation subject to German law differ in material respects from
the rights of shareholders of corporations incorporated in the United States.

We are a German stock corporation with our registered office in Germany. Our corporate affairs are governed by
the laws governing stock corporations incorporated in Germany and our articles of association. The rights of
shareholders and the responsibilities of members of our Management Board (Vorstand) and Supervisory Board
(Aufsichtsrat) may be different from the rights and obligations of shareholders in companies governed by the
laws of U.S. jurisdictions. In the performance of their duties, our Management Board and Supervisory Board may
take into account a broad range of considerations, including our interests, the interests of our shareholders,
employees, creditors and, to a limited extent, the general public. It is possible that some of these parties will have
interests that are different from, or in addition to, your interests as a holder of ADSs. See “Description of Share
Capital—Differences in Corporate Law”.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to
accurately report our financial results or prevent fraud. As a result, shareholders could lose confidence in
our financial and other public reporting, which would harm our business and the trading price of our
shares.

Effective internal controls over financial reporting are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and,
together with adequate disclosure controls and procedures, are designed to prevent fraud. Any failure to
implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation could cause us
to fail to meet our reporting obligations. In addition, any testing conducted by us in connection with Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or any subsequent testing conducted by our independent registered public
accounting firm, may reveal deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting that are deemed to be
material weaknesses or that may require prospective or retroactive changes to our financial statements, or
identify other areas for further attention or improvement. Inferior internal controls could also cause investors to
lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of
our shares.

For as long as we are an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act, our independent registered public
accounting firm will not be required to attest to the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting
pursuant to Section 404. We could be an “emerging growth company” for up to five years. An independent
assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls could detect problems that our management’s assessment
might not. Undetected material weaknesses in our internal controls could lead to financial statement restatements
and require us to incur the expense of remediation.

4. GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

The year 2018 was a successful one for MorphoSys. Our goal is to discover, develop and commercialize
outstanding, innovative therapies for critically ill patients. The focus of our business activities is on cancer.
Working toward this goal, we made good progress in advancing product candidates at various stages of
development during the year under review. In 2018, we announced positive data from two ongoing clinical
studies on MOR208, our antibody for the treatment of blood cancer. We have established a wholly-owned
subsidiary to build a strong U.S. presence to prepare for the planned commercialization of MOR208 pending
FDA approval. Furthermore, we entered into or expanded several important partnerships. We and our partner
Galapagos entered into a worldwide, exclusive agreement with Novartis Pharma AG covering the development
and commercialization of our joint program MOR106. This collaboration will enable us to accelerate and
broaden the development of MOR 106 beyond the current focus on atopic dermatitis and to fully exploit the
potential of this drug candidate. Building on our existing collaboration with I-Mab Biopharma for MOR202 in
Greater China, we entered into an exclusive strategic collaboration and regional licensing agreement for
MOR?210, a preclinical-stage antibody directed against C5aR, which has potential to be developed as an immuno-
oncology agent.
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We were also pleased to report successes of our partners. Tremfya®, developed by our partner Janssen and the
first approved and marketed therapeutic antibody based on MorphoSys’s proprietary technology, was granted
marketing authorization in several countries during 2018, including Japan. Janssen continued to explore the use
of Tremfya® in additional indications and reported positive long-term data in plaque psoriasis. Royalty payments
showed strong year-on-year growth in 2018 which we reinvested in the development of our proprietary drug
programs and in building a commercial organization.

We aim to become a fully integrated biopharmaceutical company, developing and commercializing our own
drugs, and during 2018 we were able to take important steps towards achieving that goal.

a) Operations and Business Environment
STRATEGY AND GROUP MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES

MorphoSys intends to discover, develop and commercialize innovative therapies for patients suffering from
serious diseases, with a focus on oncology. Having successfully transitioned from a technology provider to a
drug development organization over the past years, we now, as the next step of our corporate development path,
aim to transform into an integrated commercial biopharmaceutical company. Based on our leading expertise in
antibody, protein and peptide technologies, we have created, together with our partners, more than 100
therapeutic product candidates, of which 29 are currently in clinical development. Our main value drivers are our
proprietary drug candidates, led by our investigational antibody MOR208, which is being developed for the
treatment of blood cancers. Guselkumab (Tremfya®), marketed by Janssen, is the first commercial product based
on MorphoSys’s proprietary technology and is approved in the United States, Canada, European Union, Japan
and a number of other countries worldwide. This antibody, like the majority of our development programs, is the
result of a partnership with a pharmaceutical company. MorphoSys intends to use the revenues generated from
these partnerships to advance its proprietary development portfolio which currently comprises 12 programs, one
of which is in pivotal development.

The Proprietary Development segment focuses on the development of therapeutic agents based on our
proprietary technology platforms, candidates in-licensed from other companies and programs co-developed with
partners. During clinical development, we determine whether and at which point to pursue a partnership for later
development and commercialization. The drug candidate can then be either completely out-licensed or developed
further in cooperation with a pharmaceutical or biotechnology company (co-development). Alternatively,
individual projects may be developed on a proprietary basis until they reach the market, with MorphoSys
commercializing a product in selected regions.

In the Partnered Discovery segment, MorphoSys generates antibody candidates for partners in the pharmaceutical
and biotechnology industries. We receive contractual payments, which include license fees for technologies and
funded research, as well as success-based milestone payments and royalties on product sales. The funds
generated from these partnerships support our long-term business model and help fund our proprietary
development activities.

Both segments are almost exclusively based on MorphoSys’s innovative technologies, which include HuCAL,
our antibody library which is the basis for more than 20 product candidates currently in clinical development, and
the next-generation antibody platform Ylanthia. In addition, over recent years we have established two types of
stabilized peptides: our lanthipeptide platform, which we gained access to with the acquisition of Lanthio Pharma
B.V.in May 2015, and our HTH peptide platform, which we developed ourselves. We continue to apply our
resources and expertise to expand and deepen our technologies. In addition, we added the compounds MOR208
and MOR107 to our portfolio which have been in-licensed and acquired, respectively.
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Our goal is to maximize the portfolio’s value by investing in the development and, if appropriate, the
commercialization of our proprietary drug candidates while maintaining financial discipline and strict cost
control.

GROUP MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MorphoSys pays equal attention to financial and non-financial indicators to steer the Group. These indicators
help to monitor the success of strategic decisions and give the Company the opportunity to take quick corrective
action when necessary. The Company’s management also follows and evaluates selected early indicators so that
it can thoroughly assess a project’s progress and act promptly should a problem occur.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our financial performance indicators are described in detail in the section entitled “Operating and Financial
Review and Prospects.” Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT — defined as earnings before finance income,
finance expenses, impairment losses on financial assets and income taxes), revenues, operating expenses,
segment results and liquidity (liquidity is presented in the following balance sheet items: as of December 31,
2018 “cash and cash equivalents”, “financial assets at fair value, with changes recognized in profit or loss” as
well as “financial assets at amortized cost”; as of December 31, 2017 “cash and cash equivalents”,
“available-for-sale financial assets™ as well as “financial assets classified as loans and receivables”) are the key
financial indicators we use to measure our operating performance. Segment indicators are reviewed monthly, and
the budget for the current financial year is revised and updated on a quarterly basis. Each year, the Company
prepares a mid-term plan for the subsequent three years. Once a year, the company prepares a comprehensive
business plan based on its long-term strategy. This plan is regularly updated and discussed with the Supervisory
Board. A thorough cost analysis is prepared regularly and used to monitor the Company’s adherence to financial
targets and make comparisons to previous periods.

MorphoSys’s business performance is influenced by factors such as royalty, milestone and license payments,
research and development expenses, other operating cash flows, existing liquidity resources, expected cash
inflows and working capital. These indicators are also routinely analyzed and evaluated with special attention
given to the statement of profit or loss, existing and future liquidity and available investment opportunities. The
net present value of investments is calculated using discounted cash flow models.

TAB. 1: DEVELOPMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS!

M 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
MorphoSys Group

Revenues . ... 76.4 66.8 49.7 106.2 64.0
OPperating EXPENSES . .. v v v vt ettt e et (136.5) (133.8) (109.8) (93.7) (70.1)
EBIT 2 (59.1) (67.6) (599 172 (5.9
Liquidity 3 . ..o 4547 3122 359.5 2984 3528
Proprietary Development

SEEMENE TEVENUES .« . oot vt ettt et e e e et e e e e 53.6 17.6 06 599 15.0
Segment EBIT ... ... . (53.3) (81.3) (77.6) 10.7 (18.4)
Partnered Discovery

SEEMENE TEVENUES .« . oot vt ettt et e e e et e e e e 22.8 49.2 49.1 463 49.0
Segment EBIT ... ... . 13.3 30.2 31.0 204 259

I Differences may occur due to rounding.

2 Contains unallocated expenses (see also Item 3.3 of the Notes): 2018: € 19.2 million, 2017: € 16.5 million,
2016: € 13.4 million, 2015: € 13.9 million, 2014: € 13.4 million).

3 Liquidity presented in the following balance sheet items: as of December 31, 2018 “cash and cash
equivalents”, “financial assets at fair value, with changes recognized in profit or loss” as well as “other
financial assets at amortized cost”; as of December 31, 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014 “cash and cash equivalents”,
“available-for-sale financial assets and bonds” as well as “financial assets classified as loans and
receivables”.
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NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

To secure and expand its position in the therapeutics market, MorphoSys relies on the steady progress of its
product pipeline, not only in terms of the number of therapeutic product candidates (115 at the end of the
reporting year) but also based on the progress of its development pipeline and prospective market potential.
Innovative technologies, when applied appropriately, can be used to generate superior product candidates and
therefore a further key performance indicator is the progress of the Company’s technology development. In
addition to the quality of our research and development, our professional management of partnerships is also a
core element of our success, as demonstrated by new contracts and the ongoing progress made within existing
alliances. Details on these performance indicators can be found in the section entitled “Research and
Development and Business Performance” (page 50).

The non-financial performance indicators described in the section “Sustainable Business Development”
(page 97) are also used to manage the MorphoSys Group successfully.

For reporting purposes, MorphoSys uses the Sustainable Development Key Performance Indicators (SD KPIs)
recommended by the SD KPI standard. These indicators are used as benchmarks for the commercialization rate
(SD KPI 2) and include the success of proprietary research and development (SD KPI 1) and partnered programs.
In the past five years, there have been no product recalls, fines or settlements as the result of product safety or
product liability disputes (SD KPI 3).

TAB. 2: SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (SD KPIS) AT
MORPHOSYS (DECEMBER 31)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
(number of
individual
Proprietary Development antibodies)
Programs in Discovery ...................... 6 7 8 8 5
Programs in Preclinic . ...................... 1 1 1 2 2
Programs in Phase 1! ....................... 1 2 2 1 1
Programs in Phase 22 ....... ... ... ... ....... 3 2 3 3 2
ProgramsinPhase3 ........................ 1 1 0 0 0
Totall ... ... ... ... ... .. 12 13 14 14 10
(number of
individual
Partnered Discovery antibodies)
Programs in Discovery ...................... 55 54 54 43 40
Programs in Preclinic ....................... 24 24 22 25 25
ProgramsinPhase 1 ........... ... ... ... ... 11 11 10 9 8
ProgramsinPhase2 ........ ... ... ... ... ... 11 10 12 9 8
ProgramsinPhase 33 ............. ... .. ... .. 2 2 2 3 3
Programs Launched3 ....................... 1 1 0 0 0
89 84

Total ...t 103 101 100

I Including MOR107, for which a phase 1 study in healthy volunteers was completed; the compound is
currently in preclinical investigation.

2 Thereof two fully out-licensed programs: MOR103/GSK3196165, out-licensed to GSK; MOR106,
out-licensed to Novartis; MOR202 is out-licensed to I-Mab Biopharma for the development in China, Hong
Kong, Macao and Taiwan.
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3 We still consider Tremfya® as a phase 3 compound due to ongoing studies in various indications. Therefore
the number of “Programs in Phase 3” as well as the “Programs Launched” both include Tremfya®.
Regarding the total number of programs in the pipeline, however, we only count it as one program.

LEADING INDICATORS

MorphoSys follows a variety of leading indicators to monitor the macroeconomic environment, the industry and
the Company itself on a monthly basis. At the Company level, economic data is gathered on the progress of the
segments’ individual programs. MorphoSys uses general market data and external financial reports to acquire
information on leading macroeconomic indicators such as industry transactions, changes in the legal environment
and the availability of research funds and reviews these data carefully.

For active collaborations, there are joint steering committees that meet regularly to update and monitor the
programs’ progress. These ongoing reviews give the Company a chance to intervene at an early stage if there are
any negative developments and provide it with information about expected interim goals and related milestone
payments well in advance. Partners in non-active collaborations regularly provide MorphoSys with written
reports so that it can follow the progress of therapeutic programs.

The business development area uses market analyses to get an early indication of the market’s demand for new
technologies. By continuously monitoring the market, MorphoSys can quickly respond to trends and
requirements and initiate its own activities or partnerships.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
ORGANIZATION OF THE MORPHOSYS GROUP

The MorphoSys Group, consisting of MorphoSys AG and its subsidiaries, develops and commercializes
antibodies and peptides for therapeutic applications. The activities of the Group’s two business segments are
based on its proprietary technologies. The Proprietary Development segment combines all of the Company’s
proprietary research and development of therapeutic compounds. MorphoSys, alone or with partners, develops its
proprietary and in-licensed compounds with the option to bring them into partnerships, out-license them or
market them in selected regions and therapeutic settings. The development of proprietary technologies is also
conducted in this segment. The second business segment, Partnered Discovery, uses MorphoSys’s technologies
to make human antibody-based therapeutics on behalf of partners in the pharmaceutical industry. All business
activities within the scope of these collaborations are reflected in this segment.

MorphoSys AG is located at its registered office in Planegg near Munich. MorphoSys AG’s subsidiary Lanthio
Pharma B.V. and its subsidiary LanthioPep B.V. are located in Groningen, the Netherlands. In order to provide
the organizational framework for a potential future commercialization of our lead compound MOR?208 in the
United States, MorphoSys US Inc. was founded in July 2018. The wholly owned subsidiary of MorphoSys AG
was established in Princeton, New Jersey, USA. In the future, it is planned to locate the subsidiary in Boston,
Massachusetts, USA. MorphoSys AG’s central corporate functions such as accounting, controlling, human
resources, legal, patent, purchasing, corporate communications and investor relations, as well as the two
segments Proprietary Development and Partnered Discovery, are all located in Planegg. The subsidiaries
MorphoSys US Inc., Lanthio Pharma B.V. and its subsidiary LanthioPep B.V., are largely autonomous and
independently managed. These subsidiaries generally have their own management and administration, as well as
human resources, accounting and business development departments. The subsidiaries Lanthio Pharma B.V. and
LanthioPep B.V. have their own research and development laboratories as well. In June 2018, the subsidiary
Sloning BioTechnology GmbH, located in Planegg, Germany, was merged into MorphoSys AG.

Additional information about the Group’s structure can be found in the Notes (Item 2.2.1).
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LEGAL STRUCTURE OF THE MORPHOSYS GROUP: GROUP MANAGEMENT AND
SUPERVISION

MorphoSys AG, a German stock corporation listed in the Prime Standard segment of the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange as well as on the Nasdaq Global Market, is the parent company of the MorphoSys Group. In
accordance with the German Stock Corporation Act, the Company has a dual management structure with the
Management Board as the governing body with its four members appointed and overseen by the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board is elected by the Annual General Meeting and currently consists of six members.
Detailed information concerning the Group’s management and control and its corporate governance principles
can be found in the Corporate Governance Report. The Senior Management Group supports the Management
Board of the Company. At the end of the reporting year, the Senior Management Group consisted of 24 managers
from various departments.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
DRUG DEVELOPMENT

MorphoSys develops drugs using its own research and development (R&D) and by collaborating with partners
from the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry or with academic institutions. Our core business activity is
developing new treatments for patients suffering from serious diseases. We have a very broad pipeline, which
comprised a total of 115 therapeutic programs at the end of 2018, 29 of which are in clinical development. The
first therapeutic agent based on MorphoSys’s proprietary technology, which was developed by one of our
licensees, is approved in the United States, Canada, European Union, Japan and a number of other countries
worldwide. Figure 1 shows the revenue development of the MorphoSys Group divided into our two business
segments Proprietary Development and Partnered Discovery, which are described in more detail in the Strategy
and Group Management and Organizational Structure sections above.

Our Proprietary Development programs are critical to our goal of becoming a fully integrated biopharmaceutical
company that develops and commercializes its own drugs. We are focusing our development activities on cancer
treatments, but also have selected programs in inflammatory diseases.

The ability of monoclonal antibodies to bind to specific antigens on tumors or activate the immune system
against cancer to unleash a therapeutic effect in patients has led to their dominant role in targeted cancer
therapies. According to a report from the IQVIA Institute, global spending on cancer medicines rose to
approximately US$ 133 billion in 2017. Overall, the global market for oncology medicines is predicted to reach
as much as US$ 200 billion by 2022. Chronic inflammatory and autoimmune diseases affect millions of patients
worldwide and impose an enormous social and economic burden. The QuintilesIMS Institute estimates the global
market for the treatment of autoimmune diseases will be in the range of US$ 75 billion to US$ 90 billion in the
year 2021.

MorphoSys’s most advanced Proprietary Development programs are highlighted below in the Research and
Development and Business Performance section on page 51.

Our clinical stage Partnered Discovery programs are developed entirely under the control of our partners. They
comprise not only programs in our core area of oncology, but also in indications where we have not established
proprietary expertise. The most advanced Partnered Discovery programs are highlighted below in the Research
and Development and Business Performance section on page 59.

TECHNOLOGIES

MorphoSys has developed a number of technologies that provide direct access to human antibodies for treating
diseases, which we utilize for both our Proprietary Development and Partnered Discovery programs. One of the
most widely known MorphoSys technologies is HuCAL, which is a collection of billions of fully human
antibodies and a system for their optimization. Another fundamental platform is Ylanthia, a large antibody
library representing the next generation of antibody technology. Ylanthia is based on an innovative concept for
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generating highly specific and fully human antibodies. We expect Ylanthia to set a new standard for the
pharmaceutical industry’s development of therapeutic antibodies in this decade and beyond. Slonomics is the
Company’s patented, fully automated technology for gene synthesis and modification, which is used to generate
highly diverse gene libraries in a controlled process to be used, for example, for the improvement of antibody
properties. The lanthipeptide technology developed by Lanthio Pharma B.V., a wholly owned MorphoSys
subsidiary, is a valuable addition to our existing library of antibodies and opens up new possibilities for
discovering potential drugs based on stabilized peptides. The newest addition to the technology portfolio is our
proprietary Helix-Turn-Helix (HTH) peptide technology. In contrast to the lanthipeptides that are stabilized by a
specific amino acid modification, the HTH peptides are endowed with an inherent stability by their structure.

More details on our technologies can be found in Our Technology Platforms, on page 176.

COMMERCIAL

In July 2018, we established a wholly owned subsidiary, MorphoSys US Inc. The subsidiary focuses on building
a strong U.S. presence to prepare for the planned commercialization of MOR208 subject to FDA approval.

FIG. 01: REVENUES OF THE MORPHOSYS GROUP BY SEGMENT (IN MILLION €)!

64.0 106.2 |\ 49.7 6b.8 76.4

. ’S .
2014 2dls 2016 2017 2018

PARTNERED DISCOVERY W PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT

! Differences due to rounding.
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PROGRAM / PARTNER

FIG. 02: MORPHOSYS’S PRODUCT PIPELINE (DECEMBER 31, 2018)

PROGRAM / PARTNER

INDICATION PHASE 12 3w INDICATION PHASE 12 3 m
Tremfya® (guselkumab) / Janssen/J&3J Utomilumab (PF-05082566) / Pfizer

* Psoriasis 0000 ¥ Cancer 0000
Gantenerumab / Roche Xentuzumab (BI-836845) / BI

v Alzheimer’s disease 0000 ¥ Solid tumors 00O
MOR208 / not partnered BAY2287411 / Bayer

* Hematological malignancies 0000 ¥ Cancer [ JOl0J®)
Anetumab ravtansine (BAY94-9343) / Bayer Elgemtumab (LIM716) / Novartis

v Solid tumors [ X JOI@) v Cancer [ JOIOJ@)
BAY1093884 / Bayer MOR107°? (LP2-3) / nicht in Partnerschaft

* Hemophilia [ X JOI@) + Not disclosed [ JOIOI@)
BHQ880 / Novartis NOV-7 (CLG561) / Novartis

* Multiple myeloma 0000 v Eye diseases [ 1610)0)
Bimagrumab (BYM338) / Novartis NOV-8 / Novartis

* Metabolic diseases [ X JOJ@) ¥ Inflammation [ JOIO®)
CNTO6785 / Janssen/3&3 NOV-9 (LKAB651) / Novartis

¥ Inflammation [ X JOJ@) ¥ Diabetic eye diseases [ 010)0)
Ianalumab (VAY736) / Novartis NOV-10 (PCAO062) / Novartis

* Inflammation [ X JOI@) ¥ Cancer [ JOIO®)
MOR103 (GSK3196165) / GlaxoSmithRline NOV-11 / Novartis

* Inflammation @000 ¥ Blood disorders [ JeloJe)
MOR106 / Novartis/Galapados NOUV-13 (HKT288) / Novartis

* Inflammation @000 ¥ Cancer [ Jelole)
MOR202 / I-Mab Biopharma? NOV-14 / Novartis

* Multiple myeloma [ X JOJ@) ¥ Asthma [ 610J@)
Nov-12 (MAA8BEB) / Novartis PRU-300 (CNTO3157) / ProventionBio

* Prevention of thrombosis [ X JOI@) * Inflammation [ JOIOJ@)
Setrusumab (BPS804) / Mereo/Novartis Vantictumab (OMP-18R5) / OncoMed

v Brittle bone syndrome [ X JOJ@) v Solid tumors [ ©10J@)
Tesidolumab (LFG316) / Novartis

v Eye diseases [ X JOI@) LEGEND: @ MOR PROGRAM

' Market
2 For development in China, Hongkong, Taiwan, Macao

© OUT-LICENSED MOR PROGRAM

@ PARTNERED DISCOVERY PROGRAM

3 A phase 1 study in healthy volunteers was completed. MOR107 is currently in preclinical investigation with a focus on oncology indications.
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FIG. 03: ACTIVE CLINICAL STUDIES WITH MORPHOSYS ANTIBODIES (DECEMBER 31)
PHASE
]
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‘ ‘ — - |
| Y N ws LW

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

INFLUENCING FACTORS

A political goal of many countries is to provide cost-effective medical care for its citizens as demographic
change drives the need for new forms of therapy. Cost-cutting could slow the industry’s development. As part of
their austerity measures, governments in Europe, the United States and Asia have tightened their healthcare
restrictions and are closely monitoring drug pricing and reimbursement.

The regulatory approval processes in the U.S., Europe and elsewhere are lengthy, time-consuming and
unpredictable. It typically takes many years from the start of human clinical testing to obtain marketing approval
of a drug, which depends upon numerous factors, including the substantial discretion of the regulatory
authorities. Approval laws, regulations, policies or the type and amount of information necessary to gain
approval may change during the course of a product candidate’s clinical development and may vary among
jurisdictions.

Generic competition, which is already common in the field of small molecule drugs, now poses an increasing
challenge to the biotechnology industry due to drug patent expiries. The technological barriers for generic
biopharmaceuticals, or biosimilars, are expected to remain high. Nevertheless, many drug manufacturers,
particularly those from Europe and Asia, are now entering this market and placing more competitive pressure on
established biotechnology companies. In the U.S., the approval of biosimilars as an alternative form of treatment
has been very slow; they are, however, gaining more attention because of increasing pressure in the healthcare
sector to reduce costs. According to the Allied Market Research information service, the global market for
biosimilars will reach US$ 27 billion in 2020.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
2018 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

MorphoSys’s business is strongly focused on advancing our therapeutic programs in research and development to
benefit patients suffering from serious diseases and to increase MorphoSys’s value. The clinical development of
proprietary programs with the goal of advancing them toward regulatory approval and commercialization is our
focal point. We strive to gain access to novel disease-specific target molecules, product candidates and
innovative technology platforms to advance our Proprietary Development portfolio. MorphoSys also continues to
participate in the advancements of our partners’ therapeutic programs through success-based milestone payments
and royalties. The first antibody based on MorphoSys’s technology has been on the market in the U.S. since
mid-2017.
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The key measures of success of MorphoSys’s research and development include:
e the initiation of projects and the progress of individual development programs,

e collaborations and partnerships with other companies to broaden our technology base and pipeline of
compounds and to commercialize our therapeutic programs,

e clinical and preclinical research results,
e regulatory guidance of health authorities to pursue approval of individual therapeutic programs,

e robust patent protection to secure MorphoSys’s market position.

PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT

On December 31, 2018, the number of Proprietary Development programs totaled 12, three of which were
out-licensed, either fully or for certain regions only. Five of these programs are in clinical development, one is in
preclinical development, and six are in the discovery stage. Our Proprietary Development activities are currently
focused on the five clinical candidates:

*  MOR?208 - an antibody for the treatment of hematological (blood) cancers for which MorphoSys holds
exclusive worldwide commercial rights

e MOR202 - an antibody for the treatment of multiple myeloma and other cancers as well as certain
autoimmune diseases for which we have signed a regional licensing agreement with I-Mab Biopharma for
development and commercialization in China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Macao

*  MORI06 — an antibody for the treatment of inflammatory diseases for which MorphoSys and Galapagos
entered into an exclusive license agreement with Novartis in July 2018

e MORI03/GSK3196165 — an antibody that we have fully out-licensed to GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) and which
is currently in clinical development at GSK for the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis

e MORI107 - a lanthipeptide developed by our subsidiary Lanthio Pharma which is currently in preclinical
testing in oncology settings.

In addition to the programs listed above, we are pursuing several proprietary programs in earlier-stage research
and development, including MOR210, a preclinical antibody that was licensed to I-Mab in November 2018 for
China and certain other territories in Asia.

MOR208
Overview

MOR?208 is an investigational monoclonal antibody directed against the target molecule CD19. CD19 is broadly
expressed on the surface of B cells, a type of white blood cell. CD19 enhances B cell receptor signaling, an
important factor in B cell survival, making CD19 a potential target for the treatment of B cell malignancies,
including DLBCL (diffuse large B cell lymphoma) and CLL (chronic lymphocytic leukemia), indications for
which MOR208 is being developed. The market research firm Global Data expects the therapeutic market for
non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma (NHL), a type of B cell malignancy that includes DLBCL and CLL, to reach
approximately US$ 5.5 billion in 2024.

Collectively, lymphomas represent approximately 4% of all cancers diagnosed in the United States. NHL is the
most prevalent of all lymphoproliferative diseases, with the National Cancer Institute estimating that 74,680 new
cases occurred in the United States in 2018. Worldwide, 385,741 new cases per year were estimated in 2012.
DLBCL is the most frequent type of malignant lymphoma worldwide and accounts for approximately one-third
of all NHLs globally. First-line treatment of B cell malignancies, including DLBCL, most commonly consists of
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a combination chemotherapy regimen plus the antibody rituximab (Rituxan®), also referred to commonly as
R-CHOP (R, rituximab; CHOP, cyclophosphamide, doxorubicin, vincristine and the corticosteroid prednisone).
Yet, despite the therapeutic success of first-line R-CHOP in DLBCL, up to 40% of patients become refractory to
or relapse after initial treatment with fast progression of disease.

We are developing MOR208 pursuant to a collaboration and license agreement that we entered into in June 2010
with Xencor, Inc. (Xencor), under which Xencor granted us an exclusive worldwide license to MOR208 for all
indications. Pursuant to this agreement, except for the phase 1 clinical trial of MOR208 in CLL, which was
completed in January 2013, we are responsible for all development and commercialization activities in
connection with MOR208.

Ongoing clinical trials and clinical data presented

There are currently three clinical trials ongoing with MOR208 — L-MIND (phase 2 trial in relapsed/refractory
DLBCL (r/r DLBCL)), B-MIND (phase 2/3 trial in r/r DLBCL) and COSMOS (phase 2 trial in r/r CLL and small
lymphocytic lymphoma (SLL). The main focus of the current MOR208 development program is on r/r DLBCL.
Two of the three ongoing MOR208 clinical studies, namely the L-MIND and B-MIND trials, are being
conducted in this indication. Both trials are focusing on r/r DLBCL patients who are not eligible for high-dose
chemotherapy (HDCT) and autologous stem cell transplantation (ASCT). The available therapy options for this
group of patients are currently very limited, thus we see a high unmet medical need for new treatment
alternatives.

Important new data from two of our three current studies with MOR208 were presented during 2018.

L-MIND is a phase 2 open-label, single-arm trial evaluating MOR208 plus lenalidomide (LEN) in patients with
r/r DLBCL who are ineligible for HDCT and ASCT. The study enrolled patients after up to three prior lines of
therapy, with at least one prior therapy including an anti-CD20 targeting therapy, such as rituximab (Rituxan®).

Updated interim data from the study were presented in December 2018 at the American Society of Hematology
(ASH) Annual Meeting. These interim data (cut-off date June 5, 2018) had a median observation time of

12 months, and efficacy results were based on assessment by the investigators for all 81 patients enrolled in the
study. Patients enrolled had a median age of 72 years and had received a median of two prior lines of treatment.

The data showed a response in 47 out of 81 patients (overall response rate, or ORR, 58%) with complete
responses (CR) in 27 (33%) and partial responses (PR) in 20 (25%) patients. The median progression-free
survival (mPFS) was 16.2 months (95% confidence interval (CI) 6.3 months — not reached). Responses were
durable with a median duration of response (DoR) not reached (95% CI: NR — NR), and 70% of responding
patients were without progression at 12 months (12-month DoR rate: 70%, Kaplan-Meier estimate). A significant
proportion of patients (37/81; 46%) were still on study treatment at data cut-off, with 19 treated for over

12 months. Median overall survival (OS) was not reached (95% CI: 18.6 months — NR); the 12-month OS rate
was 73% (95% CI: 63% — 85%).

Response rates and median PFS similar to those seen overall were observed in most patient subgroups of interest,
including by Ann Arbor stage, or those patients who were primary refractory, refractory to last prior therapy, or
refractory to rituximab (Rituxan®).

No unexpected toxicities were observed for the treatment combination and no infusion-related reactions (IRRs)
were reported for MOR208. The most frequent treatment-emergent adverse events (TEAEs) with a toxicity
grading of 3 or higher were neutropenia in 35 (43%), thrombocytopenia in 14 (17%), and anemia in 7 (9%)
patients. Treatment-related serious adverse events (SAEs) occurred in 16 (20%) patients, the majority of which
were infections or neutropenic fever. Forty-one (51%) patients required dose reduction of LEN; 58 patients
(72%) could stay on a daily LEN dose of 20 mg or higher.
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We are continuing our discussions with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to evaluate possible paths
to market, including the possibility of an expedited regulatory submission and potential approval based primarily
on the L-MIND study. In October 2017, MOR208, in combination with LEN, was granted U.S. FDA
breakthrough therapy designation (BTD) for the treatment of r/r DLBCL patients ineligible for HDCT or ASCT
based on preliminary data from the L-MIND study. BTD is intended to expedite development and review of drug
candidates, alone or in combination with other drugs. It is granted if preliminary clinical evidence indicates that
the drug candidate may provide substantial improvement over existing therapies in the treatment of a serious or
life-threatening disease.

A key goal of the Company is to work towards the submission of a regulatory filing for MOR208 in r/r DLBCL
to the FDA for the U.S. and possibly to EMA for submission of a regulatory filing in Europe, primarily based on
data from the L-MIND study.

In parallel, the process is underway to conduct and complete data collection for the CMC (chemistry,
manufacturing and controls) package required for the regulatory filing and potential market supply thereafter.
The purpose of the CMC package is to prove a safe and stable commercial-scale production and manufacturing
process of the drug.

B-MIND is a phase 2/3 randomized, multi-center trial evaluating MOR208 plus bendamustine compared to
rituximab (Rituxan®) plus bendamustine in patients with r/r DLBCL who are ineligible for HDCT and ASCT.
This ongoing trial is scheduled to enroll patients in centers across Europe, the Asia/Pacific region and the United
States. The study is currently in its phase 3 part. In 2018, recruitment and treatment of patients continued as
planned.

COSMOS is a phase 2, two-cohort open-label, multi-center study evaluating the preliminary safety and efficacy
of MOR208 combined with idelalisib (cohort A) or venetoclax (cohort B) in patients with r/r CLL or SLL
previously treated with Bruton’s tyrosine kinase inhibitor (BTKi) ibrutinib.

Preliminary safety and efficacy data on all 11 patients enrolled in cohort A (cut-off date: January 29, 2018) were
presented at the European Hematological Association (EHA) Annual Congress in June 2018. Patients enrolled
had received a median of five prior treatment lines (range: 2-9). Nine out of the 11 patients enrolled (82%) had
discontinued prior ibrutinib treatment due to progressive disease and two patients (18%) due to toxicity.

The most common TEAEs of grade 3 or higher were hematologic, with neutropenia observed for four patients
(36%) and anemia for three patients (27%) being the most common reported events. Eleven treatment-emergent
SAEs were reported in five patients (45%), none of them being fatal. All five patients recovered. Six treatment-
related SAEs were reported in three patients (27%). All except one were suspected to be related to idelalisib; the
other was assessed as being attributable to both study drugs.

According to the preliminary efficacy analysis conducted by the investigators, the ORR was 82%, including one
CR (9%) confirmed by bone marrow biopsy and eight PRs (73%). In addition, two patients (18%) showed stable
disease (SD). The median observation time at cut-off was 4.2 months. At the time of data cut-off, six patients
were still on treatment. One patient with a very good partial response (VGPR) according to response criteria was
taken off the study to receive stem cell transplantation. Two previously responding patients had to discontinue
the study due to progressive disease. Two patients (one PR, one SD) discontinued due to adverse events.

At the ASH Annual Meeting in December 2018, preliminary safety and efficacy data on all 13 patients enrolled
into cohort B (cut-off date: October 15, 2018) were presented. Patients enrolled had received a median of three
prior treatment lines (range: 1-4). Nine out of the 13 patients enrolled (69%) had discontinued prior ibrutinib
treatment due to progressive disease, three patients (23%) due to toxicity and for one patient the reason was
unknown (8%).
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The most common hematological TEAE was neutropenia, observed for six patients (46%). Twelve treatment-
emergent SAEs were reported in nine patients (69%), none of them fatal, and all were resolved.

According to the preliminary efficacy analysis conducted by the investigators, ten out of 13 patients enrolled
showed an objective response (ORR 77%), including three CRs (23%) confirmed by bone marrow biopsy and
seven PRs (54%). Three patients discontinued study participation in the first cycle without undergoing a response
assessment, two patients thereof due to IRRs and one patient due to withdrawal of informed consent. No patients
had progressive disease. Five patients showed minimal residual disease (MRD) negativity, which means that no
tumor cells were detectable in the peripheral blood. The median observation time was 8.3 months. At the time of
data cut-off, all ten patients who had initially shown a response continued treatment, and one CR confirmation
was pending from bone marrow for one patient.

MOR202
Overview

MOR?202 is a recombinant human IgG1 HuCAL monoclonal antibody directed against the target molecule CD38.
CD38 is a highly expressed and clinically validated target in multiple myeloma (MM). Scientific research
suggests that an anti-CD38 antibody also may have therapeutic activity in solid tumors or autoimmune and other
diseases driven by autoantibodies, such as light chain amyloidosis or systemic lupus erythematosus.

MM is a hematological (blood) cancer that develops in the mature plasma cells in the bone marrow. MM is the
second most common blood cancer worldwide. Development of MOR202 in MM is currently focused on China,
where the patient number has gradually increased in recent years due to an aging population. Yet there are no
effective biologics approved in China for this indication, and current therapies have been associated with serious
side effects and limited treatment efficacy.

We are currently conducting a phase 1/2a trial in MM. During 2018, we announced our decision not to continue
development of MOR202 in MM beyond completion of the currently ongoing trial. This is in line with previous
announcements that we would not continue to develop MOR202 in MM without having a suitable partner.
However, we continue to support our partner I-Mab in the development of MOR202 with the aim to gain
approval in MM for the greater Chinese market as planned.

Also during 2018, we made the decision not to start clinical development of MOR202 in NSCLC as we had
originally planned. This was due to Genmab and Janssen discontinuing a clinical study of the anti-CD38 antibody
daratumumab in combination with a checkpoint inhibitor for the treatment of NSCLC based on an analysis of
interim clinical data and serious safety findings.

We are continuing to evaluate the development of MOR202 in other indications outside of cancer, including
certain autoimmune diseases.

Regional agreement with I-Mab Biopharma

We have an exclusive regional licensing agreement for MOR202 with [-Mab Biopharma. Under the terms of the
agreement signed in November 2017, I-Mab has the exclusive rights to develop and commercialize MOR202 in
China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao. At the signing, MorphoSys received an immediate upfront payment of
USS$ 20 million. We are also entitled to receive additional success-based clinical and commercial milestone
payments from I-Mab of up to US$ 100 million, as well as tiered double-digit royalties on net sales of MOR202
in the agreed regions. In August 2018, we announced that [-Mab had submitted an investigational new drug
(IND) application to the Chinese authorities for MOR202 (called TJ202 by I-Mab) for the treatment of MM.

Clinical data presented

Data from our phase 1/2a study in MM were presented in December 2018 at the ASH Annual Meeting. The data
were based on the most recent data cut-off after the primary analysis of the study in r/r MM. The dose escalation
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trial comprises three arms: MOR202, MOR202 in combination with the immunomodulatory drug (IMiD)
lenalidomide (LEN), and MOR202 in combination with the IMiD pomalidomide (POM), in each case with
low-dose dexamethasone (DEX).

In total, 56 patients were evaluable for safety and efficacy analysis in the clinically relevant dose cohorts of
MOR202 (4 mg/kg, 8 mg/kg, 16 mg/kg) by the time of the data cut-off on October 16, 2018. At data cut-off,

10 patients remained in the study. Of the 56 evaluable patients, 18 received MOR202 plus DEX, 21 received the
combination of MOR202 and POM/DEX, and 17 received MOR202 plus LEN/DEX.

MOR?202 was given as a two-hour infusion up to the highest dose of 16 mg/kg. IRRs occurred in 7% of patients
in the clinically relevant dose cohorts of MOR202 and were limited to grades 1 or 2. Further, the infusion time
could be shortened to 30 minutes in the majority of patients still on study treatment at the data cut-off date.

The most frequent adverse events of grade 3 or higher were neutropenia, lymphopenia and leukopenia in 52%,
52% and 39% of patients, respectively. No unexpected safety signals were observed.

Patients treated with MOR202 in combination with LEN/DEX had a median of two prior treatment lines, 59%
being refractory to at least one prior therapy. Median PFS was not yet reached. With five of the 17 patients in this
cohort still on study at data cut-off, the median time on study was 11.8 months. An objective response was
observed in 11 out of 17 patients (65%), with two CRs, two VGPRs and seven PRs.

Patients receiving MOR202 with POM/DEX, had a median of three prior treatment lines, and all were refractory
to prior LEN therapy. Median PFS was 15.9 months. With five out of 21 patients in this cohort still on study at
data cut-off, the median time on study was 13.4 months. An objective response was observed in ten out of

21 patients (48%), with two patients achieving a CR, six patients with a VGPR and two PRs.

Patients treated with MOR202 plus DEX had a median of three prior treatment regimens, with 67% being
refractory to any prior therapy. Median PFS in this cohort was 8.4 months. All patients had discontinued the
study before data cut-off; follow-up for this cohort is therefore completed. An objective response was observed
in five out of 18 patients (28%); median time on study was 3.8 months.

MOR106

MOR106 is an investigational fully human IgG1 monoclonal antibody derived from our Ylanthia library and
designed to selectively target IL-17C. MOR106 came from the strategic discovery and co-development alliance
between Galapagos and MorphoSys, in which both companies contributed their core technologies and expertise.
It is the first publicly disclosed monoclonal antibody targeting IL-17C in clinical development worldwide. In
preclinical studies, MOR106 has been shown to inhibit the binding of IL-17C to its receptor, thus abolishing its
biological activity. Results from rodent inflammatory skin models of atopic dermatitis (AD) and psoriasis
support clinical development of MOR106 for the treatment of inflammatory diseases. In July 2018, we
announced with Galapagos that we had entered into a worldwide exclusive development and commercialization
agreement with Novartis Pharma AG (Novartis) for MOR106.

AD, the most severe and common type of eczema, is a chronic relapsing inflammatory skin disease that causes
severe itch, dry skin and rashes, predominantly on the face, inner side of the elbows and knees, and on hands and
feet. Scratching of the affected skin leads to a vicious cycle causing redness, swelling, cracking, scaling of the
skin and an increased risk of bacterial infections. Lichenification, thickening of the skin, is characteristic in older
children and adults. The National Eczema Association estimates that AD affects over 30 million Americans, and
up to 25% of children and 2-3% of adults. As many as 50% of AD patients are diagnosed in the first year of life,
and 85% of patients have a disease onset before age five. Symptoms commonly fade during childhood; however,
up to 30% of the patients will suffer from AD for life. A smaller percentage first develops symptoms as adults.
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Worldwide exclusive development and commercialization agreement with Novartis

Our agreement with Novartis was announced in July 2018, and received U.S. anti-trust clearance in September
2018. Under the terms of the agreement, the parties (Galapagos, MorphoSys, Novartis) will cooperate to execute
and broaden the existing development plan for MOR106 in AD. Novartis holds exclusive rights for
commercialization of any products resulting from the agreement. All current and future research, development,
manufacturing and commercialization costs for MOR106 will be covered by Novartis. This includes the ongoing
phase 2 IGUANA trial in AD patients, as well as the phase 1 bridging study to evaluate the safety and efficacy of
a subcutaneous formulation of MOR106 in healthy volunteers and AD patients. MorphoSys and Galapagos will
conduct additional trials to support development of MOR106 in AD. Under the terms of the agreement, Novartis
will also explore the potential of MOR106 in indications beyond AD.

In addition to the funding of the current and future MOR106 program by Novartis, MorphoSys and Galapagos
jointly received an upfront payment of € 95 million. Pending achievement of certain developmental, regulatory,
commercial and sales-based milestones, MorphoSys and Galapagos are jointly eligible to receive significant
milestone payments, potentially amounting to up to approximately € 850 million, in addition to tiered royalties
on net commercial sales in the low-teens to low-twenties percent. Under the terms of their agreement from 2008,
Galapagos and MorphoSys share all payments equally (50/50).

Clinical data presented

In February 2018, more detailed clinical results from a phase 1 trial with MOR106 in patients with moderate to
severe AD were presented at the American Academy of Dermatology (AAD) conference after initial study data
were reported in September 2017. MOR 106 showed first signs of activity as well as durable responses and was
generally well tolerated in patients with AD.

This randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled phase 1 trial evaluated single ascending doses (SAD) of
MORI106 in healthy volunteers and multiple ascending doses (MAD) in patients with moderate-to-severe AD. In
the MAD part, 25 patients received four infusions once-weekly of either MOR106 (at the doses of 1, 3 and

10 mg/kg body weight) or placebo in a 3:1 ratio. Patients were followed for 10 weeks after the end of the
treatment period. In the MAD part of the study, all adverse drug reactions observed were mild to moderate and
transient in nature. No SAEs and no IRRs were recorded. MOR106 exhibited a favorable pharmacokinetic (PK)
profile with dose-dependent exposure.

At the highest dose level of MOR106 (10 mg/kg body weight), in 83% of patients (5/6) an improvement of at
least 50% in signs and extent of AD, as measured by the Eczema Area and Severity Index (EASI)-50, was
recorded at week 4. The onset of activity occurred within two to four weeks, depending on the dose administered.
Pooled data across all dose cohorts showed that patients treated with MOR106 achieved an EASI improvement
compared to baseline of 58%, 62%, 72% and 64% at week 4, 8, 12 and 14, respectively. For patients receiving
placebo, the EASI improvement was 32%, 40%, 38% and 50%, respectively.

Clinical trials initiated

IGUANA phase 2 study in AD: In May 2018, we announced with Galapagos that the first patient had been
enrolled in IGUANA, a phase 2 study of MOR106 in patients with AD. The placebo-controlled, double-blind
study will evaluate the efficacy, safety and PK of MOR106.

At least 180 patients with moderate-to-severe AD are planned to be treated over a 12-week period with one of
three different doses of intravenously (iv) administered MOR106 (1, 3 or 10 mg/kg) or placebo using two
different dosing regimens in multiple centers across Europe. Dosing at two- or four-week intervals will be
evaluated over the 12-week treatment period, followed by a 16-week observation period. The primary objective
will be assessed by the percentage change from baseline in EASI score at week 12.
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Phase 1 bridging study. In September 2018, we announced with Galapagos the initiation of a phase 1 bridging
study testing a subcutaneous (sc) formulation of MOR106. This bridging study is a parallel-design phase 1
clinical trial being conducted in two parts. Part 1 is a single center, randomized, open-label study in healthy
volunteers who will be treated with different single-dose levels of MOR 106 administered subcutaneously or
intravenously. Part 2 is a multiple-center, randomized, placebo-controlled, multiple-dose study in patients with
moderate to severe AD who will be treated subcutaneously for 12 weeks. Safety and tolerability, PK and
occurrence of anti-drug-antibodies after administration of MOR106 will be assessed as endpoints. In addition, the
efficacy of MOR106 will be explored in subjects with moderate-to-severe AD.

MOR103/GSK3196165
Overview

MOR103/GSK3196165 is a fully human HuCAL antibody directed against the granulocyte-macrophage colony-
stimulating factor (GM-CSF). Due to its diverse functions in the immune system, GM-CSF can be considered a
target for a broad spectrum of anti-inflammatory therapies, such as rheumatoid arthritis (RA), a chronic
inflammatory disorder that affects the lining of joints, causing a painful swelling that can eventually result in
bone erosion and joint deformity.

The overall market for RA drugs is growing steadily, and GBI Research expects it will reach US$ 19 billion in
the year 2020. MorphoSys estimates that MOR103/GSK3196165 has the potential to be the first marketed
anti-GM-CSF antibody in RA.

We discovered and advanced MOR103/GSK3196165 into clinical development, before out-licensing it to
GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) in 2013. GSK is now developing the antibody independently for RA and bears all of the
related costs. MorphoSys participates in the program’s development and commercialization through milestone
payments up to a total of € 423 million and through tiered, double-digit royalties on net sales. In 2013,
MorphoSys received an upfront payment of € 22.5 million.

Clinical data presented

GSK conducted a phase 2b study in patients with RA and a phase 2a study in patients with inflammatory hand
osteoarthritis (OA). The corresponding study data were presented at the 2018 American College of
Rheumatology (ACR) Annual Meeting in October 2018. GSK has announced that it does not intend to pursue
further development in hand osteoarthritis.

Furthermore, results from the phase 2 dose-ranging study of MOR103/GSK3196165 in patients with
moderate-to-severe RA who have an inadequate response to methotrexate (MTX) were presented at the ACR
Annual Meeting in October 2018.

The primary objective of this double-blind, placebo-controlled, dose-ranging study was to assess the efficacy of
MOR103/GSK3196165 in adult patients with active, moderate-to-severe RA. A total of 222 patients were
randomized equally to receive placebo or MOR103/GSK3196165 (37 patients per arm) at doses of 22.5 mg, 45
mg, 90 mg, 135 mg or 180 mg, starting with an induction regimen of five weekly subcutaneous injections
followed by every other week (EOW) injections until week 50.

Study results from the 180 mg dose arm of MOR103/GSK3196165 were as follows:

Efficacy was shown in the majority of patients, as measured by a Disease Activity Score taking into account the
C-reactive protein, (DAS28(CRP)) of less than 2.6 at week 24 (the primary endpoint of the study), although this
did not reach statistical significance (week 24: 16% for MOR103/GSK3196165 180 mg vs 3% for placebo,
p=0.134).
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For DAS28(CRP) change from baseline, there was a rapid onset of efficacy, as early as week 1, for all doses of
MORI103/GSK3196165 above 22.5 mg. This improvement continued throughout the weekly dosing phase and
was statistically significant at week 12 (-1.27 difference for MOR103/GSK3196165 180 mg from placebo, 95%
CI: -1.91, -0.63; p<0.001).

An improvement in efficacy was maintained through the EOW dosing phase and was statistically significant at
week 24 (DAS28(CRP): -1.82 difference for MOR103/GSK3196165 180mg from placebo, 95% CI: -2.05, -0.23;
p<0.001).

Major secondary endpoints including a number of traditional measures to assess the efficacy of
MOR103/GSK3196165 were also improved in line with the DAS28(CRP) reduction. The magnitude of
improvement in patient-based measures (swollen and tender joint counts, pain and clinical disease activity index
(CDAI)) was particularly marked.

The safety profile of MOR103/GSK3196165 was similar to that reported in previous studies. All doses of
MOR103/GSK3196165 were well tolerated, and adverse events (AEs), including SAEs, were reported similarly
across treatment groups. The percentage of patients experiencing any AE or SAE respectively, was 49% and 0%
for placebo, 51% and 5% for 22.5 mg MOR103/GSK3196165, 65% and 3% for 45 mg MOR103/GSK3196165,
59% and 5% for 90 mg MOR103/GSK3196165, 51% and 3% for 135 mg MOR103/GSK3196165, and 65% and
0% for 180 mg MOR103/GSK3196165. There were no treatment-limiting safety findings including serious
infections, injection site reactions, or laboratory abnormalities, all of which were closely monitored throughout
the study. No pulmonary toxicity, including pulmonary alveolar proteinosis, was observed.

In another phase 2a mechanistic 12-week study with 180 mg MOR103/GSK3196165 presented at the same
meeting, a similar clinical efficacy profile with, in addition, synovitis reduction, was observed in patients with
RA.

MOR107

Lanthipeptides are a class of modified peptides that have been engineered for improved stability and selectivity.
MOR107 is based on the proprietary technology platform of our Dutch subsidiary Lanthio Pharma B.V. This
compound has demonstrated angiotensin II type 2 (AT2) receptor-dependent activity in preclinical in vivo studies
and may have the potential to treat a variety of diseases. After we had successfully completed a first-in-human
phase 1 study in healthy volunteers in 2017, we continued our preclinical investigations with MOR107 during
2018, focusing on oncology indications. In the fourth quarter of 2018, updated study data led to the need for
further studies, and the existing development plan was adjusted accordingly. This resulted in the expectation of a
delayed market entry and a delay in the occurrence of future cash flows compared to previous assumptions,
which led to an impairment. Further details can be found in the Notes (Item 5.7.5).

MOR210
Overview

MOR210 is a human antibody directed against C5aR derived from our HuCAL technology. C5aR, the receptor of
the complement factor C5a, is being investigated as a potential new drug target in the field of immuno-oncology
and autoimmune diseases. Tumors have been shown to produce high amounts of C5a which, by recruiting and
activating myeloid-derived suppressor cells (MDSCs), is assumed to contribute to an immune-suppressive
pro-tumorigenic microenvironment. MOR210 is intended to block the interaction between C5a and its receptor,
thereby being expected to neutralize the immune-suppressive function of the MDSCs and to enable immune cells
to attack the tumor. MOR210 is currently in preclinical development.

Regional agreement with I-Mab Biopharma

In November 2018, we announced that we had entered into an exclusive strategic collaboration and regional
licensing agreement for MOR210 with I-Mab Biopharma. Under the agreement, I-Mab has exclusive rights to
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develop and commercialize MOR210 in China, Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan and South Korea, while we retain
rights in the rest of the world. The agreement deepens our existing partnership with I-Mab, building upon the
ongoing collaboration for MOR202.

Under the terms of the agreement, I-Mab will exercise its exclusive license rights for development and
commercialization of MOR210 in its territories. With our support, I-Mab will perform and fund all global
development activities for MOR210, including clinical trials in China and the U.S., towards clinical
proof-of-concept (PoC) in oncology.

We received an upfront payment of US$ 3.5 million from I-Mab and are eligible to receive development and
commercial milestone payments of up to US$ 101.5 million, as well as tiered, mid-single-digit royalties on net
sales of MOR210 in I-Mab’s territories. In return for the execution of a successful clinical PoC study, [-Mab is
eligible to receive low-single-digit royalties on net sales generated with MOR210 outside its territories and a
tiered percentage of sub-licensing revenue.

PARTNERED DISCOVERY

At the end of 2018, we had one Partnered Discovery program on the market, 24 in clinical development, 24
partnered product candidates in preclinical development and 55 in discovery. Below, we highlight our most
advanced programs and a recently expanded strategic alliance.

Guselkumab (Tremfya®) — a HuCAL antibody targeting IL-23 that is being developed and commercialized by
our partner Janssen in plaque psoriasis and other indications. Guselkumab (Tremfya®) is approved in the United
States, Canada, European Union, Japan and a number of other countries worldwide.

Gantenerumab — a HuCAL antibody targeting amyloid beta that is in phase 3 clinical testing by our partner
Roche for the treatment of Alzheimer’s disease.

Other programs — in addition to the two programs above, we have a large number of programs in various stages
of research and development from our partnerships with major pharmaceutical companies.

LEO Pharma — we have a strategic alliance with LEO Pharma for the discovery and development of therapeutic
antibodies for the treatment of skin diseases. This agreement was expanded in 2018 to include peptides.

GUSELKUMAB (TREMFYA®)
Overview

Guselkumab (Tremfya®) is a human HuCAL antibody targeting 1L-23 that is being developed and
commercialized by Janssen. It is the first commercial product based on our proprietary technology. It is approved
in the United States, Canada, the European Union and several other countries for the treatment of
moderate-to-severe plaque psoriasis and in Japan for the treatment of various forms of psoriasis, psoriatic
arthritis and palmoplantar pustulosis. IL-23 is a pro-inflammatory protein which has been identified as a cytokine
in autoimmune diseases and is found in the skin of patients with psoriasis and other inflammatory diseases. It is
therefore considered to be a potential treatment target for inflammatory diseases. The antibody binds to the
so-called p19 subunit unique to IL-23. Antibodies that bind to IL-23"s p40 subunit will also neutralize IL-12 and
are therefore less specific. Guselkumab (Tremfya®) is the first approved antibody binding the p19 subunit of
IL-23.

Psoriasis is a chronic, autoimmune inflammatory disorder of the skin characterized by abnormal itching and
physically painful skin areas. It is estimated that about 125 million people worldwide have psoriasis, with
approximately 25% suffering from cases that are considered moderate to severe. The independent market experts
Transparency Market Research forecast the market for psoriasis to grow from € 7.5 billion in 2014 to € 12 billion
in the year 2024.
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In addition to plaque psoriasis, Janssen is developing guselkumab (Tremfya®) for the treatment of Crohn’s
disease, pediatric psoriasis, psoriatic arthritis, palmar/plantar pustulosis and a few other indications.

MorphoSys receives royalties on net sales of guselkumab (Tremfya®) and is eligible to receive milestone
payments for selected future development activities.

Additional marketing approvals received

Building on the first approvals for guselkumab (Tremfya®), which occurred in 2017 in the U.S., Europe and
Canada, during 2018 Janssen received marketing approvals in several additional countries as follows:

Australia: In April 2018, Janssen’s country subsidiary reported that guselkumab (Tremfya®) had been approved
for the treatment of adults living with moderate-to-severe plaque psoriasis in Australia.

Brazil: In April 2018, Janssen’s country subsidiary reported that guselkumab (Tremfya®) had been approved for
the treatment of adults living with moderate-to-severe plaque psoriasis in Brazil.

Japan: In April 2018, we announced that Janssen had reported that guselkumab (Tremfya®) had received
marketing approval in Japan for the treatment of three forms of psoriasis (plaque, pustular and erythrodermic
psoriasis) and psoriatic arthritis in patients with moderate-to-severe disease for whom other existing treatments
have failed.

Additionally, in November 2018, Janssen reported that guselkumab (Tremfya®) had been approved in Japan for
the treatment of patients with palmoplantar pustulosis who are not responding to, or are refractory to, existing
treatments. Palmoplantar pustulosis is a debilitating, chronic skin disease that causes pustules and inflammation
to appear mainly on the palms of the hands and soles of the feet, greatly affecting patients’ quality of life.
According to a press release issued by Janssen on November 21, 2018, guselkumab (Tremfya®) was the first and
only biologic treatment available for the estimated 130,000 patients living with palmoplantar pustulosis in Japan.

South Korea: In April 2018, we announced that an affiliate of Janssen reported that guselkumab (Tremfya®) had
been approved for the treatment of moderate-to-severe adult plaque psoriasis requiring phototherapy or systemic
therapies in South Korea.

New clinical trials initiated

Crohn’s disease pivotal clinical program: In July 2018, we announced that Janssen had initiated a pivotal
phase 2/3 clinical program to evaluate the efficacy and safety of guselkumab (Tremfya®) in the treatment of
patients with moderate to severely active Crohn’s disease, a type of inflammatory bowel disease affecting any
part of the gastrointestinal tract. Expected to enroll approximately 2,000 patients, the program, which is named
GALAXI, consists of three separate studies: a phase 2 study (GALAXI 1), followed by two phase 3 studies
(GALAXI 2 and GALAXI 3). In connection with the start of the GALAXI program, we received two milestone
payments from Janssen; the financial details were not disclosed.

Phase 3 trial in pediatric plaque psoriasis patients: In September 2018, we announced that Janssen had
initiated a phase 3 clinical trial of guselkumab (Tremfya®) in pediatric patients suffering from chronic plaque
psoriasis, the most common form of psoriasis. According to clinicaltrials.gov, the trial, PROTOSTAR, is
expected to enroll approximately 125 children between 6 and 18 years of age with plaque psoriasis, and will
evaluate the safety, efficacy, and pharmacokinetics of guselkumab (Tremfya®) against etanercept and placebo.

Phase 2 trial in hidradenitis suppurativa (HS): In October 2018, we announced that Janssen had initiated a
phase 2 clinical study of guselkumab (Tremfya®) in patients with moderate-to-severe HS, a chronic skin disease
also known as acne inversa. According to clinicaltrials.gov, the randomized, double-blind study, NOVA, is
expected to enroll approximately 180 adult patients with moderate-to-severe HS and will evaluate the efficacy,
safety and tolerability of guselkumab (Tremfya®) against placebo.
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Phase 2a trial in ulcerative colitis (UC): In January 2019, we announced that Janssen had initiated a
proof-of-concept phase 2a clinical trial in patients with moderately to severely active UC, a chronic inflammatory
bowel disease. According to clinicaltrials.gov, this randomized, double-blind study will evaluate the efficacy and
safety of guselkumab (Tremfya®) in combination with golimumab compared to guselkumab (Tremfya®) or
golimumab monotherapy in approximately 210 patients with moderately to severely active UC.

New long-term data presented in plaque psoriasis

During 2018, our partner Janssen announced the presentation of new long-term data in patients with plaque
psoriasis.

In October 2018, Janssen announced new long-term data from the open-label period of the phase 3 VOYAGE 1
clinical trial that demonstrated stably maintained rates of skin clearance with guselkumab (Tremfya®) treatment
at week 52 and week 156 among adult patients with moderate-to-severe plaque psoriasis.

According to a press release issued by Janssen, the findings, presented at the 37th Fall Clinical Dermatology
Conference in Las Vegas, Nevada/USA, showed that nearly 83% of patients receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) in
the VOYAGE 1 study maintained at least a 90% improvement in the Psoriasis Area Severity Index (PASI 90)
response, or near-complete skin clearance, and an Investigator’s Global Assessment (IGA) score of cleared (0) or
minimal disease (1) at week 156. According to Janssen, 96.4% of patients treated with guselkumab (Tremfya®)
achieved a PASI 75 score at week 156. Furthermore, 53.1 % of patients achieved an IGA score of 0 and 50.8% of
patients achieved a PASI 100 response. This measure represents skin completely cleared of psoriasis plaques
(except for residual discoloration).

According to Janssen, of the 494 patients in the treatment groups receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) in the study,
the percentage of patients reporting AEs, SAEs, infections and serious infections through week 156 were 86.2%,
13.4%, 67.8% and 2.2%, respectively, consistent with data from earlier read-outs from the study. No cases of
active tuberculosis, opportunistic infections or serious hypersensitivity reactions were reported among
guselkumab (Tremfya®)-treated subjects.

In September 2018, Janssen announced new data that showed clinically relevant improvements in long-term
patient-reported outcomes (PRO) in patients with plaque psoriasis switched to guselkumab (Tremfya®) after an
initial inadequate response to adalimumab (Humira®). These long-term findings from Janssen’s phase 3 clinical
trial programs — VOYAGE 1 and 2 — in patients with moderate-to-severe plaque psoriasis were part of six
abstracts presented at the European Academy of Dermatology and Venereology (EADV) 2018 Congress.

According to Janssen’s press release, study findings showed that a switch to guselkumab (Tremfya®) at week 28,
after an inadequate response to adalimumab (Humira®), led to a sustained improvement in PROs in both PSSD
and DLQI (Dermatology Life Quality Index) scores at week 100. The proportions of patients with PSSD
symptom and signs scores of 0 (i.e. no patient-reported symptoms or signs of psoriasis) increased from 4.2% and
1.1%, respectively, at week 28, to 32.6% and 18.0% at week 100. The proportion of patients with a DLQI score
of O or 1 (i.e. no impact on patient quality of life) increased from 14.4% at week 28 to 65.3% at week 100,
showing consistent improvement and impact on patient well-being after switching to guselkumab (Tremfya®).

In February 2018, Janssen announced the presentation of data from the phase 3 VOYAGE 2 trial at the 2018
American Academy of Dermatology (AAD) Annual Meeting. The data showed that a vast majority of patients
with moderate to severe plaque psoriasis receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) who achieved at least 90 percent
improvement in the Psoriasis Area and Severity Index (PASI 90) at week 28, maintained a PASI 90 response
with continuous treatment through week 72. Findings from the study also demonstrated that a vast majority of
patients originally randomized to guselkumab (Tremfya®), but withdrawn from treatment at week 28, regained a
PASTI 90 response within six months of initiating guselkumab (Tremfya®) re-treatment.
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Results from the trial demonstrated that among patients who achieved PASI 90 response at week 28 with
guselkumab (Tremfya®), 86% who continued receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) maintained a PASI 90 response
through week 72, while only 11.5% of patients who were withdrawn from treatment maintained PASI 90
response. Of 173 patients who lost PAST 90 response after withdrawal from guselkumab (Tremfya®), 87.6%
recaptured PASI 90 response six months following re-treatment. No new safety signals were observed with
continuous treatment or re-treatment therapy with guselkumab (Tremfya®) through week 100.

Guselkumab (Tremfya®) data from eight additional abstracts were also presented at the AAD Annual Meeting,
including an oral presentation of a pooled analysis from the phase 3 VOYAGE 1 and 2 trials evaluating
consistency of response by weight across subgroups of patients through week 24.

The phase 3 VOYAGE 2 trial was a randomized, double-blind, placebo- and active-comparator-controlled study
designed to evaluate the safety and efficacy of guselkumab (Tremfya®) compared with placebo and adalimumab
(Humira®) and of guselkumab (Tremfya®) maintenance therapy compared with withdrawal of therapy in adult
patients with moderate to severe plaque psoriasis. Patients (n=992) were randomized to receive subcutaneous
(SC) injections of guselkumab (Tremfya®) 100 mg at weeks 0, 4, 12 and 20; placebo at weeks 0, 4, and 12 with
crossover to guselkumab (Tremfya®) at weeks 16 and 20 or adalimumab (Humira®) 80 mg at week 0, followed
by 40 mg at week 1 and every two weeks through week 23. Patients initially randomized to receive guselkumab
(Tremfya®) who achieved a PASI 90 response (n=375) at week 28 were re-randomized to either continued
treatment with guselkumab (Tremfya®) (n=193) or withdrawal to placebo (n=182) with re-treatment upon a 50%
or greater loss of PASI improvement at week 28 or week 72 if re-treatment criteria were not met.

In December 2018, Janssen announced results from the ECLIPSE study demonstrating that guselkumab
(Tremfya®) was superior to secukinumab (Cosentyx®) in treating adults with moderate to severe plaque psoriasis
for the primary endpoint assessed at week 48. The data were presented at the 3rd Inflammatory Skin Disease
Summit. The phase 3, multicenter, randomized, double-blind, active comparator trial was designed to evaluate
the efficacy and safety of guselkumab (Tremfya®) compared with secukinumab (Cosentyx®) in adult patients
with moderate to severe plaque psoriasis. Patients (n=1,048) were randomized to receive 100 mg of guselkumab
(Tremfya®) administered by subcutaneous injection at weeks 0, 4 and 12, followed by eight-week dosing; or 300
mg of secukinumab (Cosentyx®) administered by two subcutaneous injections of 150 mg at weeks 0, 1, 2, 3 and
4, followed by 4-week dosing. The primary endpoint of the study was the proportion of patients achieving a
PASI 90 response at week 48. Secondary endpoints were assessed at weeks 12 and 48, with safety monitoring
through week 56. Data from the study demonstrated that 84.5% of patients treated with guselkumab (Tremfya®)
achieved at least 90% improvement in their baseline PASI score at week 48, compared with 70.0% of patients
treated with secukinumab (Cosentyx®) (p<0.001). These data, according to Janssen, marked the first-ever results
from a head-to-head study comparing an interleukin (IL)-23-targeted biologic therapy (guselkumab (Tremfya®))
with an IL-17 inhibitor (secukinumab (Cosentyx®)).

ECLIPSE incorporated six major secondary endpoints that used a fixed statistical sequence procedure to control
for multiple comparisons and included both shorter and longer-term analyses. Guselkumab (Tremfya®)
demonstrated non-inferiority to secukinumab (Cosentyx®) in the first major secondary endpoint, with 84.6% of
patients on guselkumab (Tremfya®) achieving a PASI 75 response at both weeks 12 and 48 vs. 80.2% of those on
secukinumab (Cosentyx®) (p<0.001). However, it did not demonstrate superiority (p=0.062). Because superiority
was not demonstrated for the first major secondary endpoint, p-values for all the subsequent major secondary
endpoints were considered nominal.

Three of the remaining major secondary endpoints evaluated efficacy at week 48, including achievement of a
PASI 100 response and Investigator’s Global Assessment (IGA) scores of O (cleared), or 0 or 1 (cleared or
minimal disease). At week 48, 58.2% of patients receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) achieved a PASI 100
response, compared with 48.4% of patients receiving secukinumab (Cosentyx®); 62.2% of patients receiving
guselkumab (Tremfya®) achieved an IGA score of 0 compared to 50.4% of patients receiving secukinumab
(Cosentyx®); and 85.0% of patients receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) achieved an IGA score of 0 or 1 compared
to 74.9% of patients receiving secukinumab (Cosentyx®) (all comparisons with nominal p< 0.001).
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The remaining major secondary endpoints assessed non-inferiority of guselkumab (Tremfya®) versus
secukinumab (Cosentyx®) at week 12. The percentage of patients achieving a PAST 75 response at week 12 was
89.3% for guselkumab (Tremfya®) and 91.6% for secukinumab (Cosentyx®) (p<0.001 for non-inferiority); the
percentage of patients achieving a PAST 90 response at week 12 was 69.1% for guselkumab (Tremfya®) and
76.1% for secukinumab (Cosentyx®) (p=0.127 for non-inferiority).

Through week 44, 27 patients (5.1%) randomized to the guselkumab (Tremfya®) arm discontinued treatment
compared with 48 patients (9.3%) randomized to the secukinumab (Cosentyx®) arm.

The safety profiles observed for guselkumab (Tremfya®) and secukinumab (Cosentyx®) in ECLIPSE were
consistent with the known safety profiles seen in the respective registration trials and current prescribing
information. Similar percentages of patients receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) (77.9%), and secukinumab
(Cosentyx®) (81.6%) reported at least one adverse event (AE). Serious AEs were reported in 6.2% of patients
receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) and 7.2% of patients receiving secukinumab (Cosentyx®). Serious infections
occurred in six patients receiving guselkumab (Tremfya®) and five patients receiving secukinumab (Cosentyx®).

GANTENERUMAB
Overview

Gantenerumab is a HuCAL antibody targeting amyloid beta that is being developed by our partner Roche as a
potential treatment for Alzheimer’s disease. Amyloid beta denotes a group of peptides that are centrally involved
in Alzheimer’s disease as the main component of the amyloid plaques found in the brains of Alzheimer patients.
Gantenerumab binds to the N-terminus and a section in the middle of the amyloid beta peptide. On binding, the
antibody seems to neutralize and disrupt the formation of amyloid plaque and amyloid oligomers and may also
lead to its clearance by recruitment of microglial cells. In phase 1 clinical trials, gantenerumab has been shown to
reduce brain amyloid in mild-to-moderate Alzheimer’s disease patients. Gantenerumab is being investigated in
several clinical studies to see if there is a positive effect from intervening at an early stage in the disease’s
progression. There are currently no drugs available that fundamentally improve the course of Alzheimer’s
disease. However, the anti-amyloid beta antibody aducanumab from Biogen Inc., that has been tested in a
first-in-human phase 1 study in 2015, showed a substantial clearance of amyloid beta deposition in the brain as
determined by Positron Emission Photograpy (PET) and a slowing of the cognitive decline of the patients.
Aducanumab is currently in a phase 1 trial, a phase 2 trial and two phase 3 studies to evaluate its efficacy in
slowing cognitive and functional impairment in patients with prodromal, mild or early Alzheimer’s disease,
respectively. The market research and consulting firm GlobalData has indicated that the global market for
Alzheimer’s disease treatment is expected to grow at double-digit rates each year from US$2.9 billion in 2016 to
an estimated US$14.8 billion by 2026.

According to the Alzheimer’s Association, 5.7 million Americans are living with Alzheimer’s disease, and that
figure is projected to increase to nearly 14 million by 2050. Alzheimer’s disease is the sixth leading cause of
death in the U.S.

New clinical data presented

In March 2018, data were presented in which gantenerumab was evaluated at considerably higher doses in an
open label extension (OLE) study than previously tested. The data were presented at the Alzheimer’s and
Parkinson’s disease conference AAT-AD/PD™ Focus Meeting 2018.

The data assessed the clinical effects of higher doses of gantenerumab measured by amyloid beta reduction in the
brain. Eighty-one patients with prodromal to mild Alzheimer’s disease were enrolled in the OLE study parts and
received higher doses of up to 1,200 mg of gantenerumab subcutaneously every 4 weeks. The dose increase,
from starting levels of 105 mg or 225 mg of gantenerumab to up to 1,200 mg, was administered using different
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titration schemes with the goal of controlling potential safety findings due to the increased doses. Fifty-one
patients had a brain positron emission tomography (PET) scan to determine amyloid plaques at week 52.
According to the data presented, patients who received higher doses of gantenerumab showed a greater and
consistent amyloid reduction compared to patients who received lower dosing (105 mg or 225 mg). At week 52,
approximately one-third of the high-dose patients had amyloid levels below the threshold that classifies a patient
as amyloid beta positive.

A review of the data in the OLE studies did not reveal any new or unexpected safety findings of the higher doses
for this patient population. As reported previously (Klein et al., 2017, CTAD presentation), increased doses of
gantenerumab led to an increase of amyloid-related imaging abnormalities (ARIA), which, however, remained
manageable with the implemented dosing titration scheme. In the higher doses of up to 1,200 mg, severity and
seriousness of adverse events were comparable to the lower doses (105 mg or 225 mg) applied in the previous
studies.

New phase 3 program initiated in Alzheimer’s disease

In June 2018, we announced that our partner Roche had initiated a new phase 3 development program in patients
with Alzheimer’s disease. The program consists of two phase 3 trials - GRADUATE-1 and GRADUATE-2 -
which are expected to enroll approximately 1,520 patients in up to 350 study centers in 31 countries worldwide.
The two multicenter, randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled trials will assess the efficacy and safety of
gantenerumab in patients with early (prodromal to mild) Alzheimer’s disease. The primary endpoint for both
trials is the assessment of signs and symptoms of dementia, measured as the clinical dementia rating-sum of
boxes (CDR-SOB) score, determined as the change of status from baseline to week 104. Patients are to receive a
significantly higher dose of gantenerumab than in Roche’s previous trials as a subcutaneous injection with
titration up to the target dose.

OTHER PROGRAMS

In June 2018, our partner Bayer brought a new compound based on MorphoSys’s HuCAL technology into
clinical development. BAY2287411 is a thorium-227 radiolabeled antibody conjugate directed against the target
molecule mesothelin. In a phase 1 clinical trial, BAY2287411 is being tested for the first time in patients with
solid tumors known to express mesothelin in order to evaluate the safety, tolerability, pharmacokinetics and anti-
tumor activity of this compound.

According to clinicaltrials.gov, in 2018 clinical trials with bimagrumab in patients with sarcopenia or after hip
surgery by our partner Novartis reached primary completion. At the end of January 2019, Novartis announced
that it would discontinue development in these indications.

Other programs developed by our partners continued to make progress during 2018.

COLLABORATION WITH LEO PHARMA

We have an ongoing strategic alliance with LEO Pharma for the discovery and development of therapeutic
antibodies for the treatment of skin diseases. The initial alliance was signed in November 2016 to jointly discover
and develop antibody-based therapies in dermatology. Under the terms of this agreement, we are applying our
Ylanthia technology platform to generate antibody candidates against targets selected by LEO Pharma and will
conduct all development activities up to the start of clinical testing. LEO Pharma is responsible for clinical
development and commercialization of resulting drugs in all indications except cancer.

Collaboration expanded

In September 2018, we announced with LEO Pharma an expansion of our existing strategic alliance to include
peptide-derived therapeutics. The objective of the expansion is to identify novel, peptide-derived therapeutics for
unmet medical needs that will be valuable additions to both companies’ pipelines.
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Under the terms of the agreement, LEO Pharma will select targets against which we will identify lead molecules
using our proprietary HTH peptide technology platform. LEO Pharma will either develop these lead molecules or
use them to aid the design of other drug candidates. LEO Pharma will have exclusive, worldwide rights and be
responsible for development and commercialization of resulting drugs in the area of dermatology. MorphoSys
will have an exclusive option to secure worldwide rights to any drugs arising from the collaboration in the field
of oncology.

We will receive R&D funding as well as success-based development, regulatory and commercial milestone
payments, plus royalties on net sales of peptide drugs commercialized by LEO Pharma. Further financial details
were not disclosed.

PATENTS

During the 2018 financial year, we continued to consolidate and expand our patent protection of our development
programs and our growing technology portfolio, which are our most important value drivers.

In April 2016, we filed a lawsuit in the United States at the District Court of Delaware against Janssen Biotech
and Genmab A/S for patent infringement of U.S. Patent Number 8,263,746. U.S. Patents 9,200,061 and
9,758,590 were added to the case in 2017. In filing the lawsuit, we sought redress for alleged infringement of
these patents by Janssen’s and Genmab’s daratumumab, a CD38-directed monoclonal antibody indicated for the
treatment of certain patients with multiple myeloma. The U.S. District Court of Delaware, based on a hearing
held November 27, 2018, has ruled in a Court Order on January 25, 2019, that the asserted claims of the
MorphoSys patents are invalid. The Court thus granted a motion for Summary Judgement of invalidity filed by
Janssen Biotech and Genmab, A/S against the three patents held by MorphoSys. As a result of this decision, the
jury trial scheduled to start February 11, 2019 to consider Janssen’s and Genmab’s alleged infringement and the
validity of the MorphoSys patents did not take place. On January 31, 2019 we announced that we have settled the
dispute with Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S. The parties agreed to drop the mutual claims related to the
litigation: MorphoSys dismissed claims for alleged patent infringement against Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S
and will not appeal from the court order dated January 25, 2019. Janssen and Genmab dismissed their
counterclaims against MorphoSys.

At the end of the financial year, we maintained over 60 different proprietary patent families worldwide in
addition to the numerous patent families we pursue with our partners.

GROUP DEVELOPMENT

In April 2018, we successfully closed an initial public offering on the Nasdaq U.S. stock exchange. The
transaction produced total gross proceeds of US$ 239.0 million from the sale of 2,075,000 new ordinary shares in
the form of 8,300,000 American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) and from the exercise in full of the underwriters’
option to purchase 311,250 additional new ordinary shares in the form of 1,245,000 additional ADSs, at a price
of US$ 25.04 per ADS, respectively. Each ADS represents 1/4 of a MorphoSys ordinary share.

At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of MorphoSys AG on May 17, 2018, our shareholders approved all
resolutions of the Company’s management with the required majority of votes. Dr. George Golumbeski and
Michael Brosnan were newly elected to the Supervisory Board, replacing Dr. Gerald Moller, who retired from
the board, and Klaus Kiihn, who resigned for personal reasons. Dr. Moller’s retirement and Mr. Kiihn’s
resignation became effective at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM. Dr. Golumbeski most recently served as
Executive Vice President and Executive Advisor for Innovation at Celgene Corporation, a position from which
he retired in April 2018. Over the last 27 years, he held leadership roles in business and corporate development,
partnering and M&A with global pharmaceutical and life science companies, including Celgene, Novartis, Elan
Corporation (today: Perrigo) and Schwarz Pharma (today: UCB). Mr. Brosnan has over 40 years of experience in
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finance, controlling and auditing. Since 2010, he has served as Chief Financial Officer of Fresenius Medical Care
Management AG, a company with a dual listing in Germany and the U.S. For over 20 years, he has worked in
various leadership and executive positions for Fresenius Medical Care in the U.S. and Germany. Additionally,
Dr. Marc Cluzel was re-elected to the Supervisory Board following the expiry of his term of office.

Following the AGM, the Supervisory Board in its inaugural meeting elected Dr. Marc Cluzel as its new
Chairman and Dr. Frank Morich as Deputy Chairman.

On May 24, 2018, MorphoSys AG published a notification to our shareholders in the German Federal Gazette
pursuant to Sec. 62 Para. 2 Sent. 1, Para. 3 Sent. 3 (German Transformation Act) indicating its intention to merge
Sloning BioTechnology GmbH as the transferring legal entity into MorphoSys AG, as the acquiring legal entity.
Upon entry into the commercial register on June 28, 2018 and based on the merger agreement date May 17,
2018, Sloning BioTechnology GmbH, as the transferring legal entity, was merged into MorphoSys AG, as the
acquiring legal entity, with the effective date of January 1, 2018.

In July 2018, we announced the establishment of a U.S. subsidiary, MorphoSys US Inc. We also announced the
appointment of Jennifer Herron as President of MorphoSys US Inc. and Executive Vice President, Global
Commercial. In November 2018 we reported that Ms. Herron had resigned and James Hussey was appointed
Acting President of the U.S. subsidiary. Mr. Hussey joined MorphoSys US Inc. in 2018. He has more than

30 years of experience in leading positions in the biotech and pharmaceutical industries. Over the last 25 years,
he served in senior management positions of various pharmaceutical, biotech, and health care companies. He
started his career with Bristol Myers Squibb (BMS) in 1984, where he served for 11 years holding positions of
increasing responsibility within the US business. The focus of our U.S. subsidiary will be on building a strong
presence in the U.S. to prepare for the planned commercialization of MOR208.

In July 2018, MorphoSys AG acquired a minority shareholding position of 19.9% in adivo GmbH, Martinsried,
in the context of a seed financing. MorphoSys paid a cash contribution and a contribution in kind. Adivo is
dedicated to the research and development of veterinary therapeutics. In addition to the two founding
shareholders, who are former employees of MorphoSys, the only other strategic investors in adivo other than
MorphoSys are two financial investors. Under a licensing agreement, MorphoSys granted adivo rights to a fully
synthetic canine antibody library based on our proven modular combinatorial approach.

Effective September 24, 2018, MorphoSys’s shares were included in the MDAX. MorphoSys remains a member
of the TecDAX segment, which it has been since 2004. The simultaneous inclusion in both the MDAX and
TecDAX indices is based on a revision in rules of the Deutsche Borse for indices, which came into force on
September 24, 2018. The TecDAX now includes the 30 largest stocks in terms of market capitalization and
trading volume that are focused on technology. The MDAX now tracks the 60 largest listed companies with the
highest trading volume after the DAX index, which continues to contain the 30 largest stocks in Germany.

At the beginning of December, the Company held an Investor and Analyst Event in New York City dedicated to
MOR?208. During this event, the latest L-MIND data, which had been presented at the 60th ASH (American
Society of Hematology) conference in San Diego, were discussed and the Company gave an outlook on the
planned filing strategy. Moreover, further development plans with MOR208 in first-line DLBCL and also other
indolent lymphomas were revealed. To give an overview about the indication and treatment options in DLBCL in
more detail, the event also included a discussion of current treatment options. The event was attended by
investors and analysts and could also be followed via webcast.

GROUP HEADCOUNT DEVELOPMENT

On December 31, 2018, the MorphoSys Group had 329 employees (December 31, 2017: 326), 134 of whom hold
PhD degrees (December 31, 2017: 132). The MorphoSys Group employed an average of 327 employees in 2018
(2017: 344).
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Of these 329 active employees, 246 were involved in research and development activities, 62 were involved in
general administration and 21 were involved in selling. All of these employees are located in our offices in
Munich, Germany, in Groningen, the Netherlands and in Princeton, USA. We have no collective bargaining
agreements with our employees and we have not experienced any labor strikes.

At the end of the reporting year, we had employees representing 34 different nationalities (2017: 34) employed
for an average of 7.2 years (2017: 7.6 years).

FIG. 04: TOTAL HEADCOUNT OF THE MORPHOSYS GROUP (DECEMBER 31) (NUMBER)
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FIG. 05: EMPLOYEES BY GENDER (DECEMBER 31)
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In order to successfully compete for the best employees, MorphoSys conducts an annual comparison of the
Company’s compensation with that paid by other companies in the biotech industry and similar sectors and
makes adjustments when necessary. The remuneration system at MorphoSys includes fixed compensation and a
variable annual bonus that is linked to the achievement of corporate goals. Individual goals promote both the
employees’ personal development and the achievement of key corporate goals. In addition, a “spot bonus” (given
“on the spot”) is promptly awarded to employees for exceptional accomplishments. We again made significant
use of this instrument during the reporting year.

A detailed description of our activities to promote successful long-term human resource development can be
found in the section “Sustainable Business Development.”

CHANGES IN THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

According to forecasts by the International Monetary Fund (IMF) in January 2019, global economic growth for
2018 was projected to remain stable at 3.7%. However, with softer momentum seen in the second half of 2018,
the IMF has made downward revisions from earlier forecasts for certain areas including in Germany. Earlier
downward revisions reflected surprises that suppressed activity in early 2018 in some major advanced
economies, the negative effects of trade measures implemented or approved between April and mid-September,
as well as a weaker outlook for some key emerging market and developing economies arising from country-
specific factors, tighter financial conditions, geopolitical tensions and higher oil import bills.

The 2018 growth forecast for the advanced economies was projected to be 2.3% (2017: 2.4%). The emerging and
developing economies were expected to experience growth of 4.6% in 2018 (2017: 4.7%). The IMF forecast
growth in the Euro area of 1.8% in 2018 (2017: 2.4%). The 2018 forecast for Germany was 1.5% (2017: 2.5%).
The United States was projected to grow by 2.9% in 2018 (2017: 2.2%). China’s economy was expected to grow
6.6% (2017: 6.9%), and the economies of Russia and Brazil were expected to grow by 1.7% (2017: 1.5%) and
1.3% (2017: 1.1%), respectively.

MorphoSys takes into account a wide range of potential macroeconomic risks and opportunities when conducting
business activities. Political uncertainty in the global markets did not cause us to refrain from or change any key
activities in 2018, nor were our operations affected by fluctuations within individual countries.

CURRENCY DEVELOPMENTS

At the end of December 2018, the exchange rate of the euro to U.S. dollar was approximately 1.14-1.15. A
number of analysts expect the euro to remain saddled by soft economic data (partly a result of the moderation in
global trade volumes) and political uncertainty (including Brexit and Italy). The European Central Bank, which is
still confronted with slow GDP growth, low inflation and a fragile banking sector, is unlikely to tighten monetary
policy soon. But at some point investors will expect the central bank to start the process of policy normalization.
That, coupled with other macro-economic and geopolitical factors, could allow the common currency to bounce
back in 2019.

Most of our business is transacted in euros and US dollars. Therefore, changes in these currencies could have an
effect on our future costs and revenues. Any weakness in the euro versus the US dollar would have a direct
positive influence on our operating results as our commercial and launch activities are conducted in the United
States. Conversely, a strong euro reduces the royalty payments from guselkumab (Tremfya®) sales incurred in
US dollars that are converted into euros. We manage this risk as far as possible with appropriate currency
hedging tools.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

The healthcare industry’s regulatory environment is dominated by stringent product quality, safety and efficacy
requirements, which place ever-higher demands on the companies involved. Novel drugs are required to
demonstrate a benefit over existing therapies in order to be approved, gain market acceptance and be reimbursed.

69



The current trend in the United States is toward faster approvals by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA).
The FDA'’s actions are partly due to legislation adopted in 2012 and the mechanisms created to reduce review
times, such as breakthrough therapy designation and the extension of accelerated approvals. These mechanisms
are meant to facilitate a faster review process for drug candidates that demonstrate a substantial improvement for
patients in urgent need of safer, more effective treatments, such as cancer patients. Indeed, in 2018, the FDA
approved 59 new medicines, surpassing the previous year’s record-breaking 46. Biopharmaceutical companies
such as MorphoSys, who are focused on the development of therapies for indications with high unmet medical
need, could potentially benefit from the mechanisms described above. We have received FDA breakthrough
therapy designation for our drug candidate MOR208.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PHARMACEUTICAL AND BIOTECHNOLOGY SECTORS

Worldwide prescription drug sales were projected to be approximately US$ 830 billion, according to a June 2018
report by EvaluatePharma. This number is projected to increase to US$ 1.2 trillion in 2024, a compound average
growth rate (CAGR) of 6.4 %. The report indicated that the pharmaceutical sector seemed to have become a
more stable place. While the political uncertainty that characterized much of 2017 may not have settled down,
the industry appeared less anxious compared to earlier in the year. Much of the expansion of the market is
expected to be driven by continuing unmet need in a number of disorders, as demonstrated by sales forecasts for
the orphan drug market reaching US$262 billion in 2024, accounting for 20% of the total prescription drug
market. However, the ever-present danger of product failure remains an intrinsic risk of drug development.
Companies also remain under pricing pressure from payers, even if the threat of price control from politicians
goes away. The demand for real world evidence before insurers and governments will consider reimbursing
drugs is expected to continue to intensify, no matter how innovative developers claim their products are.

The market for cancer drugs — the primary market for most of MorphoSys’s proprietary compounds — remains
one of the most attractive and fastest-growing segments of the pharmaceutical industry. EvaluatePharma stated
that worldwide oncology sales were approximately US$104 billion in 2017, projected to grow to US$233 billion
in 2024, at a CAGR of 12%. In 2024, five of the top ten companies in oncology are expected to maintain their
2017 leadership positions. Outside the top ten, the rest of the industry is expected to have a CAGR of 22%,
bringing their market share in 2024 up to nearly 40% from nearly 22% in 2017. Oncology is the leading therapy
area in terms of sales and is projected to continue to be the dominant therapy segment in 2024, with sales
reaching US$ 233 billion in 2024 (2017: US$ 104 billion) and an expected CAGR of 12.2% per year.

Looking at mergers and acquisitions (M&A) activity, according to BioCentury, the number of biotech takeouts
closed in 2018 was 55 compared to 60 in 2017, a decline of 8%. The total value of those deals, though, was up
8% to US$65.2 billion. Not included in this figure is Takeda’s $62 billion acquisition of Shire, which was
announced in 2018 but closed in early January 2019.

According to BioCentury, the top tier of companies have raised enough capital to weather nearly any storm. The
year 2018 saw the biotech sector setting records in the total amount of money raised in venture and IPOs, while
the amount raised through follow-ons was second behind 2015. But most of the sector didn’t participate in the
cash grab; BioCentury’s analysis of public biotech balance sheets shows that about 40% of loss-making
companies have one year of cash or less. For those who did not refinance, the window closed with no IPOs or
follow-ons having been completed since the start of the U.S. government shutdown on December 22" as of
January 14t%. Information on the development of the stock market environment can be found in the section
“Shares and the Capital Market.”

DEVELOPMENT OF THE ANTIBODY SECTOR

The year 2018 was another highly successful year for the clinical development and marketing approval of
therapeutic antibodies. By the end of 2018, marketing approval by the FDA or European Medicines Agency
(EMA) had been granted to 13 new antibodies, a new record. According to “Antibodies to Watch in 2019,”
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published in mAbs Journal, 62 monoclonal antibodies (mAbs) are currently in late-stage clinical studies,
representing the largest number to date at this stage of advanced development. Thirty-three of the 62 mAbs are
being developed as cancer treatments. Our lead proprietary development product candidate, MOR208, is listed as
one of the “antibodies to watch” in this report.

We regard the successful development and commercialization of the antibody segment as a generally positive
signal and a validation of our development focus on this drug class. However, no conclusions can be drawn

regarding the likelihood of clinical or market success of individual drug candidates.

FIG. 08: REVENUES BY REGION (DECEMBER 31) (IN %)
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FIG. 09 REVENUES PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT AND PARTNERED DISCOVERY
(DECEMBER 31) (IN MILLION €)
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b) Operating and Financial Review and Prospects

You should read the following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included
elsewhere in this report. In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion contains
forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and opinions. Our actual results could differ
materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
these differences or cause our actual results or the timing of selected events to differ materially from those
anticipated in these forward-looking statements include those set forth under “Risk Factors,” “Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and elsewhere in this report.

Our consolidated financial statements comply with both the IFRSs published by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and those adopted by the EU. The consolidated financial statements also take into
account the supplementary provisions under commercial law, which must be applied in accordance with Section
315e (1) of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch — HGB).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
REVENUES

Revenues increased by 14% or € 9.6 million, from € 66.8 million in 2017 to € 76.4 million in 2018. The increase
in revenues was primarily a result of a € 47.5 million upfront payment received and fully recognized in 2018
following the signing of an exclusive global license agreement with Novartis Pharma AG for the development
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and commercialization of MOR106. Had revenues in the 2018 financial year continued to be recognized in
accordance with IAS 18, revenues would have been € 1.1 million higher than under the application of IFRS 15,
the new accounting standard governing revenue recognition. In 2017, revenues were significantly and positively
affected by funded research and license fees from a collaboration agreement with Novartis that concluded at the
end of 2017 as well as by the signing of an exclusive regional license agreement with I-Mab Biopharma for the
development and commercialization of MOR202 in China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao. On a regional basis,
revenues with biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies in the United States and Canada increased by more
than 100%, or € 10.7 million, from € 8.7 million in 2017 to € 19.4 million in 2018 primarily due to higher
success-based payments received mainly from Janssen. Revenues with customers in Europe or Asia decreased by
2%, or € 1.0 million, from € 58.1 million in 2017 to € 57.1 million in 2018.

In 2018, 95% of our revenues were attributable to activities with our partners Novartis, Janssen and I-Mab
Biopharma, whereas 90% of our revenues in 2017 were attributable to activities with the same partners. This
change was due to the MOR 106 agreement with Novartis in 2018 and receipt of the related upfront payment.

In 2017, revenues increased by 34%, or € 17.1 million, from € 49.7 million in 2016 to € 66.8 million in 2017.
The increase in revenues was primarily a result of a $20.0 million (equal to € 16.8 million at the then-prevailing
exchange rate) upfront payment received and fully recognized in 2017 following the signing of an exclusive
regional license agreement with I-Mab Biopharma for the development and commercialization of MOR202 in
China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao. In 2016 and 2017, revenues were significantly and positively affected by
funded research and license fees from a collaboration agreement with Novartis that concluded at the end of 2017.
On a regional basis, revenues with biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies in the United States and Canada
increased by 71%, or € 3.6 million, from € 5.1 million in 2016 to € 8.7 million in 2017, primarily due to higher
success-based payments received mainly from Janssen. Revenues with customers in Europe or Asia increased by
30%, or € 13.4 million, from € 44.7 million in 2016 to € 58.1 million in 2017 primarily due to the upfront
payment received from I-Mab Biopharma, which was partially offset by lower revenues received from Novartis
in 2017.

In 2017, 90% of our revenues were attributable to activities with our partners Novartis, [-Mab Biopharma and
Janssen, whereas 95% of our revenues in 2016 were attributable to activities with our partners Novartis, Pfizer
and Janssen. This change is due to entry into the agreement with [-Mab Biopharma in 2017 and receipt of the
related upfront payment.

PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT

In 2018, revenues in our Proprietary Development segment increased by € 36.0 million, from € 17.6 million in
2017 to € 53.6 million in 2018. This increase was due to the revenues recognized from the upfront payment
received under our MOR106 agreement with Novartis.

In 2017, revenues in our Proprietary Development segment increased by € 17.0 million, from € 0.6 million in
2016 to € 17.6 million in 2017. This increase was due to the revenues recognized from the upfront payment
received under our 2017 agreement with [-Mab Biopharma.

PARTNERED DISCOVERY

In 2018, revenues in our Partnered Discovery segment decreased by € 26.4 million, from € 49.2 million in 2017
to € 22.8 million in 2018. These amounts included € 41.9 million in 2017 and € 3.5 million in 2018 in funded
research and license fees. The decrease was primarily driven by the terminated collaboration arrangement with
Novartis in 2017. The Partnered Discovery segment also included € 7.3 million in 2017 and € 19.3 million in
2018 in success-based payments received primarily from Janssen. Revenue in our Partnered Discovery segment
included royalties on net sales of Tremfya® in the amount of € 1.9 million in 2017 and € 15.4 million in 2018.

In 2017, revenues in our Partnered Discovery segment increased by € 0.1 million, from € 49.1 million in 2016 to
€ 49.2 million in 2017. These amounts included € 43.6 million in 2016 and € 41.9 million in 2017 in funded
research and license fees, received primarily in connection with the collaboration with Novartis as well as

€ 5.6 million in 2016 and € 7.3 million in 2017 in success-based payments received primarily from Janssen and

73



Novartis. Revenues in our Partnered Discovery segment included € 1.9 million of royalties on net sales of
Tremfya in 2017. As a result of the conclusion of our collaboration arrangement with Novartis, we no longer
expect to receive significant recurring research and license fees from Novartis, and further revenue received from
Novartis, if any, will consist of milestone payments and royalties from sales of approved products.

OPERATING EXPENSES

In 2018, operating expenses increased by 2%, or € 2.7 million, from € 133.8 million in 2017 to € 136.5 million in
2018. This increase was driven by higher cost of sales and selling expenses as well as higher administrative
expenses. The line item “cost of sales” was presented for the first time in the third quarter of 2018 and consisted
of expenses in connection with services being rendered while transferring projects to customers such as [-Mab
Biopharma. In 2018, cost of sales amounted to € 1.8 million. The Group started presenting “selling expenses” as
a separate line item since January 1, 2018. In 2018, selling expenses amounted to € 6.4 million compared to

€ 4.8 million. The presentation of selling expenses led to a change in the presentation of research and
development expenses and general and administrative expenses for 2017. These items were reduced by

€ 3.5 million and € 1.3 million, respectively, and the corresponding amounts are now included in “selling
expenses.” Research and development expenses decreased by 6%, or € 6.9 million, from € 113.3 million in 2017
to € 106.4 million in 2018 mainly as a result of decreased expenses for external services related to development
activities in our Proprietary Development segment as well as decreased expenses in our Partnered Discovery
Segment. General and administrative expenses increased by 39%, or € 6.2 million, from € 15.7 million in 2017 to
€ 21.9 million in 2018 mainly due to higher personnel expenses and costs for external services.

In 2018, operating expenses in our Proprietary Development segment increased by 8%, or € 7.9 million, from
€ 99.1 million in 2017 to € 107.0 million in 2018, primarily due to an increase in research and development
expenses and selling expenses. Research and development expenses in our Proprietary Development segment,
including technology development, increased by 2%, or € 2.0 million, from € 96.3 million in 2017 to

€ 98.3 million in 2018 mainly due to an increase in research and development expenses for MOR208.

In 2018, operating expenses in our Partnered Discovery segment decreased by 50%, or € 9.4 million, from

€ 18.9 million in 2017 to € 9.5 million in 2018, primarily due to a decrease in research and development
expenses. Research and development expenses in our Partnered Discovery segment decreased by 51%, or

€ 8.8 million, from € 17.3 million in 2017 to € 8.5 million in 2018. Research and development expenses in our
Partnered Discovery segment in 2017 related primarily to the Novartis collaboration, which was concluded in
2017.

In 2017, operating expenses increased by 22%, or € 24.0 million, from € 109.8 million in 2016 to € 133.8 million
in 2017. This increase was driven by higher research and development as well as general and administrative
expenses. Research and development expenses increased by 21%, or € 19.3 million, from € 94.0 million in 2016
to € 113.3 million in 2017 mainly as a result of increased expenses for external services related to development in
our Proprietary Development segment. General and administrative expenses increased by 17%, or € 2.3 million,
from € 13.4 million in 2016 to € 15.7 million in 2017 mainly due to higher personnel expenses and costs for
external services.

In 2017, operating expenses in our Proprietary Development segment increased by 26%, or € 20.6 million, from
€ 78.5 million in 2016 to € 99.1 million in 2017, primarily due to an increase in research and development
expenses. Research and development expenses in our Proprietary Development segment, including technology
development, increased by 24%, or € 18.7 million, from € 77.6 million in 2016 to € 96.3 million in 2017 due to
increases mainly in research and development expenses for MOR208, MOR 106 and MOR202.

In 2017, operating expenses in our Partnered Discovery segment increased by 4%, or € 0.8 million, from

€ 18.1 million in 2016 to € 18.9 million in 2017, primarily due to an increase in research and development
expenses. Research and development expenses in our Partnered Discovery segment increased by 5%, or

€ 0.8 million, from € 16.5 million in 2016 to € 17.3 million in 2017. Research and development expenses in our
Partnered Discovery segment related primarily to the Novartis collaboration, which is now concluded.
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FIG 10: SELECTED R&D EXPENSES (DECEMBER 31) (IN MILLION €)

e\ /N /N /N /7 \
(560 ) (787 ) (9wo) (1133) (1084
N N NN

61.1

47.9
44.3
‘ 30.9
29.2 28.5
25.6 25.1 25.3
21.0 ‘ 21.0 22.3 ‘ 21.1
15.0 ‘ 17.8 ‘ ‘ ‘
‘ 2.3 ‘ 3.0 2.3 2.6 2.3
TrY'. 1P | . .
MY ) v e M@ MY v e
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
B EXTERNAL LABORATORY FUNDING PERSONNEL H CONSUMABLES B OTHER (includesexpensesforiman—

gible assets, technical infrastructure and
external services)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2018, research and development expenses decreased by 6%, or € 6.9 million, from € 113.3 million in 2017 to
€ 106.4 million in 2018, primarily due to lower expenses for external laboratory services and personnel which
were partially offset by higher expenses for intangible assets. External laboratory services and other expenses
(including legal and scientific consulting services) decreased from € 61.1 million in 2017 to € 47.9 million in
2018, primarily due to lower expenses for external laboratory services related to the licensing agreements for
MOR202 and MOR106. Personnel expenses decreased from € 28.5 million in 2017 to € 25.3 million in 2018,
primarily due to lower share-based compensation and severance expense (in the aggregate by € 1.5 million).

Expenses for intangible assets increased from € 13.5 million in 2017 to € 22.8 million in 2018. Expenses for
intangible assets in 2018 were mainly driven by impairment charges of € 19.2 million primarily related to the
impairment of goodwill for MOR107 and € 9.8 million in 2017 related to the termination of the cooperation with
Aptevo Therapeutics for the development of MOR209. Depreciation and other costs for infrastructure expenses
increased from € 4.9 million in 2017 to € 5.4 million in 2018, primarily due to higher insurance expenses. Other
expenses remained unchanged at € 2.8 million in 2017 and 2018. Expenses for consumable supplies decreased
from € 2.6 million in 2017 to € 2.3 million in 2018.

In 2017, research and development expenses increased by 21%, or € 19.3 million, from € 94.0 million in 2016 to
€ 113.3 million in 2017, primarily due to higher expenses for external laboratory services and personnel. External
laboratory services and other expenses (including legal and scientific consulting services) increased from

€ 44.3 million in 2016 to € 61.1 million in 2017, primarily due to increased expenses related to our Proprietary
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Development segment. Personnel expenses increased from € 25.1 million in 2016 to € 28.5 million in 2017,
primarily due to higher share-based compensation and severance expense (in the aggregate by € 2.5 million) in
connection with the conclusion of the Novartis collaboration, which were only partially offset by a decrease in
the number of employees active in research and development.

Expenses for intangible assets remained almost unchanged and decreased slightly from € 13.7 million in 2016 to
€ 13.5 million in 2017. Expenses for intangible assets mainly represent impairment charges of € 9.8 million in
2017 related to the termination of the cooperation with Aptevo Therapeutics for the development of MOR209
and € 10.1 million in 2016. In 2017, the reason for the impairment was the termination of the cooperation with
Aptevo Therapeutics due to the expectation of a delay in the development plan, a delayed market entry and a
delay in the occurrence of future cash flows compared to previous assumptions. In 2016, the reason for the partial
impairment was the expectation of a lower inflow of benefits and of a delay in the occurrence of future cash
flows. Depreciation and other costs for infrastructure expenses decreased from € 5.9 million in 2016 to

€ 4.9 million in 2017, primarily due to one-time costs related to our move to a new building in 2016. Other
expenses increased from € 2.6 million in 2016 to € 2.8 million in 2017 primarily due to higher maintenance
expenses for laboratory equipment. Expenses for consumable supplies increased from € 2.3 million in 2016 to

€ 2.6 million in 2017 in line with the increase in our research and development operations.

SELLING

Selling expenses increased by 33%, or € 1.6 million, from € 4.8 million in 2017 to € 6.4 million in 2018,
primarily due to higher personnel expenses and external services. Personnel expenses increased from

€ 1.8 million in 2017 to € 2.5 million in 2018 due to intensified commercialization efforts for MOR208.
Expenses for external services increased from € 2.7 million in 2017 to € 3.0 million in 2018.

Selling expenses increased by 100%, or € 2.4 million, from € 2.4 million in 2016 to € 4.8 million in 2017,
primarily due to higher external services. Expenses for external services increased from € 0.3 million in 2016 to
€ 2.7 million in 2017.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

In 2018, general and administrative expenses increased by 39%, or € 6.2 million, from € 15.7 million in 2017 to
€ 21.9 million in 2018, primarily due to higher personnel expenses and costs for external services. Personnel
expenses increased from € 11.8 million in 2017 to € 15.0 million in 2018, primarily due to higher deferred
compensation for share-based incentive plans, recruitment expenses and wages. Expenses for external services
increased from € 2.2 million in 2017 to € 4.5 million in 2018, primarily due to one-time costs related to our initial
public offering on the Nasdaq. Other expenses increased from € 0.7 million in 2017 to € 1.0 million in 2018,
primarily due to higher rent expenses.

In 2017, general and administrative expenses increased by 17%, or € 2.3 million, from € 13.4 million in 2016 to
€ 15.7 million in 2017, primarily due to higher personnel expenses. Personnel expenses increased from

€ 9.2 million in 2016 to € 11.8 million in 2017, primarily due to higher deferred compensation for share-based
incentive plans and bonus payments. Other expenses decreased from € 0.8 million in 2016 to € 0.7 million in
2017, primarily due to one-time costs related to our move in 2016 to a new building.

OTHER INCOME

In 2018, other income increased by 47%, or € 0.5 million, from € 1.1 million in 2017 to € 1.6 million in 2018 and
mainly consisted of currency gains in an amount of € 0.5 million in 2017 and € 0.7 million in 2018, gains from
the recognition of previously unrecognized intangible assets of € 0 in 2017 and € 0.4 million (resulting from
contribution in kind of the investment in adivo GmbH) in 2018, grant income in an amount of € 0.2 million in
2017 and € 0.2 million in 2018 and miscellaneous income of € 0.4 million in 2017 and € 0.4 million in 2018.
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In 2017, other income increased by 57%, or € 0.4 million, from € 0.7 million in 2016 to € 1.1 million in 2017 and
mainly consisted of grant income in an amount of € 0.2 million in 2017 and € 0.3 million in 2016, currency gains
in an amount of € 0.5 million in 2017 and € 0.2 million in 2016 and miscellaneous income of € 0.5 million in
2017 and € 0.2 million in 2016.

OTHER EXPENSES

In 2018, other expenses decreased by 59%, or € 1.0 million, from € 1.7 million in 2017 to € 0.7 million in 2018.
Other expenses mainly consisted of currency losses in an amount of € 0.8 million in 2017 and € 0.5 million in
2018 and miscellaneous expenses of € 0.9 million in 2017 and € 0.2 million in 2018.

In 2017, other expenses increased by € 1.1 million, from € 0.6 million in 2016 to € 1.7 million in 2017. Other
expenses mainly consisted of currency losses in an amount of € 0.8 million in 2017 and € 0.4 million in 2016 and
miscellaneous expenses of € 0.8 million in 2017 and € 0.2 million in 2016.

EBIT

EBIT, defined as earnings before finance income, finance expenses, impairment losses on financial assets and
income taxes, amounted to € -59.1 million in 2018, compared to an EBIT of to € -67.6 million in 2017.

FINANCE INCOME

Finance income decreased by 43%, or € 0.3 million, from € 0.7 million in 2017 to € 0.4 million in 2018,
reflecting lower returns from investments. Finance income mainly consisted of realized gains from derivatives of
€ 0.4 million in 2017 and € 0.3 million in 2018 and interest income of € 0.2 million in 2017 and € 0.1 million in
2018 received from investments in term deposits with fixed or variable interest rates.

In 2017, finance income decreased by 50%, or € 0.7 million, from € 1.4 million in 2016 to € 0.7 million in 2017
reflecting lower returns from investments. Finance income mainly consisted of interest income of € 1.0 million in
2016 and € 0.2 million in 2017 received from investments in term deposits with fixed or variable interest rates,

€ 0.3 million in 2016 and less than € 0.1 million in 2017 in realized gains from the divestment of
available-for-sale financial assets and bonds and € 0.1 million in 2016 and € 0.4 million in 2017 in realized gains
from derivatives.

FINANCE EXPENSES

In 2018, finance expenses decreased by 5%, or € 1.1 million, from € 1.9 million in 2017 to € 0.8 million in 2018
and primarily consisted of losses on marketable securities and derivatives of € 1.5 million in 2017 and
€ 0.4 million in 2018 and interest expenses of € 0.5 million in 2017 and € 0.3 million in 2018.

In 2017, finance expenses increased by 46%, or € 0.6 million, from € 1.3 million in 2016 to € 1.9 million in 2017
and consisted primarily of losses on derivatives of € 1.4 million and interest expenses of € 0.4 million in 2017. In
2016, finance expenses mainly consisted of € 1.2 million in realized losses from the sale of available-for-sale
financial assets and bonds.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

In 2018, income tax benefits amounted to € 4.3 million and in 2017 income tax expenses amounted to
€ 1.0 million. The income tax benefit is mainly the consequence of derecognition of a deferred tax liability
resulting from the impairment of intangible assets.

The effective income tax rate changed from negative 1.5% in 2017 to 7.1% in 2018. The difference to the
expected tax rate of 26.7% (which would have resulted in an expected income tax benefit of € 16.1 million in
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2018 and € 18.3 million in 2017) is primarily the result of the non-recognition of deferred tax assets on current
year tax losses of € 14.5 million in 2018 and € 22.0 million in 2017 as well as permanent differences resulting
from transaction costs in connection with the US IPO of negative € 3.7 million in 2018 and the non-recognition
of deferred tax assets on temporary differences of € 0.3 million in 2018.

In 2017, income tax expenses increased by 100%, or € 0.5 million, from € 0.5 million in 2016 to € 1.0 million in
2017, due in large part to an income tax benefit in 2016 related to certain losses that were carried back to offset
2015 taxable income. In 2017, no such tax loss carry back was possible. The effective income tax rate changed
from negative 0.9% in 2016 to negative 1.5% in 2017. The difference between the expected tax rate of 26.7%
(which would have resulted in an expected income tax benefit of € 18.3 million in 2017 and € 16.0 million in
2016) is primarily the result of the non-recognition of deferred tax assets on current year tax losses of

€ 22.0 million in 2017 and € 13.4 million in 2016 and the non-recognition of deferred tax assets on temporary
differences of negative € 3.3 million in 2017 and € 3.8 million in 2016.

CONSOLIDATED NET PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
In 2018, the net result for the period amounted to € -56.2 million (2017: € -69.8 million).

TAB. 03: MULTI-YEAR OVERVIEW - STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS!

M 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Revenues ............................ 76.4 66.8 49.7 106.2 64.0
CostofSales ......................... (1.8) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Research and Development Expenses 2 .. .. (106.4) (113.3) (94.0) (78.7) (56.0)
Selling Expenses 2 . .................... (6.4) 4.8) 2.4 0.0 0.0
General and Administrative Expenses 2 . . .. (21.9) (15.7) (13.4) (15.1) (14.1)
Other Income/Expenses . . ............... 1.0 (0.6) 0.2 4.7 0.2
EBIT ....... ... .. . . .. (59.1) (67.6) (59.9) 17.2 5.9)
Finance Income/Expenses .. ............. (0.3) (1.2) 0.1 34 1.6
Impairment Losses on Financial Assets .. .. (1.0) 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0
Income Tax Benefit / (Expenses) ......... 4.3 (1.0) 0.5) 5.7 1.3
Consolidated Net Profit / (Loss) ......... (56.2) (69.8) (60.4) 14.9 3.0)
Earnings per Share, basic and diluted (in €) 3 .. (1.79) (2.41) (2.28) - (0.12)
Earnings per Share, basic (in€) .......... - - - 0.57 -
Earnings per Share, diluted (in€) ......... - - - 0.57 -
Shares Used in Computing Earnings

per Share (in units), basic and diluted 3 ... 31,338,948 28,947,566 26,443,415 - 25,903,995
Shares Used in Computing Earnings

per Share (in units), basic ............. - - - 26,019,855 -
Shares Used in Computing Earnings

per Share (in units), diluted ............ - - - 26,244,292 -

Dividends Declared per Share (in€and $) . .. - - - - -

I Differences due to rounding.

2 In 2018, selling expenses were presented for the first time. In order to provide comparative information for
the previous year, the figures for 2017 and 2016 have been adjusted accordingly. The figures for 2015 and
2014 were not adjusted due to materiality reasons.

3 Basic and diluted Earnings per Share are the same in each of the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017,
2016 and 2014, because the assumed exercise of outstanding stock options and convertible bonds would be
anti-dilutive due to our consolidated net loss in the respective periods.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
SOURCES OF FUNDING

We have funded our operations primarily through the issuance of ordinary shares and through cash received in
the ongoing operations of our business, including upfront fees, milestone payments, license fees, royalties, and
support fees from our strategic partners and government grants.

Liquidity as of December 31, 2018 is presented in the balance sheet items “cash and cash equivalents”, “financial
assets at fair value, with changes recognized in profit or loss” as well as “financial assets at amortized cost”. As
of December 31, 2017, liquidity had been presented in the balance sheet items “cash and cash equivalents”,
“available-for-sale financial assets” as well as “financial assets classified as loans and receivables”.

As of December 31, 2018, we had € 45.5 million in cash and cash equivalents, € 44.6 million in financial assets
at fair value, with changes recognized in profit or loss, and € 364.7 million in current and non-current financial
assets at amortized cost. As of December 31, 2017, we had € 76.6 million in cash and cash equivalents,

€ 86.5 million in available-for-sale financial assets and € 149.1 million in current other financial assets
categorized as “loans and receivables.”

Cash in excess of immediate working capital requirements is invested in accordance with our investment policy,
primarily with a view to liquidity and capital preservation. Investments are primarily made in money market
funds, corporate bonds and term deposits with fixed or variable interest.

We do not have any financial indebtedness, and we are not subject to any operating covenants or capital
requirements.

USES OF FUNDING

Our primary use of cash is to fund research and development costs related to the development of our product
candidates. Our primary future funding requirements include the development of our proprietary clinical pipeline
(primarily MOR208) and the advancement of our earlier stage wholly-owned or co-developed product
candidates.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents and other financial instruments (including cash invested in
various financial instruments as described above) will be sufficient to fund our anticipated operating expenses for
at least the next twelve months.

We have based this estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could use our capital resources
sooner than we currently expect. Additionally, the process of testing product candidates in clinical trials is costly,
and the timing of progress in these trials is uncertain.

Because our product candidates are in various stages of development and the outcome of these efforts is
uncertain, we cannot estimate the actual amounts necessary to successfully complete the development and
commercialization of our product candidates or whether, or when, we may achieve profitability.

We will likely require additional capital for the further development of our existing product candidates,
regulatory approval processes, the potential buildout of a commercial organization and for our operation as a
public company in the U.S. and may also need to raise additional funds sooner to pursue other inlicensing or
development activities related to additional product candidates. Until we can generate a sufficient amount of
revenue, we expect to finance future cash needs primarily through public or private equity or debt offerings,
including convertible bonds. Additional capital may not be available on reasonable terms, if at all. If we are
unable to raise additional capital in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, we may have to significantly
delay, scale back or discontinue the development or commercialization of one or more of our product candidates.
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If we raise additional funds through the issuance of debt or equity securities, it could result in dilution to our
existing shareholders, increased fixed payment obligations or the securities may have rights senior to those of our
ordinary shares or the ADSs. If we incur indebtedness, we could become subject to covenants that would restrict
our operations and potentially impair our competitiveness, such as limitations on our ability to incur additional
debt, limitations on our ability to acquire, sell or license intellectual property rights and other operating
restrictions that could adversely impact our ability to conduct our business.

CASH FLOWS
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY / USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

In 2018, net cash used in operating activities was € 33.3 million, primarily driven by the consolidated net loss of
€ 56.2 million, partially offset by non-cash charges of positive € 27.4 million, and changes in operating assets
and liabilities and taxes paid of negative € 4.5 million. The consolidated net loss of € 56.2 million was primarily
driven by expenses incurred to fund our ongoing operations, in particular research and development expenses,
selling expenses and general and administrative expenses. Non-cash charges consisted primarily of impairment
expenses for intangibles assets in the amount of € 24.0 million, deferred compensation for share-based payment
of € 5.6 million and depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets of € 3.8 million, offset by an
income tax benefit of € 4.3 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities for 2018 consisted primarily of an
increase in accounts receivable by € 6.6 million and a decrease in other liabilities by € 2.7 million, offset by
contract liabilities in the amount of € 2.4 million incurred during the year as well as an increase in accounts
payable and accruals by € 1.9 million. The increase in accounts receivable was mainly due to a comparatively
higher level of receivables outstanding at year-end. The decrease in other liabilities was mainly due to the
payment of tax liabilities and the repayment of a governmental cost subsidy. The contract liability incurred
during the year mainly related to annual license fees. The increase in accounts payable and accruals was mainly
due to an increase in external laboratory services that were outstanding at year end.

In 2017, net cash used in operating activities was € 38.4 million, primarily driven by the consolidated net loss of
€ 69.8 million, partially offset by non-cash charges of positive € 0.7 million, and changes in operating assets and
liabilities and taxes paid of € 30.6 million. The consolidated net loss of € 69.8 million was primarily driven by
expenses incurred to fund our ongoing operations, in particular research and development expenses and general
and administrative expenses. Changes in operating assets and liabilities for 2017 consisted primarily of

€ 18.4 million in deferred revenue received during the year, a € 7.8 million increase in accounts payable and
accruals and a € 3.1 million increase in other liabilities. The deferred revenue received during the year mainly
related to annual license fees. The increase in accounts payable and accruals was mainly due to an increase in
external laboratory services primarily related to the MOR208 program that were outstanding at year end. The
increase in other liabilities was mainly due to the deferral of the rent-free period for the rental agreement for our
headquarters.

In 2016, net cash used in operating activities was € 46.6 million, primarily driven by the consolidated net loss of
€ 60.4 million, after consideration of the net non-cash charges of negative € 0.7 million, and changes in operating
assets and liabilities as well as taxes paid of € 14.4 million. Consolidated net loss of € 60.4 million, after
consideration of the net non-cash charges of negative € 0.7 million, was primarily driven by expenses incurred to
fund our ongoing operations, in particular research and development expenses and general and administrative
expenses. Net cash provided by changes in operating assets and liabilities for 2016, consisted primarily of

€ 17.4 million in deferred revenue prepayments received during the year and a € 13.0 million increase in
accounts payable and accruals, partially offset by a € 13.9 million increase in prepaid expenses and other assets.
The prepayments for deferred revenue received during the year mainly related to annual license fees. The
increase in accounts payable and accruals was mainly due to an increase in external laboratory services. The
increase in prepaid expenses and other assets was mainly due to an increase in the purchase of combination
compounds and prepaid fees for external laboratory services, in each case primarily related to our MOR208
program.
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CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY / USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

In 2018, net cash used in investing activities was € 177.3 million, primarily driven by the purchase of financial
assets in the amount of € 451.3 million, of which € 366.8 million were classified at amortized cost, partially
offset by proceeds from the sale of financial assets in the amount of € 276.4 million, of which € 150.0 million
were classified at amortized cost. Cash used in investing activities primarily related to the investment of the
proceeds from our initial public offering on the Nasdaq as well as a shift in the composition in our investment
portfolio as financial assets matured and were sold and new, similar financial assets were purchased.

In 2017, net cash provided by investing activities was € 32.9 million, primarily driven by proceeds from the sale
of financial assets in the amount of € 210.2 million, partially offset by the purchase of financial assets in the
amount of € 164.4 million, of which € 108 million were classified as loans and receivables. Cash provided by
investing activities primarily related to a shift in the composition in our investment portfolio as financial assets
matured and were sold and new, similar financial assets were purchased.

In 2016, net cash used in investing activities was € 80.8 million, primarily driven by purchase of financial assets
of € 423.4 million, partially offset by sales of financial assets and bonds of € 343.5 million. Use of cash in
investing activities during the period primarily related to a shift in the composition in our investment portfolio.

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY / USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In 2018, net cash provided by financing activities was € 179.5 million and mainly related to the gross proceeds
from our initial public offering on the Nasdaq of € 193.6 million offset by the related issuance costs of
€ 15.0 million.

In 2017, net cash provided by financing activities was € 8.2 million and mainly related to exercises of convertible
bonds by members of the Management Board and the senior management.

In 2016, net cash provided by financing activities was € 110.4 million. Cash provided by financing activities
during the period primarily related to our capital increase in November 2016, resulting in gross proceeds of
€ 115.4 million.

INVESTMENTS

In 2018, MorphoSys invested € 1.8 million in property, plant and equipment (2017: € 1.3 million), mainly
laboratory equipment (i.e. machinery) and computer hardware. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment in
2018 decreased to € 1.8 million (2017: € 2.0 million).

The Company invested € 0.6 million in intangible assets in 2018 (2017: € 11.8 million). Amortization of
intangible assets was below the prior year’s level and amounted to € 1.9 million in 2018 (2017: € 2.1 million). In
2018, impairment of € 15.1 million was recognized on the in-process R&D programs, thereof € 13.4 million on
the MOR107 program (2017: impairment of € 9.8 million was recognized on the in-process MOR209/ES414
program).
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TAB. 04: MULTI-YEAR OVERVIEW - FINANCIAL SITUATION!

M 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Net Cash Provided by/Used in Operating Activities 2. ............... (33.3) (38.4) (46.6) (23.5) (14.2)
Net Cash Provided by/Used in Investing Activities2 ................ (177.3) 329 (80.8) 86.3 (21.5)
Net Cash Provided by/Used in Financing Activities 2. ... ............ 179.5 8.2 1104 (4.1) (3.9
Cash and Cash Equivalents (as of 31 December) ................... 455 76.6 739 909 322
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss3 .............. 44.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost, Current Portion3 ... ....... 268.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cost, Net of Current Portion 3 . . .. 95.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Available-for-sale Financial Assets3 .. .......... ... . ... ... ...... 0.0 86,5 634 643 106.0
Bonds, Available-for-sale 3 ... ......... . . . . . . 0.0 0.0 6.5 33.1 7.5
Financial Assets Categorized as Loans and Receivables, Current

Portion 3 . ... . 0.0 149.1 136.1 94.6 157.0
Financial Assets Categorized as Loans and Receivables, Net of Current

Portion 3 . ... . 0.0 00 795 155 50.0

I Differences due to rounding.

2 In 2015, interest paid and interest received were reclassified from operating activities into investing
activities and financing activities in the statement of cash flows. In order to provide comparative
information for the previous year, the figures for 2014 have been adjusted accordingly.

3 In 2018, due to the first time adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the items representing liquidity are
presented in different balance sheet than in prior years.

NET ASSETS
ASSETS

As of December 31, 2018, total assets amounted to € 538.8 million and were € 123.4 million above their level on
December 31, 2017 (€ 415.4 million). Current assets increased by € 48.2 million. This change was mainly driven
by an overall increase in financial assets and cash and cash equivalents as well as from an increase in accounts
receivable and was partly offset by the decline in prepaid expenses and other current assets.

As of December 31, 2018, an amount of € 44.6 million (December 31, 2017: € 86.5 million) was invested in
various money market funds and reported under “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.” On
December 31, 2017, such investments were reported as “available-for-sale financial assets.” The category “other
financial assets at amortized cost” included financial instruments totaling € 268.9 million (December 31, 2017:

€ 149.1 million). These instruments comprised mainly term deposits with either fixed or variable interest rates as
well as three commercial papers. In 2017 such investments were reported in the category “loans and receivables”.

Non-current assets increased by € 75.2 million to € 149.9 million compared to their level of € 74.7 million on
December 31, 2017. The main reason for this change was an increase in non-current financial assets in the
category “other financial assets at amortized cost, net of current portion” which was partially offset by a decline
of the line item “In-process R&D Programs”.

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities decreased from € 47.7 million on December 31, 2017 to € 45.9 million on December 31, 2018.
This effect mainly resulted from a decrease in other provisions and contract liabilities.

Non-current liabilities (December 31, 2018: € 4.5 million; December 31, 2017: € 9.0 million) decreased mainly
due to the decline in deferred tax liabilities. The decrease in deferred tax liabilities is mainly related to the
impairment of in-process R&D programs.
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STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As of December 31, 2018, Group equity totaled € 488.4 million compared to € 358.7 million on December 31,
2017. As of December 31, 2018, the Company’s equity ratio amounted to 91% compared to 86% on
December 31, 2017.

The number of shares issued totaled 31,839,572 as of December 31, 2018, of which 31,558,536 shares were
outstanding (December 31, 2017: 29,420,785 shares issued and 29,101,107 shares outstanding). Common stock
was higher due to the capital increases carried out in April 2018 as a result of the intial public offering on the
Nasdaq Global Market. The capital increases were based on American Depositary Shares (“ADS”), with each
ADS representing 1/4 of a MorphoSys common share. In the IPO process, 2,075,000 new shares were issued on
April 18,2018 and 311,250 new shares were issued on April 26, 2018 from Authorized Capital 2017-11.
Common stock also increased by € 32,537 due to the exercise of 32,537 convertible bonds granted to the
Management Board and the Senior Management Group. The weighted-average exercise price of the convertible
bonds was € 31.88.

On December 31, 2018, the Company held 281,036 shares of treasury stock valued at € 10,398,773, representing
a decline of € 1,428,208 compared to December 31, 2017 (319,678 shares, € 11,826,981). The cause of the
decline was the transfer of 17,129 shares of treasury stock valued at € 636,414 to the Management Board and
Senior Management Group from the performance-based 2014 long-term incentive program (LTI). The vesting
periods for this LTI program expired on April 1, 2018. Beneficiaries were given the option to receive a total of
17,219 shares within six months. In May 2018, the Management Board, the Senior Management Group and
certain employees of the Company who are not part of the Senior Management Group received a one-time
entitlement in a total fixed amount of € 2.1 million. As of December 31, 2018, 20,105 shares in an amount of

€ 2.1 million have been transferred to beneficiaries as a result of this entitlement.

TAB. 05: MULTI-YEAR OVERVIEW - BALANCE SHEET STRUCTURE!

in million € 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 12/31/2014
Assets

Current ASSEtS ...t 388.9 340.7 308.1 300.1 322.4
Non-current ASSEtS . . ..ot vii 149.9 74.7 155.5 100.0 104.1
Total . ... . ... . 538.8 415.4 463.6 400.1 426.5
Equity and Liabilities

Current Liabilities . .. ........... ... ... ... ....... 45.9 47.7 38.3 27.5 32.7
Non-current Liabilities .......................... 4.5 9.0 9.8 9.9 45.0
Stockholders” Equity? . ........... ... ... ... ... 488.4 358.7 415.5 362.7 348.8
Total .. ... 538.8 4154 463.6 400.1 426.5

I Differences due to rounding.
2 Includes Common Stock as of December 31, 2018: € 31,839,572; December 31, 2017: € 29,420,785;
December 31, 2016: € 29,159,770; December 31, 2015: € 26,537,682; December 31, 2014: € 26,456,834

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2018.
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TAB. 06: CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS (DECEMBER 31, 2018)

Payments due by period
Lessthan 1to3 3to5 More than
(in € thousands) Total 1 year years years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligations ............. .. .. ... .. .. ..... 24,107 4,512 5,720 5,371 8,504

OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

We lease facilities and equipment under long-term operating leases. In 2018, leasing expenses amounted to
€ 3.2 million. Leasing expenses also include leasing of company cars and machinery. The majority of these
leasing contracts can be renewed on a yearly or quarterly basis, and some agreements may be terminated
prematurely.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

Other commitments may become due for future payments for outsourced studies. As of December 31, 2018, we
expected to incur approximately € 97.0 million of fees for outsourced studies, of which approximately

€ 51.4 million will be paid in the next twelve months. Additionally, if certain milestones are achieved in the
Proprietary Development segment, for example, filing an application for an investigational new drug, or IND, for
specific target molecules, this may trigger regulatory and sales milestone payments to licensors of up to an
aggregate of $ 287 million. The next milestone payment in the amount of $ 12.5 million could occur in
approximately 12 to 18 months. No accruals have been recorded in our consolidated balance sheet for these
amounts.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We did not have, during 2018 and 2017, and we do not currently have, any off-balance sheet arrangements.

COMPARISON OF ACTUAL BUSINESS RESULTS VERSUS FORECASTS

MorphoSys demonstrated solid financial performance during the 2018 reporting year. A detailed comparison of
the Company’s forecasts versus the actual results can be found in Table 7.

TAB. 07: COMPARISON OF ACTUAL BUSINESS RESULTS VERSUS FORECASTS

2018 Targets 2018 Results

Financial targets  Group revenues between € 67 million and Group revenues of € 76.4 million
€ 72 million
(initial forecast € 2025 million; revised on
July 19, 2018 upon announcement of
licensing agreement with Novartis for

MOR106)
Expenses for proprietary product and Expenses for proprietary product and
technology development of technology development of € 98.3 million

€ 87 million to € 97 million

(initial forecast: € 95—105 million; revised on
July 19, 2018 upon announcement of
licensing agreement with Novartis for
MOR106)
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Proprietary
Development

2018 Targets

2018 Results

EBIT of € (55) million to € (65) million
(initial forecast: € (110) million to
€ (120) million; revised on July 19, 2018

upon announcement of licensing agreement

with Novartis for MOR106)

Proprietary Development segment:
R&D expenses to continue to rise
(2017: € 99.1 million)

EBIT sharply negative due to planned R&D

expenditures on proprietary programs
(2017: € (81.3) million)

Partnered Discovery segment:

R&D expenses lower than in the prior year
due to the expiration of the partnership with

Novartis (2017: € 17.7 million)
EBIT positive (2017: € 30.2 million)

MOR208

Update on interactions with the FDA

based on breakthrough therapy
designation status

e Completion of treatment of 81 patients
under the current study protocol of the

fully recruited L-MIND trial with
MOR208 and lenalidomide in r/r

DLBCL and the start of data evaluation

e Continuation of the pivotal phase 3
study evaluating MOR208 in
combination with bendamustine in
comparison to rituximab and

bendamustine in r/r DLBCL (B-MIND

study)

e Continuation of the phase 2 COSMOS

trial with MOR208 in combination with
idelalisib or venetoclax in r/r CLL or
SLL and presentation of study data at
conferences

Continue to advance the development
towards a potential regulatory approval
and begin to set up commercial
capabilities in order to commercialize
MOR208 in certain geographies

MOR202
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EBIT of € (59.1) million

Proprietary Development segment:
R&D expenses of € 107.0 million
EBIT of € (53.2) million

Partnered Discovery segment:
R&D expenses of € 8.5 million

EBIT of € 13.3 million

MOR208

Regular updates on developments
regarding path to market

All 81 patients enrolled in the trial, data
evaluation ongoing

B-MIND study ongoing

COSMOS trial ongoing, data presented
at conferences: EHA (June) and
ASH (December)

Preparation for potential regulatory
approval ongoing; set-up of commercial
capabilities started, foundation of
MorphoSys US Inc. to support
commercialization of MOR208 in the
uU.S.

MOR202

Termination of active partnering efforts
for MOR202 in multiple myeloma



Partnered
Discovery

2018 Targets

2018 Results

Evaluation of new potential partnerships
for the compound’s optimal
development

Evaluate the start of an exploratory
clinical trial in non-small-cell lung
cancer (NSCLC)

Presentation of study data after
completion of the phase 1/2a dose-
escalation trial in multiple myeloma

MOR106

Initiation of a phase 2 trial of MOR106
in atopic dermatitis under our
co-development program with
Galapagos

MOR107

Preclinical investigation of MOR107
with a focus on oncology indications
based on initial anti-tumor data

Initiation and continuation of development
programs in the area of antibody discovery
and preclinical development

outside I-Mab partnership for Greater
China

Stop of clinical development plans for
NSCLC after discontinuation of a
clinical study by Genmab and Janssen
of anti-CD38 antibody daratumumab in
combination with a checkpoint inhibitor
in NSCLC due to safety findings

Presentation of final phase 1/2a data in
MM at ASH (December)

MOR106

Start of IGUANA phase 2 trial in atopic
dermatitis in May

Start of phase 1 bridging study wih
Galapagos evaluating a subcutaneous
formulation of MOR106 in September

Exclusive global license agreement with
Novartis signed together with
Galapagos for further development of
MORI106 in atopic dermatitis and
potentially other indications

MOR107

Preclinical investigation ongoing

Exclusive strategic collaboration and
regional licensing agreement for
MOR210 with I-Mab Biopharma for
development and commercialization in
China, Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan and
South Korea

Continuation of antibody discovery
programs

Progress of partnered development programs Increasing number of partnered programs
(103 programs) as maturity progresses
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Guselkumab (Tremfya®, partner: Janssen):

Further marketing approval for the
treatment of moderate to severe plaque
psoriasis in Brazil, Australia, South
Korea and Japan as well as for psoriatic
arthritis in Japan (April) and for the



2018 Targets 2018 Results

treatment of patients with palmoplantar
pustulosis in Japan (November)

e Start of phase 2/3 program (GALAXI)
in Crohn’s disease (July)

e Start of phase 3 trial (PROTOSTAR) in
pediatric psoriasis patients (September)

e Start of a phase 2 study in patients with
moderate to severe hidradenitis
suppurativa (HS) (November)

e Data from phase 3 head-to-head study
ECLIPSE demonstrated superiority of
guselkumab (Tremfya®) vs.
secukinumab (Cosentyx®) in the
treatment of plaque psoriasis
(December)

Partner Roche started two new phase 3 trials
of gantenerumab in patients with early
Alzheimer’s disease (June)

Expansion of existing strategic alliance with
LEO Pharma to include peptide-derived
therapeutics with the objective of identifying
novel, peptide-derived therapeutics for unmet
medical needs (September)

Partner GSK reported data from phase 2
BAROQUE clinical study of GSK3196165
(formerly MOR103) in rheumatoid arthritis
(RA) at ACR conference (October)

THE MANAGEMENT BOARD’S GENERAL ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The 2018 financial year was marked by both operational highlights as well as positive events among our
development programs. The successful Nasdaq listing in April strengthened our financial position and gave us
more flexibility to allocate our resources. Moreover, the [PO enhanced our visibility in the U.S., which was
further increased by the foundation of our wholly owned subsidiary MorphoSys US Inc. With this, we followed
our plan to build a strong U.S. presence as preparation for the planned commercialization of MOR208, our
antibody for the treatment of hematological malignancies, which was definitely the key focus during the
reporting year. Driven by positive data from our L-MIND trial and encouraged by our ongoing discussions with
the FDA we followed our plan to bring the antibody to the U.S. market as fast as possible, pending FDA
approval.

Revenues in the 2018 financial year increased to € 76.4 million, and EBIT amounted to € —59.1 million. The
increase in revenues and the improved operating result compared to the previous year were the result of our
exclusive license agreement for MOR 106, which we and our partner Galapagos signed with Novartis Pharma AG
in July thereby covering the further development and commercialization of our joint program MOR106. This
agreement resulted in an upfront payment of € 47.5 million, which prompted us to raise our financial forecast for
the 2018 financial year. Moreover, guselkumab (Tremfya®) sales grew rapidly during 2018 resulting in royalty
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payments with strong year-on-year growth as compared to 2017. The net cash outflow from operating activities
amounted to € 33.3 million, which was the result of the planned expenses for proprietary research and
development. Our equity ratio of 91% and liquid funds of € 454.7 million are a confirmation of the strength of
the Company’s financial resources.

Our other Proprietary Development and Partnered Discovery programs made great progress in 2018. For
MOR?202, we presented final data from our phase 1/2a trial in multiple myeloma at ASH. Our partner I-Mab
submitted an investigational new drug application for MOR202 in MM in China in August and we expect them
to start pivotal trials soon. We ourselves are not pursuing the further development in MM without a partner, but
of course we continue to support [-Mab in their development of MOR?202 in Greater China. We made progress
evaluating potential options for MOR202 in other indications, such as autoimmune diseases, while we stopped
the clinical development plans in NSCLC. For GSK3196165 (formerly MOR103), GSK presented data from their
phase 2 trial in rheumatoid arthritis at the ACR conference in October, where they also announced plans to
continue clinical development in this indication. Building on our existing collaboration with [-Mab Biopharma
for MOR202 for China and certain other Asian territories, we entered into an exclusive strategic collaboration
and regional licensing agreement for MOR210, a preclinical-stage antibody directed against C5aR, which has
potential to be developed as an immuno-oncology agent.

We were also pleased to report successes of our Partnered Programs. Guselkumab (Tremfya®), developed by our
partner Janssen and the first approved and marketed therapeutic antibody based on MorphoSys’s proprietary
technology, was granted marketing authorization in several additional countries during 2018, including Japan.
Janssen continued to develop guselkumab (Tremfya®) in several additional indications and reported positive
long-term data in plaque psoriasis. We were very pleased about the data from the ECLIPSE trial reported by
Janssen in December showing superiority of guselkumab (Tremfya®) versus secukinumab (Cosentyx®) for the
treatment of plaque psoriasis. Our partner Roche initiated two new phase 3 trials with gantenerumab, the
antibody against amyloid-beta, which is being developed by Roche for the treatment of Alzheimer’s disease
patients. By the end of the year, our pipeline comprised a total of 115 drug candidates (103 proprietary and 12
partnered programs), 29 of which are in clinical development.

¢) Outlook and Forecast

MorphoSys’s business model is focused on developing innovative drug candidates derived from its proprietary
technologies, such as the HuUCAL and Ylanthia antibody libraries. We develop drug candidates both on a
proprietary basis and together with partners with the goal of giving patients access to better treatment
alternatives. Our proprietary development activities focus mainly on oncology compounds, which we aim to
bring to market and commercialize. We continue to concentrate on further developing our technologies in the
fast-growing, innovation-driven areas of the life sciences sector as the foundation of our business model.

GENERAL STATEMENT ON EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT

MorphoSys’s strategic focus is on the development of innovative drugs to improve the lives of patients suffering
from serious diseases. The development of MOR208, our most advanced drug candidate, for the treatment of
certain forms of blood cancer, is currently our top priority. Our continued investment in the development of
validated and innovative technology platforms is an important basis for our business. In the Partnered Discovery
segment, the commercialization of our technologies provides contractually secured cash flows from our
partnerships with pharmaceutical companies.

The Management Board expects, among others, the following developments in 2019:
e Complete the L-MIND trial and submit the filing package by end of the year for approval at the FDA

* Continue to build capabilities in the U.S. in order to prepare for commercialization of MOR208 there
pending regulatory approval and explore commercialization options in other geographies.
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e Continue the development of other proprietary drug candidates such as MOR202 and MOR 106 and support
our partners in the development of these compounds.

e Continue to participate in the development of our partners’ drug candidates through the receipt of success-
based revenues such as milestone payments or royalties on commercialized product sales and continue to
invest these funds into the development of our proprietary programs.

» Evaluate new strategic agreements based on proprietary technologies focused on gaining access to
innovative target molecules and compounds.

* Continue expansion of proprietary development activities through potential in-licensing, company
acquisitions, co-development and new proprietary development activities.

e Invest in the development of proprietary technologies to maintain and expand our position in therapeutic
antibodies and related technologies.

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

MorphoSys plans to invest a substantial portion of its financial resources in proprietary R&D for the foreseeable
future. The Management Board believes this is the best route to increasing the Company’s value for the long
term. We plan to advance our portfolio of proprietary development candidates and further strengthen our
technology platform. Revenues from R&D funding, royalties, license and milestone payments and a strong
liquidity position should allow us to continue expanding our proprietary drug and technology development.

In our Proprietary Development segment, we will continue developing therapeutic antibodies and peptides for
our own account. We concentrate on oncology, but also explore our drug candidates in other disease areas such
as inflammatory or autoimmune disorders if opportunities arise. Decisions to enter into alliances with other
companies to co-develop our proprietary candidates or to outlicense them, either globally or for certain
geographies, are made on a case-by-case basis. It has become an increasingly integral part of our strategy to
retain projects in proprietary development in-house until later states of clinical development or even until
commercialization. Our main focus is currently developing MOR208 towards a potential regulatory approval and
to preparing commercialization capabilities for MOR208 in selected geographies, in particular the U.S.

Our Partnered Discovery segment generates contractually secured cash flows based on various partnerships with
pharmaceutical companies. The majority of development candidates in recent years stemmed from our
partnership with Novartis. Although this partnership ended in accordance with the contract in November 2017,
we expect that drug candidates under this and other partnerships will continue to be developed and may lead to
additional milestone payments and royalties in the future. In 2017, Tremfya®, developed and marketed by
Janssen, became the first antibody from our partnered discovery business to reach the market. We expect that
Tremfya® will continue to provide the bulk of our royalty revenue for the foreseeable future. Based on its
breadth, the partnered pipeline is expected to generate further marketable therapeutic antibodies in the future.
Should these be successful, the Company’s financial participation in the form of royalties on product sales would
increase.

EXPECTED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

In its January 2019 report, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) projected global economic growth of 3.5% in
2019, compared to 3.7% forecast for 2018. Growth in advanced economies is anticipated to be 2.0% in 2019,
compared to a forecast growth of 2.3% for 2018. The IMF expects growth in in the euro area to decline to 1.6%
in 2019 compared to the 1.8% forecast for 2018. Growth rates have been marked down for many economies,
including Germany. The IMF expects growth in Germany to be 1.3% in 2019 (2018E: 1.5%); this decrease is due
to soft private consumption, weak industrial production following the introduction of revised auto emission
standards and subdued foreign demand. The IMF is projecting U.S. economic growth in 2019 to be 2.5% (and
soften further to 1.8% in 2020) compared to expected growth of 2.9% in 2018 with the unwinding of fiscal
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stimulus and as the federal funds rate temporarily overshoots the neutral rate of interest. Nevertheless, the
projected pace of expansion is above the U.S. economy’s estimated potential growth rate in both years. Strong
domestic demand growth will support rising imports and contribute to a widening of the U.S. current account
deficit. According to the IMF, growth in emerging and developing countries in 2019 is expected to be 4.5%
(2018E: 4.6%). Growth in China is projected to reach 6.2% in 2019 (2018E: 6.6%) while Russia is expected to
grow 1.6% compared to growth of 1.7% in 2018. Brazil is also expected to experience positive growth, projected
at 2.5% for 2019 (2018E: 1.3%).

EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT OF THE LIFE SCIENCES SECTOR

According to research by BioCentury, two-thirds of biotech companies could be facing a cash crunch in 2019 if
the markets remain difficult. While investors do not expect capital availability to be a problem, they think the
rising cost of capital might mean employing alternative financing structures to help biotechs extend their runway.
Investors and bankers contacted by BioCentury believe that most of the financial market issues facing the biotech
sector in 2019 have nothing to do with industry fundamentals but that macro-economic forces have driven a shift
toward a risk-off sentiment. The fourth quarter of 2018 was one of the worst quarters for biotech indexes in over
16 years, and investors see little reason to think the sentiment will change in the near-term.

One bright spot is the string of M&A events that kicked off 2019 that could draw investors back to the sector.
But short of an M&A spending spree, investors expect cost of capital may be one of the most important areas of
focus in 2019. Investors are holding a relatively bleak outlook for the sector in 2019, with enough reason to
worry from the last three months, which saw biotech enter a bear market.

On the positive side, the number of new FDA product approvals reached an all-time high of 59 in 2018. Despite
this, investors are wary about companies’ ability to effectively commercialize products once approved, as
revenue trajectories, particularly from small and mid-cap companies, have not met projections.

FUTURE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND EXPECTED BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT

The Company’s R&D budget for proprietary drug and technology development in the 2019 financial year is
expected to be in the range of € 95 million to € 105 million. The majority of investment will fund the
development of our proprietary drug candidates MOR208, MOR202 and our discovery efforts. The lion’s share
of that funding will be dedicated to the clinical development of MOR208. Further investment will be made in the
areas of target molecule validation as well as antibody and technology development. We will also continue to
seek collaborations with partners such as academic institutions to gain access to new target molecules and
technologies.

The events and development activities planned in 2019 include the following:

* Continue interactions with the FDA during the breakthrough therapy designation process for MOR208.

e Complete data evaluation of all 81 patients enrolled under the current study protocol of the fully recruited
L-MIND trial in r/r DLBCL and present study results based on the primary completion analysis.

e [Initiate phase 1b trial with MOR208 in frontline DLBCL in second half of 2019

e Continue the pivotal phase 3 study evaluating MOR208 in combination with bendamustine in comparison to
rituximab and bendamustine in r/r DLBCL (B-MIND study)

e Continue the phase 2 COSMOS trial of MOR208 with idelalisib and venetoclax in CLL/SLL and present
data.
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e Complete the regulatory filing package comprising clinical and CMC (chemistry, manufacturing and
controls) data for MOR208 and submit the regulatory filing in the U.S. to the FDA by year-end; according
to current plans, the filing will be primarily based on data from the L-MIND study in addition to historical
data from lenalidomide single-agent treatment of the targeted patient population.

e Continue the set up of commercial capabilities in the U.S. in order to prepare for expected
commercialization of MOR208.

e Prepare for and start an exploratory clinical trial of MOR202 in an autoimmune indication.

e Continue ongoing clinical studies of MOR106 in atopic dermatitis together with our co-development partner
Galapagos under the existing global licensing agreement with Novartis including the phase 2 iv IGUANA
study and the phase 1 sc bridging study and prepare the start of additional clinical studies in atopic
dermatitis.

e Continue preclinical investigations of MOR107 with a focus on oncology indications.

e Continue and/or initiate development programs in the area of antibody discovery and preclinical
development.

Based on announcements made by our partner GSK earlier this year, we might see the initiation of phase 3
development of MOR103/GSK3196165 in rheumatoid arthritis in the second half of 2019 by our partner GSK.

PARTNERED DISCOVERY

MorphoSys intends to continue to focus, above all, on the further development of its proprietary development
pipeline. In the Partnered Discovery segment, MorphoSys will carefully review its options to enter into
additional collaborations based on its proprietary technologies with pharmaceutical and biotech companies,
similar to the dermatology partnership with LEO Pharma that was initiated in 2016 based on our Ylanthia
antibody platform and that was expanded in 2018 based on our proprietary peptide platform.

According to information provided on the website clinicaltrials.gov, by the end of 2019 primary completion may
be reached in a total of up to 13 clinical trials in phase 2 and 3 from partners evaluating antibodies made using
MorphoSys technology. This includes a potentially pivotal phase 2b study by Mereo Pharma in osteogenesis
imperfecta (brittle bone syndrome) of the HuCAL antibody setrusumab (BSP804), directed against the target
molecule sclerostin and generated within the scope of the Novartis partnership. Phase 3 trials with Tremfya®
conducted by Janssen in psoriasis and in psoriatic arthritis are also scheduled for primary completion in 2019.

Whether, when and to what extent news will be published following the primary completion of trials in the
Partnered Discovery segment is at the full discretion of our partners.

EXPECTED PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

The number of employees in the Proprietary Development segment is expected to increase during the 2019
financial year, partly due the increased number of employees in connection with the build-up of commercial
capabilities. The number of employees in the Partnered Discovery segment is expected to remain stable. The
number of employees in G&A is expected to increase slightly.

EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

MorphoSys had financial resources of € 454.7 million at the end of the 2018 financial year. Revenues in the 2019
financial year are expected to be below those achieved in 2018. The main reason for this expected decline is a
positive one-time effect in 2018, namely the upfront payment of € 47.5 million received from Novartis in
connection with a global licensing deal for MOR106. The Management Board is projecting Group revenues of
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€ 43 million to € 50 million in the 2019 financial year. Revenues are expected to include royalty income from
Tremfya® ranging from € 23 million to € 30 million at constant US-$ currency. This forecast does not take into
account revenues from future collaborations and/or licensing agreements.

R&D expenses for proprietary programs and technology development are expected to reach € 95 million to

€ 105 million in 2019. Most of these expenses in the Proprietary Development segment will arise from the
development of MOR208, MOR202 and from our early-stage development programs, with the lion’s share
expected to stem from clinical development of MOR208. R&D expenses for the Partnered Discovery segment
are expected to be lower than in the prior year.

MorphoSys will continue to build commercial structures in the U.S. in preparation for the potential
commercialization of MOR208 pending regulatory approval and therefore expects to incur a significant amount
of selling expenses in the low to mid double-digit million euro range for 2019.

The Company expects EBIT of approximately € —127 million to € —137 million in 2019.

This guidance does not include a potential larger milestone for the start of a phase 3 clinical trial for
MOR103/GSK3196165 that could occur in the course of 2019. The guidance also does not include revenues from
potential future partnership or licensing agreements for MOR208 or any other compound that is in MorphoSys’s
proprietary development. Effects from potential in-licensing or co-development deals for new development
candidates are also not included in the guidance. The Partnered Discovery segment is expected to generate a
positive operating result in 2019. The Proprietary Development segment is expected to report a sharply negative
EBIT due to the continued high level of R&D expenditures on proprietary programs.

In the years ahead, one-time events, such as the in-licensing and out-licensing of development candidates and
larger milestone payments and royalties from the market maturity of HuCAL and Ylanthia antibodies could have
an impact on the Company’s net assets and financial position. Such events could cause financial targets to change
significantly. Similarly, failures in drug development could have negative consequences for the MorphoSys
Group. Revenue growth in the near to medium term will depend on the Company’s ability to out-license its
proprietary programs and/or enter into new partnerships as well as to secure regulatory approval for, launch and
successfully commercialize its first proprietary program MOR208. In addition, revenues should increasingly
benefit from royalties based on sales of Tremfya® (guselkumab).

At the end of the 2018 financial year, MorphoSys had liquidity of € 454.7 million (December 31, 2017: € 312.2
million). The loss projected for 2019 will cause a decline in liquidity. MorphoSys sees its solid cash position as
an advantage that can be used to accelerate its future growth through strategic activities such as the in-licensing
of compounds and partnering with promising companies. Available liquidity can also be used to fund research
and development expenses for the Company’s proprietary portfolio of therapeutic antibodies.

DIVIDEND

In the separate financial statements of MorphoSys AG, prepared in accordance with German Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (German Commercial Code), the Company is reporting an accumulated deficit, which
prevents it from distributing a dividend for the 2018 financial year. In view of the anticipated losses in 2019, the
Company expects to continue to report an accumulated loss for the 2019 financial year. MorphoSys will invest
further in the development of proprietary drugs and the set up of commercial capabilities in the U.S. and will
potentially pursue additional in-licensing and acquisition transactions to open up new growth opportunities and
increase the Company’s value. Based on these plans, the Company does not expect to pay a dividend in the
foreseeable future.

This outlook takes into account all known factors at the time of preparing this report and is based on the
Management Board’s assumptions of events that could influence the Company in 2019 and beyond. Future
results may differ from the expectations described in the section entitled “Outlook and Forecast.” The most
significant risks are described in the risk report.
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d) Shares and the Capital Market

MorphoSys AG shares opened the reporting year at a share price of € 76.58. After a solid start in the first weeks
of 2018, the share price dropped in line with the TecDax due to weak trends observed on Wall Street affecting
the European markets and MorphoSys’s share reached its low for the year of € 72.05 mid-February. The shares
then trended higher in line with the TecDAX before breaking out in April after the Company announced the
initial public offering in the United States and the listing of ADSs on the Nasdaq Global Market. From April 9
on, the share price constantly increased, far outpacing the benchmark index. The dual listing as well as positive
news flow, such as approval of Tremfya® for plaque psoriasis in new regions and also for psoriatic arthritis in
Japan received by Janssen in June as well as the global licensing agreement with Novartis and Galapagos for
MOR106 mid-July, drove MorphoSys shares to a high of €122.20 on July 24. Thereafter, the worldwide stock
markets were affected by the U.S. trade war with China and by the jump in returns in the U.S. Moreover, the
European Market was marked by insecurities due to the banking crisis in Italy, with all causing a continuous
decline for both the TecDAX as well as the MorphoSys shares. This resulted in a low of € 77.75 on October 26.
Of note, MorphoSys shares were included into the MDAX as of September 24 while remaining part of the
TecDAX segment. The simultaneous inclusion in both indices, MDAX and TecDAX, was based on the
reorganization of the index rules of Deutsche Borse, the existing separation into the Tech and Classic segments
having been removed. While both the TecDAX and MDAX declined further in the course of the year,
MorphoSys’s share price again increased from the beginning of November and closed the financial year at

€ 88.95, amounting to a share price increase of 16% and a market capitalization of € 2.8 billion.

MorphoSys AG shares therefore clearly outperformed the development of the relevant indices, namely the
Nasdaq Biotechnology Index (-9%), the MDAX (-18%) and the TecDAX (-3%) in 2018.

FIG. 11: PERFORMANCE OF THE MORPHOSYS SHARE IN 2018 (JANUARY 1, 2018 = 100%)
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FIG. 12: PERFORMANCE OF THE MORPHOSYS SHARE 2014 - 2018 (JANUARY 1, 2014 = 100%)
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STOCK MARKET DEVELOPMENT

2018 was a difficult year on the stock markets. For the first time since 2011, the leading German index DAX was
down significantly at about -18%. Concerns about a slowdown in the global economy, the trade dispute between
the USA and China, and the approaching Brexit in March have had a greater impact on the German stock
markets than on the U.S. markets. However, the Dow Jones index also ended the year down roughly 6%. Biotech
shares did not manage to escape this negative stock market environment and also had to face falling prices.
During the reporting year, MorphoSys continued to increase its investor relations activities both in Europe and
with a growing focus also in the United States following the listing on the Nasdaq Global Market.

LIQUIDITY AND INDEX MEMBERSHIP

The average daily trading volume in MorphoSys shares on all regulated trading platforms increased by about
45% in 2018, reaching a volume of € 22.5 million (2017: € 15.6 million). The average daily trading volume on
the TecDAX, which contains the 30 largest technology stocks on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, rose 93%. In
addition, in 2018 MorphoSys shares were included for the first time in the German MDAX index, which
comprises the 60 largest companies in terms of market capitalization and turnover on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange behind those that make up the DAX. By the end of 2018, MorphoSys ranked 10th in the TecDAX in
terms of market capitalization (2017: 10th) and 14th in terms of trading volume (2017: 12th). In the MDAX,
MorphoSys shares ranked 59th in terms of market capitalization and 65th in terms of trading volume (the rank
refers to DAX (30) and MDAX (60) listed companies).

The average daily trading volume in MorphoSys shares on alternative trading platforms (“‘dark pools™) in 2018
was approximately € 16.2 million, or 173,000 shares (2017: approx. 98,700 shares valued at € 6.3 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 156%.

MARKET INFORMATION

Our shares have been trading on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol “MOR” since 1999. On
April 23, 2018 we announced the closing of our initial public offering (IPO) in the United States through an ADS
offering. The ADSs are listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “MOR.”
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The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the reported high and low closing sale prices per ordinary
share in Xetra trading in euros on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange as well as per ADS in US dollars traded on
Nasdagq.

TAB. 08: CLOSING PRICES OF MORPHOSYS SHARES AND ADS

Ordinary shares traded on Frankfurt

ADSs traded on Nasdaq (in US$) Stock Exchange (in €)
High Low High Low
2014 .. n/a n/a 86.72 55.45
2015 . n/a n/a 78.65 52.52
2016 . n/a n/a 56.07 33.25
2017 o n/a n/a 82.95 47.60
2018 . 35.66 21.96 122.00 72.05

COMMON STOCK

The Company’s common stock increased to 31,839,572 shares, or € 31,839,572, in the reporting year mainly due
to a capital increase in connection with the initial public offering (IPO) on the Nasdaq Stock Market.

In April 2018, MorphoSys successfully completed the IPO on the Nasdaq Stock Market, generating gross
proceeds of US$ 239,006,800. The transaction was executed in two consecutive capital increases from
Authorized Capital 2017-11, excluding the subscription rights of existing shareholders. Initially, 2,075,000 new
ordinary shares were issued as part of a basic offering in the form of 8,300,000 American Depositary Shares
(“ADS”). This was followed by the full exercise of an option granted to the underwriters to acquire a further
311,250 new ordinary shares in the form of 1,245,000 ADSs. The price was US$ 25.04 per ADS in both
transactions. Each ADS represents 1/4 of a MorphoSys ordinary share. The new ordinary shares underlying the
ADSs in the basic offer and the option exercised by the underwriters correspond to approximately 8.1% of the
common stock of MorphoSys prior to the capital increases from Authorized Capital 2017-11.

Another reason for the increase in the Company’s common stock was the exercise of convertible bonds granted
to the Management Board and the Senior Management Group. A detailed description of the convertible bond
program can be found in the Notes (Item 7.2).

TAB. 09: KEY DATA FOR THE MORPHOSYS SHARE (DECEMBER 31)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total stockholders’ equity (in million €) ..... 488.4 358.7 415.5 362.7 348.8
Number of shares issued (number) .......... 31,839,572 29,420,785 29,159,770 26,537,682 26,456,834
Market capitalization (in million€) ......... 2,832 2,253 1,422 1,530 2,027
Closing price in € (Xetra) ................. 88.95 76.58 48.75 57.65 76.63
Average daily trading volume (in million €) . . . 22.5 15.6 9.7 14.9 11.9
Average daily trading volume (in % of

common stock) ............. ... ... ... 0.77 0.83 0.78 0.87 0.65

INTERNATIONAL INVESTOR BASE

Various voting right notifications were issued during the reporting year in accordance with Section 26 (1) of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). These notifications were published on the MorphoSys website and can
be found under Media and Investors — Stock Information — Recent Voting Rights Notifications.
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According to the definition given by the Deutsche Borse, the free float in MorphoSys AG’s shares was 99.11% at
the end of the reporting year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Management and Supervisory Boards of MorphoSys AG welcomed shareholders to the Company’s
20th Annual General Meeting (AGM) in Munich on May 17, 2018. The shareholders and proxies attending
represented more than 60.7% of the common stock of MorphoSys AG (2017: 54.0% of the common stock
represented).

All resolution proposals of the management were approved with the required majority of votes. At the close of
the 2018 AGM, the terms of office of Supervisory Board members Dr. Gerald Méller and Dr. Marc Cluzel
ended. Klaus Kiihn resigned from the Supervisory Board for personal reasons at the end of the 2018 AGM. The
Annual General Meeting re-elected Dr. Marc Cluzel and newly elected Dr. George Golumbeski and Michael
Brosnan to the Company’s Supervisory Board. In its constitutive meeting following the AGM, the Supervisory
Board elected Dr. Marc Cluzel as its new chairman and Dr. Frank Morich as vice chairman.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not paid any dividends on our ordinary shares since our inception, and we currently intend to retain any
future earnings to finance the growth and development of our business. Therefore, we do not anticipate that we
will declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Except as required by law, any future
determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our Management Board and Supervisory Board
and will be dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, and other factors
our Management Board and Supervisory Board deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

At the beginning of December, the Company held an Investor and Analyst Event in New York City dedicated to
MOR208, immediately following the 60th ASH conference in San Diego. During this event, the latest L-MIND
data were presented and the Company gave an outlook on the planned filing strategy. Following the presentation,
participants were given an opportunity to address questions to the management. The event was also webcast,
making it accessible to interested parties worldwide. A total of more than 100 investors, analysts and
shareholders watched the Management Board’s presentations.

MorphoSys also took part in over 20 international investor conferences. Several roadshows were held at various
locations in both Europe and the USA. The strongest interest continued to be in the United States where a large
number of specialized healthcare investors are located. Following the listing on Nasdaq in April, we estimate that
nearly 50% of MorphoSys AG shares are meanwhile held by U.S. institutional investors.

The Management Board also held conference calls in conjunction with the publication of the annual, half-yearly
and quarterly results to report past and expected business developments and answer questions from analysts and
investors.

The development of our lead product candidate MOR208, the general progress of our proprietary portfolio and
the partnered pipeline were the topics in investor discussions.

A total of 14 analysts covered MorphoSys shares at the end of 2018.

TAB. 10: ANALYST RECOMMENDATIONS (DECEMBER 31, 2018)

Buy/Overweight/Market Outperform Hold/Neutral Reduce/Underperform
7 5 2
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Detailed information on MorphoSys shares, financial ratios, the Company’s strategic direction and the Group’s
recent developments can be found on the Company’s website (Media and Investors).

e) Sustainable Business Development

We are aware of our responsibility to present and future generations and see sustainable behavior as a
prerequisite for long-term business success. As a biotechnology company conducting both research and drug
development, observing the highest ecological, social and ethical standards is a top priority and a key component
of our corporate culture. The following section describes our sustainability strategy and the activities carried out
during the reporting year that represent non-financial performance indicators. The financial performance
indicators are presented in the section “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.” Information on our
management structure and corporate governance practices can be found in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Sustainability is a hallmark of our corporate management and plays a major role in the pursuit of corporate goals
and in contributing value to society. This applies to the short- and long-term objectives of all levels of
management and is reflected in our core task of developing even more effective and safer drugs. To ensure
lasting business success, we incorporate environmental and social responsibility into our daily business and base
our business model on sustainable growth that protects the interests of our shareholders, creates long-term value
and weighs our actions in terms of their impact on the environment, society, patients and employees. Internally,
this business model is reflected in a progressive human resources policy that takes employees’ needs seriously.

Our long-term and sustainable business success rests on innovative research and development to meet the major
challenge of providing comprehensive healthcare in the future. Due to a growing and aging population,
biotechnology-derived drugs represent a growing portion of the overall healthcare system. In the opinion of
management, all aspects of our current business model support the sustainable investment interests of our
shareholders.

A comprehensive risk management system ensures that factors that could threaten sustainable corporate
performance are identified early and corrected if necessary. We only accept risk when there is an opportunity to
increase our enterprise value. At the same time, great effort is made to systematically identify new opportunities
and leverage our business success (more information on risks and opportunities can be found on page 103).

Group-wide compliance with the sustainability strategy is monitored by the entire Management Board, with
primary responsibility assigned to the Chief Financial Officer. The sustainability strategy is based on the
Company’s Credo, which contains the ethical principles forming the foundation of all activities of MorphoSys
and its employees. The Credo is developed further by our Code of Conduct. The Compliance Committee consists
of six members and is available to employees at all times. The Compliance Officer, who is also a member of the
committee, coordinates the elements of MorphoSys’s Compliance Management System. More information on
this subject can be found on page 141 of the Corporate Governance Report. Employees can ask for advice on all
matters concerning compliance and report any suspected violations. If preferred, this may be done on an
anonymous basis. Violations are systematically pursued, and appropriate remedial action is taken. No such
violations have been reported to date.

Detailed information on the KPIs for sustainable development used by MorphoSys is provided in the section
“Strategy and Group Management” (page 43). The following report on the implementation of our corporate
strategy and the Company’s sustainable business development is based on the recommendations of the German
Sustainability Code originally presented by the Council for Sustainable Development in October 2011 and last
updated in 2017.
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NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
ETHICAL STANDARDS AND COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The highest scientific and ethical principles for conducting human clinical trials and animal testing are anchored
in our Code of Conduct. Strict compliance with applicable national and international regulations is mandatory for
all MorphoSys employees and sub-contractors.

As European and international legislation requires animal testing to determine the toxicity, pharmacokinetics and
pharmacodynamics of drug candidates, the biotechnology industry cannot forgo this type of testing. Animal
testing for our drug candidates is outsourced to contract research organizations (CROs) as we do not have
laboratories suitable for this type of research. As part of our product development activities, we award animal
experiments in accordance with the 3Rs principles of animal welfare (Replace, Reduce, Refine) as laid down in
national, European and international regulations. We have established a quality assurance system with written
standard operating procedures (SOPs) that are continuously updated to ensure that we only work with CROs that
comply with local, national and international guidelines and animal welfare regulations. Animal studies are only
conducted after approval by the relevant ethics committee and under the supervision of the attending
veterinarian.

Contract research organizations cooperating with us must comply with ethical principles and legal regulations for
research involving animals and, in case required, have the Good Laboratory Practice (GLP) certification. This is
how we ensure we fulfill our moral obligation for the respectful treatment of animals. We also conduct on-site
visits and audits of the research institute’s study centers that include a review of the staff’s skills and training as
well as animal welfare.

We observe the ethical principles defined in The Declaration of Helsinki, and follow all applicable international
and national laws and guidelines, such as Good Clinical Practice (GCP) guidelines, when conducting clinical
trials. The trials are conducted in compliance with the relevant provisions on privacy and confidentiality.
Protecting the rights, safety and well-being of all clinical trial participants has the highest priority at MorphoSys.
Clinical trials are initiated only after the approval of the relevant independent ethics committee and/or
institutional review board. Before participating in a clinical trial, each participant must voluntarily submit an
informed consent.

The goal of our business activities is to improve patients’ health through our scientific work. We can only
achieve this goal if our activities are socially accepted. Achieving this acceptance requires a continuous and open
dialog with stakeholders so that we can understand potential concerns with regard to biotechnological approaches
and explain our activities and their benefits. To accomplish this, we are active in a variety of ways that range
from participation in public information events to active support of the Communication and Public Relations task
force of BIO Deutschland e.V., Berlin.

PROCUREMENT

Our Central Purchasing and Logistics Department is responsible for negotiating and purchasing goods and
services. The department is continuing to improve the efficiency of procurement management systems and
processes including the introduction of electronic approval processes. Also, during this year, a new ERP system
has been developed to address our future needs. For more details, please see section “Information Technology”
on page 139.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

Because the biotechnology industry is subject to stringent regulatory requirements, environmental protection and
occupational safety are important tasks for us. Our Technical Operations Department and its subsections monitor
our compliance with all relevant requirements. In addition to strict compliance with all legal requirements, we
make a tremendous effort to maintain sustainable environmental management and the effective protection of our
employees.
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We offer employees an extensive range of preventative healthcare options. A sample of these options can be
found in the section entitled “Human Resources” (page 102).

With two reportable occupational accidents in 2018, the number of accidents remained at a very low level,
placing our ratio of reportable accidents significantly below the average ratio in the German chemical industry
(14.6 reportable occupational accidents as defined by the employers’ liability insurance association BG RCI
per 1,000 full-time employees in the latest survey conducted in 2017).

We try to minimize the amount of harmful substances used in our laboratories. Only specific employees who are
specially trained are allowed to work with toxins. Work involving contagious pathogens can only be carried out
in secure laboratories. We only use certified companies to dispose of chemical waste and also refrain from
radioactive substances.

FIG 13: OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AT MORPHOSYS
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QUALITY ASSURANCE

Biopharmaceutical companies bear a special responsibility to comply with the highest quality and safety
standards. We follow detailed procedures and stringent rules in drug development to minimize safety risks for
patients and ensure the quality of the investigational medicinal products, integrity and reliability of the data
generated.

To control and regulate these processes in our own drug development activities, we implemented an integrated
quality management system that complies with the applicable principles of Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP),
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Good Clinical Practice (GCP), Good Laboratory Practice (GLP) and Good Distribution Praxis (GDP) to ensure
that all development activities follow national and international laws, rules and guidelines. Our independent
quality assurance department prepares an annual risk-based audit plan enabling an objective auditing of contract
research organizations, investigational sites, suppliers and contract manufacturers selected for clinical studies as
well as our own departments involved in drug development activities. The Head of Quality Assurance reports to
and coordinates activities with the Chief Executive Officer to meet the stringent quality standards, ensure product
quality and data integrity as well as the safety of volunteers and patients in clinical trials.

We hold a manufacturing license for the Qualified Person’s certification of investigational medicinal products, as

well as a certificate from the German authorities of Upper Bavaria confirming the Company’s compliance with
Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) standards and guidelines.
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FIG. 14: QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AT MORPHOSYS
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Proprietary technology and the drug candidates derived therefrom are our most valuable assets. Therefore, it is
critical to our success that these assets are protected by appropriate measures such as patents and patent filings.
Only through these means can we ensure that these assets are exclusively utilized. It is also the reason our
Intellectual Property (IP) Department seeks out the best strategy to protect our products and technologies. The
rights of third parties are also actively monitored and respected.

Our core technologies, which include the Ylanthia antibody library and the Slonomics technology amongst
others, form our basis for success. Each of these technologies is protected by a number of patent families.
Meanwhile, most of these patents have been granted in all of the key regions, including the markets of Europe,
the United States and Asia.

The same is true for our development programs. In addition to the patents that protect the drug candidates
themselves, other patent applications were filed that cover other aspects of the programs. The relevant patents for
our development candidates MOR103/GSK3196165 (out-licensed to GSK) and MOR202 (out-licensed to [-Mab
for Greater China) are expected to expire not before 2031 (including the predicted patent term extensions and
supplementary protection certificates). The MOR208 program is also protected by various patents. The key
patents are scheduled to expire in 2029 (U.S.) and 2027 (Europe), not taking into account the additional
protection of up to five years which is available via supplementary protection certificates or patent term
extensions. Likewise, the key patent for MOR106 (out-licensed together with Galapagos to Novartis) expires in
2037, not taking into account any potential extensions. For all development programs regulatory exclusivities are
available as well.

The programs developed in cooperation with or for partners are also fully secured by patent protection. Our
patent department works closely with the relevant partners. The patents covering these drug development
programs have durations that significantly exceed those of the underlying technology patents. In addition, we
monitor the activities of our competitors and initiate any necessary actions.

For IP developments in the reporting year please see section “Patents” under “Research and Development and
Business Performance.”

HUMAN RESOURCES

We follow a progressive human resources policy for the long-term retention of professionally and personally
suitable employees from a variety of fields. In an industry such as ours, where success largely depends on the
creativity and commitment of staff, factors such as employee retention and employee satisfaction are crucial for
success.

Employees have access to a broad range of in-house and external training programs, advanced education,
specialized continuing education and development programs. Employees also can visit or present at industry
conferences. We promote not only ongoing professional education but also the personal development of our
employees and in some cases even offer support through customized coaching.

We encourage all employees with management responsibility to take part in management seminars created
exclusively for us. The training is offered in several modules with themes that build upon one another. The goal
is not only to provide theoretical knowledge but also to prepare participants for the special demands placed on
our executives.

We actively promoted the professional career paths of specialists and experts once again during the reporting
year. The intended goal of this type of career promotion, which is also available to employees without personnel
responsibilities, is to continue to maintain flat hierarchies and place traditional management and professional
career paths on an equal footing, also in terms of titles and compensation structures.
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We offer in-house vocational training to open up promising career prospects, particularly for young people. In
awarding apprenticeships, we have been very successful in considering students who are equally suitable but do
not have a diploma. On December 31, 2018, we had two trainees in the IT department and six biology laboratory
trainees (December 31, 2017: two IT trainees; six biology laboratory trainees).

Our corporate values — Innovation, Collaboration, Courage and Urgency — are the basis of our company culture.
They determine how we act and interact. As articulated in our credo, transparent communication between
employees is one central aspect of our corporate culture. One example is the employees’ use of our intranet to
obtain target-group-specific information. We also have a general meeting every three weeks, in which the
Management Board presents the latest developments to employees, answers questions and provides an
opportunity for employees to present selected projects. Employees’ questions and feedback can be taken directly
in the meeting or submitted in advance in writing — anonymously if desired.

We maintain a Facebook career page to promote employer branding. The target group is potential applicants who
want to learn more about us. The page presents employee profiles and reports on a variety of activities extending
beyond the typical workday to give an authentic and modern impression of us.

New employees are helped to become familiar with the Group through extensive onboarding activities.
Employees can learn about our processes in one-day orientation seminars with presentations from all operating
departments and by participating in laboratory tours. New executives are offered an additional seminar
concerning their management duties.

Free athletic and relaxation options, such as soccer, volleyball and basketball, as well as autogenic training and
massage for a fee, all work to promote health and socializing among employees of all departments.

Providing feasible concepts for reconciling a professional career with personal life is a strategic success factor for
progressive companies. For many years, we have been offering employees a diverse range of options, such as
flexible working hours and special part-time employment arrangements. Modern IT equipment also allows
employees to work during business trips or from their home office without interruption. We make it easier for
employees with families to reenter the workforce and combine work and family life. We cooperate with an
external provider offering employees additional services related to care and nursing.

We make every effort to protect employees from workplace hazards and maintain their health through
preventative measures. The extremely low number of occupational accidents illustrates the success of our strict
monitoring of all occupational protection and safety measures. During the reporting year, there were two
reportable occupational accidents. We try to maintain the low number of accidents and the highest level of
employee safety and well-being through the help of policies and training from the Department of Health and
Occupational Safety and by offering routine medical examinations.

A detailed overview of the Group’s headcount development can be found in the section “Operations and
Business Environment.”

f) RISK AND OPPORTUNITY REPORT

We operate in an industry characterized by constant change and innovation. The challenges and opportunities in
the healthcare sector are influenced by a wide variety of factors. Global demographic changes, medical advances
and the desire to increase quality of life provide excellent growth opportunities for the pharmaceutical and
biotechnology industries; however, companies must also grapple with growing regulatory requirements in the
field of drug development as well as cost pressure on healthcare systems.

We undertake great efforts to identify new opportunities and to leverage our business success to generate a
lasting increase in enterprise value. Entrepreneurial success, however, is not achievable without conscious risk-
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taking. Through our worldwide operations, we are confronted with a number of risks that could affect our
business. Our risk management system identifies these risks, evaluates them and takes suitable action to avert
risk and reach our corporate objectives. A periodic strategy review ensures that there is a balance between risk
and opportunity. We only assume risk when there is an opportunity to increase our enterprise value.

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The risk management system is an essential element of our corporate governance and ensures we adhere to good
corporate governance principles and comply with regulatory requirements.

We have a comprehensive system in place to identify, assess, communicate and deal with our risks. The risk
management system identifies risk as early as possible and details possible actions to limit operating losses and
avoid risks that could endanger the company. All actions to minimize risk are assigned to risk officers, who are
also members of our Senior Management Group.

All of our material risks in the various business segments are assessed using a systematic risk assessment that is
carried out twice a year. Risks are assessed by comparing their quantifiable financial impact with their
probability of occurrence with and without initiating a risk mitigation process. This method is applied over a
12-month assessment period as well as a period of three years to include our risks related to proprietary
development that have longer durations. Additionally, there is long-term strategic risk assessment that spans
more than three years (qualitative assessment). An overview of our current risk assessment activities can be
found in Tables 11 and 12.

Risk managers enter their risks into an IT platform that makes monitoring, analyzing and documenting risks
easier. The risk management system distinguishes risk owners from risk managers. For risks relating to clinical
development, the risk owner is the responsible business team head for the respective clinical program. For
non-clinical risks, the risk owner is the responsible department head. Employees from the respective area of the
risk owner can be risk managers as long as the risks included in the risk management system fall under their area
of responsibility. Risk owners and risk managers are required to update their risks and assessments at half-yearly
intervals. The process for this is coordinated and led from the Corporate Finance & Corporate Development
Department, which is also responsible for monitoring the evaluation process and summarizing the key
information. The information is regularly presented to the Management Board which, in turn, presents the results
to the Supervisory Board twice a year. The entire evaluation process is based on standardized forms for the
evaluations. Risk management and monitoring activities are carried out by the relevant managers. The changes in
the risk profile resulting from these activities are recorded at regular intervals. It is also possible to report
important risks on an ad hoc basis when they occur outside of the regular intervals. A regular audit by external
consultants ensures the ongoing development of the risk management system and that any potential changes in
our risk areas are promptly incorporated. The risk and opportunity management system combines a bottom-up
approach for recognizing both short- and medium-term risks with a top-down approach that systematically
identifies long-term global risks and opportunities. As part of the top-down approach, workshops are held twice
per year with selected members of the Senior Management Group. These workshops assess and discuss the long-
term risks and opportunities in different areas, including those exceeding a period of three years. The evaluation
process is solely qualitative. These risks are listed in Tables 11 and 12.

PRINCIPLES OF RISK AND OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT

We continually encounter both risks and opportunities. These could have a potential material impact on our net
assets and financial position as well as a direct effect on intangible assets, such as our image in the sector or our
trademark.

We define risk as an internal or external event that has an immediate impact and includes an assessment of the
potential financial impact on our targets. There is a direct relationship between opportunity and risk. Seizing
opportunities has a positive influence on our targets, whereas risk emergence has a negative influence.

104



RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE RISK AND OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Our Management Board is responsible for the risk and opportunity management system and ensures that all risks
and opportunities are evaluated, monitored and presented in their entirety. The Corporate Finance & Corporate
Development Department coordinates the risk management process and reports regularly to the Management
Board. The Supervisory Board has appointed the Audit Committee to monitor the effectiveness of our risk
management system. The Audit Committee periodically reports its findings to the entire Supervisory Board,
which is also directly informed by the Management Board twice a year.
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FIG. 15: RISK AND OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AT MORPHOSYS
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ACCOUNTING-RELATED INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

We employ extensive internal controls, Group-wide reporting guidelines as well as other measures, such as
employee training and ongoing professional education with the goal of maintaining accurate bookkeeping and
accounting and ensuring reliable financial reporting in the consolidated financial statements and group
management report. This essential component of Group accounting consists of preventative, monitoring and
detection measures intended to ensure security and control in accounting and operating functions. Detailed
information about the internal control system for financial reporting can be found in the Corporate Governance
Report.

RISKS ACCORDING TO RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
RISK CATEGORIES

As part of its risk assessment, we assign risks to the six categories described below. The assessment of the
relevance of the risks is not distinguished according to categories but according to impact and probability of
occurrence. Therefore, Tables 11 and 12, which list our biggest risks, do not necessarily include risks from all six
categories.

FINANCIAL RISK

Our financial risk management seeks to limit financial risk and reconciles this risk with the requirements of our
business.

Financial risk can arise in relation to licensing agreements, for example when projects (products or technologies)
do not materialize, are delayed or are out-licensed under different terms and conditions than originally planned.
Risk also arises when revenues do not reach their projected level or when costs are higher than planned due to
greater resource requirements. Detailed project preparations, such as those made through in-depth exchanges
with internal and external partners and consultants, ensure the optimal starting point early in the process and are
important for minimizing risk. Our financial risk related to proprietary programs was reduced in July 2018 when
we, together with Galapagos NV, entered into a worldwide, exclusive agreement with Novartis Pharma AG
covering the development and commercialization of our joint program MOR106. The financial risk relating to
the fully proprietary program MOR208 remains entirely with us. We retain some risk with respect to the clinical
development of programs introduced into partnerships; for example MOR210. In 2018 we partnered this program
with I-Mab for China, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Macao and South Korea, but retain responsibility for the rest of the
world ourselves. The early termination of development partnerships may force us to bear future development
costs alone and have a major impact on our statement of profit or loss and financial planning. Through our
successful Nasdaq IPO in April 2018, we strengthened our financial position.

Continuing economic difficulties in Europe indicate that potential bank insolvencies still pose a financial risk.
For this reason, we continue to invest only in funds and bank instruments deemed safe — to the extent this is
possible and can be estimated — and that have a high rating and/or are secured by a strong partner. We limit our
dependence on individual financial institutions by diversifying and/or investing in lower risk money market
funds. However, a strategy that eliminates all risks of bank insolvency would be too costly and impractical. For
example, German government bonds are a very secure form of investment but currently trade with negative
interest rates. A further risk is the receipt of adequate interest on financial investments, particularly in light of
today’s negative interest rates. It is currently very difficult for us to invest within the scope of our policies and
still avoid negative interest rates. We invest when possible in instruments that yield positive interest rates.
However, there is no guarantee that positive, safe, interest-bearing investments will always be available.

In the Partnered Discovery segment, there is a financial risk associated with royalties on Tremfya® product sales.
Revenues generated by our partner Janssen from the drug, which was approved in 2017, are difficult to predict

and may lead to deviations from the budgeted revenues.
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We plan to continue to invest a significant portion of our funds in the development of our product candidates.
This includes identifying target molecules and drug candidates, conducting preclinical and clinical studies,
producing clinical material, supporting partners and co-developing programs. Current financial resources and
expected revenues are expected to be sufficient to meet our current and short-term capital needs. This does not
guarantee, however, that sufficient funds will be available over the long term at all times.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk includes risks related to the discovery and development of proprietary drug candidates.

The termination of a clinical trial prior to out-licensing to partners — which does not necessarily imply the failure
of an entire program — can occur when the trial does not produce the expected results, shows unexpected adverse
side effects or the data are compiled incorrectly. Clinical trial design and drafts of development plans are always
completed with the utmost care. This gives the trials the best opportunity to show relevant data in clinical testing
and convince regulatory agencies and potential partners of the drug candidate’s potential. External experts also
contribute to our existing internal know-how. Special steering committees and panels are formed to monitor the
progress of clinical programs.

Any changes with respect to clinical trials such as the trial’s design, the speed at which patients can be recruited
or upcoming alternative therapies may lead to a delay in development and, as a result, have a negative impact on
the trial’s economic feasibility and potential.

There is also a risk associated with proprietary programs if partnerships fail or are delayed.

STRATEGIC RISK

Access to sufficient financing options also poses a strategic risk for us. Following our decision to develop our
proprietary portfolio in-house, the financing of research and development is now a key focus. Risks in this
respect can arise from a lack of access to capital. We established an in-depth budget process to mitigate these
risks. We also employ various departments and external consultants to ensure the smooth execution of capital
market transactions.

A further strategic risk is the danger that a development program introduced into a partnership may fail.
Partnerships can be terminated prematurely, forcing us to search for new development partners or bear the
substantial cost of further development alone. This may result in a delay or even the termination of the
development of individual candidates and could lead to additional costs and a potential long-term loss of
revenues for us due to delayed market entry.

Another strategic risk is that preliminary data from clinical trials may lead to the trial’s termination or a change
in the trial’s design.

With respect to the development and potential approval of MOR208, we are currently preparing a submission of
a regulatory filing with the FDA based on the single-arm L-MIND trial. There may be a strategic risk that the
regulatory authorities do not accept a filing and/or grant approval based on single-arm data for MOR208 plus
lenalidomide.

EXTERNAL RISKS

We face external risks with respect to intellectual property, among others. The patent protection of our
proprietary technologies and compounds is especially important. To minimize risks in this area, we keep a
vigilant eye on published patents and patent applications and analyze the corresponding results. We also develop
strategies to ensure that the patents or patent applications of others do not limit our ability to pursue our own
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activities. Through the years, we have seen increasing success with this strategy and have created ample leeway
for our proprietary technology platforms and products for many years to come. Risks can also arise through the
enforcement of our intellectual property rights vis-a -vis third parties. The respective proceedings can be costly
and mobilize significant resources. There is also the risk that a third party files a counter-claim against us.
External risks may also arise as a result of changes in the legal framework. This risk is minimized through
continued training of the relevant staff and discussions with external experts. It is also conceivable that
competitors might challenge our patents or infringe on our patents or patent families, which in turn could lead us
to take legal action against our competitors. Such procedures, particularly when they take place in the U.S., are
costly and represent a significant financial risk.

As an internationally operating biotechnology company with numerous partnerships and an in-house research and
development department for developing drug candidates, we are subject to a number of regulatory and legal
risks. These risks include those related to patent, competition, tax and antitrust law, potential liability claims
from existing partnerships and environmental protection. The Regulatory Affairs department is also affected by
this risk in terms of the feedback it receives from regulators on study design. Future legal proceedings are
conceivable and cannot be anticipated. Therefore, we cannot rule out that we may incur expenses for legal or
regulatory judgments or settlements that are not or cannot be partially or fully covered by insurance and may
have a significant impact on our business and results.

ORGANIZATIONAL RISK

Organizational risks arise, for example, with respect to setting up commercial structures and the related costs. For
us, this means that processes and procedures need to be adapted accordingly. In September 2017, we established
a “Global Commercial” department, which works with external consultants to set up commercial structures in the
headquarters and supports other functions to get ready for commercialization. In July 2018, we opened a 100%
affiliate in the U.S., MorphoSys US Inc., which will be the first commercial operation. Highly experienced
employees are being hired to ensure thorough preparation for launch.

Risk also arises from missing or delayed information within the organization on patent issues.

COMPLIANCE RISK

Compliance risks can arise when quality standards are not met, or business processes are not conducted properly
from a legal standpoint. To counter these risks, we are committed to having our business operations meet the
highest quality standards as set out in the Sustainability Report. Carrying out a compliance risk analysis is a
central tool of the Compliance Management System.

Specific risks can arise, for example, when the internal quality management system does not meet the legal
requirements or when there is no internal system for detecting quality problems. If the internal controls are not
able to detect violations of Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP), Good Clinical Practice (GCP), Good
Laboratory Practice (GLP) or Good Distribution Praxis (GDP) then this also would represent a compliance risk.
To minimize risk, the internal quality management system is also regularly audited by external experts and
subjected to recurring audits by an internal, independent quality assurance department.

Inadequate or late financial communication can lead to fines or even lawsuits. Annual General Meetings
conducted incorrectly may lead to legal disputes with shareholders resulting in significant costs from attempts to
prevent either a challenge to or repeat of the Annual General Meeting. Pending decisions for corporate actions,
such as capital increases, could also be compromised. To minimize these risks, the preparation and execution of
the Annual General Meeting and all related documents and processes are carefully reviewed and monitored by
the relevant internal departments, as well as by external lawyers and auditors when it comes to the annual
financial statements.

None of the Top 10 Risks listed in Tables 11 and 12 belonged to this risk category in the reporting period.
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THE MANAGEMENT BOARD’S EVALUATION OF THE OVERALL RISK SITUATION IN OUR
GROUP

Our Management Board considers the overall risk to be manageable and trusts in the effectiveness of the risk
management system in relation to changes in the environment and the needs of the ongoing business. It is the
Management Board’s view that our continued existence is not jeopardized. This assessment applies to us as a
whole as well as to each Group company. This conclusion is based on several factors that are summarized below:

*  We have an exceptionally high equity ratio.

e The Management Board firmly believes that we are well positioned to cope with any adverse events that
may occur.

*  We control a comprehensive portfolio of preclinical and clinical programs in partnerships with a number of
large pharmaceutical companies and have a strong foundation of technologies for expanding our proprietary
portfolio.

Despite these factors, it is impossible to rule out, control or influence risk in its entirety.

OPPORTUNITIES

Cutting-edge antibody technologies, excellent know-how and a broad portfolio of validated clinical programs
have made us one of the world’s leading biotechnology companies in the field of therapeutic antibodies. This
therapeutic class is now one of the most successful in the industry, and there is an impressive number of
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies in the field of antibodies that could potentially become customers
or partners for our products and technologies. Based on this fact and our extensive, long-term technological and
product development expertise, we have identified a number of future growth opportunities.

Our technologies for developing and optimizing therapeutic antibody candidates have distinct advantages that
can lead to higher success rates and shorter development times in the drug development process. The transfer and
application of our core capabilities — even those outside of the field of antibodies — opens up new opportunities
for us because many classes of compounds have similar molecular structures.

OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The opportunity management system is an important component of our corporate management and is used to
identify opportunities as early as possible and generate added value for us.

Opportunity management is based on the following pillars:

e aroutine discussion forum involving the Management Board and selected members of the Senior
Management Group;

e our business development activities;

e atechnology scouting team;

e acompound scouting team; and

* anin-house suggestion scheme, with appropriate incentive systems, for new scientific ideas.
Committees discuss specific opportunities and decide what action should be taken to exploit these opportunities.
The meetings and their outcomes are recorded in detail, and any subsequent action is reviewed and monitored.
Our Business Development Team takes part in numerous conferences and in the process identifies different

opportunities that can enhance our growth. These opportunities are presented and considered by the committee
by means of an evaluation process. The technology scouting team searches specifically for innovative
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technologies that can generate synergies with our existing technology platforms and could be used to source new
therapeutic molecules. The compound scouting team searches specifically for compounds that can add to our
proprietary pipeline or future sales force. These outcomes are also discussed and evaluated in interdepartmental
committees. A proven process for evaluating opportunities gives us a qualitative and replicable evaluation.

Our key opportunities are described in Table 13 (qualitative evaluation).

GENERAL STATEMENT ON OPPORTUNITIES

Increased life expectancy in industrialized countries and rising incomes and living standards in emerging
countries are expected to drive the demand for more innovative treatment options and advanced technologies.
Scientific and medical progress has led to a better understanding of the biological process of disease and paves
the way for new therapeutic approaches. Innovative therapies, such as fully human antibodies, have reached
market maturity in recent years and have led to the development of commercially successful medical products.
Therapeutic compounds based on proteins — also referred to as “biologics™ — are less subject to generic
competition than chemically produced molecules because the production of biological compounds is far more
complex. The sharp rise in both the demand for antibodies and the interest in this class of drug candidates can be
seen by the acquisitions and significant licensing agreements made over the past two to three years.

MARKET OPPORTUNITIES

We believe our antibody platforms HuCAL, Ylanthia, Slonomics, the HTH peptide technology and the
in-licensed lanthipeptide technology can all be used to develop products addressing significant unmet medical
needs.

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES - PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT

It is reasonable to assume that the pharmaceutical industry will continue or even increase its in-licensing of drugs
to refill its pipelines and replace key products and blockbusters that have lost patent protection. Our most
advanced compounds MOR103/GSK3196165, MOR 106, MOR202 and MOR208 place us in an excellent
position to capitalize on the needs of pharmaceutical companies. Our collaborations with GSK (for
MOR103/GSK3196165), with I-Mab (MOR202 and MOR210) and with Novartis (MOR106) exemplify this
point.

We are continuously enhancing our proprietary portfolio and will continue to advance it by adding clinical trials
with our key drug candidates in new disease areas and by adding additional programs. In this way, we may take

advantage of existing and future opportunities for co-development or partnerships. We are also looking for more
opportunities to in-license promising drug candidates.

The drug candidate MOR208 may provide us with our first opportunity to independently market a drug.

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES - PARTNERED DEVELOPMENT

By developing drugs with a number of partners, we have been able to spread the risk that is inevitably linked
with drug development. With 103 individual therapeutic antibodies currently in partnered development programs,
it is becoming more likely that we will have an opportunity to participate financially in marketed drugs. Since the
first regulatory approval of Tremfya® by the U.S. FDA in mid-2017, our licensee Janssen reported in October
that new Tremfya® (guselkumab) 3-year data show stably maintained rates of skin clearance in patients with
moderate to severe plaque psoriasis. In December, Janssen reported that results from the ECLIPSE study
demonstrated that Tremfya® was superior to Cosentyx® (secukinumab) in treating adults with moderate to severe
plaque psoriasis for the primary endpoint of a PASI 90 response at week 48.
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Tremfya® has received further regulatory approval in a number of territories worldwide, including Canada, the
European Union, Brazil, Japan, Australia and South Korea to treat patients suffering from moderate-to-severe
plaque psoriasis and in Japan additionally for the treatment of psoriatic arthritis, pustular psoriasis and
erythrodermic psoriasis. Moreover, Tremfya® is being investigated in clinical studies including two phase 3 trials
in psoriatic arthritis and a phase 2/3 clinical study program in Crohn’s disease. Janssen also initiated a phase 2
study (NOVA) to evaluate guselkumab in hidradenitis suppurativa.

In June 2018, we announced new phase 3 clinical trials by our partner Roche with gantenerumab in early
Alzheimer’s disease.

TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT

We continue to invest in our existing and new technologies to defend our technological leadership. One example
is our new antibody platform Ylanthia that enjoys much longer patent protection than its predecessor HuCAL.

This type of technological advance can help us to increase not only the speed but also the success rate of our
partnered and proprietary drug development programs. New technology modules that enable the production of
antibodies against novel classes of target molecules can also provide access to new disease areas in which
antibody-based treatments are underrepresented.

In September 2018, we announced an expansion of the existing strategic dermatology alliance with LEO Pharma
A/S. The objective of the alliance is to identify novel, peptide-derived therapeutics for unmet medical needs.
Under the terms of the agreement, LEO Pharma will select targets against which MorphoSys will identify lead
molecules using its proprietary peptide technology platform. MorphoSys has an exclusive option to secure
worldwide rights to any drugs arising from the collaboration in the field of oncology.

Technology development is carried out by a team of scientists whose focus is the further development of our
technologies. We not only develop technology internally but also use external resources to enhance our own
activities. A good example of this is our acquisition of Lanthio Pharma, a Dutch company developing
lanthipeptides.

ACQUISITION OPPORTUNITIES

In the past, we have proven our ability to acquire compounds and technologies that accelerate our growth.
Potential acquisition candidates are also systematically presented, discussed and evaluated during the routine
meetings described above between the Management Board and selected members of the Senior Management
Group. After these meetings, promising candidates are reviewed in terms of their strategic synergies and
evaluated by internal specialist committees. Protocols are completed on all candidates and evaluations are
systematically archived for follow-up and monitoring. A proprietary database helps administer this information
and keep it available.

FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITIES

Exchange rate and interest rate developments can positively or negatively affect our financial results. Interest rate
and financial market developments are continuously monitored to promptly identify and take advantage of
opportunities.
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TAB. 11: SUMMARY OF OUR KEY SHORT- AND MEDIUM-TERM RISKS

Risk category 3-year assessment
Proprietary Development segment
Risks related to building a marketing structure Financial L L Moderate
Failure of one or more proprietary clinical programs Financial, strategic,
operational { L Moderate
Risks related to regulatory approval process Financial, strategic { L Moderate
Increase in development costs Strategic { L Moderate
Outside of the Proprietary Development segment
Failure to reach revenue targets in Partnered Discovery programs Financial L 1 Moderate
Risk category 1-year assessment
Proprietary Development segment
Failure of one or more proprietary clinical programs Operational (L1 High
Risks related to regulatory approval process Strategic { L Moderate
Delay in the development of one or more proprietary clinical Financial, operational,
programs and/or higher development costs organizational { L] Moderate
Risks related to technology access Strategic o Low
Patent-related risks External o Low
Outside of the Proprietary Development segment
Failure to reach revenue targets in Partnered Discovery programs Financial (1) Moderate
Risks from bank insolvencies Financial ° Low
Legend
° Low risk: low probability of occurrence, low impact
L L] Moderate risk: moderate probability of occurrence, moderate impact
®00  High risk: moderate probability of occurrence, moderate to strong impact
0000 (Catastrophic risk: high probability of occurrence, severe impact
TAB. 12: SUMMARY OF OUR KEY LONG-TERM RISKS
Order of
Segment Risk importance !
Proprietary Development Failure to get approval or significant delay of approval of
lead proprietary program 1
Proprietary Development Failure to build a commercial structure in the U.S. 2
Proprietary Development Negative study outcome of lead proprietary program 3
Partnered Discovery Discontinuation, delay or less revenue than expected from
late-stage partnered compounds 4
Proprietary Development Termination of earlier stage proprietary programs 5
1 Declining importance of risk from 1 to 5, whereby 1 represents the most important risk.
TAB. 13: SUMMARY OF OUR KEY OPPORTUNITIES
Order of
Segment Opportunity importance !
Proprietary Development Potential FDA approval for MOR208 based on L-MIND
study in r/r DLBCL and successful commercialization of
the drug 1
Proprietary Development Potential positive outcome in CD38 patent infringement
lawsuit 2 2
Proprietary Development MOR202 development in autoimmune disease 3
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I Declining importance of opportunity from 1 to 3, whereby 1 represents the greatest opportunity.

2 The assessment of opportunities is based on the evaluation of the opportunity management system in the
reporting year. Due to the settlement in the patent lawsuit with Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S as of
January 31, 2019, this is no longer an opportunity for MorphoSys and therefore it will not be evaluated in
the opportunity management system any more.

g) Statement on Corporate Governance, Group Statement on Corporate Governance and Corporate
Governance Report

The Statement on Corporate Governance, the Group Statement on Corporate Governance and the Corporate
Governance Report are available on our website under Media and Investors — Corporate Governance.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER SECTION 289F HGB AND GROUP
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER SECTION 315D HGB FOR THE 2018
FINANCIAL YEAR

In the Statement on Corporate Governance under Section 289f HGB and the Group Statement on Corporate
Governance under Section 315d HGB, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board provide information
on the main elements of our corporate governance. In addition to the annual Declaration of Conformity in
accordance with Section 161 of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the Statement on Corporate Governance and
the Group Statement on Corporate Governance also include relevant information on corporate governance
practices and other aspects of corporate governance, including a description of the working practices of the
Management Board and Supervisory Board.

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY WITH THE GERMAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
(THE “CODE”) OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD OF MORPHOSYS
AG

The Management Board and Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG declare the following under Section 161 of
the German Stock Corporation Act:

1. Since the last Declaration of Conformity on December 1, 2017, MorphoSys has complied with the
recommendations of the “Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code” in the
version from February 7, 2017 with the following exception:

There is no cap on the overall or individual variable remuneration components of Management Board
members’ remuneration (see Item 4.2.3 (2) sentence 6 of the Code). Based on the Supervisory Board’s
existing limitations for the Management Board’s variable remuneration components and their annual
allocation, the Supervisory Board does not believe that an additional cap is required.

2. MorphoSys will continue to comply with the recommendations of the “Government Commission on the
German Corporate Governance Code” in the version dated February 7, 2017 with the exception described
under Item 1.

Planegg, November 30, 2018

MorphoSys AG

On behalf of the Management Board: On behalf of the Supervisory Board:
Dr. Simon Moroney Dr. Marc Cluzel

Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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RELEVANT INFORMATION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We ensure compliance with laws and rules of conduct through the Group-wide enforcement of the following
documents: the Code of Conduct, the Compliance Management Handbook and additional internal policies and
guidelines.

Our Code of Conduct sets out the fundamental principles and key policies and practices for business behavior.
The Code is a valuable tool for employees and executives, particularly in business, legal and ethical conflict
situations. It reinforces our principles of transparent and sound management and fosters trust from the public,
business partners, employees and financial markets, and the compliance with the Code of Conduct is carefully
monitored. The Group-wide application of the Code is overseen by the Compliance Committee, and the Code
itself is regularly reviewed and updated. The Code of Conduct is being distributed to each new employee and can
be downloaded from our website under Media and Investors — Corporate Governance.

The Compliance Handbook describes our Compliance Management System (CMS) and is intended to ensure
compliance with all legal regulations as well as high ethical standards that apply to both the management and all
employees. The Management Board has overall responsibility for the Compliance Management System and is
required to report regularly to the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board. In carrying out its compliance
responsibility, the Management Board has assigned the relevant tasks to various functions at MorphoSys.

The Compliance Officer ensures the exchange of information between the internal compliance-relevant
functions. The Compliance Officer monitors our existing CMS and upgrades it based on decisions taken by the
Management Board and Compliance Committee. The Compliance Officer is the first point of contact for each
employee for all compliance-related issues.

The Compliance Committee includes representatives from different functions and meets quarterly. The
Compliance Committee supports the Compliance Officer in the implementation and monitoring of the CMS. The
Compliance Committee is particularly responsible for the identification and discussion of all compliance-relevant
issues and thus makes it possible for the Compliance Officer as well as the other members of the Compliance
Committee to periodically verify our compliance status and, if necessary, update the CMS.

More information on our Compliance Management System can be found in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPOSITION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD
MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Management Board of the Company consists of a Chief Executive Officer and three other members. A
schedule of responsibilities currently defines the different areas of responsibility as follows:

e Dr. Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer: Strategy and Planning, Compliance & Quality Assurance,
Internal Audit, Human Resources, Business Development & Portfolio Management, Legal, Commercial
Planning, the coordination of individual areas of the Management Board, representation of the Management
Board vis-a-vis the Supervisory Board

e Jens Holstein, Chief Financial Officer: Accounting & Tax, Controlling, Corporate Finance & Corporate
Development, IT, Technical Operations, Central Purchasing & Logistics, Corporate Communications &
Investor Relations, Environmental Social Governance (ESG)

e Dr. Markus Enzelberger, Chief Scientific Officer: Discovery Alliances & Technologies, CMC & Protein
Sciences, Alliance Management, Supply Chain, Intellectual Property, Lanthio Pharma

e Dr. Malte Peters, Chief Development Officer: Preclinical Research, Project Management, Clinical
Development, Clinical Operations, Drug Safety & Pharmacovigilance, Regulatory Affairs
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

As of December 31, 2018, our Supervisory Board consisted of six members who oversee and advise the
Management Board. The current Supervisory Board consists of professionally qualified members who represent
our shareholders. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board (Dr. Gerald Méller until May 17, 2018 and Dr. Marc
Cluzel since May 17, 2018), coordinates the Board’s activities, chairs the Supervisory Board meetings and
represents the interests of the Supervisory Board externally. All Supervisory Board members are independent, as
defined in the German Corporate Governance Code and the Nasdaq Listing Rules, and have many years of
experience in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board is not a
former member of our Management Board. The members of the Supervisory Board and its committees are listed
in the table below.

TAB. 14: COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD UNTIL TERMINATION OF THE 2018
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Remuneration and Science and

Initial Nomination Technology

Name Position Appointment End of Term Audit Committee Committee Committee
Dr. Gerald Mdller ... .. Chairman 1999 2018 M
Dr. Frank Morich . ... .. Deputy Chairman 2015 2020 )
Krisja Vermeylen . . . . .. Member 2017 2019 o [
Klaus Kithn & ... .. ... Member 2015 2020 I?l
Dr. Marc Cluzel . ... ... Member 2012 2018 ) N
Wendy Johnson . ... ... Member 2015 2020 ) )

& Independent financial expert oy Chairperson & M Member

TAB. 15: COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD SINCE TERMINATION OF THE 2018
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Remuneration and Science and

Initial Nomination Technology

Name Position Appointment End of Term Audit Committee Committee Committee
Dr. Marc Cluzel . ...... Chairman 2012 2021 e
Dr. Frank Morich . ... .. Deputy Chairman 2015 2020 N (]
Krisja Vermeylen . . . . .. Member 2017 2019 o o
Michael Brosnan & . ... Member 2018 2020 M
Dr. George .

Golumbeski ........ Member 2018 2020 [V}
Wendy Johnson . ... ... Member 2015 2020 ) )

& Independent financial expert & Chairperson & 8 Member

WORKING PRACTICES OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

To ensure good corporate governance, a guiding principle of the cooperation between our Management Board
and Supervisory Board is the open, comprehensive and regular communication of information. The dual board
system prescribed by the German Stock Corporation Act clearly differentiates between a company’s management
and supervision. The responsibility of both boards is clearly stipulated by law and by the boards’ bylaws and
Articles of Association. The boards work closely together to make decisions and take actions for our benefit.
Their stated objective is to sustainably increase our value.

Management Board members each have their own area of responsibility as defined in the schedule of
responsibilities. They regularly report to their Management Board colleagues, their cooperation being governed
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by the bylaws. The Supervisory Board ratifies both the schedule of responsibilities and the bylaws. Management
Board meetings are typically held weekly and are chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. During these meetings,
resolutions are passed concerning dealings and transactions that, under the bylaws, require the approval of the
entire Management Board. At least half of the Management Board’s members must be present to pass a
resolution. Management Board resolutions are passed by a simple majority and, in the event of a tied vote, the
Chief Executive Officer’s vote decides. For material events, each Management Board or Supervisory Board
member can call an extraordinary meeting of the entire Management Board. Management Board resolutions can
also be passed outside of meetings by an agreement made orally, by telephone or in writing (also by e-mail).
Minutes are taken of each meeting of the full Management Board, are submitted for approval to the full
Management Board and for signature by the Chief Executive Officer at the following meeting.

In addition to the regularly scheduled meetings, Management Board strategy workshops are also held for
developing and prioritizing the Group-wide strategic objectives.

The Management Board promptly and comprehensively informs the Supervisory Board in writing and at
Supervisory Board meetings about planning, business development, the Group’s position, risk management and
other compliance issues. Extraordinary meetings of the Supervisory Board are also called for material events.
The Management Board involves the Supervisory Board in the strategy, planning and all fundamental Company
issues. In addition to regular Supervisory Board meetings, a strategy meeting takes place between the
Management Board and Supervisory Board once annually to discuss our strategic direction. The Management
Board’s bylaws specify that material business transactions require the approval of the Supervisory Board.
Detailed information on the cooperation of the Management Board and Supervisory Board and important items
of discussion during the 2018 financial year can be found in the Report of the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board holds a minimum of two meetings per calendar half-year and at least four meetings per
full calendar year. The Supervisory Board has supplemented the Articles of Association with bylaws that apply to
its duties. In accordance with these bylaws, the Chairperson of the Supervisory Board coordinates the activities
of the Supervisory Board, chairs the Supervisory Board meetings and represents the interests of the Supervisory
Board externally. The Supervisory Board typically passes its resolutions in meetings, but resolutions may also be
passed outside of meetings in writing (also by e-mail), by telephone or video conference.

The Supervisory Board has a quorum when at least two-thirds of its members (including either the Chairperson
or Deputy Chairperson of the Supervisory Board) take part in the vote. Resolutions of the Supervisory Board are
generally passed with a simple majority unless the law prescribes otherwise. In the event of a tied vote, the vote
of the Chairperson of the Supervisory Board is decisive.

Minutes are completed for Supervisory Board meetings and resolutions passed outside of meetings. A copy of the
Supervisory Board’s minutes is made available to all Supervisory Board members. The Supervisory Board
conducts an efficiency evaluation regularly in accordance with the recommendation in Item 5.6 of the Code.

COMPOSITION AND WORKING PRACTICES OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND
SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

The Management Board has not formed any committees.
The Supervisory Board has three committees: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Nomination

Committee and the Science and Technology Committee. The members of the three committees formed by the
Supervisory Board are professionally qualified.
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TAB. 16: PARTICIPATION OF SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS
SUPERVISORY BOARD MEETINGS

by phone by phone

01/16  03/09 05/16 05/17 06/24  07/26 07/27 10/26 12/12
Name 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
Dr. Gerald Moller D .......... ... . i X X X
Dr.MarcCluzel ........... .. ... ... oo, X X X X X X X X X
Wendy Johnson . ........ ... ... .. .. .. ... X X X X X X X X X
Klaus Kithn D ... ... X X X
Dr. Frank Morich .. ........ .. ... ... .. ... ... X X X X X X X X X
Krisja Vermeylen .............. .. ... ... ...... X X X X X X X X X
Dr. George Golumbeski? ....................... X X X X X X
Michael Brosnan? . ........... ... .. .. ... ...... X X X X X
! Supervisory Board member until termination of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
2 Supervisory Board member since termination of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

by phone

Name 03/08/2018  04/26/2018  07/25/2018  10/26/2018  12/12/2018
Wendy Johnson ........... .. .. .. . ... X X X X X
Klaus Kithn D .. ... oo X X
Krisja Vermeylen .. .......... ... ... . ... X X X X X
Michael Brosnnan? ............. ... ... ... ..... X X X
I Supervisory Board member until termination of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
2 Supervisory Board member since termination of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
MEETINGS OF THE REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

by phone by phone by phone by phone by phone
Name 01/16/2018  03/02/2018  05/07/2018 06/08/2018  10/10/2018
Dr. Gerald Moller D . ............. . oo oL X X X
Dr.MarcCluzel .......... ... .. ... ... ... ..... X X X X X
Krisja Vermeylen .......... .. ... ... ... ....... X X X X X
Frank Morich ........ ... .. .. .. .. ... ..., X X
1 Supervisory Board member until termination of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
MEETINGS OF THE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE
Name 03/08/2018  05/16/2018 06/18 & 19/2018  07/25/2018  10/26/2018  12/12/2018
Dr. Marc Cluzel .................. X X
Wendy Johnson .................. X X X X X
Dr. Frank Morich ................. X X X X X
Dr. George Golumbeski D .......... X by phone X X

I Supervisory Board member since termination of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main task of the Audit Committee is to support the Supervisory Board in fulfilling its supervisory duties with
respect to the accuracy of the annual and consolidated financial statements, the activities of the auditor and
internal control functions, such as risk management, compliance and internal auditing. The Audit Committee
submits a recommendation to the Supervisory Board for the election at the Annual General Meeting of an
independent auditor. The members of the Audit Committee until May 17, 2018 were Klaus Kiihn (Chairperson),
Wendy Johnson and Krisja Vermeylen. The members of the Audit Committee since May 17, 2018 are Michael
Brosnan (Chairperson), Wendy Johnson and Krisja Vermeylen. Michael Brosnan currently fulfills the
prerequisite of an independent financial expert.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is responsible for preparing and reviewing the Management
Board’s compensation system annually before its final approval. When necessary, the Committee searches for
suitable candidates to appoint to the Management Board and Supervisory Board and submits appointment
proposals to the Supervisory Board. The Committee also prepares the contracts made with Management Board
members. The members of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee until May 17, 2018 were Dr. Gerald
Moller (Chairperson), Dr. Marc Cluzel and Krisja Vermeylen. The members of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee since May 17, 2018 are Krisja Vermeylen (Chairperson), Dr. Marc Cluzel and Frank
Morich.

SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

The Science and Technology Committee advises the Supervisory Board on matters concerning proprietary drug
and technology development and prepares the relevant Supervisory Board resolutions. The members of the
Science and Technology Committee until May 17, 2018 were Dr. Marc Cluzel (Chairperson), Dr. Frank Morich
and Wendy Johnson. The members of the Science and Technology Committee since May 17, 2018 are

Dr. George Golumbeski (Chairperson), Dr. Frank Morich and Wendy Johnson.

In line with Section 5.4.1. para. 5 sentence 2 of the Corporate Governance Code, the Supervisory Board
members’ biographies are published on our website under Company — Management — Supervisory Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

At MorphoSys, responsible, sustainable and value-oriented corporate governance is a high priority. Good
corporate governance is an essential aspect of our corporate management and forms the framework for the
Group’s management and supervision, which includes the Group’s organization, commercial principles and tools
for its guidance and control.

The German Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) provides a standard for the transparent monitoring and
management of companies that strongly emphasizes shareholder interests. The Code was originally published by
the German Federal Ministry of Justice (Bundesministerium der Justiz) in 2002 and was most recently amended
on February 7, 2017 and published by the German Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) on April 24, 2017. The
Code contains recommendations (Empfehlungen) and suggestions (Anregungen) relating to the management and
supervision of German companies that are listed on a stock exchange. It follows internationally and nationally
recognized standards for good and responsible corporate governance. The purpose of the Code is to make the
German system of corporate governance transparent for investors. The Code includes corporate governance
recommendations and suggestions with respect to shareholders and shareholders’ meetings, the management and
Supervisory Boards, transparency, accounting policies and auditing.

There is no obligation to comply with the recommendations or suggestions of the Code. The German Stock
Corporation Act requires only that the Management Board and Supervisory Board of a German listed company
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issue an annual declaration that either (i) states that the company has complied with the recommendations of the
Code or (ii) lists the recommendations that the company has not complied with and explains its reasons for
deviating from the recommendations of the Code. In addition, a listed company is also required to state in this
annual declaration whether it intends to comply with the recommendations or list the recommendations it does
not plan to comply with in the future. These declarations have to be published permanently on the company’s
website. If the company changes its policy on certain recommendations between such annual declarations, it
must disclose this fact and explain its reasons for deviating from the recommendations. Non-compliance with
suggestions contained in the Code need not be disclosed.

Many of the corporate governance principles contained in the Code have been practiced at MorphoSys for many
years. Our corporate governance is detailed in the Statement on Corporate Governance under Section 289f HGB
and 315d HGB. The statement also contains the annual Declaration of Conformity, relevant information on
corporate governance practices and a description of the Management Board and Supervisory Board’s working
practices. Additional information can be found in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE CAPITAL MARKETS

At MorphoSys, a key principle of corporate communication is to inform institutional investors, private
shareholders, financial analysts, employees and all other stakeholders, simultaneously and fully of the
Company’s situation through regular, transparent and timely communication. Shareholders have immediate
access to the information provided to financial analysts and similar recipients and can obtain this information in
both German and English. The Company is firmly committed to following a fair information policy.

Regular meetings with analysts and investors in the context of road shows and individual meetings play a central
role in investor relations at MorphoSys. Conference calls accompany publication of quarterly results and give
analysts and investors an immediate opportunity to ask questions about the Company’s development. Company
presentations for on-site events, visual and audio recordings of other important events as well as conference call
transcripts are also available on the Company’s website to all interested parties.

The Company’s website www.morphosys.com serves as a central platform for current information on the
Company and its development. Financial reports, analyst meetings and conference presentations, as well as press
releases and ad hoc statements, are also available. The important regularly scheduled publications and events
(annual reports, interim reports, annual general meetings and press and analyst conferences) are published in the
Company’s financial calendar well in advance.

ESTABLISHMENT OF SPECIFIC TARGETS FOR THE COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY
BOARD

The Supervisory Board shall determine concrete objectives regarding its composition and prepare a profile of
skills and expertise for the Supervisory Board such that (i) the Supervisory Board in its entirety has the necessary
knowledge, skills and professional experience to properly perform its duties, (ii) the Company’s international
activities and potential conflicts of interest are taken into consideration, (iii) a sufficient number of independent
Supervisory Board members is ensured, (iv) an age limit and a regular limit on the length of service is specified
for members of the Supervisory Board, and (v) the aspect of diversity is taken into account.
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In view of these factors and in consideration of the Company’s specific circumstances (Section 5.4.1 of the
German Corporate Governance Code), the Supervisory Board first set targets for its composition in July 2015
and reviewed and updated these targets on July 26, 2017. The Supervisory Board has taken these targets into
account when it submitted its proposal for the election of three new members to the Supervisory Board to the
2018 Annual General Meeting, while at the same time aiming at fulfilling the overall profile of reported skills
and expertise of the Supervisory Board. The implementation of these targets is as follows:

APPROPRIATE REPRESENTATION OF WOMEN AND DIVERSITY

Our Supervisory Board has a total of six members, two of whom are women. The Supervisory Board strongly
believes that, at 33.33%, the current proportion of women is appropriate and intends to maintain this proportion
in the future. The Supervisory Board currently fulfills this quota.

The Supervisory Board also believes a quota of at least two non-German members or at least two members with
extensive international experience represents a fair share of diversity given our international orientation. The
Supervisory Board currently meets this quota.

INDEPENDENCE

The Supervisory Board considers it appropriate that at least four of its members are independent (Section 5.4.2 of
the German Corporate Governance Code and the Nasdagq listing rules). Members of the Supervisory Board are
considered independent when they have no personal or business relationship with MorphoSys, its management, a
controlling shareholder or an affiliate that may give rise to a material and more than temporary conflict of
interest. All six current members of the Supervisory Board meet the criteria to be classified as independent.
Therefore, the Supervisory Board currently meets the quota of four independent members.

Significant and more than temporary conflicts of interest should be avoided, especially when it involves work for
major competitors. It should be noted, however, that conflicts of interest in certain cases cannot be excluded. Any
potential conflicts of interest must be disclosed to the Chairperson of the Supervisory Board and remedied
appropriately. There are currently no conflicts of interest.

AGE LIMIT

At the time of their appointment by the Annual General Meeting, Supervisory Board members should not be
older than 75 years. However, the Supervisory Board may decide to make an exception in specific cases. The age
limit of 75 years is currently met by the Supervisory Board members.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT

At the Annual General Meeting, the Supervisory Board intends to propose an initial two-year period of office for
Supervisory Board members. The Supervisory Board intends to allow reappointment twice, each for an
additional term of three years, but reserves the right to make exceptions in specific cases and propose to the
Annual General Meeting to permit members to be reappointed for a fourth term of three years. Since the time of
setting this target, the maximum term of appointment for all elected Supervisory Board members has been
respected.

The Supervisory Board intends to adhere to the targets set for its composition when making future election
proposals to the Annual General Meeting.
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SKILL AND EXPERIENCE PROFILE FOR THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AS A WHOLE

In addition to defining specific targets, the Supervisory Board should develop a profile of skills and experience
for the entire Supervisory Board (Section 5.4.1 of the German Corporate Governance Code). On July 26, 2017,
the Supervisory Board defined the following profile of skills and experience for the entire Supervisory Board:

PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE

Supervisory Board members should possess the necessary professional expertise and experience to fulfill their
duties as members of the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys as an international biotechnology company. All
current Supervisory Board members have the relevant experience in management positions in the pharmaceutical
and biotechnology industries and, therefore, meet this requirement.

In order to promote further cooperation between members of the Supervisory Board, care should be taken in the
selection of candidates to ensure that the aspect of diversity in terms of professional background, expertise,
experience and personality is sufficiently taken into account.

GENERAL KNOWLEDGE

All members of the Supervisory Board should have general knowledge of the industry in which we operate in
order to make sufficient and substantial contributions to Supervisory Board meetings. All Supervisory Board
members have the necessary expertise in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries based on their
background and, therefore, meet this requirement.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE
e At least two members of the Supervisory Board must have extensive experience in drug development

e At least one Supervisory Board member must have expertise in the areas of accounting or auditing (Section
100 (5) AktG)

e At least one member of the Supervisory Board must have experience in human resource issues, particularly

with regard to Management Board matters

The Company currently meets the above targets.

SUFFICIENT AVAILABILITY OF TIME

All members of the Supervisory Board must ensure that they have sufficient time available to properly perform
their Supervisory Board duties. It must therefore be ensured that

e the Supervisory Board member is able to personally attend at least four ordinary Supervisory Board
meetings per year, as well as the annual strategy meeting, for which a reasonable amount of preparation
time is required in each case;

e the Supervisory Board member is able to attend extraordinary meetings of the Supervisory Board if
necessary to deal with specific topics;

e the Supervisory Board member is able to attend the Annual General Meeting;

e the Supervisory Board member has sufficient time available to review the annual and consolidated financial
statements;

e the Supervisory Board member sets aside additional time to prepare and participate in committee meetings,
depending on his/her possible membership in one or more of the current three committees of the
Supervisory Board.
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The Supervisory Board intends to observe the skills and experience profile for the entire Supervisory Board when
making future election proposals to the Annual General Meeting.

WOMEN’S QUOTA FOR THE SUPERVISORY BOARD, MANAGEMENT BOARD AND THE TWO
MANAGEMENT LEVELS BELOW THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

In July 2015, the Supervisory Board adopted a women’s quota for the Supervisory Board for an initial period of
two years. The Supervisory Board reviewed this quota in July 2017 and updated it as follows: “MorphoSys AG’s
Supervisory Board has a total of six members. Two of those members are women, which places the current quota
of 33.33% for female members on the Company’s Supervisory Board above the 30% target. The Supervisory
Board confirms its decision regarding the quota for women on the Supervisory Board, which was passed in July
2015, and intends to maintain this ratio until June 30, 2022.”

We continue to meet this target.

In July 2015, the Supervisory Board adopted the following quota for women on the Management Board for an
initial period of two years, which was reviewed and updated in July 2017 as follows:

“The Management Board of MorphoSys AG has a total of five members, including one female member. The
current ratio of women'’s representation on the Management Board of the company is therefore below 30% and
amounts to 20%. With reference to the decision on the quota of women on the Management Board, which was
taken in July 2015, the Supervisory Board intends to achieve a ratio of 25% in the future, namely by June 30,
2022.”

We do not currently meet this target. The reason this target has not been met was the unplanned departure of

Dr. Marlies Sproll as Chief Scientific Officer as of October 31, 2017 for personal reasons and the appointment of
Dr. Markus Enzelberger initially as Interim Chief Scientific Officer from April 15, 2017 to October 31, 2017, and
then as Dr. Marlies Sproll’s successor as Chief Scientific Officer beginning on November 1, 2017. As a result,
since October 31, 2017, the Management Board consists of four male members, and there are currently no
women on the Management Board.

In July 2015, the Management Board adopted the following quota for women in the first level of management
below the Management Board for an initial period of two years and reviewed and updated it in July 2017 as
follows:

“At the time of the decision, the first management level below the Management Board (the Senior Management
Group) consisted of 22 members, nine of whom were women, placing the level of female representation at this
management level at 40.9%, which is above the 30% target. The Management Board confirms its July 2015
decision on the quota of women in the first level of management below the Management Board and intends to
continue to maintain a minimum ratio of 30% until June 30, 2022.”

We continue to meet this target.

In July 2015, the Management Board adopted a women’s quota for the second level of management below the
Management Board initially for a period of two years and reviewed and updated the quota in July 2017 as
follows: “The second management level below the Management Board (i.e. the Company’s managers excluding
the Senior Management Group) at the time of the decision consisted of 40 members, 14 of whom were women.
This placed the quota of women in the second management level below the Company’s Management Board at
35%, which is above the 30% target at the time of the resolution. The Management Board confirms its July 2012
decision on the quota of women in the second level of management below the Management Board and intends to
maintain a quota of at least 30% until June 30, 2022.”

We continue to meet this target.
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DIVERSITY PLAN

Diversity is firmly anchored in our corporate culture and our affiliates. All dimensions of diversity are of equal
importance, be it age, gender, educational background, occupation, origin, religion, sexual orientation or identity.
Our Management Board and Supervisory Board see it as their responsibility to further increase and effectively
utilize the various aspects of diversity beyond the mere determination of targets for the proportion of women on
the Management Board, Supervisory Board and in executive positions.

We have not yet developed our own diversity plan with respect to the composition of the Management and
Supervisory Boards. Nevertheless, the internal organization and continued development of an open and inclusive
corporate culture play an important role in the day-to-day work of the Management and Supervisory Boards. The
skills and experience profile for the Supervisory Board as a whole also takes diversity into consideration. The
Management and Supervisory Boards intend to develop a diversity plan for their composition in the future that
addresses key aspects of diversity, defines specific goals for this purpose and contains guidelines on how these
goals should be achieved.

REMUNERATION REPORT

The Remuneration Report presents the principles, structure and amount of Management Board and Supervisory
Board remuneration. The report complies with the legal provisions and considers the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Code.

MANAGEMENT BOARD REMUNERATION

The Management Board’s remuneration system is intended to provide an incentive for performance-oriented and
sustainable corporate management. Therefore, the aggregate remuneration of the Management Board members
consists of different components: fixed components, an annual cash bonus based on the achievement of corporate
targets (short-term incentive — STI), a variable compensation component with a long-term incentive (long-term
incentive — LTI) and other remuneration components. Variable remuneration components with long-term
incentive consist of performance share plans from the current and prior years, a convertible bond program from
the year 2013, as well as a stock option plan from the current and prior year. Due to the successful U.S. listing
the Management Board members received a special one-time bonus in the form of treasury shares held by
MorphoSys AG. These shares could be called by the individual Management Board members during the time
period from June 1 until end of December 2018 for a pre-defined maximal amount in EUR. The relevant number
of shares was determined on the basis of the share price of one MOR share (final auction price in Xetra-trading
on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange) on the date the shares were called. Management Board members also receive
fringe benefits in the form of non-cash benefits, mainly the use of a company car and the payment of insurance
premiums. All remuneration packages are reviewed annually for their scope and appropriateness by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee and are compared to the results of an annual Management Board
remuneration analysis. The amount of compensation paid to Management Board members highly depends on
their individual areas of responsibility, the Company’s economic situation and success and the Company’s
business prospects versus its competition. All decisions concerning adjustments to remuneration packages are
made by the entire Supervisory Board. The Management Board’s remuneration and index-linked pension scheme
were last adjusted in July 2018.

OVERVIEW

In the 2018 financial year, total benefits of € 6,904,508 (2017: € 6,453,649) were granted to the Management
Board in accordance with the provisions of the German Corporate Governance Code. Of the total remuneration
granted for the year 2018, € 3,616,602 was cash compensation and € 3,287,906, or 48%, resulted from personnel
expenses for share-based compensation (remuneration with short-term incentive: one-time bonus award in shares
due to the successful U.S. listing; remuneration with long-term incentive: performance share plan, stock option
plan and convertible bond plan).
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The total amount of benefits paid to the Management Board in the 2018 financial year amounted to € 7,505,917
(2017: € 10,593,126). In addition to cash compensation payments of € 3,189,972 (2017: € 2,963,485), this
amount includes primarily the relevant value under German tax law of the transfer of treasury stock from a
performance-based share plan (share-based compensation), which amounted to € 626,606 (2017: € 1,986,671) as
well as from the one-time bonus award in shares due to the successful U.S. listing, which amounted to

€ 1,483,804 in 2018. Because convertible bonds were exercised in 2018 and 2017, the total amount for 2018 also
included proceeds from the exercise of convertible bonds in the amount of € 2,205,535 (2017: € 4,743,008).

As of April 11, 2018, a total of 6,969 treasury shares from the 2014 performance-based share plan for the
Management Board vested because the vesting period for this LTI program had expired. The beneficiaries had
the option to call the shares during a six-month period ending on October 10, 2018. All transactions in
MorphoSys shares executed by members of the Management Board were reported as required by law and are
published in the Corporate Governance Report as well as on the Company’s website.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 4.2.5 (3) of the German Corporate Governance Code, the tables
that follow provide detailed mandatory information on the remuneration of the individual Management Board
members.

Please note that the tables that follow are provided in the context of the Corporate Governance Report and differ
from the information about Management Board remuneration presented in the Notes of this report (Item 7.4).
These differences are due to the differing presentation requirements under the German Corporate Governance
Code and IFRS.
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TAB. 17: COMPENSATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD IN 2018 AND 2017 (DISCLOSURE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE GERMAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE)

Benefits granted to the Management Board

Dr. Simon Moroney

Chief Executive Officer
2018 2018

E 2017 2018 (Minimum) (Maximum)
Fixed Compensation . .............couiuirininennenan.. 500,876 542,074 542,074 542,074
Fringe Benefits! ...... ... . ... . . . .. 35,912 32,654 32,654 32,654
Total Fixed Compensation ....................ocuuenon.. 536,788 574,728 574,728 574,728
One -Year Variable Compensation? ...................... 368,144 455,343 0 474,315
One-Time Bonusin Shares .............. ... ... ... ..... 0 483,616 0 483,616
Multi-Year Variable Compensation:
2013 Convertible Bonds Program 3 (Vesting Period 4 Years) .. 58,224 0 0 0
2017 Long-Term Incentive Program 4 (Vesting Period

A Y CAIS) .« ottt e 343,009 0 0 0
2018 Long-Term Incentive Program 4 (Vesting Period

QY RAIS) « v ettt e 0 307,529 0 1,230,116
2017 Stock Option Plan4 (Vesting Period 4 Years) .......... 267,861 0 0 0
2018 Stock Option Plan4 (Vesting Period 4 Years) .......... 0 300,770 0 1,203,080
Total Variable Compensation . ................cocvueu.... 1,037,238 1,547,258 0 3,391,127
Service COSt . vvv ittt 149,567 158,788 158,788 158,788
Total Compensation . .............c.ouuiunenenennenen.. 1,723,593 2,280,774 733,516 4,124,643

Dr. Markus Enzelberger 3
Chief Scientific Officer
Appointment (Interim-CSO): April 15,2017
Appointment: November 1, 2017
2018 2018

E 2017 2018 (Minimum) (Maximum)
Fixed Compensation . ..............c.uuiuiinienennenan.. 204,698 321,300 321,300 321,300
Fringe Benefits ! ......... .. .. ... . . .. .. .. .. 417,158 31,211 31,211 31,211
Total Fixed Compensation ................c.cuvuvenon.. 621,856 352,511 352,511 352,511
One -Year Variable Compensation?2 ...................... 121,688 269,892 0 281,138
One-Time Bonusin Shares . ................. ... ... ..... 0 286,650 0 286,650
Multi-Year Variable Compensation:
2013 Convertible Bonds Program 3 (Vesting Period 4 Years) .. 0 0 0 0
2017 Long-Term Incentive Program 4 (Vesting Period

AYRAIS) « v ettt e 144,354 0 0 0
2018 Long-Term Incentive Program 4(Vesting Period

AYRAIS) « v ettt e 0 201,463 0 805,852
2017 Stock Option Plan4 (Vesting Period 4 Years) .......... 112,745 0 0 0
2018 Stock Option Plan4 (Vesting Period 4 Years) .......... 0 197,065 0 788,260
Total Variable Compensation ........................... 378,787 955,070 0 2,161,900
Service COSt o vv et 29,186 68,515 68,515 68,515
Total Compensation . .............ouuieiiirenenennanan.. 1,029,829 1,376,096 421,026 2,582,926
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Jens Holstein
Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Malte Peters

Chief Development Officer
Appointment: March 1, 2017

2018

2018

2018

2018

2017 2018 (Minimum) (Maximum) 2017 2018 (Minimum) (Maximum)
372,652 402,235 402,235 402,235 281,500 397,800 397,800 397,800
42,905 46,725 46,725 46,725 568,644 30,613 30,613 30,613
415,557 448,960 448,960 448,960 850,144 428,413 428413 428,413
273,899 337,877 0 351,955 206,903 334,152 0 348,075
0 358,857 0 358,857 0 354,900 0 354,900
59,641 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
224,747 0 0 0 224,747 0 0 0
0 201,463 0 805,852 0 201,463 0 805,852
175,498 0 0 0 175,498 0 0 0
0 197,065 0 788,260 0 197,065 0 788,260
733,785 1,095,262 0 2,304,924 607,148 1,087,580 0 2,297,087
99,949 111,233 111,233 111,233 60,967 76,190 76,190 76,190
1,249291 1,655455 560,193 2,865,117 1,518,259 1,592,183 504,603 2,801,690

Dr. Marlies Sproll ¢

Chief Scientific Officer
Temporary Leave: April 15,2017 -

October 31, 2017

Resignation: October 31, 2017

Dr. Arndt Schottelius
Chief Development Officer
Resignation: February 28, 2017

Total

2017 2018 (Minimum) (Maximum)

2018

2018

2018

2018

2017 2018 (Minimum) (Maximum) 2017

2018

2018

2018 (Minimum) (Maximum)

222450 0 0 0 103253 0
20427 0 0 0 9161 0
242877 0 0 0 112414 0
67,745 0 0 0 23490 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
39,879 0 0 0 39879 0
168,543 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
131,629 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
407,79 0 0 0 63369 0
77976 0 0 0 28245 0
728,649 0 0 0 204,028 0

0 0 1,685,429 1,663,409 1,663,400 1,663,400
0 0 1,094,207 141,203 141203 141203
0 0 2,779,636 1,804,612 1,804,612 1,804,612
0 0 1,061,869 1,397,264 0 1,455,483
0 0 0 1,484,023 0 1,484,023
0 0 197,623 0 0 0
0 0 1,105,400 0 0 0
0 0 0 911,918 0 3,647,672
0 0 863,231 0 0 0
0 0 0 891,965 0 3,567,860
0 0 3,228,123 4,685,170 0 10,155,038
0 0 445890 414,726 414,726 414,726
0 0 6,453,649 6,904,508 2,219,338 12,374,376
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In 2017, the fringe benefits of Dr. Malte Peters and Dr. Markus Enzelberger each included a one-time
compensation in the form of MorphoSys shares as an incentive to join the Management Board of
MorphoSys AG.

The one-year compensation granted for the 2018 financial year represents the bonus accrual for 2018 that
will be paid in February 2019. The bonus granted for the 2017 financial year was paid in February 2018.
Stock-based compensation plans not issued on an annual basis. The fair value was determined pursuant to
the regulations of IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment.” For plans that are not issued annually, the pro rata share
of personnel expenses resulting from share-based payments is presented for each financial year.
Stock-based compensation plans issued annually. The fair value was determined pursuant to the regulations
of IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment.” For plans issued annually, the personnel expenses resulting from share-
based payments are presented for the entire term at the time of issue.

In 2017, the figures presented for Dr. Markus Enzelberger do not include any compensation granted for his
activities as a member of the Senior Management Group as they do not relate to his appointment as a
member of the Management Board.

Dr. Marlies Sproll left the Management Board of MorphoSys AG on October 31, 2017. Since November 1,
2017, Dr. Marlies Sproll has taken on a new part-time role at MorphoSys as Special Advisor to the CEO.
Therefore, the figures presented for Dr. Marlies Sproll do not include any remuneration granted for these
activities.
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Payment During the Financial Year

Dr. Malte Peters

Dr. Simon Moroney Jens Holstein Chief Development Officer
Chief Executive Officer ~ Chief Financial Officer =~ Appointment: March 1, 2017

E 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
Fixed Compensation ................ 500,876 542,074 372,652 402,235 281,500 397,800
Fringe Benefits! .. .................. 35912 32,654 42,905 46,725 568,644 30,613
Total Fixed Compensation .......... 536,788 574,728 415,557 448,960 850,144 428,413
One-time bonus award in shares ....... 0 483,597 0 358,785 0 354,822
One -Year Variable Compensation? .... 210,873 368,144 143,054 273,899 0 206,903
Multi-Year Variable Compensation:
2013 Convertible Bonds Program 3

(Vesting Period 4 Years) ........... 0 0 658,350 2,205,535 0 0
2013 Long-Term Incentive Program 3

(Vesting Period 4 Years) ........... 650,378 0 445431 0 0 0
2014 Long-Term Incentive Program 3

(Vesting Period 4 Years) ........... 0 351,412 0 223,600 0 0
Other4..... ... ... ... i, 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Variable Compensation . . ... ... 861,251 1,203,153 1,246,835 3,061,819 0 561,725
Service CoSt .. ...ovviii .. 149,567 158,788 99,949 111,233 60,967 76,190
Total Compensation ................ 1,547,606 1,936,669 1,762,341 3,622,012 911,111 1,066,328
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Dr. Markus Enzelberger 3 Dr. Marlies Sproll ¢

Chief Scientific Officer Chief Scientific Officer
Appointment (Interim-CSO): April 15, Temporary Leave: April 15, 2017 — Dr. Arndt Schottelius’
2017 October 31, 2017 Chief Development Officer
Appointment: November 1, 2017 Resignation: October 31, 2017 Resignation: February 28, 2017 Total

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
204,698 321,300 222,450 0 103,253 0 1,685,429 1,663,409
417,158 31,211 20,427 0 9,161 0 1,094,207 141,203
621,856 352,511 242,877 0 112,414 0 2,779,636 1,804,612
0 286,600 0 0 0 0 0 1,483,804
0 121,688 143,054 0 140,940 0 637,921 970,634
0 0
0 0 2,800,381 0 1,284,277 0 4,743,008 2,205,535
0 0 445,431 0 445,431 0 1,986,671 0
0 51,594 0 0 0 0 0 626,606
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 459,882 3,388,866 0 1,870,648 0 7,367,600 5,286,579
29,186 68,515 77,976 0 28,245 0 445,890 414,726
651,042 880,908 3,709,719 0 2,011,307 0 10,593,126 7,505,917

1 In 2017, the fringe benefits of Dr. Malte Peters and Dr. Markus Enzelberger each included a one-time
compensation in the form of MorphoSys shares as an incentive to join the Management Board of
MorphoSys AG.

2 The one-year variable compensation presented here represents the bonus paid in the respective financial
year for the previous financial year.

3 The date and value of the payments is the date and value applicable under German tax law. Therefore, this
table shows the non-cash benefits arising in the respective financial year from the difference between the
exercise or conversion price and the stock market price at the time of exercising the convertible bonds or at
the time of transfer of own shares from a performance share plan.

4 No compensation recovery claims against the Management Board existed in 2018 or 2017.

5 In 2017, the figures presented for Dr. Markus Enzelberger do not include any payments for his activities as a
member of the Senior Management Group as they do not relate to his appointment as a member of the
Management Board.

6 Dr. Marlies Sproll left the Management Board of MorphoSys AG on October 31, 2017. Since November 1,
2017, Dr. Marlies Sproll has taken on a new part-time role at MorphoSys as Special Advisor to the CEO.
Therefore, the payments presented for Dr. Marlies Sproll do not include any remuneration for these
activities.

7 In 2017, the figures presented for Dr. Arndt Schottelius do include remuneration from the exercise of
convertible bonds and the transfer of treasury stock from a long-term incentive program after his resignation
as Chief Development Officer. These were granted for his activities as a member of the Management Board
in previous years.

FIXED REMUNERATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS

The non-performance-related remuneration of the Management Board consists of fixed remuneration and
additional benefits, which primarily include the use of company cars, as well as subsidies for health, welfare and
disability insurance. The Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Jens Holstein, receives an additional expense allowance for
maintaining two households.
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PENSION EXPENSES

The Company also provides payments to Management Board members equal to a maximum of 10% of the
member’s fixed annual salary and partly plus any taxes payable. This compensation is intended for the members’
individual retirement plans. Additionally, all Management Board members participate in a pension plan in the
form of a provident fund, which was introduced in cooperation with Allianz Pensions-Management e.V. The
pension obligations of the provident fund will be met by Allianz Pensions-Management e.V. These pension
obligations are not pension benefit plans.

PERFORMANCE-BASED COMPENSATION (SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE - STI)

Members of the Management Board each receive performance-based compensation in the form of an annual
bonus payment of up to 70% of the gross base salary when 100% of the member’s targets have been achieved.
These bonus payments are dependent on the achievement of corporate targets specified by the Supervisory Board
at the start of each financial year. Targets are typically based on, amongst other objectives, the Company’s
performance and the progress of the partnered pipeline and the Company’s proprietary pipeline. At the start of
the year, the Supervisory Board assesses the degree to which corporate goals were achieved in the prior year and
uses this information to determine the bonus. The bonus may not exceed 125% of the target amount
(corresponding to 87.5% of the gross base salary). Performance-based compensation can be reduced to zero if
goals are not achieved. The bonus for the 2018 financial year will be paid in February 2019.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION (LONG-TERM INCENTIVE - LTI)

In 2011, MorphoSys introduced a long-term incentive compensation plan (Performance Share Plan) for the
Management Board and members of the Senior Management Group. The Performance Share Plan is based on the
allocation of shares linked to the achievement of predefined performance targets over a four-year period.

Each year, the Supervisory Board determines the number of shares to be allocated to the Management Board. On
April 1, 2018, the Management Board members were granted a total of 8,804 shares. Each Management Board
member received an entitlement benefit for a specific number of shares. For more information, please refer to
Item 7.3.5 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the explanation on stock repurchases in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Long-term performance targets are set by the Supervisory Board at the time the shares are allocated for a specific
year. The defined targets for the 2018 Performance Share Plan were the absolute performance of MorphoSys
shares, as well as the relative performance of MorphoSys shares relative to a benchmark index comprising of
equal parts of the Nasdaq Biotechnology Index and the TecDAX Index. The absolute and relative performance of
the share price for each of the four assessment periods (one year each) is determined by comparing the average
share price of the last 30 trading days prior to the beginning of the relevant assessment period (April 1) with the
average share price of the last 30 trading days prior to the end of the evaluation period. The participants in the
Performance Share Plan receive an annual share entitlement, which will be evaluated on the basis of the absolute
and relative performance of the share price, that is, a comparison of the performance of MorphoSys shares versus
the benchmark index. Depending on the absolute and relative performance of the share price over the course of
an evaluation period, certain (absolute and relative) tiered target attainment levels between 10% and 300% can be
achieved. Exceeding the target attainment level of 300% does not grant entitlement to additional shares during
the relevant assessment period (cap). At the end of the four-year term, a total level of target achievement based
on the absolute and relative target attainment levels has to be established. The average absolute and relative
attainment levels reached are weighted at 50%. The overall target achievement is capped at 200%.

The ultimate number of performance shares allocated to the Performance Share Plan participants is determined at

the completion of the program, which spans four years. This calculation incorporates the number of shares
initially granted (“grants”) multiplied with the total level of target achievement, as well as a “company factor”
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that is determined at the Supervisory Board’s discretion. This company factor is a number between zero and two
that is set by the Supervisory Board based on the Company’s situation. The company factor’s predefined default
value is one (1).

In 2017, MorphoSys also introduced a stock option plan (SOP) as another form of long-term incentive
compensation based on the resolution of the Annual General Meeting on June 2, 2016 (Agenda Item 9). As of
April 1, 2018, a total of 29,312 stock options were granted to the Management Board. Each member of the
Management Board received a specific number of stock options that entitle them to purchase up to two
MorphoSys shares each. Further details can be found in Item 7.1 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the explanations on stock repurchases in the Corporate Governance Report.

In accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting on June 2, 2016 (Agenda Item 9), the SOP’s
performance targets include the absolute price performance of MorphoSys shares and the relative price
performance of MorphoSys shares compared to a benchmark index. The benchmark index consists of equal parts
of the Nasdaq Biotechnology Index and the TecDAX Index. Each performance target has a 50% weighting in the
achievement of the overall target.

To determine the degree of target achievement for each performance target, the four-year vesting period (until
the first stock options can be exercised) is subdivided into four equal periods of one year each. An arithmetic
mean is calculated based on the degree of target achievement in each of the four years. This, in turn, determines
the final percentage of target achievement for each performance target. The final percentage of target
achievement for each of the two performance targets are then added together and divided by two, the result being
the overall level of target achievement.

For the performance target of absolute price performance, a comparison is made between the stock market price
of MorphoSys shares at the beginning of each year in the four-year period with the price at the end of each
respective period. If MorphoSys shares perform well, the degree of target achievement can reach up to 200% on
a straight-line basis for that particular year. Any further positive share price development of MorphoSys shares
will not lead to any further increase in the performance target (cap).

For the performance target of relative price performance, the development of MorphoSys’s share price is
compared with the development of the benchmark index during each annual period and set in relation to each
other. In forming the benchmark index, the Nasdaq Biotech Index and the TecDAX Index are each weighted at
50% in such a way that the percentage price movements of each index are added for the respective annual period
and divided by two. If MorphoSys shares outperform the benchmark index, the degree of target achievement for
the relevant period can reach up to 200% on a straight-line basis. Any further positive share price development of
MorphoSys shares versus the benchmark index will not lead to any further increase in the performance target

(cap).

Stock options can only be exercised when the four-year (minimum) vesting period prescribed by law has expired,
and the specified minimum value for the degree of target achievement of a performance target has been
exceeded. The ultimate number of exercisable stock options is calculated by multiplying the number of initially
granted stock options (“‘grants”) by the total level of target achievement and rounding up to the nearest whole
number. The resulting ultimate number of stock options is limited to 200% of the initially granted number of
stock options. The stock options are settled in the form of Company shares, with each stock option entitling the
holder to one share for the final number of stock options.

When the stock options are exercised, the exercise price must be paid for each underlying share. The exercise

price corresponds to the average closing auction price of MorphoSys shares in the 30 trading days prior to the
day on which the stock options were issued.
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The terms of the stock option plan provide further details on the granting and settlement of stock options, the
issue of Company shares from the Conditional Capital 2016-III and the administration of the SOP. For more
information, please refer to the corresponding resolution of the Annual General Meeting on June 2, 2016
(Agenda Item 9).

MISCELLANEOUS

None of the Management Board members were granted any loans or similar benefits in the reporting year nor
have they received any benefits from third parties that were promised or granted based on their positions as
members of the Management Board.

PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS/
CHANGE OF CONTROL

In case of a premature termination of the service contract with a Management Board member, the compensation,
including fringe benefits, is capped at 200% of the fixed yearly gross salary and the annual bonus (Severance
Cap) and no more than the remaining term of the service contract is compensated. If the service contract is
terminated for good cause for which the Management Board member is responsible, such member is not entitled
to any payments. The Severance Cap is calculated on the basis of the total compensation of the full business year
prior to the termination and, if appropriate, the expected total compensation of the business year in which the
termination occurs.

If a Management Board member’s service contract terminates due to the member’s death, the member’s spouse
or life partner is entitled to the fixed monthly salary for the month of death and the 12 months thereafter. In the
event of a change of control, Management Board members are entitled to exercise their extraordinary right to
terminate their employment contracts and demand the fixed salary and annual bonus still outstanding until the
end of the service contract, however at least 200% of the fixed yearly gross salary and annual bonus. Moreover,
in such a case, all stock options and performance shares granted will become vested immediately and can be
exercised after the expiration of the statutory vesting periods or blackout periods. A change of control has
occurred when (i) MorphoSys transfers assets or a substantial portion of its assets to unaffiliated third parties,

(i) MorphoSys merges with an unaffiliated company, (iii) MorphoSys AG as dominated company becomes party
to an agreement pursuant to Section 291 of the German Stock Corporation Act or MorphoSys is integrated in
accordance with Section 319 of the German Stock Corporation Act, or (iv) a shareholder or third party holds 30%
or more of MorphoSys’s voting rights.

In addition, post-contractual non-compete clauses exist with the members of the Board of Management,
providing for compensatory payments to be made by MorphoSys AG until six months after the service contract
has terminated. During the duration of the non-compete clause, the compensatory payment amounts to up to
100% of the fixed salary.

CHANGE IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

There was no change in the composition of our Management Board in the 2018 financial year.

AGE LIMIT

The age limit for Executive Board members at the time of their appointment or re-appointment by the
Supervisory Board shall correspond to 67 years. Exceptions thereto may be resolved by the Supervisory Board in
the individual case. The age limit of 67 years is currently respected by the Executive Board members.

SAY ON PAY

Due to the existing legal uncertainty resulting from the forthcoming legal changes to the Shareholders’ Rights
Directive and the German Corporate Governance Code, MorphoSys will deliberately refrain from submitting the
Management Board compensation system to a vote at its forthcoming 2019 Annual General Meeting. The current
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remuneration system for the members of the Management Board remains unchanged from the remuneration
system approved by the Annual General Meeting on May 19, 2011 with a majority of more than 91%. A
corresponding vote on the remuneration system is planned for the 2020 Annual General Meeting.

SUPERVISORY BOARD REMUNERATION

The remuneration of Supervisory Board members is governed by our Articles of Association and a corresponding
Annual General Meeting resolution on Supervisory Board remuneration. In the 2018 financial year, Supervisory
Board members received fixed compensation, attendance fees and expense allowances for their participation in
Supervisory Board and committee meetings. Each Supervisory Board member has received annual fixed
compensation (€ 85,400 for Chairpersons, € 51,240 for Deputy Chairpersons and € 34,160 for all other members)
for their membership of the Supervisory Board. The Chairperson receives € 4,000 for each Supervisory Board
meeting chaired and the other members receive € 2,000 for each Supervisory Board meeting attended. For
committee work, the committee Chairperson receives € 12,000 and other committee members each receive

€ 6,000. Committee members also receive € 1,200 for their participation in a committee meeting. Participation in
a Supervisory Board or committee meeting by telephone or video conference results in a 50% reduction in
compensation for meeting participation. Supervisory Board members residing outside of Europe who personally
take part in a Supervisory Board or committee meeting are entitled to a fixed expense allowance of € 2,000 (plus
any sales tax due) for additional travel time in addition to attendance fees and reimbursed expenses.

Supervisory Board members are also reimbursed for travel expenses and value-added taxes (VAT) on their
compensation.

In the 2018 financial year, Supervisory Board members received a total of € 525,428 (2017: € 523,015)
excluding the reimbursement of travel expenses. This amount consists of fixed compensation and attendance fees
for participating in Supervisory Board and committee meetings.

We did not grant any loans to Supervisory Board members.
The table below details the Supervisory Board’s remuneration.

TAB. 18: COMPENSATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2018 AND 2017

Fixed

Compensation Attendance Fees ! Total Compensation
E 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Dr.MarcCluzel ........................... 76,742 52,160 32,400 26,800 109,142 78,960
Dr.Frank Morich . ......................... 61,004 57,240 23,200 23,200 84,204 80,440
Krisja Vermeylen ......................... 49916 28,961 24,400 16,000 74,316 44,961
Wendy Johnson . .......................... 46,160 46,160 37,400 38,000 83,560 84,160
Dr. George Golumbeski? ................... 28,961 - 25,200 - 54,161 -
Michael Brosnan? ......................... 28,961 - 18,600 - 47,561 -
Dr. Gerald Moller3 . ....................... 36,558 95,156 11,800 36,800 48,358 131,956
Klaus Kiithn3 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ........ 17,326 46,160 6,800 22,000 24,126 68,160
Karin Eastham4 .......... . ... . ... .. ..... - 19,578 - 14,800 - 34,378
Total ........ ... ... ... . ... ... ... 345,628 345,415 179,800 177,600 525,428 523,015

I The attendance fee contains expense allowances for the attendence at the Supervisory Board and the
Committee meetings.

2 Dr. George Golumbeski and Michael Brosnan have joined the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG on
May 17, 2018.

3 Dr. Gerald Moller and Klaus Kiihn have left the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG AG on May 17,
2018.

4 Karin Eastham has left the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG AG on May 17, 2017.
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HOLDINGS OF MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS

The members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board hold more than 1% of the shares issued by
the Company. All shares, performance shares, stock options and convertible bonds held by each member of the

Management Board and the Supervisory Board are listed below.

TAB. 19: DIRECTORS’ HOLDINGS

Shares 01/01/2018 Additions Sales 12/31/2018
Management Board
Dr. SImon Moroney . ........ ...t 483,709 8,928 8,928 483,709
Jens Holstein . ....... ... . . 11,000 36,554 30,537 17,017
Dr. Malte Peters . . ... 9,505 3,313 0 12,818
Dr. Markus Enzelberger .. .......... . i 7,262 3,248 8,834 1,676
Total . ... ... 511,476 52,043 48,299 515,220
Supervisory Board
Dr.Marc Cluzel ....... ... . .. i 500 0 0 500
Dr. Frank Morich . ........ ... . . . . 1,000 0 0 1,000
Krisja Vermeylen . ... 350 0 0 350
Wendy Johnson .......... . i 500 0 0 500
Dr. George Golumbeskil ....... ... ... . ... .. . ... 0 0 0
Michael Brosnan! . ......... ... .. .. . .. 0 0 0
Dr. Gerald MOIIEr2 .. ... 11,000 900 0 -
Klaus Kiihn2 ... ... 0 0 -
Total . ... .. 13,350 900 0 2,350
STOCK OPTIONS

01/01/2018 Additions Forfeitures? Exercises 12/31/2018
Management Board
Dr. Simon Moroney . . ..., 12,511 9,884 0 0 22,395
JensHolstein . ........... .. ... 8,197 6,476 0 0 14,673
Dr.Malte Peters ............ .. ... . . .. 8,197 6,476 0 0 14,673
Dr. Markus Enzelberger ......................... 5,266 6,476 0 0 11,742
Total ....... ... .. . . . 34,171 29,312 0 0 63,483
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

01/01/2018 Additions Forfeitures3 Exercises 12/31/2018
Management Board
Dr. Simon Moroney . .............coviiiiin... 88,386 0 0 0 88,386
JensHolstein . ........... .. . . 60,537 0 0 30,537 30,000
Dr.Malte Peters .......... ... . 0 0 0 0 0
Dr. Markus Enzelberger ......................... 0 0 0 0 0
Total ....... ... .. . . . . .. 148,923 0 0 30,537 118,386
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PERFORMANCE SHARES

01/01/2018 Additions Forfeitures® Allocations4 12/31/2018
Management Board
Dr. Simon Moroney ............. .. ... .. .. ... 30,060 2,969 2,182 3,797 27,050
JensHolstein ......... .. .. . . .. .. 20,086 1,945 1,495 2,600 17,936
Dr. Malte Peters ............... .. 3,187 1,945 0 0 5,132
Dr. Markus Enzelberger ....................... 5,987 1,945 329 572 7,031
Total ....... ... .. .. ... . .. 59,320 8,804 4,006 6,969 57,149

I Dr. George Golumbeski and Michael Brosnan have joined the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG on

May 17, 2018.

2 Dr. Gerald Moller and Klaus Kiihn have left the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG AG on May 17,
2018. Changes in the number of shares after resignation from the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG are

not presented in the tables.

3 Forfeited performance Shares are a result of the KPI achievement rate of 63.5 % and a company factor of
1.0 as determined at the end of the performance period of the LTI plan 2014.

after the end of the four-year waiting period.

Allocations are made as soon as performance shares are transferred within the six-month exercise period

The members of our Supervisory Board do not hold stock options, convertible bonds or performance shares.

MANAGERS TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the relevant legal provisions of Article 19 para. 1 (a) of the Market Abuse Regulation (MAR),
the members of MorphoSys AG’s Management Board and Supervisory Board and persons related to such

members are required to disclose any trading in MorphoSys shares.

During the reporting year, MorphoSys received the following notifications under Article 19 para 1 (a) MAR

listed in the table below.

TAB. 20: MANAGERS TRANSACTIONS IN 2018

Party Subject to the Date of
Notification Transaction Aggregated Aggregated Place of
Requirement Function in 2018 Type of Transaction  Share Price Volume Transaction
Markus Chief Scientific 09/24/2018 Disposal €91.43 € 52296.75 Xetra
Enzelberger  Officer
Simon Moroney Chief Executive 09/20/2018 Disposal €93.63 €323300.40 Xetra
Officer
Simon Moroney Chief Executive 09/19/2018 Disposal €94.1 €515186.55 Xetra
Officer
Markus Chief Scientific 08/07/2018 Disposal €107.35 € 886946.90 Xetra
Enzelberger  Officer
Markus Chief Scientific 08/06/2018 Purchase of not not numberable Outside a
Enzelberger Officer 2,676 shares as numberable trading
part of his venue

remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board (issuer’s
own shares)
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Party Subject to the
Notification
Requirement

Function

Date of
Transaction
in 2018

Type of Transaction

Aggregated
Share Price

Place of
Transaction

Aggregated
Volume

Malte Peters

Jens Holstein

Jens Holstein

Jens Holstein

Jens Holstein
Dr. Gerald

Moller
Simon Moroney

Jens Holstein

Chief
Development
Officer

Chief Financial
Officer
Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Financial
Officer

Member of the
Supervisory Board
Chief Executive
Officer

Chief Financial
Officer

08/06/2018

08/06/2018

08/03/2018

08/03/2018

08/03/2018

05/09/2018

04/11/2018

04/11/2018

Purchase of
3,313 shares as
part of his
remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board (issuer’s
own shares)
Disposal

Purchase of
3,417 shares as
part of his
remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board (issuer’s
own shares)
Purchase of
shares based on
conversion of
convertible
bonds as part of
his
remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board
(Convertible
Bonds Program
2013)

Disposal

Purchase

Allocation of
3,797 shares as
part of his
remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board (Long-
Term Incentive
Program 2014)
(issuer’s own
shares)
Allocation of
2,600 shares as
part of his
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not
numberable

€105.58

not
numberable

€31,875

€105.13
€88.70

not
numberable

not
numberable

not numberable Outside a
trading
venue

€ 622,920.00 Xetra
Outside a
trading
venue

not numberable

Outside a
trading
venue

€973,366.875

€2,59,084.30 Xetra

€ 79,830.00 Xetra
Outside a
trading
venue

not numberable

not numberable Outside a
trading
venue



Party Subject to the
Notification
Requirement

Function

Date of
Transaction
in 2018

Aggregated

Type of Transaction  Share Price

Place of
Transaction

Aggregated
Volume

Markus
Enzelberger

Simon Moroney

Jens Holstein

Markus
Enzelberger

Chief Scientific
Officer

Chief Executive
Officer

Chief Financial
Officer

Chief Scientific
Officer

04/11/2018

04/10/2018

04/10/2018

04/10/2018

remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board (Long-
Term Incentive
Program 2014)
(issuer’s own
shares)
Allocation of
572 shares as
part of his
remuneration as
member of the
Managing
Board (Long-
Term Incentive
Program 2014)
(issuer’s own
shares)
Acceptance of
9,884 stock
options to
subscribe for up
to 2 shares each
within the
compensation as
a Management
Board Member
(Stock Option-
Program 2018)
Acceptance of
6,476 stock
options to
subscribe for up
to 2 shares each
within the
compensation as
a Management
Board Member
(Stock Option-
Program 2018)
Acceptance of
6,476 stock
options to
subscribe for up
to 2 shares each
within the
compensation as
a Management

not
numberable

not
numberable

not
numberable

not
numberable
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not numberable Outside a
trading
venue

not numberable Outside a
trading
venue

not numberable Outside a
trading
venue

not numberable Outside a
trading
venue



Party Subject to the Date of

Notification Transaction Aggregated Aggregated Place of
Requirement Function in 2018 Type of Transaction  Share Price Volume Transaction
Board Member
(Stock Option-
Program 2018)
Malte Peters Chief 04/10/2018 Acceptance of  not not numberable Outside a
Development 6,476 stock numberable trading
Officer options to venue

subscribe for up
to 2 shares each
within the
compensation as
a Management
Board Member
(Stock Option-
Program 2018)

AVOIDING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Management Board and Supervisory Board members are required to refrain from any actions that could lead to a
conflict of interest with their duties at MorphoSys AG. Such transactions or the secondary employment of
Management Board members must be disclosed immediately to the Supervisory Board and are subject to the
Board’s approval. The Supervisory Board, in turn, must inform the Annual General Meeting of any conflicts of
interest and their handling. In the 2018 financial year, no conflicts of interest arose in the Supervisory Board.

STOCK REPURCHASES

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on May 23, 2014, MorphoSys is authorized in accordance with
Section 71 (1) no. 8 AktG to repurchase its own shares in an amount of up to 10% of the existing common stock.
This authorization can be exercised in whole or in part, once or several times by the Company or a third party on
the Company’s behalf for the purposes specified in the authorizing resolution. It is at the Management Board’s
discretion to decide whether to carry out a repurchase on a stock exchange, via a public offer or through a public
invitation to submit a bid.

In 2018, MorphoSys did not repurchase any shares based on the authorization from the year 2014.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In preparation for our planned transition to a commercial biopharmaceutical company, the replacement of our
current ERP system with SAP Business By Design was started in April 2018. In parallel, we started the
integration of SAP Concur in July 2018 to substitute our legacy systems for absence and business travel
management.

IT security and compliance continued to be key topics in the area of information technology in 2018. External
security experts checked the technical security controls, inter alia, using simulated different hacking attacks to
detect potential weaknesses. The IT Security Awareness Campaign (ISAC) simulated deceitful phishing attacks
to sensitize employees for their co-responsibility and essential contribution to IT security in our organization.

Any security-relevant system notifications or user notifications that occurred were analyzed by the internal
CERT (Computer Emergency Response Team) with partial external support. As in the previous year, no serious
security incidents occurred.
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A SIEM (Security Information and Event Management) system was integrated to optimize our cyber defense
measures. The previous system for auditing and tracking system changes, configurations and access controls was
replaced with a new tool enabling control over changes, configurations and access in our hybrid IT environment.
The new tool provides additional intelligence to identify security risks, detect anomalous user behavior and
investigate threat patterns in time to prevent damage.

INFORMATION ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WITH
REGARD TO THE ACCOUNTING PROCESS UNDER SECTION 289 (4) AND SECTION 315 (4) HGB

In the 2018 financial year, we completed a regular update of the documentation for our existing internal control
and risk management system. This update serves to maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting
and to ensure the availability of key controls so that financial figures can be reported as precisely and accurately
as possible. COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) defines the
corresponding COSO framework (“Internal Control — Integrated Framework’’). We use this framework which is
the most commonly used for the internal control over financial reporting.

System constraints make it impossible to give absolute assurance that internal controls will always prevent or
completely detect all misrepresentations made in the context of financial reporting. Internal controls can only
provide reasonable assurance that financial reporting is reliable and verify that the financial statements were
prepared in accordance with the IFRS standards that were effective on and endorsed by the European Union (EU)
for external purposes.

The consolidated financial statements are subjected to numerous preparation, review and control processes so
that they can be reported promptly to the market and to shareholders. To accomplish this, our executives have a
coordinated plan for which all internal and external resources are made available. We also use a strict four-eye
principle to ensure the accuracy of the key financial ratios reported and the underlying execution of all
accounting processes. Numerous rules and guidelines are also followed to ensure the strict separation of the
planning, posting and execution of financial transactions. This functional separation of processes is ensured by
all of our operating IT systems through an appropriate assignment of rights. External service providers regularly
review the implementation of and compliance with these guidelines as well as the efficiency of the accounting
processes.

Predicting future events is not the job of our internal control and risk management system. Our risk management
system does, however, ensure that business risks are detected and assessed early. The risks identified are
eliminated or at least brought to an acceptable level using appropriate corrective measures. Special attention is
given to risks that could jeopardize us.

The Management Board ensures that risks are always dealt with responsibly and keeps the Supervisory Board
informed of any risks and their development. Detailed information on our risks and opportunities can be found in
the “Risk and Opportunity Report.”

ACCOUNTING AND EXTERNAL AUDIT

We prepare our financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
and the Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and take into account the recommendations of the International Financial Reporting
Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC). We have applied all standards and interpretations that were
effective on and endorsed by the European Union (EU) as at December 31, 2018. There were no standards or
interpretations as at December 31, 2018, impacting our consolidated financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, that were effective but not yet endorsed. As a result, our consolidated financial
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statements comply with both the IFRSs published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
those adopted by the EU. These consolidated financial statements also take into account the supplementary
provisions under commercial law, which must be applied in accordance with Section 315e (1) of the German
Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch — HGB).

For the election of our auditor, the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board submits a nomination proposal to
the Supervisory Board. At the 2018 Annual General Meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft was appointed as auditor for the 2018 financial year. As proof of its
independence, the auditor submitted an Independence Declaration to the Supervisory Board. The lead auditor of
these consolidated financial statements was Stefano Mulas, who has audited the consolidated financial statements
since 2018. PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH has been our auditor since the 2011 financial year. Information on
audit-related fees and all other fees provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH to us during the 2018 financial
year can be found in the Notes under Item 6.1.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Our basic mechanisms of the Compliance Management System (CMS) are presented in the section “Relevant
Information on Corporate Governance Practices.” In addition to this information, the responsibilities within our
compliance organization are shown in Figure 16.

The identification and assessment of compliance risks are an important part of the CMS, and feed the overall
CMS strategic development. Our main compliance-relevant risk areas are evaluated using a systematic approach,
taking into account our current business strategy and priorities. In the 2018 financial year, we carried out a
compliance risk analysis, including anti-bribery and corruption risks. Risk mitigation measures are being
identified for the areas requiring action. As part of the CMS, employees are given the opportunity to report
suspected breaches of law within the MorphoSys Group in a protected manner.

In connection with the General Data Protection Regulation of the EU (Regulation (EU) 2016/679 — “GDPR”)

which came into effect on May 25, 2018, we implemented various procedures in 2018 to safeguard compliance
with the GDPR.
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FIG. 16: COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CMS)
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INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Our Internal Audit Department is an essential element of the Corporate Governance structure. The Internal Audit
Department assists us in accomplishing our objectives by bringing a systematic approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of our risk management, internal control and other corporate governance processes.
The accounting and consulting firm KPMG was mandated for 2018 as a co-sourcing partner for the internal
auditing process.

The Corporate Internal Audit Department executes on a risk-based audit plan including requirements and
recommendations of the Management Board and Supervisory Board’s Audit Committee.

Our Internal Audit Department reports regularly to the Management Board. The Head of Internal Audit and the
Chief Executive Officer both report to the Supervisory Board’s Audit Committee twice a year or on an ad hoc
basis when necessary.

Five audits were conducted successfully in the course of 2018. Some areas requiring action were identified and
corrective action plans were agreed. The Corporate Internal Audit Department is planning four audits in 2019.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 289A (1), SECTION 315A (1) HGB AND EXPLANATORY
REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD UNDER SECTION 176 (1) SENTENCE 1 AKTG

COMPOSITION OF COMMON STOCK

As of December 31, 2018, the Company’s statutory common stock amounted to € 31,807,035.00 and was divided
into 31,807,035 no-par-value bearer shares. Excluding the 281,036 treasury shares held by the Company, the
statutory common stock concerns bearer shares with voting rights granting each share one vote at the Annual
General Meeting. On January 17, 2019, our Supervisory Board resolved to adjust the share capital to reflect the
issuance of new shares in 2018 based on the exercise of 32,537 convertible bonds. This results in an increase of
the share capital from € 31,807,035 to € 31,839,572, which was entered in the commercial register on February 2,
2019.

RESTRICTIONS AFFECTING VOTING RIGHTS OR THE TRANSFER OF SHARES

Our Management Board is not aware of any restrictions that may affect voting rights, the transfer of shares or
those that may emerge from agreements between shareholders.

Voting rights restrictions may also arise from the provisions of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), such
as those under Section 136 AktG, or the provisions for treasury stock under Section 71b AktG.

SHAREHOLDINGS IN COMMON STOCK EXCEEDING 10% OF VOTING RIGHTS

We are not aware of nor have we been notified of any direct or indirect interests in the Company’s common stock
that exceed 10% of the voting rights.

SHARES WITH SPECIAL RIGHTS CONFERRING POWERS OF CONTROL
Shares with special rights conferring powers of control do not exist.

CONTROL OVER VOTING RIGHTS WITH REGARD TO EMPLOYEE OWNERSHIP OF CAPITAL

Employees who hold shares in the Company exercise their voting rights directly in accordance with the statutory
provisions and the Articles of Association as do other shareholders.
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APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBERS AND AMENDMENTS
TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The number of Management Board members, their appointment and dismissal and the nomination of the Chief
Executive Officer are determined by the Supervisory Board in accordance with Section 6 of the Articles of
Association and Section 84 AktG. Our Management Board currently consists of the Chief Executive Officer and
three other members. Management Board members may be appointed for a maximum term of five years.
Reappointments or extensions in the term of office are allowed for a maximum term of five years in each case.
The Supervisory Board may revoke the appointment of a Management Board member or the nomination of a
Chief Executive Officer for good cause within the meaning of Section 84 (3) AktG. If a required member of the
Management Board is absent, one will be appointed by the court in cases of urgency under Section 85 AktG.

As arule, the Articles of Association can only be amended by a resolution of the Annual General Meeting in
accordance with Section 179 (1) sentence 1 AktG. Under Section 179 (2) sentence 2 AktG in conjunction with
Section 20 of the Articles of Association, our Annual General Meeting resolves amendments to the Articles of
Association generally through a simple majority of the votes cast and a simple majority of the common stock
represented. If the law stipulates a higher mandatory majority of votes or capital, this shall be applied.
Amendments to the Articles of Association that only affect their wording can be resolved by the Supervisory
Board in accordance with Section 179 (1) sentence 2 AktG in conjunction with Section 12 (3) of the Articles of
Association.

POWER OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD TO ISSUE SHARES

The Management Board’s power to issue shares is granted under Section 5 (5) through (6e) of the Company’s
Articles of Association and the statutory provisions:

1. Authorized Capital

a. According to Section 5 (5) of the Articles of Association, with the Supervisory Board’s consent,
the Management Board is authorized to increase the Company’s common stock on one or more
occasions by up to € 11,768,314.00 for cash contributions and/or contributions in kind by issuing
up to 11,768,314 new, no-par-value bearer shares until and including the date of April 30, 2022
(Authorized Capital 2018-I).

Shareholders are principally entitled to subscription rights in the case of a capital increase. One or
more credit institutions may also subscribe to the shares with the obligation to offer the shares to
shareholders for subscription. With the Supervisory Board’s consent, the Management Board is,
however, authorized to exclude shareholder subscription rights:

aa) in the case of a capital increase for cash contribution, to the extent necessary to avoid
fractional shares; or

bb) in the case of a capital increase for contribution in kind; or

cc) in the case of a capital increase for cash contribution when the new shares are placed on a
domestic and/or foreign stock exchange in the context of a public offering.

The total shares to be issued via a capital increase against contribution in cash and/or in kind,
excluding preemptive rights and based on the authorizations mentioned above, shall not exceed
20% of the common stock. The calculation used is based on either the effective date of the
authorizations or the exercise of the authorizations, whichever amount is lower. The 20% limit
mentioned above shall take into account (i) treasury shares sold excluding preemptive rights after
the effective date of these authorizations (unless they service the entitlements of members of the
Management Board and/or employees under employee participation programs), (ii) shares that are
issued from other authorized capital existing on the effective date of these authorizations and
excluding preemptive rights during the effective period of these authorizations or resolved by the
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b)

same Annual General Meeting that resolved these authorizations, and (iii) shares to be issued
during the effective period of these authorizations to service convertible bonds and/or bonds with
warrants whose basis for authorization exists on the effective date of these authorizations provided
that the convertible bonds and/or bonds with warrants have been issued with the exclusion of the
preemptive rights of shareholders (unless they service the entitlements of members of the
Management Board and/or employees under employee participation programs).

With the Supervisory Board’s consent, the Management Board is authorized to determine the
further details of the capital increase and its implementation.

Pursuant to Section 5 (6) of the Articles of Association, with the Supervisory Board’s consent, the
Management Board is authorized to increase the common stock of the Company against
contribution in cash once or several times by a total of up to € 2,915,977.00 until and including
April 30, 2022 by issuing up to 2,915,977 new no-par-value bearer shares (Authorized Capital
2017-D).

Shareholders are principally entitled to subscription rights in the case of a capital increase. One or
more credit institutions may also subscribe to the shares with the obligation to offer the shares to
shareholders for subscription. With the Supervisory Board’s consent, the Management Board is,
however, authorized to exclude shareholder subscription rights:

aa) to the extent necessary to avoid fractional shares; or

bb) if the issue price of the new shares is not significantly below the market price of shares of the
same class already listed and the total number of shares issued against contribution in cash,
excluding subscription rights, during the term of this authorization does not exceed 10% of
the common stock on the date this authorization takes effect or at the time it is exercised, in
accordance with or in the respective application of Section 186 (3) sentence 4 AktG.

The total number of shares to be issued via capital increases against contribution in cash,
excluding subscription rights and based on the authorizations mentioned above, shall not exceed
20% of the common stock when calculated based on the authorizations’ effective date or exercise,
whichever amount is lower. This 20% limit shall take into account (i) treasury shares sold with the
exclusion of subscription rights after the effective date of these authorizations (unless they service
the entitlements of members of the Management Board and/or employees under employee
participation programs); (ii) shares to be issued with the exclusion of subscription rights during
the effective period of these authorizations from other authorized capital existing on the effective
date of these authorizations or to be resolved by the same Annual General Meeting resolving these
authorizations; and (iii) shares to be issued during the effective period of these authorizations to
service bonds with conversion or warrant rights, whose authorization basis exists on the effective
date of these authorizations, to the extent the bonds with conversion or warrant rights were issued
with the exclusion of shareholders’ subscription rights (unless they service the entitlements of
members of the Management Board and/or employees under employee participation programs).

With the Supervisory Board’s consent, the Management Board is authorized to determine the
further details of the capital increase and its implementation.

2. Conditional Capital

a.

According to Section 5 (6b) of the Articles of Association, the Company’s common stock is
conditionally increased by up to € 5,307,536.00, divided into a maximum of 5,307,536
no-par-value bearer shares (Conditional Capital 2016-I). The conditional capital increase serves
solely as a means to grant new shares to the holders of conversion or warrant rights, which will be
issued by the company or companies in which the Company has a direct or indirect majority
interest according to the authorizing resolution of the Annual General Meeting on June 2, 2016,
under Agenda Item 7 letter a). The shares will be issued at the respective conversion or exercise
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price to be determined in accordance with the resolution above. The conditional capital increase
will only be carried out to the extent that the holders of conversion or warrant rights exercise these
rights or fulfill conversion obligations under such bonds. The shares will be entitled to dividends
as of the beginning of the previous financial year, provided they were issued before the start of the
Company’s Annual General Meeting, or as of the beginning of the financial year in which they
were issued.

According to Section 5 (6e) of the Articles of Association, the Company’s common stock is
conditionally increased by up to € 188,985.00 through the issue of up to 188,985 new no-par-
value bearer shares of the Company (Conditional Capital 2008-IIT). The conditional capital
increase will only be executed to the extent that holders of the convertible bonds exercise their
conversion rights for conversion into ordinary shares of the Company. The new shares participate
in the Company’s profits from the beginning of the financial year, for which there has been no
resolution on the appropriation of accumulated income at the time of issuance. With the
Supervisory Board’s consent, the Management Board is authorized to determine the further details
of the capital increase and its implementation. On January 17, 2019, our Supervisory Board
resolved to adjust the conditional capital to reflect the issuance of new shares in 2018 based on the
exercise of 32,537 convertible bonds. This results in a reduction of the conditional capital 2008-I11
from EUR 188,985 to EUR 156,448, which was entered in the commercial register on February 1,
2019.

According to Section 5 (6g) of the Articles of Association, the Company’s common stock is
conditionally increased by up to € 995,162.00 through the issue of up to 995,162 new no-par-
value bearer shares of the Company (Conditional Capital 2016-IIT). The conditional capital serves
to meet the obligations of subscription rights that have been issued and exercised based on the
authorization resolved by the Annual General Meeting of June 2, 2016 under Agenda Item 9 letter
a). The conditional capital increase will only be executed to the extent that holders of subscription
rights exercise their right to subscribe to shares of the Company. The shares will be issued at the
exercise price set in each case as the issue amount in accordance with Agenda Item 9 letter a)
subparagraph (8) of the Annual General Meeting’s resolution dated June 2, 2016; Section 9 (1)
AktG remains unaffected. The new shares are entitled to dividends for the first time for the
financial year for which there has been no resolution by the Annual General Meeting on the
appropriation of accumulated income. The Management Board, and the Company’s Supervisory
Board where members of the Management Board are concerned, is authorized to determine the
additional details of the conditional capital increase and its execution.

POWER OF MANAGEMENT BOARD TO REPURCHASE SHARES

The Management Board’s power to repurchase the Company’s own shares is granted in Section 71 AktG and by
the authorization of the Annual General Meeting of May 23, 2014:

Until and including the date of April 30, 2019, the Company is authorized to repurchase its own shares in an
amount of up to 10% of the common stock existing at the time of the resolution (or possibly a lower amount of
common stock at the time of exercising this authorization) for any purpose permitted under the statutory limits.
The repurchase takes place at the Management Board’s discretion on either the stock exchange, through a public
offer or public invitation to submit a bid. The authorization may not be used for the purpose of trading in the
Company’s own shares. The intended use of treasury stock acquired under this authorization may be found under
Agenda Item 9 of the Annual General Meeting of May 23, 2014. These shares may be used as follows:

1.

The shares may be redeemed without the redemption or its execution requiring a further resolution of the
Annual General Meeting.

The shares may be sold other than on the stock exchange or shareholder offer if the shares are sold for cash
at a price that is not significantly below the market price of the Company’s shares of the same class at the
time of the sale.
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3. The shares may be sold for contribution in kind, particularly in conjunction with company mergers,
acquisitions of companies, parts of companies or interests in companies.

4. The shares may be used to fulfill subscription or conversion rights resulting from the exercise of options
and/or conversion rights or conversion obligations for Company shares.

5. The shares may be offered or transferred to employees of the Company and those of affiliated companies,
members of the Company’s management and those of affiliated companies and/or used to meet
commitments or obligations to purchase Company shares that were or will be granted to employees of the
Company or those of affiliated companies, members of the Company’s management or managers of
affiliated companies. The shares may also be used to fulfill obligations or rights to purchase Company
shares that will be agreed with the Company’s employees, members of the senior management and affiliates
in the context of employee participation programs.

If shares are used for the purposes mentioned above, shareholder subscription rights are excluded, with the
exception of share redemptions.

MATERIAL AGREEMENTS MADE BY THE COMPANY THAT FALL UNDER THE CONDITION OF
A CHANGE OF CONTROL AFTER A TAKEOVER BID

The Company has not entered into any material agreements that fall under the condition of a change of control
after a takeover bid.

COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS CONCLUDED BY THE COMPANY WITH MANAGEMENT
BOARD MEMBERS AND EMPLOYEES IN THE EVENT OF A TAKEOVER BID

Following a change of control, Management Board members may terminate their service contract and demand
the fixed salary and annual bonus still outstanding until the regular end of the service contract, however at least
200% of the fixed yearly gross salary and the annual bonus. Moreover, in such a case, all stock options,
convertible bonds and performance shares granted will become vested immediately and can be exercised after the
expiration of the statutory vesting or blackout periods.

Following a change of control, some Senior Management Group members may also terminate their employment
contract and demand a severance payment equal to one annual gross fixed salary and the full contractual bonus
for the calendar year in which the termination is exercised, whereby a target achievement rate of 100% shall be
applied. Moreover, in such a case, all stock options and performance shares granted will become vested
immediately and can be exercised after the expiration of the statutory vesting or blackout periods.

The following cases constitute a change of control: (i) MorphoSys transfers all or a material portion of the
Company’s assets to an unaffiliated entity, (ii) MorphoSys merges with an unaffiliated entity, (iii) MorphoSys
AG as dominated company becomes party to an agreement pursuant to Section 291 of the German Stock
Corporation Act or MorphoSys is integrated in accordance with Section 319 of the German Stock Corporation
Act, or (iv) a shareholder or third party directly or indirectly holds 30% or more of MorphoSys’s voting rights.

h) Subsequent Events

On January 26, 2019, we announced that in our lawsuit against Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S, the United
States (U.S.) District Court of Delaware, based on a hearing held November 27, 2018, ruled in a Court Order on
January 25, 2019, that the asserted claims of three MorphoSys patents with U.S. Patent Numbers 8,263,746,
9,200,061 and 9,758,590 are invalid. The Court thus granted a motion for Summary Judgement of invalidity filed
by Janssen Biotech and Genmab, A/S against the three patents held by MorphoSys. As a result of this decision,
the jury trial scheduled for February 2019 to consider Janssen’s and Genmab’s alleged infringement and the
validity of the MorphoSys patents did not take place. On January 31, 2019 we announced that we had settled the
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dispute with Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S. The parties agreed to drop the mutual claims related to the
litigation: MorphoSys dismissed claims for alleged patent infringement against Janssen Biotech and Genmab A/S
and agreed not to appeal from the court order dated January 25, 2019. Janssen and Genmab dismissed their
counterclaims against MorphoSys.

In early February 2019, we announced the appointment of David Trexler as President and Member of the Board
of Directors of MorphoSys US Inc. effective February 6, 2019. Mr. Trexler will lead the further development of
MorphoSys’s U.S. subsidiary with a focus on building commercial capabilities. Mr. Trexler joins MorphoSys
from EMD Serono, a subsidiary of Merck KGaA, Darmstadt. AT EMD Serono, he was responsible, among other
things, for establishing the first commercial organization of Merck KGaA’s oncology division in the U.S. and for
the market launch of the cancer drug avelumab for the treatment of metastatic Merkel cell carcinoma.

On February 19, 2019, Simon Moroney, CEO and co-founder of MorphoSys AG (informed the Company’s
Supervisory Board that he has decided not to renew his contract as a member of the company’s Management
Board. As a result of his decision, Dr. Moroney will step down as CEO on expiry of his current contract on
June 30, 2020, or when a successor is appointed, whichever comes sooner.

At the end of February 2019, our partner Janssen announced that it had received U.S. FDA approval for
Tremfya® One-Press, a single-dose, patient-controlled injector for adults with moderate-to-severe plaque
psoriasis. This is a device that allows patients to administer the drug subcutaneously by themselves and is thus
intended to provide a higher convenience to psoriasis patients with respect to the treatment of their chronic
disease.

On March 7, 2019 MorphoSys announced that during the first quarter of 2019, the Company in agreement with
the FDA implemented an amendment of the B-MIND study by introducing a co-primary endpoint into the trial.
The scientific rationale for the amendment is based on published literature as well as MorphoSys’s own pre-
clinical data, which indicate that MOR208 might be particularly active in patients who can be characterized by
the presence of a certain biomarker. Discussions with the FDA regarding the biomarker assay are currently being
planned and are expected to take place in the middle of 2019. The pre-planned, event-driven interim analysis of
B-MIND remains projected to take place in the second half of 2019. Depending on the outcome of the interim
analysis, an increase from 330 to 450 patients may be required, in which case an event-driven primary analysis of
the study is expected in the first half of 2021.

5. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS INFORMATION
Business Overview

This section provides background information on our Proprietary Development and Partnered Discovery
programs and our technologies. For information on events related to our programs and technologies that occurred
during 2018, please refer to Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations and Business Environment —
of this report. For information on respective events that occurred in 2019, please refer to Section 4h — Group
Management Report — Subsequent Events.

Our Proprietary Development activities are currently focused on the five clinical candidates:

e MOR208 — an antibody for the treatment of hematological (blood) cancers for which MorphoSys holds
exclusive worldwide commercial rights

*  MOR202 — an antibody for the treatment of multiple myeloma and other cancers as well as certain
autoimmune diseases for which we have signed a regional licensing agreement with I-Mab Biopharma for
development and commercialization in China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Macao

*  MORI106 — an antibody for the treatment of inflammatory diseases for which MorphoSys and Galapagos
entered into an exclusive license agreement with Novartis in July 2018

e MORI03/GSK3196165 — an antibody that we have fully out-licensed to GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) and which
is currently in clinical development at GSK for the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis
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*  MORI107 — a lanthipeptide developed by our subsidiary, Lanthio Pharma which is currently in preclinical
testing in oncology settings.

In addition to the programs listed above, we are pursuing several proprietary programs in earlier-stage research
and development, including MOR210, a preclinical antibody that was licensed to [-Mab in November 2018 for
China and certain other territories in Asia.

Our most advanced Partnered Discovery products and product candidates include:

Guselkumab (Tremfya®) — a HuCAL antibody targeting IL-23 that is being developed and commercialized by
our partner Janssen in plaque psoriasis and other indications. Guselkumab (Tremfya®) is approved in the United
States, Canada, European Union, Japan and a number of other countries worldwide.

Gantenerumab - a HuCAL antibody targeting amyloid beta that is in clinical testing by our partner Roche for the
treatment of Alzheimer’s disease.

Other programs - In addition to the two programs above, we have a large number of programs in various stages
of research and development from our partnerships with major pharmaceutical companies.

As of December 31, 2018, for both our proprietary and partnered programs, we had 61 programs in discovery and
25 programs in preclinical development.

The majority of our Proprietary Development product candidates and all product candidates in our Partnered
Discovery programs have been discovered and engineered using our advanced antibody technology platforms.
Our core platforms include:

HuCAL (Human Combinatorial Antibody Library)—HuCAL is our original technology platform, which
constitutes a collection or “library” of several billion distinct fully human antibodies. This platform enables rapid
selection of antibodies having high affinity and specificity as well as systematic optimization of antibodies to
precisely-defined specifications to increase the probability of successful clinical development.

Ylanthia—Ylanthia is our newest antibody library, which comprises over 100 billionfully human antibodies.
Ylanthia enables the generation of fully human antibody candidates with optimized biophysical properties, which
we believe offer a number of important advantages over competing platforms. This platform builds on our
experience in generating more than 100 therapeutic product candidates using our original HuCAL platform. We
believe Ylanthia will be the source of the next generation of therapeutic antibody candidates in our and our
partners’ future pipelines.

Lanthipeptides—Our lanthipeptide platform opens up new possibilities for discovering product candidates based
on highly specific and stable peptides, which are intended to bind and activate only one target receptor subtype.

The newest addition to the technology portfolio is our proprietary Helix-Turn-Helix (HTH) peptide technology.
In contrast to the lanthipeptides that are stabilized by amino acid modifications, the HTH peptides are stabilized
by their structure.

Please see “—Our Technology Platforms” for a more detailed description of our antibody technologies.

We are committed to investing in our platforms, generating new therapeutics and developing them into products
that address significant unmet medical needs.

We have an internationally-trained, multi-cultural team of more than 300 employees and consultants, including a
research and development team of approximately 260 scientists, clinicians and support staff. Our management
team and senior experts have deep experience and capabilities in biology, chemistry, product discovery and
clinical development.
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BACKGROUND ON ANTIBODIES AS THERAPEUTIC AGENTS

Antibodies, also known as immunoglobulins (Ig), are large, Y-shaped complex proteins that the immune system
uses to neutralize pathogens. Antibodies recognize and bind to foreign entities, such as bacteria and viruses, and
remove them from the bloodstream. Antibodies are essential to human life and between one and two billion
antibodies are continuously flowing throughout our bloodstream, fighting infections and diseases.

The antibody molecule itself has two distict functions: Firstly, antibodies have the ability to recognize and attach
themselves to pathogenic, or disease-causing, foreign molecules; and secondly, in recognizing and attaching
themselves to these pathogenic molecules, antibodies act as markers, signaling to other parts of the bodies’ own
immune system to attack and eliminate the pathogen.

Antigene . : Antigene
Binding Light Chains Binding
Site N N Site
Fab Domain
Fc Domain

Heavy Chains

As illustrated above, an IgG antibody, for example, consists of four polypeptide chains, two identical heavy
chains and two identical light chains, joined by chemical linkages known as disulfide bridges. The antigen-
binding fragment, or Fab, is a region on an antibody that binds to antigens. It is composed of one constant and
one variable region of each of the heavy and the light chain. The variable region acts as the “business” end of the
antibody for recognizing pathogens. The specific structure recognized by the variable region of an antibody,
whether a portion of a protein, another biological molecule or a unique molecule of a pathogen, is known as an
antigen. An antibody and the antigen that it recognizes fit together like a lock and key.

The Fc region, which resides at the other end of the antibody, interacts with the effector cells of the immune
system, and provides the signal that activates these cells to attack the pathogen. When an antigen is detected,
several types of immune system cells work together to recognize and respond to it. These responses include the
stimulation of B cells to produce additional antibodies and the stimulation of effector cells, including T cells and
natural killer, or NK, cells that act to eliminate the pathogen or foreign molecule.

The first methods for producing specific single defined antibodies that recognize a single antigen, or monoclonal
antibodies, in order to use them as therapeutics were developed approximately 40 years ago. While cancer and
inflammatory conditions have been the two largest disease areas for therapeutic antibody discovery, the broad
applicability of antibodies has led to a rapid expansion of their use in other indications, including infectious
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diseases, metabolic conditions and neurodegenerative diseases. As a result, more than 50 antibodies are currently
approved for marketing in various clinical applications. Amongst these are therapeutic antibodies which label
and/or block the activity of cell surface receptors or signaling molecules, stimulate the activity of cells or lead to
their elimination by effector cells, and bind toxic substances from the bloodstream to accelerate their elimination.

Initially, monoclonal antibodies were derived from mice. However, antibodies derived from mice are of limited
use as therapeutic agents since the human immune system recognizes such antibodies as foreign molecules and
may trigger a defense reaction against them. Technological advances over the last three decades have allowed the
modification of antibody structures to make them more “human-like”, culminating in the creation of fully human
antibodies. Currently, it is possible to generate fully human antibodies from transgenic mice. With our Human
Combinatorial Antibody Library (HuCal), we have developed a technology for the in vitro generation of highly
specific and fully human antibodies. Ylanthia, which is our most recent antibody technology platform, comprises
more than 100 billion distinct, different, fully human antibodies.

With our acquisition of Lanthio Pharma B.V. in 2015, we gained full access to Lanthio Pharma’s proprietary
LanthioPep technology, which is focused on the generation and development of lanthipeptides. Our lanthipeptide
platform opens up new possibilities for discovering product candidates based on highly specific and stable
peptides, which are intended to bind and activate only one target receptor subtype. The newest addition to the
technology portfolio is our proprietary Helix-Turn-Helix (HTH) peptide technology. In contrast to the
lanthipeptides that are stabilized by amino acid modifications, the HTH peptides are stabilized by their structure.
MorphoSys’s peptide technology aims at generating a novel class of structured and eminently stable peptides
enabling highly selective and high affinity target binding. Potential applications of peptides include the use as
stand-alone drugs, as fusion partners to proteins, or as agents that are chemically modified or fused to toxins.
This approach is intended to enable targeting of novel epitopes and to open up new target space.

Please see “Our Technology Platforms” for a more detailed description of our antibody technologies.
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PROPRIETARY DEVELOPMENT

The Proprietary Development segment focuses on developing therapeutic agents based on our proprietary
technology platforms, candidates in-licensed from other companies and programs co-developed with a partner.
During clinical development, we determine whether and at which point to pursue a partnership for later
development and commercialization. The drug candidate can then be either completely out-licensed or developed
further in cooperation with a pharmaceutical or biotechnology company (co-development). Alternatively,
individual projects may be developed on a proprietary basis until they reach the market, with MorphoSys
commercializing a product in selected regions. The most advanced programs in our Partnered Development
segment are discussed below.

Program Partner Target Disease area Preclinical Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3

= DLBCL (B-MIND) o
MOR208 - CD19 = DLBCL (L-MIND) o
= CLL (COSMOS) -
MOR202 I=Hals . CD38 Multiple myeloma
Biopharma
= Atape ]
Novartis/ dermatitis (iv)
MRS Galapagos L L Atopic
dermatitis (sc) |
MOR103/ .
3 |
GSK3196165 GSK GM-CSF  Inflammation
MOR107** i AT2-R Oncology under

investigation

6 proprietary or co-developed programs in discovery

mmm Proprietary Development Programs
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* For Development in China, Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan Programs

** A phase 1 study in healthy volunteers was completed; currently in preclinical investigation

MOR208
OVERVIEW

MOR208 (formerly known as XmAb5574) is an investigational, humanized Fc-engineered monoclonal antibody
directed against the antigen CD19, which is broadly expressed on the surface of B cells, a type of white blood
cell, and is thus a target against B cell malignancies. We are currently investigating MOR?208 for the treatment of
various B cell malignancies, including diffuse large B-cell lymphoma (DLBCL) and chronic lymphocytic
leukemia (CLL). The main focus of the current MOR208 development program is on relaped/refractory (r/r)
DLBCL, and we have two studies - L-MIND (phase 2) and B-MIND (p2/3) ongoing in that indication.
Information on the most recent developments with MOR208 can be found in Section 4a — Group Management
Report — Operations and Business Environment.

We are developing MOR208 pursuant to a collaboration and license agreement that we entered into in June 2010
with Xencor, Inc. (Xencor), and are responsible for all ongoing and future development and commercialization
activities in connection with MOR208. For more information on this agreement, please refer to Collaboration and
License Agreements — Collaboration and License Agreement with Xencor. We currently intend to commercialize
MOR208 ourselves in the U.S.

In October 2017, based on preliminary data from the ongoing L-MIND study, the FDA granted breakthrough
therapy designation (BTD) for MOR208 in combination with lenalidomide (LEN), for the treatment of patients
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with r/r DLBCL who are not eligible for high-dose chemotherapy and autologous stem cell transplantation. The
FDA grants this designation to a product candidate intended alone or in combination with one or more other
drugs to treat a serious or life-threatening disease or condition when preliminary data indicate that the product
candidate may demonstrate substantial improvement over existing therapies on one or more clinically-significant
endpoints, such as substantial treatment effects observed early in clinical development. The FDA’s grant of
breakthrough therapy designation is intended to expedite the development and review of product candidates.

In 2014, we were granted fast track designation for MOR208 by the FDA for the treatment of r/r DLBCL. The
FDA'’s fast track program is designed to facilitate the development and expedite the review of product candidates
intended, alone or in combination with one or more other drugs, for the treatment of a serious or life-threatening
disease or condition, and that demonstrates the potential to meet an unmet medical need for such diseases or
conditions. Also, the FDA and the European Commission have granted orphan drug designation (in 2014) and
orphan medicinal product status (in 2015), respectively, for MOR208 for DLBCL and CLL/small lymphocytic
lymphoma (SLL).

TREATMENT OF B CELL MALIGNANCIES AND DLBCL

B cell malignancies include lymphomas such as Non-Hodgkin’s Lymphoma, or NHL, including Diffuse Large
B-cell lymphoma (DLBCL), and leukemias such as CLL and Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemia (ALL).

First-line treatment of B cell malignancies, including DLBCL, most commonly consists of a combination
chemotherapy regimen plus rituximab (Rituxan®), also referred to commonly as R-CHOP (R, rituximab; CHOP,
cyclophosphamide, doxorubicin, vincristine and the corticosteroid prednisone). There is a scientific rationale for
the replacement of a CD20-targeting approach such as with rituximab (Rituxan®) with a CD19 targeting
antibody. First of all, CD19 has been shown to be expressed earlier and more broadly during B cell development
than CD20. Secondly, in clinical practice an anti-CD20 approach is often applied by physicians in the relapsed or
refractory (1/r) setting, even though patients have already shown a relapse to a prior therapy containing an anti-
CD20 antibody. In DLBCL, despite the therapeutic success of first-line R-CHOP, up to 40% of patients become
refractory to or relapse after initial treatment with fast progression of disease.

DLBCL patients who are refractory or relapse after R-CHOP have a poor prognosis and few therapeutic options.
Treatment options for r/r DLBCL are currently curative high-dose chemotherapy (HDCT) and subsequent
autologous stem cell transplantation (ASCT), if the patients are relatively fit. In late 2017, a first chimeric antigen
receptor-T cell (CAR-T) therapy (Yescarta®) was approved for the treatment of r/r DLBCL. It remains to be seen
what proportion of r/r patients will be considered to be eligible for such therapies, and how broadly such
therapies will be available for the foreseeable future. For those DLBCL patients who are not eligible for HDCT
and ASCT, or for CAR-T treatments, current treatments options are limited. For more information on approved
products and products in development, please refer to Competition — MOR 208.

In r/r DLBCL, approximately half of patients are eligible for HDCT followed by ASCT. Of those 1r/r DLBCL
patients who can be transplanted, about 50% suffer a further relapse. Therefore, the vast majority of DLBCL
patients relapsing after first-line treatment will ultimately be treated in a palliative setting, utilizing such
regimens as rituximab plus bendamustine. There remains a high unmet need for novel therapies in r/r patients,
especially in those not able to undergo HDCT and ASCT.

MOR208 FOR TREATMENT OF B CELL MALIGNANCIES, INCLUDING DLBCL

MOR208 - MECHANISM OF ACTION

MOR?208 binds to the CD19 antigen, which is broadly and homogeneously expressed across various B cell-
derived blood cancers. According to preclinical findings, CD19 is able to enhance B cell receptor signalling,
which is important for B cell survival and is considered an important therapeutic target for the treatment of B
cell-related lymphomas and leukemias.
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The suggested mechanism of action of MOR?208 is as follows: The Fc-engineered antibody MOR208 binds to the
CD19 antigen on the surface of blood cancer cells. This attracts the immune system’s natural killer cells, and/or
macrophages. Natural killer cells and macrophages attach themselves to the cancer cells by way of the MOR208
antibody and kill them through the processes of antibody-dependent cell-mediated cytotoxicity (ADCC) and
antibody-dependent cellular phagocytosis (ADCP). MOR208’s engineered Fc region is designed to designed to
increase the effectiveness of the body’s immune reaction to cancer cells. In addition to its immune-mediated
functions, the binding of MOR208 to CD19 may also lead to the direct killing of the tumor cells, or direct
cytotoxicity. The below figure depicts the suggested mechanisms of action of MOR208:
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We believe that, if approved by the authorities, MOR208 may offer a differentiated therapeutic approach in
DLBCL. In particular for r/r DLBCL patients who are ineligible for or not willing to undergo HDCT and ASCT,
available treatment options are limited. It is our goal to further clinically investigate MOR208 in this patient
segment who are in need of more treatment options.

DEVELOPMENT OF MOR208

MOR?208 has been or is being investigated in seven clinical trials in the following indications: DLBCL, NHL,
CLL/SLL and B cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia (B-ALL). A phase 1 trial in CLL/SLL and a phase 2 trial in
B-ALL were completed in 2013 and 2015, respectively. A phase 2 trial in NHL (including r/r DLBCL, mantle
cell lymphoma (MCL), follicular lymphoma (FL), and other indolent NHL) and an investigator-initiated phase 2
trial in CLL/SLL are currently ongoing. Three additional trials (two in DLBCL and one in CLL) in combination
with other therapies are also currently ongoing.

The main focus of the current MOR208 development program is on r/r DLBCL. Our L-MIND and B-MIND
trials are being conducted in this indication. Both trials are focusing on r/r DLBCL patients who are not eligible
for high-dose chemotherapy and subsequent autologous stem cell transplantation. Following its review of
preliminary data from the L-MIND study, in October 2017 the FDA awarded breakthrough therapy designation
for MOR208, in combination with LEN for the treatment of non-transplant eligible patients with r/r DLBCL.

ACTIVE CLINICAL COMBINATION TRIALS
Currently three clinical combination studies with MOR208 are ongoing — L-MIND, B-MIND and COSMOS.
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L-MIND: The L-MIND study is a phase 2 trial initiated in April 2016 to evaluate MOR208 in combination with
LEN in patients suffering from r/r DLBCL. The trial was designed as an open-label, single-arm study with the
primary endpoint being overall response rate (ORR) by independent review committee, with multiple secondary
endpoints, including progression-free survival (PFS), overall survival (OS) and time to progression (TTP). We
completed the safety run-in phase of the L-MIND trial in August 2016. No unexpected safety signals have been
detected and the trial was continued as planned. The trial enrolled patients with r/r DLBCL after up to three prior
lines of therapy, with at least one prior therapy including an anti-CD20 targeting therapy, such as rituximab
(Rituxan®). Patients enrolled could not be candidates for HDCT and ASCT. Patient enrollment was completed in
November 2017. The 81 patients enrolled had a median age of 72 years; 40/81 (49%) were in advanced Ann
Arbor stage III/IV; had a median of two prior lines of therapy; 32/81 (40%) were refractory to the previous
therapy line and 30/81 (37%) were rituximab-refractory in any line. The latest data from the L-MIND study of all
81 enrolled patients were presented at the American Society for Hematology (ASH) Annual Meeting in
December 2018. Details of these results can be found in Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations
and Business Environment.We are continuing our discussions with the FDA to evaluate possible paths to market,
including the possibility of an expedited regulatory submission and potential approval based primarily on the
L-MIND study.

B-MIND: The B-MIND trial is a phase 2/3 randomized, multicenter study in which patients are randomized in a
one-to-one fashion to receive either MOR208 in combination with bendamustine or rituximab (Rituxan®) in
combination with bendamustine. The study was initiated in September 2016 at 180 centers across Europe, the
Asia/Pacific region and the United States and aims to enroll patients suffering from r/r DLBCL. Patients must
have been treated previously with at least one but not more than three prior lines of therapy, including one anti-
CD20 targeted therapy, such as rituximab (Rituxan®). Patients must not be candidates for HDCT and ASCT. In
June 2017, the phase 3 part of B-MIND commenced. Prior to that, the Independent Data Monitoring Committee
of the trial had supported its continuation as per protocol and the transition of the study into its phase 3 part based
on the available data from the phase 2 safety evaluation. In Q1 2019, in agreement with the FDA the Company
implemented an amendment of the B-MIND study by introducing a co-primary endpoint based on a biomarker.
Discussions with the FDA regarding the biomarker assay are planned and are expected to take mid-2019.

COSMOS: In addition to the two trials in r/r DLBCL described above, we are currently evaluating MOR208 in a
phase 2 trial in CLL and SLL. The trial, named COSMOS, is a two-cohort open-label, multicenter study
evaluating the preliminary safety and efficacy of MOR208 combined with idelalisib (cohort A) or venetoclax
(cohort B) in patients with r/r CLL or SLL previously treated with Bruton’s Tyrosine Kinase inhibitor (BTKi)
ibrutinib.

Preliminary safety and efficacy data on all 11 patients enrolled in cohort A were presented at the European
Hematological Association (EHA) Annual Congress in June 2018, and preliminary safety and efficacy data on all
13 patients enrolled into cohort B were presented at the ASH Annual Meeting in December 2018. More detailed
information on these results can be found in Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations and Business
Environment.

Completed Clinical Trials
Phase 2a Clinical Trial with MOR208 as a single agent in r/r NHL including DLBCL

We conducted an open-label, phase 2a, multicenter study to assess the activity and safety of weekly doses of 12
mg/kg MOR208 as a single agent in 92 pre-treated patients with various subtypes of r/r NHL, including DLBCL,
MCL, and other indolent NHL (iNHL), including FL. Seventy-six of the 92 patients were evaluable for post-
baseline response assessment (with 16 patients discontinuing or being withdrawn from the study prior to any
post-baseline radiological assessment). The ORR was 36% in the DLBCL subgroup and 30% in iNHL patients
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(both based on evaluable patients). Based on all patients with DLBCL and iNHL in the study, the ORR was 26%
and 29%, respectively. In addition to patients achieving a partial or complete response (PR, CR), a clinical
benefit was also observed in other patients treated with MOR208. The majority of patients (5/6 DLBCL and
12/16 iNHL) with stable disease also had a reduction in the size of the target lesions. This resulted in a disease
control rate of 40% in DLBCL and 73% in iNHL patients. Moreover, PFS with MOR208 therapy was observed
to be comparable in rituximab-refractory and non-refractory NHL patients. Median PFS was 2.7 months (95% CI
2.1-15.4) in patients with DLBCL, 8.8 months (95% CI 5.3-27.1) in patients with FL and not reached (95% CI
2.0-NA) in patients with other iNHLs. Nine patients treated with MOR208 were still in remission, the longest
responses were ongoing for 26 months at data cut-off. Of the 16 patients who discontinued the study or were
withdrawn from the study prior to any post-baseline radiological assessment, three patients discontinued or were
withdrawn as a result of adverse events: one for dyspnea and one for thrombocytopenia — both considered
treatment related by the investigator; one for cytomegalovirus infection — not considered treatment related by the
investigator; four discontinued or were withdrawn as a result of death — none of these deaths were considered
treatment related by the investigator; one discontinued or was withdrawn as a result of protocol violation; and
eight discontinued or were withdrawn as a result of clinical progression or at the investigator’s decision without
confirmation by imaging (CT or PET-CT).

According to data reported at the ASH 2016 Annual Meeting, the most common adverse events were infusion-
related reactions occurring in 12% (11/92) of the patients and neutropenia occurring in 12% (11/92) of patients.
The incidence of MOR208 treatment-related serious adverse events was 6% (2/35) in DLBCL and 4% (2/45) in
iNHL patients. No treatment-related deaths were reported.

A total of 28 patients (30%) experienced an aggregate of 35 serious adverse events (SAEs), during the course of
the study as set forth below. SAEs were experienced in System Organ Classes of general disorders and
administration site conditions (eleven patients (12%) experienced twelve SAEs); infections and infestations
(seven patients (8%) experienced seven SAEs); blood and lymphatic system disorders (three patients (3%)
experienced five SAEs); gastrointestinal disorders (three patients (3%) experienced three SAEs); renal disorders
(two patients (2%) experienced two SAEs); respiratory disorders (two patients (2%) experienced two SAEs);
cardiac disorders (one patient (1%) experienced one SAE); injury and infestations (one patient (1%) experienced
one SAE); hepatobiliary disorders (one patient (1%) experienced one SAE) and neoplasms (one patient (1%)
experienced one SAE).

A causal relationship to the administration of MOR208 was suspected in four patients (4%). All of these SAEs
occurred in patients with an FL subtype (two patients (6%) experienced two SAEs) and a DLBCL subtype (two
patients (6%) experienced two SAEs). These four SAEs included myelodysplastic syndrome, genital herpes,
dyspnea, and febrile neutropenia. An SAE of myelodysplastic syndrome was reported for one patient
approximately one year after the start of therapy with MOR208. According to the investigator, the event was
attributed to previous anti-lymphoma treatment (eight cycles of R-CHOP administered during 2008), in addition
to the MOR208 therapy. The sponsor’s assessment of the SAE also revealed a family history of cancer and prior
exposure to chemotherapeutic agents which are a commonly reported cause of therapy-induced myelodysplastic
syndrome, and the chromosomal abnormalities in this patient were consistent with those reported after exposure
to alkylating agents with or without rituximab.

Phase 2 Investigator-Sponsored Trial with MOR208 in CLL (OSU-13031)

In an investigator-sponsored trial presented in December 2016, investigators evaluated MOR208 in combination
with LEN in three cohorts of patients with CLL: previously untreated CLL patients, r/r CLL patients and patients
with Richter’s Transformation. The trial also included a fourth cohort of ibrutinib-treated CLL patients with
identified resistance mutations to ibrutinib in the tumors (molecular relapse) but no confirmed clinical relapse,
where MOR208 was added to ibrutinib therapy. Historical data had generally shown poor clinical outcomes in
patients who relapse after treatment with the BTKi ibrutinib and whose leukemia cells carry a mutation in the
BTK gene prior to relapse.
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According to the data presented by investigators at the time, 34 patients had been enrolled in the study, 27
receiving MOR208 in combination with LEN (eleven of whom were in the previously untreated cohort, eleven in
the r/r cohort, five in the Richter’s Transformation cohort) and seven receiving MOR208 plus ibrutinib.

Ten out of 34 patients (safety cut-off May 31, 2016) (29%) experienced an aggregate of 19 SAEs across all
cohorts. SAEs were most frequently reported in the System Organ Classes of metabolism and nutrition disorders
(three patients (9%) experienced five SAEs); infections and infestations (three patients (9%) experienced four
SAEs); respiratory, thoracic and mediastinal disorders (two patients (6%) experienced two SAEs); general
disorders and administration site conditions (two patients (6%) experienced two SAEs) and investigations (two
patients (6%) experienced two SAEs). By Preferred Term, the most frequently reported SAEs were dyspnea (two
patients (6%) experienced two SAEs) and hypercalcaemia (one patient (3%) experienced two SAEs). All other
reported SAEs were single occurrences, including clostridium difficile colitis, metapneumovirus infection,
pneumocystis jirovecii pneumonia, sepsis, dehydration, fluid retention, hyponatraemia, confusional state,
cholelithiasis, renal failure, death (related to progression of underlying disease), systemic inflammatory response
syndrome, blood lactate dehydrogenase increase, weight decrease and infusion-related reaction.

A causal relationship to the administration of MOR208 was suspected in two patients (6%). These two SAEs
included an infusion-related reaction with symptoms of feeling warm, facial flushing, nausea, vomiting and
dizziness, and one dyspnea.

The most frequent hematological adverse event over all cohorts was thrombocytopenia in 47% of patients (6%
grade 3 or higher) and neutropenia in 35% (21% grade 3 or higher). There were no unexpected SAEs reported,
and no patient had developed progressive disease at the time of the abstract cut-off date. All enrolled patients
were evaluable per protocol. In the cohorts of patients with treatment-naive or relapsed disease, six out of ten
evaluable patients achieved partial response as best response. Importantly, responses generally deepened over
time in both cohorts. In addition, preliminary evidence of activity against CLL cells with BTK C481S was
observed in the cohort of patients with molecular progression on ibrutinib. BTK C481S variant allele frequency
decreased or at least stabilized in six out of seven patients.

In total 41 patients were enrolled as of 15 November 2018, thereof 40 received at least the first dose (1 mg/kg) of
MORO00208. All patients discontinued MOR208 treatment as per protocol. According to clinicaltrials.gov, the
status of the study is active, not recruiting. MorphoSys expects that the preparation of the clinical study report
will start in 2019.

Phase 2 Trial with MOR208 as single agent in ALL

In 2013, we initiated a phase 2 clinical trial of MOR208 in B cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia (B-ALL). The
U.S.-based open-label, multicenter, single-arm clinical trial was designed to assess the efficacy of MOR208 in
patients suffering from r/r B-ALL. Secondary outcome measures included response duration, safety and
pharmacokinetics of MOR208. A total of 22 patients were treated in this study, and responses to MOR208
therapy were observed in two patients (one CR, and one CR with incomplete hematologic recovery), yielding an
ORR of 9.1%. Recruitment was stopped after 22 patients had entered the treatment period.

CLL Phase 1 and Preclinical Development

In preclinical studies conducted by Xencor, MOR208 demonstrated FcyR-dependent anti-tumor activity against
multiple human B cell lymphomas in vitro and anti-tumor effects in mouse lymphoma models. Xencor also
demonstrated favorable half-life and B cell depletion in monkey models. Xencor submitted the IND for MOR208
to the FDA in February 2010.

In January 2013, Xencor completed a phase 1 clinical trial of MOR?208 in patients with high-risk, heavily-
pretreated CLL. Twenty-seven patients were enrolled and were evaluable for response. Dose levels from 0.3 to
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12 mg/kg were tested. The trial protocol was amended to include a period of extended dosing for a total of eight
patients at the 12 mg/kg dose to study the effect of longer duration of exposure on safety and response rate. The
primary endpoints for this clinical trial were safety, pharmacokinetics and immunogenicity. The secondary
endpoints for this trial included clinical responses assessed according to International Working Group on CLL
(IWCLL) 2008 and 1996 Guidelines. ORR by IWCLL 2008 criteria was 29.6% (eight partial responses in 27
evaluable patients). Using IWCLL 1996 response criteria resulted in a response rate of 66.7% (18 partial
responses).

MOR202
OVERVIEW

MOR202 is a recombinant human IgG1 HuCAL monoclonal antibody directed against the target molecule CD38.
CD38 is a highly expressed and clinically validated target in multiple myeloma (MM). Scientific research
suggests that an anti-CD38 antibody also may have therapeutic activity in solid tumors or autoimmune and other
diseases driven by autoantibodies, such as light chain amyloidosis or systemic lupus erythematosus.

We are currently conducting a phase 1/2a trial in MM. Data from this study were presented at the ASH Annual
Meeting in December 2018 and details can be found in Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations and
Business Environment. During 2018, we announced our decision not to continue development of MOR202 in
MM beyond completion of the currently ongoing trial. This is in line with previous announcements that we
would not continue to develop MOR202 in MM without having a suitable partner. However, we continue to
support our partner [-Mab’s development of MOR?202 and the planned start of a pivotal clinical trial in MM with
the aim to gain approval in MM for the greater Chinese market as planned.

Also during 2018, we made the decision not to start clinical development of MOR202 in NSCLC what we had
originally planned. This was due to Genmab and Janssen discontinuing a clinical study of the anti-CD38 antibody
daratumumab in combination with a checkpoint inhibitor for the treatment of NSCLC based on an analysis of
clinical interim data which identified serious safety issues.

We are continuing to evaluate the development of MOR202 in other indications outside of cancer, including
certain autoimmune diseases. We have an exclusive regional licensing agreement for MOR202 with [-Mab
Biopharma. Under the terms of the agreement signed in November 2017, I-Mab has the exclusive rights to
develop and commercialize MOR202 in China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macao. At signing, MorphoSys received
an immediate upfront payment of US$ 20 million. We are also entitled to receive additional success-based
clinical and commercial milestone payments from I-Mab of up to US$ 100 million, as well as tiered double-digit
royalties on net sales of MOR202 in the agreed regions.

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIPLE MYELOMA AND CURRENT TREATMENT

According to the National Cancer Institute SEER database, MM has an estimated annual U.S. incidence of
30,280. MM causes cancer cells to accumulate in the bone marrow, where they displace and suppress healthy
blood progenitor cell populations. MM is also characterized by destructive lytic bone lesions (rounded,
punched-out areas of bone), diffuse osteoporosis, bone pain, and the production of abnormal proteins, which
accumulate in the urine. Anemia is also present in most MM patients at the time of diagnosis and during
follow-up. Anemia in MM is multifactorial and is secondary to bone marrow replacement by malignant plasma
cells, chronic inflammation, relative erythropoietin deficiency, and vitamin deficiency.

There is currently no standard multiple myeloma treatment. A patient’s individual treatment plan is based on
such factors as age and general health, results of laboratory and cytogenetic (genomic) tests, symptoms and
disease complications, prior myeloma treatment, patient lifestyle, goals, views on quality of life, and personal
preferences. In addition, many cancer centers have developed their own guidelines for treating myeloma.
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MM drug therapies consist of two categories. The primary treatment regimens are cytoreductive chemotherapies
in combination with stem cell transplantation, aimed at achieving a cure, if possible. In addition, myeloma
patients require substantial supportive therapy aimed at managing the complications of the disease (such as bone
damage) and ameliorating the side effects of treatment. There are a number of drug classes for the treatment of
multiple myeloma: monoclonal antibodies, immunomodulatory drugs (IMiDs), proteasome inhibitors,
chemotherapy, histone deacetylase inhibitor, and steroids.

The introduction of CD38 monoclonal antibodies to the treatment landscape of MM, highlighted by the approval
of daratumumab, might be transformative. Based on their distinct mechanisms of action, a generally favorable
toxicity profile, and single agent activity, CD38 antibodies are considered as attractive partners in combination
regimens. Deep responses and prolonged PFS have been achieved in r/r MM patients when CD38 antibodies
were combined with immunomodulatory agents or proteasome inhibitors. For more information on the treatment
landscape for MM, please see the Competition — MOR 202 section.

MOR202 FOR THE TREATMENT OF MM
MOR202 - MECHANISM OF ACTION

MOR202 is our anti-CD38 antibody candidate, which is currently being developed in MM. This antibody
recognizes a unique epitope on CD38. Its key activities are ADCC and ADCP. It does not involve complement-
dependent cytotoxicity (CDC), an additional mechanism involved in tumor cell killing. In addition, preclinical
data point to a low level of NK-cell depletion.

The figure below depicts the suggested mechanism of action of MOR202:
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One of the key features of MOR202 is a low frequency of infusion-related reactions, leading to a short infusion
time of two hours or less.

DEVELOPMENT OF MOR202

We are currently investigating MOR202 alone and in combination with immunomodulatory drugs in a phase 1/2a
clinical trial program in patients with r/r MM. However, we have made the decision to not develop MOR202
further in MM once this trial is completed. We will continue to support our partner, I-Mab Biopharma, in their
development efforts. We filed an IND-equivalent in Germany and Austria to evaluate MOR202 in 2011.
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ACTIVE CLINICAL TRIALS

A phase 1/2a trial in patients with r/r MM is currently ongoing. The dose escalation trial comprises three arms:
MOR202, MOR202 in combination with the immunomodulatory drug (IMiD) lenalidomide (LEN), and MOR202
in combination with the IMiD pomalidomide (POM), in each case with low-dose dexamethasone (DEX).
Enrollment in the study completed in August 2017 and primary completion analysis was performed at a data
cut-off at December 31, 2017, a primary completion clinical study report was compiled and issued in August
2018.

The primary endpoints of the trial are safety, tolerability and recommended dose for MOR202 alone and in
combination with immunomodulatory drugs. Secondary outcome measures are pharmacokinetics and preliminary
efficacy based on ORR, duration of response, TTP, and PFS.

In the trial, MOR202 was administered as a two-hour or shorter infusion up to the highest planned dose of 16 mg/
kg. The latest data were presented at the ASH Annual Meeting in December 2018. Details of these results can be
found in Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations and Business Environment.

PRECLINICAL DEVELOPMENT

In vitro binding studies showed that the binding affinity of MOR202 to CD38 is in the low nanomolar range. The
in vivo efficacy of MOR202 was demonstrated in MM and lymphoma xenograft models in severe combined
immunodeficient (SCID) mice. MOR202 reduced tumor growth, increased survival and decreased bone lysis
induced by MM cells inoculated into the tibiae of SCID mice. In vitro combination studies of MOR202 with
LEN enhanced cytotoxicity on MM cell lines. /n vivo, the combination of MOR202 with LEN showed
synergistic effects on survival and inhibition of MM cell-induced bone lysis.

MOR106
OVERVIEW

MORI106 is an investigational fully human IgG1 monoclonal antibody derived from our Ylanthia library and
designed to selectively target IL-17C. MOR106 came from the strategic discovery and co-development alliance
between Galapagos and MorphoSys, in which both companies contributed their core technologies and expertise.
It is the first publicly disclosed monoclonal antibody targeting IL-17C in clinical development worldwide. In
preclinical studies, MOR106 has been shown to inhibit the binding of IL-17C to its receptor thus abolishing its
biological activity. Results from rodent inflammatory skin models of atopic dermatitis (AD) and psoriasis
support clinical development of MOR106 for the treatment of inflammatory diseases. In July 2018, we
announced with Galapagos that we had entered in a worldwide exclusive development and commercialization
agreement with Novartis Pharma AG (Novartis) for MOR106. More details about this agreement can be found in
the Collaborations and License Agreements section.

DESCRIPTION OF ATOPIC DERMATITIS AND CURRENT TREATMENTS

AD, the most severe and common type of eczema, is a chronic relapsing inflammatory skin disease that causes
severe itching, dry skin and rashes, predominantly on the face, inner side of the elbows and knees, and on hands
and feet. Scratching of the afflicted skin leads to a vicious cycle causing redness, swelling, cracking, scaling of
the skin and an increased risk of bacterial infection. Lichenification, thickening of the skin, is characteristic in
older children and adults. The National Eczema Association estimates that atopic dermatitis affects over

30 million Americans or up to 25% of children and 2-3% of adults. 60% of AD patients are diagnosed in the first
year of life, and 90% of patients have a disease onset before age five. Symptoms commonly fade during
childhood; however, approximately 10-30% of patients will suffer from AD for life. A smaller %age first
develop symptoms as adults.
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An array of treatment options is used to moisturize skin, reduce inflammation, clear eczema, alleviate itch, and
maximize restful sleep in AD patients, including over-the-counter emollients, pharmacotherapy orUV
phototherapy. Topical pharmacotherapies like topical corticosteroids (TCS), topical calcineurin-inhibitors (TCI)
or topical PDE4-inhibitors are mainly used to treat mild-to-moderate cases of AD. In moderate-to-severe cases of
AD, which cannot be controlled by topical agents alone, oral or parenteral systemic therapies are employed.
Current systemic therapies for moderate-to-severe, topical treatment-refractory patients comprise
immunosuppressants such as systemic corticosteroids, cyclosporine A, mycophenolate mofetil, methotrexate and
azathioprine.A targeted biologic agent applied as subcutaneous injection—Sanofi/Regeneron’s anti-IL-4 receptor
alpha antibody dupilumab (Dupixent®), was launched in 2017.

MOR106 FOR TREATMENT OF ATOPIC DERMATITIS
MOR106 MECHANISM OF ACTION

To our knowledge, MOR106 is the first antibody in clinical development worldwide targeting the IL-17C
antigen. The cytokine IL-17C represents a novel target, which is up-regulated in inflammatory skin disorders
such as psoriasis and AD. Based on findings from preclinical animal models, IL-17C is expected to play an
important pro-inflammatory role in such skin disorders. Importantly, IL-17C has been shown to be clearly
distinct from other members of the IL-17 cytokine family, not only its protein sequence, but also with regards to
its site of origin, its biological function, and its signalling pathway.

In inflammatory skin disorders, IL-17C has been identified as an important pro-inflammatory mediator. IL-17C
is the only known IL-17 family member primarily expressed by epithelial cells, such as skin keratinocytes.
IL-17Cbinds to its receptor consisting of the subunits IL-17-RA and IL-17-RE. Intracellular signalling occurs via
the unique IL-17-RE receptor chain, which is not targeted by any other IL-17 family member. Binding of IL-17C
to its receptor is assumed to trigger an inflammatory cascade that plays a promoting role in skin diseases.
MORI106 is designed to block this interaction by specifically binding to the cytokine, thereby neutralizing
IL-17C’s biological activity. The figure below depicts the suggested mechanism of action of MOR106:
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DEVELOPMENT OF MOR106

We kept on filing clinical trial applications in various European countries in 2017 to evaluate MOR106 in
clinical studies. We have investigated MOR106 in a phase 1 clinical trial in healthy volunteers and patients with
AD and initiated several additional clinical studies with our co-development partner Galapagos in 2018.

ACTIVE CLINICAL TRIALS

We reported results from a p1 study in September 2017, with more detailed results presented in February 2018,
investigating the safety, tolerability and pharmacokinetic profile of MOR106 when administered intravenously,
or IV, in single ascending doses in healthy volunteers as well as in multiple ascending doses in patients suffering
from atopic dermatitis. The primary objective of the phase 1 study was to evaluate the safety and tolerability of
MORI106. The study’s secondary objective was to characterize the pharmacokinetic profile of MOR106 in
healthy volunteers as well as AD patients. Exploratory objectives included the measurement of early signs of
efficacy. In the single ascending dose part of the study, 56 healthy volunteers received an infusion (MOR106
(n=42); placebo (n=14)), followed by a 7-week follow up period. In the multiple ascending dose part of the study,
25 patients diagnosed with moderate-to-severe AD (MOR106 (n=18); placebo (n=7)), received four infusions,
once a week for four weeks, followed by a 10-week follow-up period. Patients received either placebo or
MORI106 in a one-to-three ratio of placebo and three different dose levels of MOR106, 1, 4, and 10 mg/kg body
weight. Detailed information on the results of this study can be found in Section 4a — Group Management Report
— Operations and Business Environment.

In 2018, we initiated with Galapagos two clinical trials with MOR106 — the IGUANA phase 2 study in AD and a
phase 1 bridging study testing a subcutaneous formulation of MOR 106. More details on these trials can be found
in Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations and Business Environment. Preclinical Development

In vitro, MOR106 inhibits the binding of human IL-17C to its specific receptor subunit IL-17-RE and inhibits the
biological activity of IL-17C as determined in an NF-kB reporter gene assay in mouse NIH3T3 cells and in a
more physiological assay using primary human keratinocytes endogenously expressing IL-17-RE/RA. In these
functional assays, MOR106 inhibits the activity of cynomolgus monkey and mouse IL-17C with similar
potencies as human IL-17C (Vandeghinste ez al., 2018).

MOR106 prevented the occurrence of an AD-like skin inflammation in the MC903 (calcipotriol-induced) mouse
model, with a significant impact on epidermal and dermal thickening, inflammation and type 2 T helper cell
(Th2)-like gene expression. A therapeutic effect of MOR 106 administration was also shown in the flaky tail
mutant mouse, which exhibits a defective skin barrier function and spontaneously develops atopy evolving into a
progressive overt AD-like dermatitis, reproducing cardinal features of AD in man. Beyond models of AD,
MORI106 also displayed a protective effect in the IL-23-induced psoriasis-like skin inflammation mouse model
with a significant impact on ear thickness, epidermal thickening and IL-23-induced gene expression
(Vandeghinste et al., 2018)..

For the non-clinical safety assessment of MOR106, mouse and cynomolgus monkey were identified as
pharmacologically relevant animal species. The results of the in vivo toxicity studies demonstrated that MOR106
was well tolerated in mouse and cynomolgus monkey up to the highest dose tested.

MOR103/GSK3196165
OVERVIEW

MOR103/GSK3196165 is a fully human HuCAL antibody directed against the granulocyte-macrophage colony-
stimulating factor (GM-CSF). We discovered and advanced MOR103/GSK3196165 into clinical development
and our partner, GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) is now developing the antibody in the area of inflammatory diseases.
Due to its diverse functions in the immune system, GM-CSF can be considered a target for a broad spectrum of
anti-inflammatory therapies. GSK acquired the rights to MOR103/GSK3196165 pursuant to an exclusive
worldwide development and license agreement that was entered into in June 2013.

162



We were responsible for completing a phase 1b/2a clinical trial of MOR103/GSK3196165 in rheumatoid arthritis
(RA), which was completed in September 2012, and in multiple sclerosis (MS), which was completed in
September 2014. GSK is solely responsible, at its own cost, for all other development and commercialization
activities. GSK is currently evaluating this antibody for the treatment of RA.GSK conducted a phase 2b study in
patients with RA and a phase 2a study in patients with inflammatory hand OA. The corresponding study data
were presented at the 2018 American College of Rheumatology (ACR) Annual Meeting in October 2018. More
detailed information on the RA study results can be found in Section 4a — Group Management Report —
Operations and Business Environment. GSK has announced that it does not intend to pursue further development
in hand OA.

DESCRIPTION OF GM-CSF AND RHEUMATOID ARTHRITIS AND CURRENT TREATMENTS
GM-CSF

GM-CSF stimulates stem cells to produce granulocytes and macrophages and can subsequently activate these
differentiated immune cells. GM-CSF is part of the natural immune and inflammatory cascade but has also been
identified as an inflammatory mediator in autoimmune disorders like RA, leading toincreased production of
pro-inflammatory cytokines, chemokines and proteases and thereby ultimately to articular destruction.

GM-CSF can act as a pro-inflammatory cytokine mainly by inducing the activation, maturation and
differentiation of macrophages and dendritic cells, which are essential for the initiation and propagation of cell-
mediated immune responses.

RHEUMATOID ARTHRITIS

RA is a disabling and painful inflammatory condition which can lead to substantial loss of mobility. The disease
affects approximately four to six million people worldwide. In patients with RA, white blood cells move from the
bloodstream into the synovium, where they cause inflammation.

Disease-modifying anti-rheumatic drugs (DMARDS) are routinely prescribed as first-line therapies for RA and
have become the cornerstone of treatment, often prescribed to patients at all levels of disease severity. For
patients not responding to conventional DMARD treatment, TNF-o inhibitors are universally accepted as first-
line biologic agents owing to their efficacy and to physician familiarity and comfort with these agents’ long-term
post-marketing experience. Multiple treatment options with different mechanisms of action are available for
patients for whom TNF-o antibodies are contraindicated or who are not responding to TNF-o. inhibitor treatment.
The availability of Jak inhibitors (Xeljanz®, Olumiant®), an oral class of agents with efficacy comparable to that
of established biologic agents, is also expanding.
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MOR103/GSK3196165 FOR TREATMENT OF ANTI-INFLAMMATORY DISEASES
MOR103/GSK3196165 - MECHANISM OF ACTION

MORI103/GSK3196165 is a fully human HuCAL antibody directed against GM-CSF. GM-CSF levels are
significantly elevated in several inflammatory disorders and in the joints of RA patients. By neutralizing
GM-CSF, MOR103/GSK3196165 has demonstrated its ability to reduce GM-CSF induced proliferation and
activation of inflammatory cells and to intervene in several pathophysiological pathways in preclinical models of
RA. The figure below depicts the suggested mechanism of action of MOR103/GSK3196165:
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DEVELOPMENT OF MOR103/GSK3196165

MOR103/GSK3196165 has been investigated in various clinical trials addressing RA, OA and MS. Phase 1/2
trials conducted by MorphoSys in RA and MS were completed in 2012 and 2014, respectively. GSK has
investigated MOR103/GSK3196165 for the treatment of RA and OA in phase 2 studies.

During their Full-Year 2018 Earnings Call on February 6, 2019. GSK announced plans to start a pivotal study
with MOR103/GSK3196165 in the second half of 2019.

PHASE 2B CLINICAL TRIAL IN RA

In 2015, GSK announced the start of a phase 2b clinical study to investigate MOR103/GSK3196165 in RA. The
primary objective of the randomized, dose-adaptive, multicenter, double-blind, parallel group, placebo-controlled
study was to assess the efficacy of MOR103/GSK3196165, in combination with methotrexate in 210 patients
with active moderate-severe RA despite treatment with methotrexate. Data from this study were presented at the
2018 American College of Rheumatology (ACR) Annual Meeting in October 2018. More detailed information
on the results can be found in Section 4a — Group Management Report — Operations and Business Environment.

PHASE 2A CLINICAL TRIAL IN HAND OA

In April 2016, GSK initiated a phase 2a clinical study to investigate the effectiveness and safety of
MOR103/GSK3196165 in patients with inflammatory hand OA. The goal of the European multi-center double-
blind, placebo-controlled study was to investigate the efficacy and safety of subcutaneous injections of
MOR103/GSK3196165 in adult subjects with inflammatory hand OA. The main objective of the study was to
assess the efficacy potential of MOR103/GSK3196165 on pain in inflammatory hand OA. Secondary objectives
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included the safety and pharmacokinetics. Study data were presented at the 2018 American College of
Rheumatology (ACR) Annual Meeting in October 2018. GSK has announced that it does not intend to pursue
further development in hand OA.

Phase 1b/2a Clinical Trial in RA

In a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled phase 1b/2a trial in 96 mild-to-moderate RA patients that has
been completed by MorphoSys in 2012, MOR103/GSK3196165 was administered in four weekly doses of

0.3 mg/kg, 1.0 mg/kg or 1.5 mg/kg. The primary aim of the trial was to determine the safety and tolerability of
multiple doses of MOR103/GSK3196165 in patients with active RA. Secondary outcome measures were
pharmacokinetics, immunogenicity, and the product’s potential to improve clinical signs and symptoms of RA as
measured by Disease Activity Score in 28 joints, or DAS28, American College of Rheumatology score
measuring 20% / 50% / 70% improvement, or ACR20/50/70, and other criteria.

The best response was achieved in the 1.0 mg/kg dose cohort with an ACR20 score of 68% at week four, which
was significantly higher than in the control arm. Of particular importance was the fast onset of action observed:
within two weeks, up to 40% of patients achieved an ACR20 score. Improvement of DAS28 scores was rapid and
significant over the treatment period of the study. ACR20/50 scores at week four are depicted in the table below.

Results at week four
MOR103 MOR103 MOR103

(Majority of patients were on stable regimen of DMARDS) Placebo [0.3 mg/kg] [1.0 mg/kg] [1.5 mg/kg]
Number of patients . ......... .. .. .. .. 27 24 22 23
Proportion of patients achieving ACR20 ...................... 7% 25% 68% 30%
Proportion of patients achieving ACR50 ...................... 4% 4% 23% 9%

A total of 144 treatment-emergent adverse effects were reported in 54 (56.3%) subjects (42 subjects (60.9%) in
the MOR103/GSK3196165 groups and 12 (44.4%) in the pooled placebo group). The most common treatment-
emergent adverse event by preferred term in the active and placebo groups was nasopharyngitis. The incidences
of fatigue, cough and adverse events related to RA (worsening or flares) in the MOR103/GSK3196165 group
were more than four percentage points higher than in the placebo group. None of the adverse events were
consid